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NGi dung thong tin cdng b/ Content of Information disclosure:

Nghi quyét, Bién ban hop va tai litu hop Bai hii dbng cd dang thuémg nién 2025
gom Resolutfon, Meeting minutes and Meeting materials for the 2025 Amual General
Shareholders ' Meeting, include:

1. Nghi quvét Pai héi dong cd déng thudng nién nim 2025/ Resolution of the
2025 Annual Creneral Shareholders' Meeting of Sonadezi Chou Due Shareholding
Compery.

2. Bién ban hop Pai hi dbng cb déng thudmg nién nim 2025/ Meeting minutes of
the 2025 Annmual General Shareholders' Meeting of Sonadezi Chau Dhe Shareholding
Compeny,

3. Tai lidu hop chinh thire ciia Pai hai dong cf dong thudnmg nifn nim 2025/
Cifficial meeting materials af the 2025 Annual General Shareholders' Meeting.

4. Bién ban kiém tra didu kién tién hinh hop BHDCE thuimg nién 2025/ Minutes
of checking of conditions jor conducting the 2025 Amnual General Shareholders'
Meeting.

5. Bién ban kiém phiéu bifu quyét cdc ndi dung hop BHDCE thuimg nién nim
2025/ Minutes of voting on the agenda of the 2023 Annual General Sharcholders'
Meeting.

6. Bién ban kiém phiéu biu cir bé sung thanh vién Ban Kifm sodt cho théi gian
com laa cha nhigm ky IV (2022-2027) Minutes of the vote counting for the election of
additional member of the Board of Supervisors for the remaining rerm IV (2022-2027).

Thing tin néy 48 dugc cing b trén trang thing tin dién tl cha Cong ty vao ngly
A4 ’ﬂ#ﬂﬂif tai dudmg diin: http://www sonadezichanduc.com.vn
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SONADEZI CORPORATION
SONADEZI CHAU DUC
SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
MNo.: D6.2025/NQ-3ZC-DHDCD

Independence - Freedom — Happiness

Chau Due, April 11, 2025

RESOLUTION
2025 ANNUAL GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING
SONADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No, 59/2020/QH 14 dated 17/6/2020, amended
and supplemented by Law No. 03/2022/QH13 dated 11/01/2022;

Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 34/2019/QH14 dated 26/11/2019, amended
and supplemented by Law No. 56/2024/QH15 dated 29/11/2024;
Pursuant to the Charter of Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding Company;

Pursuant to the Minutes of the ballot counting of the contents at the 2025 Annual
General Shareholders’ Meeting of Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding Company.

RESOLVED

Article 1. Approved Report No. 57, 2025/BC-52C-HDQT dated March 20™, 2025
of the Board of Directors on production and business activities, corporate governance,
implementation of investment projects in 2024, evaluation of activities in 2024 by the
Board of Directors, and the Assessment report of the independent Board of Directors’
members,

Article 2. Approved Report No, §5.2025/BC-SZC-HDQT dated March 20%, 2025
of the Board of Directors on the results and usage of capital raised from the issuance of
additional shares to existing shareholders.

Article 3. Approved Report No, 56.2023/BC-SZC-HDQT dated March 207, 2023
of the Board of Directors on Private Corporate Bond Issuance activifies.

Article 4. Approved some key performance indicators of the Company in 2024 as

THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

follows:
: NO. CONTENT UNIT 2024 ACTUAL |
1 Revenue Million VND 910,893
2 Profit after tax Million VIND 302,127 |
3 '_Tﬂtal state budget liabilities Million VND 148,035
imcurrid
i !3351: construction Million VND 304,557
mvestiment
; Compensation for land Million VND 2024010
| _ _clcmncr: B
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Article 5. Approved the 2025 operating plan with the following key performance
indicators;

No. CONTENT UNIT 2025 PLAN

1 | Revenue Million VIND Q30,896

2 I. Profit after tax Million VIND 302,277
| Total state budget liabilities .

3 fiEared Million VIND 148,200

4 | Basic construction investment Million VND 437,617
Compensation for land oy

5 Slearane Million VND 1,207,710

Artiele 6. Approved the 2024 financial statements of Sonadezi Chau Duc
Shareholding Company, which have been audited by RSM Vietnam Auditing &
Consulting Co., Ltd.

Article 7. Approved the Board of Supervisors's report on the supervision of
production and business activities in 2024 at Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding
Company.

Article 8. Approved the list of 03 Auditing companies proposed by the Board of
Supervisors, including;
1. CPA VietNam Auditing Co., Ltd, (CPA VIETNAM);
2. RSM Vietnam Auditing & Consulting Co., Ltd. (RSM);
3. A&C Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd. (A&C),
Authorizes the Board of Directors 10 select one of the above three companies to
audit the 20235 financial statements of Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding Company.

Article 9. Approved the plan for allocation to funds and distribution of 2024
profit as follows:

No. Content ;ﬂg % EAT
1 | Charter capital 1,799,858,630,000
2 | Profit after tax (EAT) 302,127,157.852 B
3 | Allocation to funds 75,740,000,000 |  25.07%
3.1 | Development In w;;.a;tmcm Fund SD.GDI].GEIG.E;II;ﬁ | 16.55%
32 | Reward and Welfare Fund 12,000,000,000 3.97%
33 | Community Social Work Fund 7,000,000,000 2.32%
34 | Manager's Bonus Fund 740,000,000 0.24%
Ii s, | Beneyonid Reluat Pinticy Wock 6.000,000,000 1.99%
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No. Content ;::E % EAT
4 | Remaining profit afier fund allocation 226,387,157 852
5 | Remaining Profit from Previous Year 241,455,752,034
& | Total Remaining Profit 46?,342,9!}9,336__ o
7 | Dividends (cash payment)
7.1 | Percentape 10%s
7.2 | Estimated value 179,985, 863,000
2 iﬂerr:;TIi;EEuﬁt carried forward to 287857046, 886
Article 10. Approved the profit distribution plan for 2023 as follows:
Na. CONTENT :,:,‘;E ‘e Fov
| | Charter capital 1.799,858,630,000
2 Profit after tax 302.277,058,774
3 Allocation to funds 73,200,000,000 24.4%
3.1 | Development investment fund 50.000,000,000 16.5%
3.2 | Reward and Welfare Fund 10,000,000,000 3.3%
. 3.3 | Community Social Work Fund 7,000,000.000 2.3% |
34 | Manager's Bonus Fund GO0, 000,000 0.3% ':
15 ﬁ.f:g:} and Related Parties Work 6.,000,000.000 2 0%
4 Remaining profit after fund allocation 228 377,058,774
3 | Remaining profit from previous year 287.857,046.286
6 Total remaining profit 316,234,105,660
T Dividend
1.1 | Percentage 10%
7.2 | Estimated value 179,985 843,000
q Remaining profit carried forward to 136.248,242,660

the next year

The allocation to the employee welfare and reward fund and the managmnent.
reward fund in 2023 will be based on the production and business results of 2025 and

currént regulations,

WA B0 NSdeiena 0 UG . ComTT
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Article 11. Approved the 2024 remuneration and salarics of the Board of
Directors, the Board of Supervisors, and the Company Secretary / Person in charge of
Corporate Governance as follows:

- Salary of the full-time Head of the Board of Supervisors: 29,200,000 VNDYmonth

- Remuneration of Board of Directors” members: & 000,000 VND/person/month

- Remuneration of the Board of Supervisors’ members, Company Sccretary/

Person in charge of Corporate Governance: 4,000,000 VND/person/maonth

Based on the production and business results of 2024 and according to the
provisions of Circular 282016/ TT-BLDTBXH:

+ The total approved remuneration fund of the Board of Directors, the Board of
Supervisors, and Person in charge of Corporate Governance in 2024 iz VND
1. 498 000,000

The dedicated Head of the Board of Supervisors' salary, subject to final settlement
for the year, is VIND 837,293,000,

Article 12. Approval of the proposed remuneration and salaries for the year 2025
for the Board of Dhrectors, Board of Supervisors, Company Secretary/ Person in charge
of Corporate Governance as follows:

Monthly provisional allowance:

- Dedicated Head of the Board of Supervisors' salary; 34,200,000 VND/month
- Board of Directors® members' remuneration: 8,000,000 VND/person/month
- Remuneration for Member of the Board of Supervisors, Company Secretary/
Corporate Governance Officer: 4,000,000 VND/person/month

Based on the production and business results of 2025, the actual salary fund of the
Head of the Board of Supervisors and the actual remuneration of the Board of Directors
and the Member of the Board of Supervisors will be finalized within the salary fund
and the remuneration fund for managers in accordance with current regulations.

Article 13. Authorizes the Board of Directors to approve the adjustment of salary
and remuneration contents under the authority of the General Meeting of Sharcholders
if there is a change in relevant laws. The Board of Directors will report back on these
salary and remuneration adjustments at the nearest General Meeting of Shareholders,

Article 14. Approval of the adjustment of several business lines of the Company,
detailed as follows:

Nao, | Business lines and industries after adjustment Code

Real estate business, land use rights of the owner, user or lessee
Details: Real estate business.

(operates only when fully qualified to conduet business as pre-scribed 6R10
I | by law and in accordance with Article 10 of the Real Estate Business
Law MNo. 29/2023/QH1 5 dated November 28, 2023).

- Exclusion: Investment in the construction of cemetery infrastructure
for the transfer of land use rights associated with the in-frastructure.

i Pelaim )
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N . Business lines and industries after ad justment Code

Architectural activities and related techmical consultancy,

Details:

- Surveying, topographic mapping, and gealogical dnolling,

- Consulting on design, planning, and investment project formula-tion.
- Consulting on project management, supervision, appraisal, and 7110
inspection of civil, industrial, transportation, snd techmical in-
frastrocture construction works.

(operates only when fully qualified to conduct business as pre-scribed
by law).

Article 15. Approval of the 15® amendment and supplement to the Company's
Charter, effective from April 11, 2025, The Board of Directors and the Company's
legal representative are authorized to issue the amended Charter in accordance with
regilations.

Article 16. Approval of the Internal Regulations on Corporate Governance and
the Regulations on Operation of the Board of Directors of Sonadezi Chan - Dhe
Sharcholding Company (1% amendment and supplement), effective from Aprl 11,
2025, The Board of Directors is authorized to issus and implement these regulations in
accordance with the prevailing regulations.

Arficle 17, Approval of the dismissal of Ms. Trinh Thi Hoa from the position ofy,
Member of the Board of Supervisors. I.' )

1y
Article 18, Approval of the election results and the elected Member of the BDEI-L]- |'I

of Supervizors for the remaining term of term IV (2022 - 2027), being Ms, ?‘Jgu].?rm; ¥
Thanh Huong, | ug,,*’

Article 19. Approve the policy of discontinuing the use of the Greg Nomman
brand identity and Shark Logo for the Chau Due Golf course.

Article 20. Implementing Clause

This resolution is fully adopted at the 2025 Annunal Geneéral Shareholders’
Mecting of Sonadezi Chau Due Sharcholding Company and is effective from the date
of signing. The Board of Directors, Board of General Directors of the Company and
relevant individuals are to implement tasks according to the provisions of this
resoluticn,

Risiaiay; ONBEHALF OF THE GENERAL™
- Company Sharcholders T FSHAREHO

(posted oo the Company's wehsite); MEETING OF AN OF ED}]'DERS
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SONADEZI CORPORATION THE SOCIALIST REFUBLIC OF VIETNAM

SONADEZI CHAU DUC Independence - Freedom — Happiness
SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
MINUTES OF MEETING

2025 ANNUAL GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING
APRIL 11", 2025

sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding Company
Busmness Registration Certificate No, 3600899948 issued by the Department of Hﬁ
Planning and Investment of Dong Nai Province for the first time on 26/06/2007, 13" i
amended on May 04, 2024, ol
Company Headquarters: 9 Floor, Sonadezi Building, No. 01, Street 01, Bien Hoa -FI;';
1 Industrial Park, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province. R

The 2025 Annual General Shareholders® Meeting was held at 09:00 on April 11",
2025, at the Hall of Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding Company, Hot Bai - Chau Pha - Da
Bac Street, Huu Phuoc Village, Suoi Nghe Commune, Chau Due District, Ba Ria - Vung
Tau Province with the following contents:

A. Attendees:

1. Members of the Board of Directors of the Company;

2. Members of the Board of Supervisors of the Company;

3. Board of Management of the Company;

4. All Sharcholders / representatives of Shareholders attending the 2025 Annual
General Shareholders’ Meeting of the Company.

B. Content:

I. Opening session:

The General Meeting of Shareholders listened to Mr. Nguyen Tien Hung -
Representative of the Organizing Commitiee announcing the Minutes of inspection
of meeting conditions as follows:

1. The total number of voting shares of the Company is 179,985,863 shares.

2. The total number of Shareholders invited to attend the General Meeting of
Shareholders is 12,309 shareholders according to the list of shareholders on March 14t
2025 provided by Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation (VSDC),
representing 100% of the Company's share capital.

3. The total number of Shareholders and representatives of Sharcholders
attending the meeting today is 27 shareholders, holding 114,456,739 shares of the
Company, accounting for 63.59% of the total number of shares of the Company.

J
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4. All sharcholders and sharcholder representatives are eligible to attend the
meeting,

Pursuant to the provisions of the Law on Enterprises and the Company's Charter,
the 2025 Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting of Sonadezi Chau Duc Sharcholding
Company is legal and valid.

Mext, the Organizing Committee announced the Presidium, including:

1, Mr. Dinh Ngoc Thuan, Chairman of the Board of Directors is the Chairperson; W

2. Mr, Nguven Van Tuan, Member of the Board of Directors, General Director
15 a member,

The Chairperson nominated the Secretary Board, including:
1. Ms. Nguven Thi Mgoe Mai - Head of the Secretary Board:

2. Ms. Le Thi Kim Thoa - Member of the Secretary Board.

The Chairperson also introduced the list of personnel of the Ballot Counting
Committee, including:

l. Mr. Nguyen Tien Hung - Head of the Ballot Counting Committee;
2. Ms. Do Thi Duc Hanh - Deputy Head of the Ballot Counting Committee;
3. Ms. Nguyen Tuyet Ky Duyen — Member of the Ballot Counting Committee.

The personnel of the Ballot Counting Commitles was unanimously approved by
100% of the General Meeting of Shareholders by raising voting cards. The voting results
by ballot are as follows:

= The total number of votes 15 114,456,739 votes.
- Voting method: Raising voling cards and voting by ballot.
+ Total number of valid votes: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting for
100
+ Total number of invalid votes: 0/114,456,739 votes, accounting for (%%

+ Total number of votes approve: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting
for 100%

+ Total votes disapprove: V114,456,739 votes, accounting for 0%.
+ Total votes with abstention: 0/114,456,739 voles, accounting lor 0%.
- The personnel composition of the Ballot Counting Commitiee was
unanimously approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders,

The Chairperson announced the agenda of the 2025 Annual General Shareholders’
Meeting, which was unanimously approved 100% by the General Meeting of
Shareholders by raising voting cards. The voting results by ballot are as follows:

- The total number of voting shares 15 114,456,739 shares,
- Woting method: Raising voting cards and voting by ballot.

4
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+ Total valid votes: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 100%.

+ Total invalid voles: 0/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 0%.

+ Total votes approve: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 100%.
+ Total votes disapprove: /114,456,739 votes, accounting for 0%.

+ Total votes with abstention: 0/114,456,739 voies, accounting for 0%.

= The agenda of the 2025 Annual General Sharcholders® Meeting was
unanimously approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

The organizing committee disseminated, and the General Meeting of Shareholders
unanimously approved 100% by raising voting cards regarding the Working Regulations
and Nomination - Candidacy - Election guidelines supplementary election of member
of the Board of Supervisors of the 2025 Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting. The
voting results by ballot are as follows:

- The total number of voting shares is 114,456,739 shares.
- Voting method: Raising voting cards and voting by ballot.
+ Total valid votes: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 100%.
+ Total invalid votes: 0/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 0%,
+ Total voles approve: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 100%.
+ Total votes disapprove: 0/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 0%,
+ Total votes with abstention: 0/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 0%,
- The Working Regulations and Nomination - Candidacy - Election guidelines
supplementary election of member of the Board of Supervisors of the 2025 Annual

Cieneral Shareholders™ Meeting were unanimously approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

I. The main content of the meeting, Meeting summary as follows:

Al the beginning of the congress program, Mr. Nguven Van Tuan, representative
of the Board of Directors and the Company's Management, presented the Eeport on
production and business activities: Report on the results and usage of capital raised from
the 1ssuance of additional shares to existing shareholders; Report on Private Corporate
Bond Issuance activities; Company governance situation in 2024.

MNext, Mr. Tran Hao Hiep, an independent member of the Board of Directors,
presented the Evaluation Report of the independent member of the Board of Directors
of Sonadezi Chau Duc Sharcholding Company on the Company's operations in 2024,

After that Ms. Pham Thi Kim Hoa, on behalf of the Company's Board of
Supervisors, presented the Board of Supervisors's report on the supervision of
production and business activities in 2024 at Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding
Company and the Report on selecting an auditing unit to audit the 2025 financial
statement for Sonadezi Chau Due Sharcholding Company.

J
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Mext, Mr. Pham Anh Tuan, representing the Board of Directors, presented the
Proposal on the profit distribution plan for the year 2024 and the profit distribution plan
for the year 20235; the Proposal on amending and supplementing the Company's charter
and Regulations under the authority of the General Meeting of Shareholders; the
Approval of not-using the Greg Norman trademarks including logos, sevice marks and
branch name for Chao Due Goll Course,

Ms. Mguyen Phuong Hang, also representing the Board of Directors, presented the
content of the Submissions on the salary and remuneration of the members of the Board
of Directors and the Board of Supervisors, and the Submission on the dismissal of
members of the Board of Supervisors and the clection of additional members to the
Board of Supervisors for the remaining term I'V (2022 - 2027).

Based on the contents presented for approval at the 2025 Annual General
Sharcholders” Meeting, the General Meeting of Shareholders conducted discussions and
contributed opinions, as detailed below:

- Mr. Le Thien Thanh, holding 1,175,800 shares, asked about the impact of
reciprocal tarifls on the Company in the short and long term;

- Mr. Vu Quoc Huy, holding 7,000 shares, asked about the progress and selling
price of the Sonadezi Huu Phuoc Residential Area project;

= Ms. Hoang Phuong Thao, holding 100 shares, asked about improving profits
in the business operations of the Chau Duc golf course; what form will the 2024 and
2025 dividend be paid in, cash or shares?

- And some other sharcholder representatives also had opinions: What is the
expected profit each year of the BOT 768 project? Is the investment capital borrowed
for site clearance of the Company’s projects from a bank or a financial institution? How
has the application of reciprocal tariffs affected the consideration of continuing to
implement contracts with agreed customers and potential new customers?...

The Chairperson acknowledged and absorbed all opinions and answered the
questions of the shareholders present at the meeting in turn.

Immediately afterwards, the General Meeting of Shareholders proceeded to vote
on the contents with the following results:

1. Content 01: "Approving Report No. 57.2025/BC-SZC-HDQT dated March 20,
2025 of the Board of Directors on production and business activifies, corporate
governance sifuation, the implementation of investment projects in 2024, the conient
evaluating the activities in 2024 of the Board of Directors and the Evaluation Report of
the independent member of the Company's Board of Directors”™,

Voting results:
= The total number of ballots was 114,456,739,
- WYoting method: Raising ballot cards and voting by ballot

@
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+ Total valid votes: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 100%.

+ Total invalid votes: 0/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 0%.
+ Total votes approve: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 100%.

+ Total votes disapprove: /114,456,739 votes, accounting for 0%.
+ Total votes with abstention: 0/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 0%,
This content was unanimously approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

2. Content 02: "Approving Report No. 352025/ BC-SZC-HDQT dated March
20th, 2025 of the Company's Board of Directors on the results and usage of capital
raised from the issuance of additional shares io existing shareholders"

Voting results:

- Total number of ballots is 114,456,739 ballots,

- Voting method: Raising ballot cards and voting by ballot,
+ Total valid votes: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 100%,
+ Total invalid votes: 0/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 0%,
+ Total votes approve: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 100%.
+ Total votes disapprove: 0V114,456,739 votes, accounting for (%%,
+ Total votes with abstention: 0V114,456,739 votes, accounting for (%%,

This content was unanimously approved by the General Meeting of

Sharcholders.

3. Content 03: "Approval of Report No. 56.2025/BC-SZC-HDQT dated March
20th, 2025 of the Company's Beard of Directors on the issuance of privately placed
corporate bonds”.

Voting results:

- The total number of voting ballots is 114,456,739,

- Voting method: Raising Ballot cards and voting by Ballot.
+ Total valid votes: 114,456,739/114,456,73% votes, accounting for 100%.
+ Total invalid votes: V114,456,739 votes, accounting for 0%,
+ Total votes approve: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 100%.
+ Total votes disapprove: 0/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 0%.
+ Total votes with abstention: 0/114,456,739 votes, accounting for (0%,

This content was unanimously approved by the General Meeting of

Shareholders.
4. Content 04: "Approval af the 2025 operating plan™.

Some of the 2025 plan targets are as follows:

J




No. CONTENT Unit 2025 FL&[;'H.
| | Revenue Million VIND 930,896
2 | Profit after tax Million VIND 302277
| '_l"mal state budget liabilitics Million VND 148.200
meurred
4 | Basic construction investment Million VIND 437,617
. | Compensation for land i
¥ | e Million VIND 1.207.710
Yoting results:

- The total number of voting ballots is 114,456,739,
- Voting method: Raising Ballot cards and voting by Ballot.
+ Total valid votes: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 100%.
+ Total mvalid votes: /114,456,739 votes, accounting for 0%,
+ Total votes approve: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 100%.
+ Total votes disapprove: /114,456,739 votes, accounting for 0%,
+ Total votes with abstention: 0/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 0%
This content was unanimously approved by the General Meeting of
Sharecholders.

5. Content 05: "Approval of the 2024 financial staterments of Sonadezi Chau
Duc Shareholding Company audited by RSM Vieinam Aunditing and Consulfing
Company Limited"
Voling results:
- The total number of voting ballots is 114,456,739,
- Voting method: Raising Ballot cards and voting by Ballot.
+ Total valid votes: 114,456,739/114,456,739 voles, accounting for 100%.
+ Total invalid votes: 0/114,456,739 votes, accounting for (.
+ Total votes approve: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 100%.
+ Total votes disapprove: V114,456,739 voles, accounting for 0%.
+ Total votes with abstention: 0/114,456,739 votes, accounting for (1%,
This content was unanimously approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

6. Content 06: "Approval of the Board of Supervisors's report on the
supervision of the 2024 production and business activifies af Sonadezi Chan Duc
Shareholding Company™.

Voting results:
- The total number of voting ballots is 114,456,739,




7

- Voting method: Raising Ballot cards and voting by Ballot,
+ Total valid votes: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 100%,
+ Total invalid votes: 0/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 0%.
+ Total votes approve: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 100%.
+ Total votes disapprove: V114,456,739 votes, accounting for 0%.
+ Total votes with abstention: 0/1 14,456,739 votes, accounting for (1%,
This content was unanimously approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

7. Content 07: “Approving the list of 03 Awnditing companies submitted by the
Board of Supervisors and Authorizing the Board of Directors fo select one of the three
companies fo perform the anditing of the 2025 financial statements for Sonadezi Chau
Due Shareholding Company. "

The list of 03 Auditing companies submitted by the Board of Supervisors
includes:
- CPA VietNam Auditing Co., Ltd. (CPA VIETNAM);
- RSM Vietnam Auditing & Consulting Co., Lid. (RSM):
- A&C Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd. (A&C).
Voting results:
- The total number of ballots is 114,456,739 ballots.
- Voting method: Raising Ballot cards and voting by Ballot.
+ Total valid votes: 114,456,739/114,456,739 ballots, accounting for 100%
+ Total invalid votes: 0/114,456,739 ballots, accounting for 0%
+ Total votes approve: 114,437,239/114,456,739 ballots, accounting for
99.98%
+ Total votes disapprove: V114,456,739 ballots, accounting for (%

+ Total votes with abstention: 19,500/114,456,739 ballots, accounting for
0.02%

This content was unanimously approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

8. Content 08: “Approving the plan to allocate funds and distribute profiis for
the year 2024.™

o[ conen = |
1 !Ehan‘ﬂr capital - 1,799.858.630.000

2 | Profit after tax (EAT) 302,127,157.852

3 | Allocation to funds ~75.740.000,000 25.07%




Value % Profit
Ne. Cantenk (VND) | after tax
3.1 | Development Investment Fund S0, 000,000,000 16.55%
3.2 | Reward and Welfare Fund 12,000,000,000 | 3.97%
3.3 | Community Social Work Fund T,000,000,000 | 2.32%
34 | Manager's Bonus Fund 740,000,000 | 0.24%
15 Agency and Related Parties Work 6,000,000,000 1 990
Fund i
4 Remaining profit after fund allocation 226 387 157 852
5 Remaining Profit from Previous Year 241.455,752.034
& | Total Remaining Profil 467,842,909 886
7 | Dividends
7.1 | Percentage 10%
7.2 | Estimated value 179 985 863,000
g Remaining profit carried forward to 287857046886
the next vear
Voling resuls:

- The total number of ballots 15 114,456,739 ballots.

- Voling method: Raising Ballot cards and voting by Ballot,
+ Total valid voies: 114,456,739/114,456,739 voles, accounting for 100%.
+ Total invalid votes: 0/114,456,739 votes. accounting for 0%.
+ Total votes approve: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 100%.
+ Total votes disapprove: 0V114,456,739 votes, accounting for (%%,

+ Total votes with abstention: /114,456,739 votes, accounting for 0%,
This content was unanimously approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

9. Content 09: “Approving the profit disiribution plan for the year 20257,

No. |T CONTENT Biorios o
Charter capital 1,799.858,630,000

2 Profit after tax 302,277,058,774

3 Allocation 1o funds 73,900,000,000 24.4%

3.1 | Development investment fund 50,000,000,000 16.5%

32 | Reward and Welfare Fund 10,000,000,000 33%

33 | Community Social Work Fund 7,000,000,000 2.3%

34 | Manager's Bonus Fund Q00,000,000 i G.B;"




No. CONTENT m et
315 ?f:gw and Related Parties Work 6.000,000.000 2 0%
4 | Remaining profit after fund allocation 228,377.058,774
5 Remaining profil from previous year 287,857,046,880
6 Total remaining profit 516,234,105,660
7 Dividend
7.1 | Percentage 104
7.2 | Estimated value an 179.985,863.000
_E_ - 5; éﬁéﬁiﬁﬂm carried forward 1o 336,248.242,660 |

Voling results:
- The total number of ballots is 114,456,739 hallots,
Voting method: Raising Ballot cards and voting by Ballot,
+ Total vahid votes: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 100%.
+ Total invalid votes: 0V114,456.739 votes, accounting for (%4,
+ Total votes approve: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 100%,
+ Total votes disapprove: V114,456,739 votes, accounting for 0%.
+ Total votes with abstention: 0/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 0%,
This content was unanimously approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.
1. Content 10: “Approving the 2024 remuneration and salaries of the Board of
Directors, the Board of Supervisors, and the Company Secrefary / Person in charge of
Corporate Governance ™.
Voting results:
- The total number of ballots is 114,456,739 ballots.
- Voling method: Raising Ballot cards and voting by Ballot.
+ Total valid votes: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 100%,
+ Total invalid votes: 0/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 0%.
+ Total votes approve: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 100%.
+ Total votes disapprove: /114,456,739 votes, accounting for (0%,
+ Total votes with abstention: 0/114,456,739 votes, accounting for (%%,
This Content was unanimously approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

11. Content 11: “Approval of remuneration and salaries for the year 2025 for
the Board af Directors, Board af Supervisors, Company Secretary’ Person in charge
af Caorparate Governance™,




1]

Vaoting results:

- The total number of ballots is 114,456,739 ballots.

- Voting method: Raising ballot cards and voting by ballot,
+ Total valid votes: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 100%.
+ Total invalid votes: (/114,456,739 votes, accounting for (0%,
+ Total votes approve: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 100%.
+ Total votes disapprove: /114,456,739 votes, accounting for 0%.
+ Total votes with abstention: 0/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 0%.

This Content was unanimously approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders,

12, Content 12: “Authorizing the Board of Directors I approve adjustmenis (o
the Content on salaries and remuneration under the authority of the General Meeting
of Shareholders if there are any changes in relevant lows, The Board of Directors will
report these adjusted salaries and remuneration af the nearest General Meeting of
Sharcholders”

Voting results:
- The total number of ballots is 114,456,739 hallots.
- Voting method: Raising ballot cards and voting by ballot.
+ Total valid votes: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 100%.
+ Total invalid votes: 0/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 0%,
+ Total votes approve: 114,007,239/114,456,739 voles, accounting for
99.61%.
+ Total votes disapprove: 449,500/114,456,739 votes, accounting for (,39%,
+ Total votes with abstention: 0/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 0%,
This Content was unanimously approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

13 Content 13: “dpproval af the adjustment of several business lines of the

Company .

MNo. Business lines and industries after adjustment Code

Feal estate business, land wse rights of the owner, user or lessec

Details: Real estate business,

{operates only when fully qualified to conduct business as pre-scribed by | ga10
I | law and in accordance with Article 10 of the Real Estate Business Law (Main)
No. 292023/QH15 dated November 28, 2023).

= Exclusion: Investment in the construction of cemetery infrastructure for
the transfer of land use rights associated with the in-frastructure.




No. | Business lines and industries after adjustment Code

| Architectural activities and related technical consultancy.

Details:
- Surveying, topographic mapping, and geological drilling.

- Consulting on design, planning, and investment project formula-tion,

- Consulting on project management, supervision, appraisal, and 7110

inspection of civil, industrial, transportation, and technical in-frastructure
construction works.

(operates only when fully qualified 1o conduct business as prescribed by
law ).

Voting results:
- The total number of ballots is 114,456,739 ballots.
- Voting method: Raising ballot cards and voting by ballot.
+ Total valid votes: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 100%.
+ Total invalid votes: /114,456,739 votes, accounting for (%%,
+ Total votes approve: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 100%.
+ Total votes disapprove: (V114,456,739 voles, accounting for (0%,
+ Total votes with abstention: /114,456,739 votes, accounting for (%%,
This Content was unanimously approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

14. Content 14: “Approval of the 15" amendment and supplement to the
Company's Charter, effective from 11042025, The Board of Directors and the
Company's legal representative are authorized to issue the amended Charter in
accerdance with regulations”.

Voting results:

- The total number of ballots is 114,456,739 ballots.

- Voting method: Raising ballot cards and voting by ballot.
+ Total valid votes: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 100%.
+ Total invalid votes: /114,456,739 votes, accounting for 0%.
-+ Total votes approve: 114,456,73%/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 100%.
+ Total votes disapprove: 0/114,456,739 votes, accounting for (%,
+ Total votes with abstention: 0/114,456,739 votes, accounting for %%,

This Content was unanimously approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

15. Content 15: "Approving the Internal Regulaiions an Corporate Governance
and the Regulations on Operation of the Board of Directors of Senadezi Chaw Puc
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Shareholding Company (I amendment and supplement), effective from 117042025,
Assigning the Board of Direciors fo isswe and implement the Regulations in

accerdance with curreni regulations.”

Voting results:
- The total number of ballots is 114,456,739 ballots.
- Voting method: Raising ballot cards and voting by ballot.

+ Total valid votes: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 100%,
+ Total invalid votes: (/114,456,739 votes, accounting for (1%.
+ Total votes approve: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 100%.
+ Total votes disapprove: /114,456,739 votes, accounting for 0%,
+ Total votes with abstention: /114,456,739 votes, accounting for 0%,
This Content was unanimously approved by the General Meeting of

Shareholders,

16, Content sixteen: “Approving the dismissal of Ms. Trinh Thi Hoa from the

position of member of the Board of Supervisors™.

Voling results:

- The total number of ballots is 114,456,739 ballots.
- Voting method: Raising ballot cards and voting by ballot.

+ Total valid votes: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 100%.
+ Total invalid votes: 0/114,456,739 votes, accounting for %%,
+ Total votes approve: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 100%.
+ Total votes disapprove: V114,456,739 votes, accounting for 0%.
+ Total votes with abstention: 0/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 0%,
This Content was unanimously approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

17. Content 17: “Approval of the policy fo discontinue the use of the Greg
Norman Brand and Shark Logo for the Chau Due Golf Course”,
Voting results:
- The total number of ballots is 114,456,739 ballots,
- Voting method: Raising ballol cards and voting by ballot.

+ Total valid votes: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 100%:,
+ Total invalid votes: V114,456,739 votes, accounting for (%4,
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+ Total votes approve: 114,007,239/114,456,739 votes, sccounting for
99.61%.

+ Total votes disapprove: 449,500/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 0.39%,.
+ Total votes with abstention: 04114,456,739 votes, accounting for 0%,

This Content was unanimously approved by the General Mecting of
Shareholders,

Immediately afierwards, the representative of the Secretary Board read the drafi
Resolution of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for the vear 2025, and the
Chairperson instructed the General Meeting of Shareholders to vote to approve the Content
of the Resolution with the following resulis:

- The total number of votes is 114,456,739 ballots.
- VYoting method: Raising voting cards and voting by ballot.
+ Total vahd votes: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 100%.
+ Total invalid voles: 0/114,456,739 vates, accounting for (0%,
+ Total votes approve: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 100%.
+ Total votes disapprove: 0/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 0%,
+ Total votes with abstention: 0/114,456,739 voles, accounting for (%.

- The Resolution of the 2025 Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting was
unanimously approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Il End of meeting:

The 2025 Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting of Sonadezi Chau Duc
Shareholding Company ended at 11:35 on the same day. The Minutes of the GMS were

read publicly to all attending shareholders and were approved by the 2025 Annual
General Sharcholders’ Meeting with the following results:

- The total number of votes is 114,456,739 ballots.
- Woting methed: Raising voting cards and voting by ballot.

+ Total valid votes: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 100%.
+ Total invalid votes: V114,456,739 votes, accounling for 0%,
+ Total votes approve: 114,456,739/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 100%.
+ Total voies disapprove: 0/114,456,739 votes, accounting for 0%.
+ Total votes with abstention: 0/114,456,739 votes, accounting for (W%a.
- The Minutes of the 2025 Annual General Sharcholders’® Meeting were
unanimously approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.




14

The Minutes of the General Meeting of Sharcholders and Resolution will be sent
to the shareholders by means of publication on the Company's electronic information
page at: www.sonadezichanduc.com.vn; Information disclosure systam ECM of Ho
Chi Mich City Stock Exchange at: htips://ecm hax.sn/hoscecm.

The Chairpersen and Secretacy co-signed the Minutes of the General Meeting of ]
Shareholders.

CHAIRMAN OF THE EOD ON BEHALF OF THE
SECRETARY BOARD

P

Nguyen Thi Ngoc Mai

vl somadezichaudus. com.yn
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SONADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHDL DING COMPANY
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SHAREHOLDER MATERIALS
AGENDA OF THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Scheduled Date: April 11", 2025
Fere: Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding Company Office, Hoi Bai - Chau Pha - Da Bac Road,
Huu Phuoc Village, Suoi Nghe Commune, Chau Duc Districi, Ba Ria - Vung Tau Province

No. Time Description

. O07h00 - | Welcoming delegates, registering attendees, distributing meeting
08h30 AM | materials, and voting ballots to shareholders

{18h30 | Opening Ceremony
Feport on Meeting Eligibility Verification
. Statement of Purpose & Introduction of the Delegates
[ oRh30 - | Introduction of the Chairperson, nomination of the Annual
|

[

(%

4 | 09h00 AM General Meeting Secretaries, and election of the Vote Counling
Committee

5 Approval of the meeting agenda

; Approval of the regulations on the operation of meeting
Contents

Report on the business result of the Board of Directors in 20124
and the operational plan for the year 2025

7 Audited financial statements m 2024

Report on supervising Chauw Duc Shareholding Company

’ business activities in 2024 of the Board of Supervisors

9 Proposal for the sclection of auditing firm as the auditor for the
financial statements m 2025

10 | opgp. Profit distribution plan, Fund establishment

11 | 0ShdD AM Remuneration of the Board of Dircctors, Salaries - remuneration
of the Board of Supervisors in 2024 and plan for the year 2023
Amendments to the Company's Charter and regulations under the
authority of the General Meeting of Shareholders

Proposal on regarding the dismissal of a Member of the Board of
13 Supervisors and the election of a replacement Member of the Board
of Supervisors for the remaining term of Term [V (2022 — 2027)
Other matters under the authority of the General Meeting of

——

i Shasehiolders (if anplicable)
15 b Approval of Agenda items by Voting
1000 AN
U s | s Firask (refreshments will be served)
10h30 AM |
16 Armaunr:n:mem of the vote counting results

17 loh3o - | Approval of the Resolution and Mecting Minutes of the General
11h15 AM | Meeting of Shareholders
| Closing Ceremony by Company Leadersh!p & Conclusion of the
| Meeting

18

W sonadez|icraldos.com.am




SONADEZTI CORPORATION THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
SONADEZI CHAU DUC Independence - Freedom — Happiness

SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

WORKING REGULATIONS
OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING — 2025

Article 1. General Provisions:

1.1. The working regulations of the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting
(AGM) apply to the organization of the 2025 AGM of Sonadezi Chau Duc
Shareholding Company.

1.2, This Charter specifics the riphts and obligations of the parties participating
in the meeting, the conditions, and the procedures for conducting the meeting.

1.3, Sharcholders and participating parties are responsible for complying with the
provigions of this Charter.

Article 2. The Presidium, Chairperson, Rights and Obligations of the
Presidiom:

2.1. The Presidium ecomprises the Chairman of the Board of Directors and a
member of the Board of Directors. The Chairman of the Board of Directors of the
Company is the Chairperson of the AGM. The Chairperson presides over the meeting,

2.2. Tasks of The Presiding and the Chairperson:

- Preside aver the 2025 Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting (AGM}, f’ e

- Guide Shareholders in discussions. i ;‘f_ 6y

- Submit draft, verdict of issues for the General Meeting of Shareholders {Gbﬂﬁ_}_ R
.Il Ml :|_.'I |' .: |'_

io vote.
- Respond to matters raised by GMS. )

- Work according to the principle of democratic centralism, conduct the AGM
meeting in a lawful and orderly manner, and reflect the wishes of the majonty of
Shareholders and Shareholder representatives present.

Article 3. Secretary, Rights and Obligations of the Secretary:

3.1. The secretary, introduced by the Chairperson, is responsible to the
Chairperson and the GMS for their duties.

3.2. Tasks of the secretary of the Meeting:
- Fully, accurately and truthly recorded the documents at the meeting.

- Assist the Chairperson in announcing draft documents, conclusions, resolutions
of the GMS, and notices from the Chairperson to Shareholders upon request.

- Receipt of comment registration forms of sharcholders.

Article 4. Vote Counting Committece, Rights and Obligations of the Vote
Connting Committee:

4.1. The Vote Counting Committee is nominated by the Chairperson and
approved by the GMS. Members of the Vote Counting Committee may be Shareholders.

4.2. The Vote Counting Committee has the following tasks:

- Check and supervise the voting of Shareholders and Sharcholder representatives.
- Organize vote counting,

o anrpEsre2oh suduc.comayn
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- Prepare the voting minutes report and announce it to the GMS,

- Submit the voting minutes report to the Chairperson and the Secretariat to
update into the minutes of the AGM.

Article 5. Verification of Meeting Conditions:

5.1. Personnel to verify the conditions for conducting the GMS are nominated by
the Board of Directors.

5.2, The person verifying the conditions for conducting the meeting checks the
attendance conditions of the attending Shareholders; the conditions for conducting the
meeting; distributes documents related to the meeting; reports to the GMS on the results
of verifying the conditions for conducting the meeting,

Article 6. Rights and Obligations of Shareholders/ Shareholder
Representatives Attending the AGM:

6.1. Conditions for participation:

Shareholders or Shareholder representatives who own voting shares of the
Company on the record dated {14/03/2025) are entitled to attend the 2025 AGM.

6.2. Rights and obligations of elimble Sharcholders attending the meeting:

- Each Shareholder or Shareholder representative attending the meeting must
bring personal identification documents (ID or Passport, ctc.), Registration/Power of
Attorney form (original) to submit to the Organizing Committee for verification of
eligibility.

- Each attending Shareholder will receive meeting materials including: reading
matenals, voting slips, voting cards, blank paper, and pens. The slips will be coded (to
facilitate the recording of Sharcholders' opinions and vote counting) and indicate the
number of shares owned/represented, Shareholders are responsible for immediately
informing the Eligibility Verification Board about any errors related to their
information.

- During the meeting, if a Sharecholder needs to leave the hall for personal
reasons, they must maintain order to avoid disturbing other Shareholders and
interrupting the meeting's proceedings and the Chairperson's work.

- During the meeting, Shareholders must comply with the Chairperson's
instructions, behave civilly and politely, and refrain from causing disorder.

- Shareholders must maintain confidentiality, speaking discipline, and adhere to
regulations for document use and preservation.

- Shareholders and authorized representatives attending the meeting must strictly
comply with the working regulations of the GMS. Shareholders violating these
regulations will be subject to review by the Chairperson and may face disciplinary
actions according to the Law on Enterprises, depending on the severity of the violation,

- Shareholders arriving late have the right to register immediately and participate
in voling at the meeting; however, the Chairperson is not obligated to pause the meeting
for their registration, and the validity of previously conducted voting rounds shall not
be affected.

Article 7. Conduct of the Meeting:

The AGM may proceed when the attending Shareholders represent at least 50% of
the total voting shares according to the list of Sharcholders finaljze

YA SN RS ZIC T a L :|I_I 5, R T
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Article 8. Expressing Opinions During the Meeting;

Shareholders wishing to contribute, discuss, or debate should raise their hands.
Unly when invited by the Chairperson may they begin speaking. Each Shareholder's
speaking time is limited to 03 minutes; content should be concise, succinct, and avoid
repetition.

Article 2. Voting Procedures:

9.1. Shareholders and authorized representatives shall vote on matters at the
meeting by raising their Voting Cards and completing the Voting Slips.

9.2. All Shareholders and representatives of Shareholder groups aftending the
meeting have the right to vote on matters within the GMS's authority. Voting rights
correspond to the number of shares owned and the number of shares aathorized.

8.3, Matters voted on during the 2025 GMS are approved as follows:

- Approval of business line adjustments requires at least 65% of the total votes of
all Sharcholders or Shareholder representatives present and voting at the meeting.

- Approval of other matters (excluding the election of members of the Board of
Directors) requires more than 50% ol the total votes of all Shareholders or Shareholder
representatives present and voting at the meeting,

Article 10. Minutes of the General Meeting of Shareholders:

101, The Secretariat will record the contents of the Minutes of the AGM.

10.2. The Minutes of the AGM must be read and approved before the ll'J.EE-'L]f.I’E"l.
adjourns. |

Article 11. Cases where the organization of the General Meeting u'l'"*,-'
Shareholders is unsuccessful: Ve ;‘t:.'f

11.1.In case the first meeting does not meet the conditions for proceeding s
prescribed in Article 7 of This Charter, the convening of the second meeting must be
conducted within 30 days from the date the first meeting was scheduled.

11.2, The second meeting of the General Meeting of Shareholders is conducted
when the number of shareholders or shareholder representatives attending the meeting
represents at least 33% of the total voling shares of the Company.

11.3.1f the second meeting does not satisfy the conditions stipulated in this
Article, a third meeting shall be convened within 20 days of the date the second
meeting was planned, In this instance, the convening of the AGM will take place
irrespective of the number of attending sharcholders.

Article 12. Implementation Clause:

12.1. Above is the Working Regulation of the 2025 AGM of Sonadezi Chau Duc
Shareholding Company, consisting of 12 articles,

12.2. All sharcholders and their authorized representatives attending the 2025
AGM are responsible for complying with this regulation. i

ON THE BEHAEF GANIZING COMMITTEE

T EDnadezichaun oo
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SONADEZI CORPORATION THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
SONADEZI CHAU DUC Independence - Freedom ~ Happiness

SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

NOMINATION - CANDIDACY - ELECTION GUIDELINES
SUPPLEMENTARY ELECTION OF MEMBER
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
SONADEZ] CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

CHAPTER 1. GENERAL PROVYISIONS

Article 1. Ohjectives, Scope of Application, and Subjects of Application

1.1. These guidelines are established to stipulate the specific principles and
methods
for the nomination, application, and election of a supplementary Member of the Board
of Supervisors (BOS) for the remaining term of Term IV (2022 — 2027) of Sonadez:
Chau Due Shareholding Company at the 2025 Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting
{AGM).

1.2, These guidelines apply to all Shareholders holding shares of Sonadezi Chau
Duc Shareholding Company (according to the list finalized on March 14, 2023) and
their authorized legal representatives present at  the AGM  session.
Rights and obligations of Shareholders/ authorized representatives attending the 2023
AGM of Sonadezi Chau Due Shareholding Company.

Article 2. Rights and obligations of the shareholders/authorized
representatives attending the 2025 Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting of
Sonadezi Chau Due Shareholding Company

2.1. Each Sharcholder/ authorized representative attending the AGM will
receive a hallot for the supplementary election of a Member of the Board of Supervisors
(BOS), clearly indicating the number of shares held by the Shareholdet/ authorized
representative and the corresponding number of voting rights for the election.

2.2. Shareholders must comply with the conditions and procedures specified in
these guidelines and as directed by the Ballot Counting Committee and the Chairperson
of the AGM at the 2025 AGM of Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding Company.

CHAPTER I REGULATIONS ON NOMINATION AND CANDIDACY
FOR MEMEBERSHIP OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Article 3. Number and criteria of BOS members

1.1. The number of supplementary clected BOS members is U1 member,

3.2, Criteria and conditions for BOS members:

a. Not belonging to the subjects specified in Clause 2, Article 17 of the Law on
Enterprises;

b. Having training in one of the following majors: economics, finance, accounting,
auditing, law, business administration, or a major suitable for the business activities of the

enlerprise;




¢. Mot being 4 family member of:
— Board of Directors” members, General Director, and other managers of the
Company;
— Board of Directors’ members, General Director, and other managers of
Sonadezi Corporation;

— The state capital representative at Sonadezi Corporation;
- The representative of Sonadezi Corporation's capital at the Company.

d. Mot being a manager of the Company; not necessarily being a Shareholder or
employee of the Company;

e. Mot working in the accounting or finance department of the Company;

i Not being a member or employee of the independent audit firm that andited the
company's financial statements in the three consecutive vears prior.

Article 4. Right fo nominate and apply to be a BOS member

4.1. Sharcholders holding voting shares have the right to combine their voting
rights to nominate BOS candidates. The number of candidates sach group can nominate
depends on the number of candidates decided by the AGM and the sharcholding
percentage of each group. Shareholders or shareholder groups holding (as of the record
date of March 14, 2023):

A Sharcholder or a group of Sharcholders holding from 10% to less than 25% of
the total voting shares may nominate 01 candidate; from 25% to less than 50% may
nominate a maximum of 02 candidates; from 50% or more may nominate a maximum
of 03 candidates.

4.2. In case the number of candidates for the Board of Supervisors through
nomination and self-nomination is still insufficient according to Clause 1, Article 35 of
the Company's Charter, the incumbent Board of Supervisors shall introduce additional
candidates. The introduction of additional candidates by the incumbent Board of
Supervisors must be clearly announced before the General Meeting of Shareholders
votes to elect members of the Board of Supervisors.

4.3. Self-nominated and nominated candidates for the Member of the Board of
Supervisors (hereinafter collectively referred to as candidates) must submit valid

application dossiers on time as prescribed (10 days before the 2025 Annual General
Shareholders’ Mecting}.

Article 5. Application documents for nomination and self-nomination to be
elected as Member of the Board of Supervisors:

5.1. The application dossier for nomination and self-nomination of candidates for
election to the Member of the Board of Supervisors includes:

a. A copy of the candidate’s personal Iegal documents;

b. 01 4x6 portrait photo:

¢. Copies of relevant diplomas and certificates;
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d. Curriculum Vitae (meluding personal work history);

e. 02 Curriculum Vitae (according to Appendix II1 - Circular No. 96/2020/TT-
BTC dated November 16, 2020 of the Minister of Finance):

f. Other information (IT anv).

5.2. The nomination dossier must be sent to Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding
Company no later than 16:00 on March 31, 20235 at the following address:

- Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding Company, Ms. Ngoc Mai — Head of General
Planning Department (Telephone: (833308182)

- Address: 9th Floor, Sonadezi Building, No. 1, Street 1, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial
Park, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province
- Telephone: 0251 BE607RE Fax: 0251 B3607T85

- Email: maintnf@sonadezichauduc. com.vn

In case the submitted documenis are foxed or scanned copies, the original
documenis must be submitted when registering to attend the Meeting before the
commencement of the meeting.

5.3. Only nomination dossiers that meet the nomination requirements, and
candidates who meet the corresponding requirements for membership in the Board of
Supervisors will be included in the list of candidates announced at the General Meeting
of Shareholders session.

CHAPTER III. ELECTION OF MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS

Article 6. Selection of Candidates

Based on the nomination papers of Sharcholders, groups of Shareholders, and the
accompanying documents of the candidates, the Organizing Committee of the General
Meeting of Shareholders will compile a list of candidates who meet the prescribed
conditions for election to supplement the Member of the Board of Supervisors.

Article 7, Election Principles

The election to supplement members of the Board of Supervisors shall be
conducted in accordance with the following principles:

- Compliance with current laws on enterprises in Vietnam;

- Ensuring transparency, democracy, and the legitimate interests of all
Shareholders,

Article 8. Eligible Voters

Eligible voters at the General Meeting of Shareholders are Sharcholders holding
shares or individuals authorized by Shareholders holding shares to attend the meeting
(according to the Company's Shareholder list as of March 14, 2025) present at the
CGeneral Meeting of Shareholders session.

- (B
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Article 9. Form and Method of Election

9.1. The clection to supplement members of the Board of Supervisors of Sonadezi
Chau Duc Sharcholding Company will be conducted directly at the General Meeting
using the cumulative voting method.

9.2, After the General Meeting approves the list of candidates for the
supplementary election of Members of the Board of Supervisors (BOS) and approves
the election procedures, cach delegate attending the General Meeting will be given one
(01) ballot for the supplementary election of BOS members by the Organizing
Commuttee. Sharcholders/authorized representatives of shareholders are responsible for
checking the information on the ballod, and if there are any errors;, they must
immediately notify the Organizing Committee,

9.3. The ballot clearly states the list of candidates arranged in alphabetical order;
the number of shares owned/or represented, the number of voting rights, bearing the
affixed seal of Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding Company.

9.4. Each shareholder has a total number of voting rights corresponding to the
total number of shares owned (including both owned sharcs and/or authorized shares)
multiplied by the number of BOS members to be elected. Specifically, according to the
following formula:

Total voting rights = Total voting shares x Number of BOS members to be elected.

9.5. Shareholders have the right to mark all of their voting rights for one candidate
or divide therr total votes among several candidates.

9.6, The total number of votes cast for candidates by a Sharcholder may not
exceed the total number of votes permitted for that Shareholder (equal to the number of
shares multiplied by the number of members to be elected).

Article 10. Organization and Supervision of the Election

101, Ballot Counting Commuttee:

4. The organization and supervision of the election shall be carried out by the
Ballot Counting Committee on behalf of the General Meeting of Shareholders in
accordance with the provisions of this Guide;

b. The Ballot Counting Commuittee shall consist of one {01} Head, one (01) Deputy
Head, and one (1) member approved by the AGM as proposed by the Presidium;

¢. Members of the Ballot Counting Committee must not be on the nomination list
or be candidates for supplementary election to the BOS,

10.2. The Ballot Counting Committee must ensure integrity, objectivity, and
confidentiality of information regarding vote counting and elections.

18.3. The Ballot Counting Committee has the following duties:

. Check and announce the list of BOS candidates:

b. Disseminate election regulations and guide Shareholders on voting procedures;
¢. Distribute and collect ballots;

d. Check and supervise the voting of Shareholders/Shareholder representatives;

e. Conduet vote counting, prepare minutes of the vote count, and announce the
viote count results before the General Meeting of Shareholders;
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f Hand over the minutes of the vote count and all ballots to the Secretariat of the
AGh:

El

g. Together with the Presidium, consider and resolve complaints and accusations
regarding candidates as well as election resulis (if any) and report to the General
Meeting of Shareholders for decision;

h, Other related tasks;

i. The Ballot Counting Committee is fully responsible before the law and the
General Meeting of Shareholders for complying with this Guide and for the accuracy of
the vote counting results.

Article 11. Ballots and Ballot marking
11.1. Ballots:

a. Ballots are issued by Sonadezi Chan Duc Shareholding Company. uniformly
printed, bearing the company's affixed seal, the Shareholder's name, and the total
number of shares owned/authorized to represent, and the total voting rights;

b. Shareholders/authorized representatives are given 01 ballot for the
supplementary election of BOS members (vellow};

c. When receiving a ballot, Shareholders or their representatives must check the
information printed on it, and if there are any errors, the Shareholders must
immediately notify the Ballot Counting Committee to exchange it for another ballot.

11.2. How to mark ballots:

a. Sharcholders/authorized representatives of Shareholders shall vote for a
maximum number of candidates equal to the number required to be elected to the BOS.

b. If casting all votes for one candidate or dividing their votes equally among
multiple candidates, the Shareholder/Sharcholder's authorized representative records
the total number of votes cast for one candidate (in the case of selecting 01 candidate)
or divided equally/proportionally among the candidates (in the case of more than 01
candidate).

c. If casting unequal votes for candidates, the Sharcholder/Shareholder's
authorized representative clearly records the specific number of votes in the "Number
of wotes" box for each corresponding candidate. For candidates not selected, the
Shareholder/Sharcholder's authorized representative enters "0".

e, The total number of votes for a candidate from one Shareholder/Shareholder's
authorized representative must not exceed the total number of permitted votes of that
Shareholder/Shareholders authorized representative (equal to the number of shares
multiplied by the number of members to be elected).

f. In case of incorrect entry, the Shareholder requests the Organizing Commitiee
to exchange for a differént ballot.

g. The Shareholder/Shareholder's authorized representative must sign and clearly
state their full name on the ballot to confirm the election of BOD members.

For example:
Shareholders with 15,000 shares x 1 BOD member to be elected = 15,000 voles

P chprcOman




[n the case of only 01 candidate for the supplementary election of BOD members,
the Shareholder can mark all 15,000 votes for that candidate or a smaller number of
votes than the 15,000 votes that Shareholder owns,

Mo. [ MName Number of YVotes

I |Candidmm < 15,000

In the case of more than 01 candidate participating in the supplementary election
of BOD members, the Shareholder has the right to mark all 15,000 votes for 01
candidate of their choice or divide equally/proportionally the number of votes they
own, however, they can only vote for & maximum of 01 candidate out of the total
numbet of nominated candidates, specifically:

- [fthe Shareholder marks all 15,000 votes for 01 candidate:

No. Name MNumber of Votes
1 Candidate A 0
2 Candidate B 15,000
3 Candidate C ]

- If the Shareholder divides the votes equally among the candidates {however,
they can only vote for one candidate):

N Name = Number of Votes
1 Candidate A 5.000
2 Candidate B 0
3 Candidate C o

- If the Shareholder divides the votes proportionally according 1o their own
choice (however, they are only allowed to vote for a single candidate):

| Mo, MName | Number of Votes
1 Candidate 4 ‘ ]

| |
i Candidate B 0

3 Candidste C Enter any number of votes you

want to vote (e.g., 6,000)

11.3. Valid ballots when meeting all of the following conditions;

a. The bhallot is for a candidate whose name is on the list and within the scope of
the number of members to be elected;
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b, The total number of votes is less than or cqual to the total number of permitted
votes of that Shareholder (equal to the number of shares multiplied by the number of
members to be elected);

c. Not falling under the cases specified in Clause 11.4 of this Article.
11.4. Invalid ballots in one of the following cases:

8. The ballot iz not issued by Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding Company and/or
does not have the company's seal,

b. The ballot is crossed out, corrected, or supplemented with content not in
accordance with regulations (in case of incorrect writing, a new ballot must be
exchanped);

c. The ballot contains additional names or incorrect names that are not on the list
of candidates announced before the election:

d. The ballot has a total number of votes cast for a candidate exceeding the total
number of voting rights of that Shareholder (including ownership and authorized rights);

e. The ballot 1s not signed for confirmation by the Shareholder/Shareholder's
authorized representative;

f. The ballot 1s cast for more candidates than the number required to be elected;
g. The ballot does not record the number of votes for any candidate, ™

Article 12, Voting and Ballot Counting 1.

12.1. The election commences when the distribution of ballots is completed angil
concludes when the Ballot Counting Committee has collected all ballots; ¥

12.2. The Ballot Counting Committee must conduct the vote counting in a
separaie area immediately afier the collection of ballots is finished;

12.3. The Ballot Counting Committee shall not cross out, erase, or amend any
ballot.

Article 13, Principles for Determining Election Results

13.1. The successful candidate for the Member of the Board of Supervisors shall
be determined based on the number of votes from highest to lowest; the Candidate with
the highest number of votes will be elected as a Member of the Board of Supervisors
{or the remaining duration of Term IV (2022 — 2027).

13.2. In the event that two or more Candidates receive the same highest number of
votes, the individual who owns or represents the shareholder owning a greater number
of shares shall be selected. If the number of shares owned or represented is equal, or if
all such Candidates are not shareholders of the Company, a re-election shall be held
among the Candidates with the same number of votes to make a selection.

Article 14. Preparation and Announcement of the Ballot Counting Minutes

14.1. Following the ballot count, the Ballot Counting Committee shall prepare the
Ballot Counting Minutes.

14.2. The Ballot Counting Minutes shall contain the following principal contents:
a Time and location of the preparation of the Ballot Counting Minutes;
b. Composition of the Ballot Counting Committec;

Wi sonadazichasdus. com v
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¢. Purpose and content of the vote;

d. Total number of shareholders present and represented by proxy at the General
Meeting: total number of votes cast, distinguishing between the number of valid votes
and the number of invalid votes;

¢. Election Results:
f. Signature of the Head of the Ballot Counting Comimittee.

14.3. The full text of the Ballot Counting Minutes shall be announced by the
Ballot Counting Committee before the General Meeting and recorded in the Minutes of
the General Meeting of Shareholders and shall also be publicly disclosed to
sharcholders via the Company's website: www.sonadezichaudue.com.vn,

Article 15. Implementation Clause

15.1. The above are the Guidelines for the nomination, candidacy, and election of
additional members to the Board of Supervisors of Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding
Company at the 2025 Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting, consisting of 15 Articles.

15.2. All sharcholders, individuals authorized by shareholders to attend the 2025
Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting, and relevant individuals shall be responsible
for complying with these Guidelines.

ON BEHALF OF THE ORGANIZING (THMMT'ITELE/!,

Van Tuan
DIRECTOR




SOMNADEST CORPORATION THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
SONADEZI CHAU DUC Independence - Freedom —~ Happiness

SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

Chou Duc, March 20, 2025
No.: 57 2025BC-SZC-HDOT

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
On business production activities and the Company's management situation

in 2024 and the Plan for the year 2025

To: The General Meeting of Shareholders

I. ASSESSMENT OF THE COMPANY'S BUSINESS RESULT IN THE
FISCAL YEAR 2024:

|. Business Production Results in 2024 (according to the audited 2024
Financial Statements of Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding Company):

(Unit: VND million)

2024 Plan
: {according to %o Actual /
No. CONTENT Unit the Resohition 2024 Actual 2024 Plan
of the AGM])
1 | Revenue VND 881,088 910,893 103.38%
2 | Profit after tax VND 228,154 302,127 132.42%
Total amount payable 48 035 107.35%
2 1o the State Budget vHD L3200 148, ' .

1.1. Explanation of business results in 2024:

a) Indusirial real estate business (Tncluding: Land lease, factory for lease,
management fees, and other infrastructure services)

- The land area for which lease contracts and agreements were signed in 2024
includes: 05 land sublease contracts and 01 agreement (total area of approximately 46.42
ha}, achieving 116.05% of the 2024 plan;

- Revenue from industrial real estate business in 2024 was approximaltely
783,059 million VNI, reaching 112.04% of the 2024 plan.

b} Revenie from road tolls: In 2024, there was no revenue generated from this
segment due to the prolonged process of obtaining approval to continue collecting tolls 1o
recoup investment capital for the Project. The Company is expected to collect retum tolls
on 05/4/2025 according to Official Letter No. 2021/UBND-KTN dated 04/03/2025 from
the People's Commitiee of Dong Nai Province.

c) Residential real estate business (Sonadezi Huu FPhuoc Residential Area
Project): In 2024, the real estate market in general and the residential real estate market
in particular showed signs of recovery after a long period of stagnation but remained
quite slow. Therefore, the revenue recorded from this business segment was
approximately 31,280 million VND, achieving only 26.25% of the 2024 plan.
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d) Chaw Duc Golf Course Business: Revenue achieved in 2024 was approximately
55,020 million VND, reaching 109.91% of the plan.

el (her revenue, other income;

Other revenue and other income achieved in 2024 were approximately 41,024
million VND, reaching 315.71% of the plan, of which:

- Revenue from financial activities was approximately 40,014 million VND.
- (rher Revenue was approximately 813 million YND.
- Other income was approximately 197 million VND.,

1.2. Profit achieved:

- Profit before tax achieved in 2024 was 374,601 million VND, reaching
131.35% of the 2024 plan.

- Profit after tax achieved in 2024 was 302,127 million VND, reaching 132.42%
of the plan.

1.3. Status of taxes and payables to the State;

As of December 31, 2024, the total amount payable to the state budget was
148,035 million VND, reaching 107.35% of the 2024 plan.

2. Project implementation status:
2.1. Land matters:

In 2024, the total site clearance compensation ¢xpenses incurred were
approximately 202,400 million VIND, reaching 18.57% of the plan.

Details of land matters in 2024 are as follows:

Cumulative
implementation
324 Actual from the beginning o
Mo, Content of the project Actual/plan
Amouni Amonunt
Aren el Area i
(ha) {billion (ha) (hillion
VNI VNI
! 2 i 4 5 ] 7
Inventory of land,
| | assets, trees, and crops 32.96 2,149.40 44.91%
on land
Prepare and approve
2 the compensation plan 15,71 196.21 | 1.96643 | 4.067.53 18.00%
Receive handover of
3 | site clearance from 41 1.885.95 32.80%
households
Transfer to the account
4 |of the Compensation 15.89 202 40 3,937.05 18.57%
- Ef_:gl._:.gcjl and units
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Cumulative
implementation
2024 Actual from thie beiinning "
M. Content of the project Actualiplan
A Amount Area Amount
I:'““ (biltion | (hillion
(ha) VND) VND)
! 2 3 4 o ] 7
5 Land allocation / lease
application:
Complete procedures
te receive the
| certificate of land use 1.558.62
rights
Apply for land 55862
: | allocation/lease 123 1
2.2. Project implementation and construction work:
2024 Plan
{according to
N Project Unit the Resolution 2024 % Actual /
o implementation of the General | Performance | 2024 plan
Meeting of
Sharahnldeﬂﬂ
1 Industrial Park VND 239,210 151,911 63.51%
2 | Urban Area VND 200,494 00,031 44.90% |
Course
4 | BOT Road 768 VND 620 0 (%%
Total 449,461 304,557 67.76%

achieving 67.76% of the plan, details of the projects are as follows:

a) Industrial Park:

Total capital construction investment in 2024 was 304,557 million VND,

Total investment value for Industrial Park infrastructure construction implemented

in 2024 was 151,911 million VND, reaching 63.51% of the plan, including the
following items:

- Ground leveling: Implementation in 2024 was 45 ha, achieving 90% of the
plan. Accumulated from the beginning of the project to date, approximately 945 ha have
been leveled.

- Roads and rainwater drainage systems: During the year, 1.5 km of construction
was completed, reaching 20% of the plan. Accumulated from the beginning of the
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Project implementation to now, 43 km of roads and rainwater drainage systems have
been completed.

- Canals and drainage ditches: No construction has been carried out in this area
during the year. Accumulated from the beginning of the Project implementation to now,
the investment in the construction of 7.44 km of canals and drainage ditches has been
completed,

- Water supply system: Implemented in 2024 is 0.5 km, reaching 20% of the
plan. Accumulated from the beginning of the Project implementation to now, 28.15 km
of the water supply system has been completed.

- Wastewater drainage system: Implemented in 2024 is 1 kam, reaching 10% of
the plan. Accumulated from the beginning of the Project implementation to now,
approximately 32.07 km of the wastewater drainage system has been completed.

- Lighting system: Implemented in 2024 is 1.5 km, 30% of the plan,
Accumulated from the beginning of the Project implementation to now, 26.4 km of the
lighting system has been invested.

- Trees and grass: Implemented in 2024 is 2 km, reaching 40% of the plan, Up
to now, 32 km of green trees have been completed.

- Centralized wastewater tréatment plant: Stable operation of the centralized
wastewater treatment plant No. 02 Chau Duc Industrial Park — Module 02 with a
capacity of 4,500m’/daynight. Environmental incident response reservoir with a
capacity of 33,000 m’/day.night,

- Currently coordinating with the construction unit to implement the
construction of centralized wastewater treatment plant No. 02 Chau Duc Industrial Park
- Module 03; capacity of 8,000m" /day.night.

- Providing essential infrastructure systems (power supply, water supply,
telecommunications): Continue to coordinate with specialized electricity and
telecommunications units to provide services to investors according to the progress of
technical infrastructure constroction and investment attraction.

b} Urban Area:

The total cost of design and infrastructure construction for the Urban Area
implemented in 2024 is 90,031 million VND, reaching 44.90% of the plan, including:

- Northern Urban Area:

o Complete the dossier for adjusting the investment policy and resubmit it as
requested by the Ministry of Planning and Investment;

o Resubmitied the dossier and explanation document requesting adjustment of
the Investment Registration Certificate to the Department of Planning and Investment of
Ba Ria - Vung Tau province;

W SDREERERIChEUOU C.ComLn




3

o Project implementation ol investing in Urban Area infrastructure business:
Organize the implementation of the design package for the Urban Area's landscape
highlights; And technical infrastructure works such as: Roads and rainwater drainage
systems, wastewater drainage. Continue to carry out the audit of completed construction
packages,

= Sonadezi Hon Phuoe Residential Area:

o Completed the adjustment of the project's investment policy according to
Decision No. 1607/QD-UBND and was approved by the People’s Committee of Ba Ria
- Vung Tau province in Decision No. 1447/QD/UBND dated 04/6/2024.

o Project implementation of infrastructure investment and business: Carry out
maintenance of watering trees, cleaning streets in the Sonadezi Huu Phuoce Residential
Area; Complete construction and planting of trees between Shophouse lots in phase 13
Deploy the construction of landscapes and the welcome gate of the Residential Area;
Coordinate with specialized units for clean water supply and telecommunications to
complete the remaining infrastructure construction; Carry out audits of completed
construction packages.

a Project implementation of construction and trading of commercial houses
(Shophouses): Complete the construction of 63 Shophouses in phase 2 according to the
investment cooperation contract; Conduct audits and final settlements for completed
construction works.

o Project implementation of Terraced Housing - phase 2: Completion of the
construction of 54 terraced houses in phase 2 according to the investment cooperation
contract; Implementation of audit and finalization of completed construction projects.

o Project implementation of Social Housing (Phase 1): Continue construction of
210 social housing units under the business cooperation contract, Carry out procedures
for requesting approval for sale opening and appraisal of selling price according to
regulations.

o Project implementation of social infrastructure construction:

+ Cultural Center: Finalize the approval of the supplementary feasibility report
for the project implementation; Deploy the project implementation's construction;

+ Commercial Center: Carry out the establishment of the Project
implementation Feasibility Study Report, conduct the appraisal and finalize the report,
submit it for approval,

+ Kindergarten: Finalize the supplementary Feasibility Study Report for lot SK-
1; Implement survey, design and design review of construction drawings.

o Project implementation of the Technical Infrastructure System in the Industrial

Park (Parallel Road to the Urban Area): Implement sidewalk paving of the parallel road;
Organize the construction and supervision of the Northem Parallel Road section
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connecting from Intersection No. 1 to Intersection No. 2; Complete the design of
construction drawings and cost estimates, organize construction and supervise lighting
canstruction on the Northern Parallel Road; Complete construction of the median strip
greenery at the Urban Area-Industrial Park Section 1 boundary.

¢} Chau Due Golf Course: The total cost of capital construction in 2024 for the
Golf course project implementation is 62,615 million VND, reaching 685.66% of the
plan, the recording of the capital construction cost of the polf course project
implementation in 2024 exceeded the plan because some contracts were carried over
from the 2023 final settlement. Specific implementation status is as follows:

- Complete construction of the 18-hole Golf Resort.
- Complete construction of the Clubhouse and ancillary items.

- Complete the Ownership Certificate for Construction Works for the Golf
Resort, Clubhouse, and ancillary items.

- Deploying a plan to establish a Joint Stock Company to invest, operate, and
manage the Chau Duc Golf Course, accordingly calling for investors to contribute
capital to establish Chau Duc Golf Services Joint Stock Company to operate the existing
18-hole Resort Golf Course and develop an additional 9-hole Tourmament Golf Course,

d) Project implementation BOT Route 768: In 2024, the Company is adjusting
investment policies and investment project implementation- Project implementation
BOT Route 768. Capital construction costs incurred in 2024 will be carried over for
payment in subsequent years, with details as follows:

- Completed the adjustment of investment policies for BOT Route 768 project
implementation, and the Dong Nai Provincial People's Commitiee approved the adjusted
investment policy for BOT Route 768 project implementation under Decision No. 1756/0D-
UBND dated 11/06/2024.

= Decision No. 3269/QD-UBND dated 04/11/2024 by the Dong Nai Provincial
People’s Commuttee approves the adjustment to the BOT Route T6R project

mmplementation, under the Public-Private Partnership method with Build-Operate-
Transfer (BOT) contracts.

- Investment and Construction of Tell Station No. 4 on Route 768: Submitted
the construction design documents to the Department of Transport of Dong Nai
Province for appraisal on 11/11/2024, and on 02/12/2024, the Department of Transport
provided appraisal feedback under Official Letter No. 7164/ 8GTVT-QLCLCTGT.

- Complete the establishment of Project Enterprise — BOT 768 One Member
Limited Company to take over BOT Route 768 project implementation, continuing the
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management and operation of the toll stations and implementing investment,
maintenance and repair of roads belonging to the project implementation,

[I. REPORT ON THE RESULTS AND STATUS OF THE USE OF
CAPITAL RECEIVED FROM THE 1SSUANCE OF ADDITIONAL SHARES TO
EXISTING SHAREHOLDERS:

(According to Report No. 33.2025/BC-8SZC-TCKT dated March 20, 2023 attached)

1. REPORT ON PRIVATE PLACEMENT CORPORATE BOND
ISSUANCE ACTIVITIES:

(According to Report No. 56 2025/BC-SZC-TCKT dated March 20, 2023 attached)

IV. ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE
ACTIVITIES OF THE GENERAL DIRECTORATE AND OTHER
EXECUTIVES OF THE COMPANY:

Ower the past year, the Board of Directors has regularly monitored the activities of
the General Directorate, other Executives, and management personnel of the Company
in carrying out assigned tasks and objectives through regular meetings held throughout
the year. With the activities of the Internal Audit Department having strengthened
inspection, supervision, and review of all the Company's operations to help the
Company operate in the right direction, minimize risks, and ensure compliance with
current regulations. In general, the General Directorate and other Executives have
implemented the Board of Directors' policies as per the issued Resolutions/Decisions, in
accordance with the Company's regulations and legal regulation,

V. ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

1. Members and structure of the Board of Directors:

Share Ownership Ratio
No. | FULL NAME | POSITION a | NOTE
Representative | Individual
. Chairman of the
1 E;‘;:ﬂ”gﬂ“ Board of 20%
Dhrectors
Board of
Nguyen Van Lhirectors’ i
2 i oy i 10%% (.008%
General Director
Mon-
Board of executive
g |FRamAnl Directos® 10,08% Board of
Tuan : -
members | [Directors
| members
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I
T Share Ownership Ratio R
MNo. | FULL NAME POSITION NOTE
_ | Representative | Individual
Mon-
Py : Board of execulive
4 Duh Directors’ 1 0% Board of
Tham : ,
members Directors
members
MNon-
Board of executive
Nguyen : :
5 Phong Hang Directors Blcrard ::rf,
members Directors
members
Npguyen Van B.'jﬂrd DE, Independent
b s Directors b
| i3 B members
Board of
7 | Tran Hao Hiep Directors’ ToREpcas
i s | members
b= f

2. Activities of the Board of Directors:
The Company’s Beard of Directors at the reporting time comprises 07 members,
including 02 executive members, 03 non-executive members, and 02 independent

members.

In 2024, the Board of Directors issued Resolutions in compliance with legal
regulations, the Company's Charter, and internal regulations on corporate governance 1o
promptly direct and supervise the Board of Management and administration of the
Company’s production and business activities. Furthermore, the Board of Directors also
supported the Board of Management in resolving difficulties and obstacles related 1o
the implementation of the Company’s Projects, as well as seeking financial resources to
meet the capital needs for investment and operations.

2.1, Summary of meetings of the Board of Directors and decisions of the Board
of Directars:

In 2024, the Board of Directors held 05 regular meetings and organized the
collection of opinions in writing &4 times.

The Resolutions/Decisions issued by the Board of Directors serve as a basis for the
Executive Board 10 implement related tasks according to the policies and development
orientation of the Company. The list of Decisions/Resolutions is detailed in the
Company's corporate governance report every 6 months/1 year and is publicly disclosed
in accordance with current regulations.
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2.2, Directing and supervising production, business activitics, and invesiment
strategies for the Company’s development:

In the past vear, the Board of Directors has directed the execution of the following
main tasks:

- Organizing, arranging, and adjusting personnel, and restructuring departments
to meet work demands.

- Reviewing and approving land rental unit prices, land values, and selling
prices of commercial housing (Shophouse), and townhouses - Sonadezi Huu Phuoc
Residential Area, and approving sales policies for civil real estate. .. assisting the Board
of Directors in establishing appropriate business strategies, bringing about efficient
production and business results for the Company.

- Successfully organizing the 2024 Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting
(AGM) on 05/4/2024, and approving the operating plan as well as key issues for
implementation in 2024.

- Continuing the implementation of Chau Duc Industrial Park - Urban Area
Projects, and the Chau Due golf course Project in accordance with the plan approved by
the General Meeting of Shareholders (GMS)...

- Completing the public offering of shares to existing shareholders to increase
the company's charter capital to nearly 1,800 billion VND and completing the listing
registration of all additionally 1ssued shares on the stock exchange,

- Completing internal and expert reassessments for continued certification of
[SO9001:2015 & 14001:2015.

- Deploy digitalization and intelligent management reporting according to the
general guidelines of the Corporation,

- Complete the construction and application of the KPI performance evaluation
system, operating enterprise management software such as BASE, FAST. ..

- (rganize to obtain the opinion of the Board of Directors through signing
construction contracts, invesiment cooperation contracts and other contracts and
transactions with Affiliated Persons of the Company (member companies in the
Sonadezi system; Insiders and Affiliated Persons of the Company's Intemal Persons) in
accordance with legal regulations.

2.3. General assessment of the Board of Directors” activities in 2024:
- In 2024, the Company's Board of Directors has complied with the provisions of
law, the Company's Charter, operating regulations and other applicable regulations.

- Implement a transparent spending regime in accordance with the provisions of
the Company's Charter, the Company's financial management regulations, and state
regulations.
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- Properly implement the contents according to the resolutions passed by the
General Mecting of Shareholders.

- Build an apparatus suitable to the needs and field of operation of the current
Company and prepare resources for the sustainable development of the Company in the
future.

- The members of the Board of Directors have made positive contributions to the
management, project implementation and supervision of the Company's business and
production operations.

- Issues related to business strategy, technology investment and management
system ¢onstruction... are regularly reviewed and evaluated by the Board of Directars in
periodic meetings.

2.4. Evaluarion report of the independent member of the Board of Directors:

Report of the independent member of the Board of Directors attached.
VL. TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

1. Salary, rewards, remuneration and benefits:

Based on the production and business results in 2024 and according to the
regulations at Circular 28201 6/TT-BLDTBXH:

- The total actual remuneration fund settled for the Board of Directors, the Board of
Supervisors and the person in charge of corporate governance in 2024 is 1,498,000,000
VND. Details of remuneration and other benefits of each BOD member are as follows:

No. Full Name Position Income in 2024 (VNIY)
| | Dinh Ngoc Thuan Chairman of BOD 206,000,000
2 | Nguyen Van Tuan BOD Member 176,000,000
3 Pham Anh Tuan BOD Member 186,000,000
4 | Tran Hao Hiep BOD Mf:ml:n::d_ l 1 B6,000,000
5 | Npuyen Van Luong BOD Member 186,000,000
B Phan Dinh Tham BOD Member 1 86,000,000
7 | Nguyen Phuong Hang | BOD Member 186,000,000

- The salary of the full-time Head of the Board of Supervisors is implemented
according 1o the year's salary settlement of 37,293,000 VND.
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2. Reports on transactions between the company, subsidiary companies and
companies over 50% charter capital of which is held by the public company with
members of the Board of Directors and their related persons; transactions between
the company with companies whose founders or executive officers are members of
the Board of Directors over the last 03 years from the transaction date:

Related Contractsfransactions are reflected in the Financial Statemenms, the
Company's Corporate Governance Report and are fully disclosed by the Company in
accordance with the provisions of the Law.

VIl. DIRECTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS' ACTIVITIES IN
2025:

1. The Board of Directors directs business plan for the year 20235 as follows:

- Continue to build and consolidate shareholder relations. Timely, transparently
and publicly disclose information on corporate governance to shareholders, investors,
and competent authorities, ensuring the highest interests of shareholders,

- Direct the Executive Board to continue implementing investment in completing
technical infrastructure and managing Industrial Parks, cffectively investing in projects
such as Chau Duc Urban Area, Chau Duc Golf Course, Sonadezi Huu Phuoc
Residential Area and component projects, ..

- Continue to build, consolidate and develop the Company's brand.

- Closely supervise the Executive Board in project implementation, accelerate the
construction progress and complete legal procedures for projects.

- Seek investment capital, develop financial plans to meet capital needs for
investment and development of the Company's projects.

- Continue to strengthen the direction and supervision of the Company's
production and business activities, while creating favorable conditions for the Board of
Dhrectors to achieve the set targets.

1.1. Estimated production and business plan for the year 2025:

Based on the production and business results of 2024 and the actual situation of
the projects, Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding Company has developed several planned
targets for 2025 as follows:

No. | Content Unit 2025 Plan Note
| Operating results
- | Revenue Million VND 930,894
- | Profit after tax Milhon YHND 302,277

WA SONaoEL ichalsuE. CoumLYn




12

No. | Content Unit 2025 Plan Note
Total amount payable to the State -
2 Budget Million VND 148,200
Investment in construction and -
3 Aiople 3 Million VIND 437,617
4 | Compensation for site clearance Million VND 1,207,710

1.2. Land maitters:

- Inventory work: Conduct an inventory of the entire Industrial Park area in Phu
My Town with an arca of 39.46 ha.

- Site handover: Continue to receive the site handover from households with an
area of 91.5 ha (Industrial Park 90 ha, Urban Area 1.5 ha).

- Land lease/allocation application:

o Convert the form of annual land lease 1o one-time land lease payment for the
Industrial Park with an area of 6.4 ha transitioned from 2024 with an estimated cost of
22 2830 million VND,

o Lease land in the Industrial Park with an area of 100 ha.

o Allocate 11.12 ha of residential land, lease 15.88 ha of Urban Area land,

- Work on determining the legality, establishing, and approving the compensation
and site clearance plan: Establish and approve the compensation and site clearance plan
for an area of 92.87 ha with a total estimated cost of 1,184,880 million VND.

1.3, Project implementation and construction work:
1.3.1. Urban Area:

Total estimated investment cost in 2025 is about 270,561 million VND, including:

- Naorth Urban Area:

o Apply for adjustment and approval of investment policy: Complete the
dossier for policy adjustment and resubmit as required by the Ministry of Planning and
Investment.

o Project implementation of Golf Villas (Core 1 Golf Course Resort): Organize
the survey, design, and construction of Core 1 Golf Villas; Implement the construction
of the park at lot G106.

o Project implementation of Type 2 Villas: Organize the preparation, appraisal,
and approval of the Feasibility Study Report: Design. verify the technical design and
construction drawings for Type 2 Villa lots (V2.53-V2.54-V2.55); Implement marking
and subdividing lots according to the planning; Implement the construction of Type 2
Villas (lot V2.53) phase 1,

o Project implementation of Urban Area Infrastructure: Complete the landscape
design of Urban Area landmarks; Organize the construction of technical infrastructure

WA SONSoeZICNEedUc. omvn

— 1




13

works: Road traffic and rainwater drainage systems, wastewater drainage; Implement
construction and construction supervision consultancy for the lighting system of Road
D01 {sections 1, 2, 3), Road D.02 (section 1), Road D.04 (section 2: Km 0000 - Km
0+915.4); Implement the construction of landscape at Intersection 1.

o Conduct audits of completed construction packages.

- Sonadezi Huu Phuoc Residential Area:

o Project implementation of Sonadezi Huuw Phuoc Residential Arca
Infrastructure:

+ Complete the construction of technical infrastructure works: Adjust the Suoi
Dia Nghe canal route; Bacldill the Sonadezi Huu Phuoc Residential Area in the area
where land work has been completed; Reinforce the canal along the border of Huu Phuoc
Residential Area and Industrial Park; Construct a pumping station to transfer wastewater
from phase 2 to phase 1; Carry out infrastructure maintenance (maintain trees, roads,
lighting systems, dredge canals, periodically test substations...) and maintain and repair
civil works; Plant trees and grass between terraced houses in phase 2.

+ Continue signing the security service contract for Sonadezi Huu Phuoc
Residential Area to ensure security and order and protect the assets of the accepted civil
works.

+ Auditing comstruction projects according to regulations,

o Commercial House (Shophouse) construction and business Froject
implementation: Continue to carry out the Auditing and finalization of completed
construction items (63 Shophouses).

o Semi-detached Housing Project implementation - phase 2: Implement
investment cooperation and construction supervision consultancy for the remaining 74
uriits of phase 1 - Semi-detached Housing phase 2; Survey assets formed on land of
business cooperation units; Auditing and finalization of completed construction items.

o Low-income Housing Project implementation (Social housing) phase 1:
Complete construction of 210 social housing units under a business cooperation
contract; Deploy the implementation of project Auditing and settlement.

= Low-income Housing Project implementation (Social housing) in R2, R3,
and R4 land areas: Prepare, appraise, and approve the Project Feasibility Study Report;
Deploy design and appraisal of technical design and construction drawings; Deploy
construction and equipment supply and installation for the project (approximately 500
social housing units; technical infrastructure; community center; 1 parking garage).
Expected to complete 50% of the construction volume.

o Project implementation for the construction of socio-economic infrastructure
wiorks:
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+ Cultural House, Commercial Center (phase 1), Kindergarten (lot 5-K1):
Complete the construction of the Cultural House; Deploy the construction of
Kindergarten (lot 8-K1) phase 1; Deploy design and construction of Commercial Center
(phase 1); Auditing and finalization of completed construction items; Implement project
acceptance and put into operation.

+ Primary School (81-1), Secondary School (S2-1), Medical Station (PL1) and
Police Headquarters (PL3): Adjust the 1/500 detailed planning; Implement investment
project preparation, design, and appraisal of technical design and construction drawings.

1.3.2. Industrial Park:

The total investment value for Industrial Park infrastructure construction expected
in 2025 is 167,056 million VIND (including other costs), as detailed below:

- Deploy the completion of ground leveling for Lots D, C, 31, 44, 46, 45, 52, 53,
BBla, 36, Lot 27, Lots 36, 37, Lot 38, Lot 39, Lots 47, 48, 05, 06, 01, 02, 03, 04,
Ground leveling for Lots 32, 35, 42, 43, 50 (Remaining part), Ground leveling for Lot
25 - Remaining part; Wastewater Treatment Plant Wo. 1, No. 3 and service areas, bus
station {approximately 300ha).

- Continue constructing roadbeds, pavements, rainwater drainage systems, canals,
drainage ditches, water supply systems, and wastewater discharge systems; Planting
trees and grass.

- Construet traffic signs, road name signs, speed bumps, and traffic safety paint
on Industrial Park roads.

- Renforce drainage ditches along D.20, DCX, and Suoi Da Nghe Canal.

- Construet parking lots and security houses for the Industrial Park; 56 National
Highway gate of Industrial Park: Bridges and culverts in the Industrial Park.

- Construct fences for the Industrial Park.

- Bomb and mine elearance - Phase 5 (160,75 ha).

- Complete the construction of the lighting system for the North Parallel Road
{from intersection 1 to intersection 2).

- Plant landscape trees and relocate advertising billboards along the median strip
of the North Parallel Road and East-West Road (from intersection 1 to intersection 2).

- Constructing the median strip greenery of the Urban Area — Industrial Park
section 2.

1.3.3. Chau Duc Golf Course: Finalize capital contribution to establish a Joint
Stock Company to continue business operations for the existing 18-hole Golf Resort
and invest in an additional 9-hole Tournament Golf Course — Phase 2 according to the
plan approved by the Board of Directors.
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1.3.4. BOT Road 768 Projeet: Assign BOT 762 One Member Limited Company
{a wholly-owned subsidiary) to continue implementing and operating the BOT Road
768 Project as per the adjusted plan approved by the Dong Nai Provincial People's

Committee.

1.4. Business Production Plan for the year 2025:

The estimated revenue for 2025 13 930,896 million YIND, of which the two main
segrments expected to generate primary revenue for the company are industrial larﬂiH
leasing (approximately 748,417 million VIND} and residential real estate husmﬂii'
(approximately 78,000 million VND). The remainder comes from other husml:.‘;?
activities, other revenues, and other income of the Company.

Profit after tax for 2025 is expected to be approximately 302,277 million VND.

The total state budget payment expected in 2025 is approximately 148,200 million
VD

1. Implementation Solutions:

To fulfill the 2025 plan as mentioned, the Company shall continue focusmg on
promoting investment attraction for industrial land leases, as this remains the primary
revenue source in the Company’s business operations. Furthermore, the Company shall
promptly complete the technical infrastructure construction of Senadezi Huu Phuoc
Residential Area, concurrently finalize legal procedures and seek investment partners to
commence the infrastructure development of the Northern Urban Area’s subdivision to
create more products for marketing. Moreover, the Chao Duc golf course is a value-
added service to the Chau Due Industrial Park — Urban Area, meeting the recreational
demands of investors within the Industrial Park, as well as the residents of the project

area.
Some specific actions to be taken are as follows:

- Focus om site clearance compensation for the remaining project area and
simultaneously identify suitable solutions to definitively address the fragmented land
issue in areas with existing site clearance complications.

- Continue completing the Industrial Park's technical infrastructure to serve
investment attraction cfforts.

- Finalize legal procedures and commence technical infrastructure development
for the Chau Duc Urban Area project.

- Complete the intellectual property registration for the Company's trademarks;
continue upgrading and renovating the brand identity system, such as: Adverlising
panels, signposts, welcome gates, brochures, website, models, diagrams, maps...
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- Continue to bolster marketing and advertising efforts through press,
broadcasting. e-commerce channels, and strengthen collaboration with trade
associations, consulting organizations, and brokers.

- Engage in investment promotion events hosted by Sonadezi Corporation and
the Provincial People’s Committee to discover and assess suitable investment promotion
opportunilies,

- Sustain the implementation of the IS0 S001:2015 & ISO 14001:2015
standards system to continually meet the expectations of clients and involved
stakeholders, as well as to elevate the Company's brand.

- Maintain application of Key Performance Indicator (KPI) regulations to
accelerate job completion and enhance work efficiency.

- Enact the digitization program and implement intelligent management
reporting under the general policy of Sonadezi Corporation...

In 2025, facing pressure from rising costs of site ¢learance compensation and land
use fees, with multiple projects underway simultaneously to meet the timelines outlined
in Investment Registration Certificates and authorized investment decisions, the
Company will require substantial capital resources to meet the investment and
development requirements. Accordingly, the Board of Directors and Board of

Management shall endeavor to achieve established targets and fulfill the designated
tasks.

The above is the draft report of the Board of Directors on production and business
activities, the Company’s corporate governance in 2024 and the Action Plan for 2025,

proposing that the Board of Directors approve it for submission to the General Meeting
of Sharcholders at the 2025 AGM.

Regards,

Recipients:

- Az above;

- Board of Supervisors;

- Archive: Secretariat,
oA
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SONADEZ] CORFORATION THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
SONADEZI CHAU DUC Independence - Freedom — Happiness
SHAREHOLDING COMPANY =

Bien Hoa, March 20, 2025

Na: 55.2025/BC-SZC-HDOQT

REPORT
On the results and the usage of capital raised from the issuance of
additional shares to existing sharcholders

To: General Meeting of Sharcholders of the Company

Pursuant to Law on Enterprise No. 5%2020/0HI4 dated Jume 17, 2020,
amended by Law No, 03/2022/0H15 dated January 11, 2022; A
Pursuant to Law on Securities No. 342019/0H14 dated November 26, 2{?{,‘7.4
amended by Law No. 56/2024:0H15 dated November 28, 2024; I' E I-
Pursuant to Decree No. I155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020 of Uﬁé
Government detailing and guiding the implementation of a mumber of articles af Mm .

1-. .-'.,:"-

Law on Securiiies; e+ L

Pursuant to Circular No. T182020/TT-BIC dated December 31, 2020 of the
Ministry of Finance guiding a number of contents on offering, offering securities,
public affering, share repurchase, registration of public companies and cancellation
of public company status;

Pursuant to the Charter of Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding Company
("Company");

Resolution of the 2023 Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting of Sonadezi Chau
Dhic Shareholding Comparny No. 04/NQ-SZC-DHDCD dated April 18, 2023;

Pursuani to the Report on Reswlts of the public offering of shares No. 433/BC-
SZ2C-TCKT dated April 17, 2024 of Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding Company;

Pursuant to Official Dispatch No. 2505/UBCK-QLCB dated April 22, 2024 of
the State Securities Commission regarding the report on the resuits of SZC's public
offering of additional shares,

The Board of Directors of Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding Company
respectfully reports to the General Meeting of Shareholders on the results and the
usage of capital raised from the issuance of additional shares to existing sharcholders
as follows;

1. Results of the additional share issuance:

Based on the owner's investment capital report audited by RSM Vietnam
Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd. dated May 02, 2024, the results of the share
issuance are as follows:

- Securities Name; Shares of Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding Company
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- Securities Type: Common shares
- Parvalue: 10.000 VND/share
- Number of shares issued: 59,985,902 shares, of which:

Procesds from

Indicators Quantity Offering Price share issuance
{Shares) {VIND/share) (VND)

Shares subscribed and paid for
by cxisting shareholders
between January 16, 2024 and 58,445,637 20,000 | 1.168,912,740,000
March 15, 2024

—r

Shares subscribed and paid for
by company employees (for the
remaining shares Dot  fully
stibacribed by existing

shareholders due to preemptive 1,540,263 20,000 30,805,300,000
right waivers, which the Board
of Directors distributed fo
company personnel)
TOTAL 59,985.902 1,199, 718,040,000

- Total amount mobilized: 1,199,718,040,000 VND,
- Closing date of the offering: April 12, 2024,
2. Capital usage status as of December 31, 2024
a. Project progress according to the announced plan:

According to the capital usage plan approved by the 2023 Annual General
Shareholders® Meeting on April 18, 2023 and the Resolution of the Board of Directors
No. 09/NQ-8ZC-HDQT dated August 21, 2023 approving the implementation of the
plan to offer additional shares to existing shareholders to increase the Company's
charter capital, the purposes of capital use and specific progress are as follows:

Planned capital utilization (*) | Funds utilized | TP e
" : == from 26/04/2024 | Dretion
o, Content Flanned capital Anticipated rate /
allocation utilization to 31/12/2024 Plan
(VND) schedule (YND)
Supplementing - |
capital investment Estimated 4"
and constructing quarter of 2023 -
the Chau Duc 1™ quarter of
1. | Industrial  Zone 395,999 600,000 | 2025, according | 267.004,036,297 66, 8%
project in  Chau 1o the project's
Duc District, Ba | actual
Ria - Vung Tau| milestones,
Province. |




! Planned capital utilization (*) Funds atilized 1":?'}""*
R — from 26/04/2024 | PtAUOR
No. | Content Planned eapital Anticipated rate /
allocation utilization ,I to 31/12/2024 Plan
| (VND) schedule (YRD)
Restructuring  the Estimated 47
company's  loan quarter of 2023 —
debts with credit 1* quarter of
institutions and 2025, according | . 42.9%
i g SO0, 000,000,000 ‘el flse 343,246,123 206
principal and | stipulations of
interest o the loan
| corporate bonds. | | agreements.
TOTAL | 1,199,999,600,000 | 610,250,159,503 | 50.9%

b. Rmmmmg amount unused as of December 31, EII]"J'-I (compared to the m:tual
amount mobilized): 588,547,780,497 VND. -

This amount will continue to be used by the Company to pay for :::-:p:m:s. '-
related to the investment and construction of the Chau Duc Industrial Park pn:gedt
according to the project implementation progress and to pay principal and interest d‘l.lfﬁ"
on loans and bonds according to the bank’s repavment schedule and bond terms 4
During the waiting period for disbursement according to the schedule, in order to
optimize cash flow, the Company has balanced and maintained the remaining amount
deposit accounts of commercial banks.

The Company will make periodic reports to the General Meeting of
Shareholders (GMS) and explain in detail the use of capital and the amount received
from the offering to implement the project in the audited annual financial statements
until the disbursed amount is fully utilized, while disclosing information according to
current regulations.

Above is the report on the results and the utilization of capital proceeds from the
additional share issuance of Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding Company as of
December 31, 2024 .

The Board of Directors respecifully submits this report, with the content as
stated above, for the General Meeting of Shareholders approval,

Regards,

Recipienis: ON BEHALF '[.'IF rl'[-[E BO OF DTRECT{]'RSW
- Az above; s i I

- File: Secretariat, Finance and
Accounting, GME/,!f
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SONADEZI CORPORATION THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

SONADEZI CHAU DUC Independence - Freedom — Happiness
SHAREHOLDING COMPANY -
MNo.: 56.2025/BC-SZC-HDQT Bien Hoa, March 20, 2023
REPORT

On Private Corporate Bond Issuance Activities

To: The General Meeting of Sharcholders

Pursuant to Law on Enterprise No. 59%2020/QHI4 dated June 17, 2020,
amended by Law No. 03/2022/0H135 dated January 11, 2022,

Pursuant to Law on Securities No. 54/2019/0H14 dated November 26, 20119,
amended by Law No. 36/:2024/0H15 dated November 29, 2024;

Pursuant to Decree No, 1552020ND-CP dated December 31, 2020 of the
Government detailing and gulding the implementation of a number of articles of the
Law on Securitiey,

Puwrsuant 1o the Charter of Somadezi Chaw Duc Shareholding Company
(" Company"');

Pursuant to Decision No. 816/0D-82C-HDOT dated December 23, 2020 of the
Board of Directors of Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding Company on the private
placement af bondy and Decision No. 01/QD-SZC-HDOT dated Jarnuary 03, 2021 of
the Board of Directors of Sonadezi Chau Due Shareholding Company on amending
the private bond issuance plan for 2020,

Pursuant to Resolution No. 13 2024/ NQ-SZC-HDQT dated December (4, 2024
of Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding Company on the implementation of the plan to
repurchase all privately issued bonds in advance in 2021 of Sonadezi Chau Duc
Shareholding Company.

The Board of Directors of Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding Company (the

Company's BOD) respectfully reports to the General Meeting of Shareholders on the
private corporate bond issuance activitics as follows:

1. Private Bond Issuance Activities:

To prepare capital for site clearance compensation of the Urban Area, on
(05/01/2021, the Company's BOD approved the private bond issuance plan
{conventional corporate bonds, non-comvertible, secured, without warrants) and by
080172021, the Company completed the bond issuance according to the approved
plan. Details are as follows:




Indicators Content
| Bond Code SZCH2126001 (trading code; SZC12101)
Issue Date January 08, 2021
Maturity Date January 08, 2026
Par Value 1,000,000,000 VND/bond

Total [ssued Quantity 500 bonds (equivalent to 300 billion VND)
Payment of compensation costs for site clearance of

Purpose of Issuance the Chau Duc Urban Area project (including land
compensation)
Investor Shinhan Banl Vietnam Limited, Bien Hoa Branch

2. Capital Utilization Status:

As of November 08, 2023, the entire amount mobilized from the bond issuance
has been utilized by the Company for the purpose of paying site clearance
compensation costs for the Chau Duc Urban Area project (including land
compensation), The bond capital utilization report has been audited by RSM Vietnam
Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd., which confirmed that Sonadezi Chau Due
Sharcholding Company has used all proceeds from the bond issuance in accordance
with the capital utilization plan approved by the Board of Directors.

3. Bond Principal and Interest Payment Status:

The Company has fully and punctually paid bond principal and interest 1o
investors as well as fully disclosed information as regulated.

By November (08, 2025, the Company had repurchased in advance all remaining
outstanding bonds, totaling 200 bonds, with a total outstanding par value of 200
billion ¥NLI.

Currenily, the Company has completed the repurchase of all bonds and carried
oul procedures for bond delisting at Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing
Corporation and bond delisting on Hanoi Stock Exchange.

This is the report on the private corporate bond issuance activities of Sonadezi
Chau Dhic Shareholding Company.

The Board of Directors respectfully submits this report to the General Meeting
of Sharsholders for approval.

Regards,

2
Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE BO OF DIRECTORS
- As above; AT

- Mote! Secretarial, GI-.;S”J
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THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

Independence - Freedom — Happiness
*hk

ASSESSMENT REFORT OF THE INDEPENDENT BOARD OF
DIRECTORS’ MEMBERS
SONADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

To: General Meeting of Shareholders

The independent Board of Directors” members of Sonadezi Chau Due Shareholding
Company for term IV (2022 — 2027) consists of 02 people:

- Mr. Nguyen Van Lucng, bom on March 15, 1977,
- Mr. Tran Hao Hiep, born on December 16, 1977,

We would like to report to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on the
activifies of the Board of Darectors in 2024 as follows:

1. Regarding Board of Directors® meetings/consultations:

- The Board of Directors has worked with a spint of responsibility and transparency
in corporate govemnence, complying with regulations for listed companies. Board of
Directors’ meetings were convened promptly and conducted in accordance with the
procedures outlined in the Charter and Internal Regulations on Corporate Governance,
Mesting invitations and documents were sent in full to the Board of Directors’ members
and the Board of Supervisors for review and comment. The contents of the meetings were
fully and carefully discussed and evaluated by the Board of Directors’ members to provide
directions and solutions that bring the highest benedfif to the Company.

- The Decisions/Resolutions of the Board of Directors at mestings and written
consultations are in accordance with the provisions of law, the Company's Charter, Internal
Regulations on Corporate Governance, and Regulations on the Operation of the Board of
Directors and are also fully consistent with the Resolutions of the General Mesting of
Shareholders (GMS) and the Company's business strategy and plan. Minutes of the Board
of Directors’ meetings were prepared with full content discussed in the meeting, with full

sipnatures of the Chairman, Secretary, and attending members, and sent to members in
accordance with current repulations.

- In 2024, the Board of Directors conducted 64 consultations to approve contents
related to seles policies, approve unit prices, sign contracts with related parties, finalize
the list of shareholders, and other matters under the authority of the Boerd of Directors as

prescribed in the Company's Charter, Internal Regulations on Corporate Governance,
Regulations on the Operation of the Board of Directors, and current regulabons,

2, Regarding the structure of the Board of Directors:

The total number of curmrent Board of Directors® members i3 07, mcluding: 03
independent members, 02 execntive members, and 03 non-executive members, All Board
of Directors’ members fully and actively participate in planning and comphiance control

activities, ensuring good corporate govemance practices as well as assigned tagks within
the Board of Directors.




3. Regarding compliance with state regulations and laws:

- Contracts and transactions with related partiss are approved by the Board of
Directors and fully sand promptly disclosed in accordance with regulations. According to
the assessment of the independent members of the Board of Directors, the Company has

complied very well with the Enterprise Law, the Securities Law, end other regulations
related to the Company's operations.

- The selection of contractors to implement the Company's projects is carried out in
accordance with regulations. The Board of Directors has authorized the Chairman of the
Board of Directors to sign decisions related to contractor selection, In addition, the

Company has also amended and supplemented the Contractor Selection Process to apply
appropriately to the actual situation at the Company.

4, General assessment of the activities of the Board of Directors and the Board
of General Directors:

Throughout 2024, despite encountering numerous challenges in site clearance
compensation and project implementation at the Company, compounded by evolving legal
paolicies and regulations, the Board of Directors provided close guidance, facilitating the
Board of Management in executing the plan entrusted by the General Meeting of
Shareholders. Consequently, 2024 revenue surpassed the plan by 3.38%, and affer-tax
profit exceeded the plan by 32.42%. The Board of Directors also tasked the Chairman with
assisting in resolving difficulties and obstacles related to project deployment, such as the
Urban Area, Gelf Course, and Highway 768 BOT project, assigning the Chairman the duty

of reviewing and deciding on project technical dossiers as a basiz for the Board of
Maenagement to implement related worl.

The Board of Directors also regularly reviewed periodic and ad-hoc reports from the
Hoard of Management, engaging in discussions with them concerning business, financial,
accounting, and project information to thoroughly understand the Company's operational
status and provide timely gnidance to the Board of Management,

The Company's Board of Management successfully accomplished the assigned
planned fargets, adhered to current regulations, frequently and promptly reported and
sought the Board of Directors' opimions on matters within their purview for consideration
and decision-making, while also demonstreting consistent concern for charitable social
activities and commenity relations m the two locelities where the Compsany is
implementing projects.

This 15 the report of the independent members of the Board of Directors on the
evaluation of the Board's activities in 2024.

Smcerely!
Bien Hoa, March 20, 2025
INDEPENDENT MEMBER OF INDEFENDENT MEMBER OF THE
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS BOARD OF DIRECTORS

S=

Tran Hao Hiep Nguven Van Luong




SONADEZI CHAU DUC
SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024




SONADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

Address: Sth Floor, Sonadezi Building, No. 1, Street 1, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park,

An Binh Ward, Eien Hoa Clty, Dong Nal Province, Vistnam

MANAGEMENT S REPORT
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Statement of financial position

income statemant

Cash-flow statement

Botes o the financal statements

CONTENTS

Pagos

0t -02

0& - 04

o

10 - 58



SONADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
Address: 9th Floor, Sonadezi Tower, No. 1, Street 1, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Zone,
An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province, Vistnam

MAMAGEMENT'S REPORT
Managamant of Sonadezi Chau Due Sharaholding Company (hereinafter referred to as "the Company™) haraby
pregents its report and the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31
December 2024,
MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE AND MANAGEMENT

Members of the Board of Directors during the year and on the dakte of this report include:

Full name Poslticn
Mr. Dinh Mgoc Thuan Chairman
Mr, Nguyen Yan Tuan Memibear
Kr. Pham Anh Tuan Wenber
Mr. Tran Hao Hiep Membear
Mir. Nguyen Van Luong Membear
Mr. Phan Dinh Tham Member
Ms. Mouyen Phuong Hang Member

Members of the Supervisory Commitiee during the year and on the date of this report Include:

Full name Positipn
Ms. Pham Thi Kim Hoa Head

M= Trirh Thi Haa Memmber
bir. Le Due Thuan Member

Members of management during the vear and on the date of this repart includea:

Eull name Position

Mr, Nguyen Yan Tuan General Director

Mr, Tran Trung Chien Vice General Director

Mr. Nguyen Minh Tan \Vica General Director

Mr, Hoang Van Chi Vice General Director (appointed on 07 July 2024)
BAr. Dinh Ngoe Thuan Vice General Director (dismissed on 01 July 2024)
AUDITOR

The accompanying financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2024 were
audited by RSM Vietnam Auditing & Consufting Company Limtad, a membaer firm of RSM Intemational,

(Sae fhe naxt page)



SOMADEZI CHAL DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
Addrass: 9th Floor, Sonadazi Tower, Mo, 1, Streat 1, Blen Hoa 1 Industrial Zone,
An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa Cily, Dong Mai Province, Vieinam

MANAGEMENT'S REPORT [COMNTINUELD)
RESPONSIBILITY OF MAMAGEMENT
The Company's managemaent is responsibla for preparing the financial staternants of each period which gree

a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and the resuits of its operations and its cash flows
In preparing thesa financial statemeants, managameant 15 required 1o

Select suttable accounting policies and than apply them consisiently,
= Make udgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

= Slabe whether applicable accounting principles have been followed, subject to any depariures t :
to be disclosed and explained in the financial siatements;

*  Prepare the finanzial statements an the going concam basis unless it is ineppropriate fo presume that the
Compary will continue in business; and

* [esign and impiemeant the internal control system effectively for a fair preparation and presentation of the
financial statemenis so as to miligate arror or fraud.

Managemant is responsible for ensurng that proper accounting records are kepl, which disclose, with
reasenable sccuracy at any time, the financial pesition of the Company and ensure thal the financial
statermnents comply with Vietnamese Accounling Standands, Vielnamess Corporate Accounting System, and
prevailing accounting regulations in Vietnam. Management i also responsible far safaguarding the assats of
the Company and hence lor taking reasonable steps for e pravention and detection of fraed and ather
iregularities.

Maragement confirma that the Company has complied with the sbove requirements in preparing thesa
fmancial stataments.

STATEMENT BY MANAGEMENT

In management's opinien, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company as al 31 Decamber 2024 and the results of its operations and ks cash fows for the
financial year then ended in accordance with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Carporate
Accounting System, and prevailing accounting regulations in Vistnam.

behalf of managament,
__.-' h'-""""-"q".\la ™

Cong Nal, 05 March 2025
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IHDEPEHDEHT AUDIT“R:E HEPDRT WLTEDN I.E,I-EUEII." vielnam
To: Shareholders
Members of the Board of Directors
Members of management
SOMADEZI CHAL DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPAMNY
Report on the financial statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding Company
(herainafter referred to as “the Company™) preparad on 05 March 2025 as set out from page 05 o page 36,
which comprise the statement of financlal position as at 31 December 2024, and the income staterment, and
cash-flow statement for the financial year than ended, and the notes to the financial statamants.
Managemeni's Responsibility ;-
Management i respongible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in ok
accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards and Vietnamese Corporale Accounfing System and 1
relevant begislation as to the preparation and presentation of financial statements and for such Internal control 7
g3 management determines (s necessary to enable the praparation and presentation of the financhal _T G
slatements that are free from matarial misslatement, whether due to fraud or erar. ,‘JE:
A
Auditors' Responsibility =

Cur responsibility i lo express an oplinkon on these financial statements based on cur audit. We conducted
our awdil In accordance with Vietnamesa Standards on Audiing. Those standards require thal we comply with
ethical requiraments and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance sbout whether the
financkal statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit imvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures In the
financial staterments. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstaternent of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or emor. In making those
risk assessments, the auditer considers intemal control relevant to the enfity’s preparation and fair presentation
af the financial statements in order to design awdit procedures that are appropriale in the circumstances, but
riot far the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivenass of the entity's internal contral. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness ol accounting poficies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financlal statements

Wa baeve that the audil evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

THE POWER OF BEING UNDERSTOOD
ASSURAMNCE | TAX | CONSULTING

TS b b i il oo Wi B0k mat s b doede s o WML RO Bl e e e e by U i asmnei s OF g RSl ek
Fach mesnérm of A ewivan ks evgekpmader oy el g lnne e et s by B2 ot 1 g
Thia Bl e v i ran E=ndl 2 wep ace iepd ol b oy pr e,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUE)

Opinion

In our epinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial positicn of
Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding Company as at 31 December 2024, and of the results of its financial
performance and s cash flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards and Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System issued under Circular 200/2014/TT-BTC dafed 22
December 2014 and Circular 53/2018/TT-BTC dated 21 March 2018 by Minisiry of Finance and relevant
legislation as to the preparation and presentation of financial statements.

i

__.-"
| /
4 f
L Thi Van Le Viet Ha N
Vice General Director Auditor
Audit Practice Registration Certificate; Audit Practice Registration Certificate:
017 2-2023-028-1 4T732-2024-026-1

RSM Vietnam Audiling & Consulting Company Limited

Mo Chi Minh City, 05 March 2025

Hl

Az disciosed in Nate 2.1 lo the financial statements, the accompanying fnanci staterments ang mat infermd

o prasent the financial position, financia! performance, and cash flows in sccordance with account E"':

princimes and practices genarally accepled fn countries and junsdictions olher than Viefnem, /X
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SOMADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
Address: 9th Floor, Sonadezi Building, Mo. 1, Street 1, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park,
An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa Cily, Dong Nai Province, Vietnam

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 Dacamber 2024

Farm B 01 - DN

Exprassed in WND
g at As at
ASSETS Code| Notes 3 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
A, CURREMNT ASSETS 100 3,066,828,196,450 | 2,064,408,677,001
I, Cash and cash equivalents 110 | 4.1 705,293,019.852 | 222.415,018,720
1, Cash 111 106, 174,670,236 179,551,554,.080
2. Cash eguivalents 112 BO0, 118,349,616 42 BG3 424 630
Il. Current financial investments 120 334,784 500,000 30,000, 000,000
1, Held to matunly investments 123 4.2 334,784 500,000 30,000,000,000
I, Current account receivables 130 149,767,274 436 67,309, 491,649
1. Trade recelvables 1] 43 72,347 897 540 63,606,134 628
2, Advances to suppliers 132 | 44 23,364 854 000 4,585 B25 290
3. Other current receivables 136 | 4.5 52,490 076 427 2372018 538
4, Provision for doubtful debils 137 | 46 (5,435 6553.621) (3,362, 386, 807)
. Inventories 140 1,743,116 427,066 | 1,621,216,275,015
1. Inventories 141 4.7 | 1,743 116427 066 | 1,621,216,375,915
V. Oher current assets 150 133,866,875,096 | 123.467,790,807
1. Current prepayments 151 | 4.11 B0, 961,504 855 TB,203, 303,333
2. Walue added tax deduciible 162 | 4.14 B2, 006 470,241 47 164 48T AT4
B. NON-CURRENT ASSETS 200 5,158,971,933,826 | 4,896,719,0900,499
. Non-current account receivables 210 324,145,994 324,146,094
1. Other non-curreni receivables He | 45 324 145,804 324,146,694
ll. Fixed assets 220 765,645,546,018 | 791,029,934,190
1. Tangible fixed assets 221 | 48 753,875.724,305 | 789,049,000,357
Cost 222 $25 313 66T 679 | 021,846 661,646
Accumulated depraciation 223 (171,337,863,374) (132,797,561,289)

2. Intangible fixed assefs 227 1,669.821,713 1,980,993,023
Cos| 728 2,351,358 424 TET3,644, 704
Accumulated amortisation 229 (881 536 711) [5,692,650,871)

ll. Investment property 230 | 410 | 1,119,971, 702173 | 1,054,818,817,758
1. Cost 23 1,967,474 792 081 | 1,807 020,795 860
2. Accumulated depreciation 232 {841,503,085,908)| (T52,201,877,804)
V. MWen-current assets in process 240 3,148,111,740,852 | 2,043 324,700,587
1. Gonstruction in progress 242 | 48 | 3148111, 740,852 | 2,043 324, 790 567
V. MNon-current financial investments 250 52,818,125,000 52,816,125,000
1. Investment in other enlities 253 | 42 R2,818,125,000 52.818,1256,000
V1, Other non-current asaets 260 32,100,673 Ta8 54,404,116 892
1. Non-current prepayments 281 | 411 82,100673,788 54 404 116,992
TOTAL ASSETS (270 = 100 + 200} 270 §,226,800,130,275 | 6,961,128,667 590

The accompanying nofes are an intagral part of the fnancial stafements
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SOMADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

Address: Bth Floor, Sonadezi Building, Mo, 1, Street 1, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park,

An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Mai Province, Vietnam

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2024

Form B 01 - DN

Exprassed in VND

!F-.Ig an ‘l.l'an Tuan ____Iurrﬂi;; Tong
ral Director Chief Accountant

Dong Mai, 05 March 2024

Ag at As

RESOURCES Code| Notes M Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
G. LIABILITIES 300 5,120,249,064,490 | 5,223,813,267T 422
I.  Current labilities o 1,841.546,002,942 | 1,788,360,226 862
1. Trade payables M1 | 412 180,04 7,064,173 268,064,204 858
2. Advances fram customers Mz | 413 655,556,194, 718 | 357,056,352 274
3. Tawxes and amounts payable ko the state budget | 313 | 4.14 14,212,481 214 42 749 290, 703
4, Payables to employees 34 | 415 8,823,588, 757 8,335 ,874,000
5, Accrued expenses & | 418 6,217 562,465 26,361,183,197
&, Currant unaamad revenua 18 | 4.7 18,787, 163,113 19,9651 564 468
7. Other cumrent payables 319 | 4.18 3104095570283 |  412,771,807,097
8. Curranl loans 320 | 4.20 B75,564,972 911 B04,044, 158,513
9, Current provisions a2 4 BT6,000, 000 .
10. Bonus and wealfare fund 322 | 419 &6, 165,385,338 53,040,990, 752
. Mon-current abilities 330 3,208,703,061,548 | 3,434,453,040,560
1. Accrued expenses 333 | 4.16 | 1,241 884,757,730 | 1,066 817 300,580
2. Mon-current unearned revenuea 336 | 417 307 544, 190, 192 308,450 780,672
3. Othar non-current payables 337 | 418 2,350,823, 475 2.3650,823.475
4, Mon-current boans 338 | 4.20 | 1,656,823,281,151 | 2,086 834,166,854
D. OWNER'S EQUITY 400 3,106,5561,066,786 | 1,737,315.400,168
. Equity 410 | 4.21 | 3,105,551,085,786 | 1,737,315,400,168
1. Owner's contributed capital 411 1,799,858 630,000 | 1,199,209 510,000

Ordinary shares carrylng voting rights 411a 1,799,858 630,000 | 1,199,999610,000
2. GShare pfemiums 412 BO& 276 BIE TES 5,347 260,000
3, Irvestment and development fund 418 167 832,827 134 127,832 B27 134
4. Retained earnings 421 E43 582 000 8BS 404, 135,713,034

Beginning accumulated retained earnings 421a 241 455 752 034 185,282 421,622

Fetained earnings of the current year 421k 302 127 167,852 218,873,281 612
' TOTAL RESOURCES (440 = 300 + 400) 440 §,225 800,130,275 | 6,961,128 667,590

e ——
,:.-l-'_

—_'_‘_?W L_

Dang Thi Thuy Hang

Preparer

The accampanying rotes are an integral part of the financial sialements
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SOMADEZI CHAL DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPAMNY
Address: Bth Floor, Scnadezi Bulkding, No. 1, Street 1, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park,

An Binh Werd. Bien Hoa Cily, Dong Nai Province, Vistnam

INCOME STATEMEMNT
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

Expressed In WMRND

_-.- = e

i S =
——'_'_
=

Nguyen Van Tuan
Géneral Director

Dovrg Nai, 05 March 2024

~Tran Ngoc Tong
Chief Accountant

ITEMS Code | Motes Year 2024 Yaar 2023
1. Ravenus L] 51 872 BO0974 636 | B17,257,115,033

2. Deductions 2 2.008,3686,752 11,500,000
3. Nelrevenue 10 870,602 607,884 | 817 246,616,033

4, Costof sales 13 52 430,852,501,611 | 4567 624,971 418
&, Gross profit 20 430,850,026,273 | 360,320,641 615

8. Finance ifcome 21 53 40,014 487 6581 17,084,242 022
7. Finance expense 22 54 34,643,220,420 46,014,222 51

Of which, inferest expense 23 32, 182,151,129 45,847 764,189

8, Selling expense 25 6.5 5,038,058 487 B, 548 286 200
9. General and administrative expense 26 686 56,377 807,757 46,450,680,056
10. Operating profit a0 374,784 527,251 | 266,300,687,010

11. Othar Incarme & 186,804,866 865,241,310

12, Other expense 32 380,529,807 478,341,049

13, Mat ather incomea 40 (183,724,741} 486 600,261

14. Accounfing profit before tax 50 374,600,802, 510 | 286,877,287,271

15. Current corporate incomea lax expense 51 5.8 T2 473 644 653 48 003,985,759

16. Met profit after tax eI 02127 167 852 | 2718 873281 512

17, Basic eamnings per share 70 142156 1.616 1,718

18, Diluted eamings per share 71 | 4218 1,616 1,145

e

il

Dang Thi Thuy Hang
Preparer

The accompanying nates are an integral parf of the financial slafements



SOMADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
Address; 9th Floor, Sonadezi Buliding, No. 1, Street 1, Bian Hoa 1 Industrial Park,

An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa Ciy, Dong Nai Pravince, Vietnam

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(Indirect method)
Far the financial year endad 31 December 209

Form B 03 - DM

Expressed in VND

ITEMS Coda| Notes Year 2024 Year 2023
I, CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
1. Met profit floss) before taxation 01 374, 600,802.510 | 268,877 267,271
2. Adjustment for:
Depraciation and amortisation 02 &7 313,312,997 408 | 337,548 368 495
Provisions 03 5T B, 750,266 814 3,317,407 057
Feraign exchange gains/losses from revaluation of
faraign currency monetary ilems 04 53 (36,548 8735) (31,618,016)
Gainsfosses from Investmant 05 (40,084,067 213) (16,612,185,534)
Interest expense 06 5.4 32.182,151,128 45 B4AT T84 180
Other adjustments a7 167,428 765 301,000,000
3. Operating profit /{loss) before adjustments to
working capital o8 BHE,902,032,620 | 637,342,144,393
Increase or decrease in accounts receivable 0a (84, 535,753,308)| (33,499162,007)
Increase or decrease in inventories 10 {121,200,051,151)| (278,013,688,038)
Increasa or decrease In accounts payable
{excluding Interest expense and CIT payable) 11 369,469 843,644 | 434.582.087.738
Increase or decrease prepaid expenses 12 (32,364,758,318)| (73.083,142.861)
Interest pakd 14 (33,916,371,324)| (44,126,274,737)
Corporate income tax paid 15 | 4.14 (96,701, B73175)| (16,224,070,887)
Cther cash inflows from oparaling actvities 16 27,120,000 13,000,000
Other cash outfiows from operating activities 17 (20,602,724 414)|  (B.022,212 522)
Met cash from operating activities 20 B5T 407,564,682 | 519,368 681,069
f!l, CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
1. Acquisition and construction of fived assets
and other non-current assets 21 (B48,666,776,604)| (717,869,491 555)
2. Procaeds from disposals of fixed assets and
ather non-cument asseis 22 107, 272727 1,695 454 545
3 Loans to other entities and paymants for
purchasa of debt instruments of ather entibes 23 (314,784 500.000) ¥
4 Repayments from borrowers and proceads
fram sales of debts instruments of other entities 24 12,340,000,000 | 10,000,000, 000
&, Interest and divicends received 27 31,880,515 427 16,817 425 840
Wet cash from investing activities a0 {919,113 468 4580)| (689,358 611,110)

(Sea the next page)

The accompanying noles are an ntegral part of the financial slalements
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SONADEZI CHAL DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
Address: 9th Floor, Sonadezi Building, Mo, 1, Street 1, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park,
An Bink Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Mal Province, Vietnam

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(Indirect mothod)
Far tha financial year ended 31 December 2024

Form B 03 - DN

Expressed in VND

O

i

"——'TFEEF.I".I_gm: Tong
Gereral Director

Doy Nal, 05 March 2024

Chief Accountant

ITEMS Code| Notes Year 2024 Year 2023
lIL CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
1, Procesds from issuing stocks and
capital contribution from owners 31 4218 1,195 718,040,000 =
2. Proceeds fram borrowings 33 61 331,604,006 486 | 521,323,885 744
3. Repayment of borrowings 34 6.2 (667 686,060, 791)| (458,546,593,579)
4, Dividends paid 36 (112,078,600,570) {5.638,145,210)
MNet eash from financing activities 40 744,547 378,125 26,739,146,955
MNET INCREASENDECREASE]) IN CASH
(50 = 20+30+40) 50 482 841,464,257 | (43,248 783,086)
Cash and cash equivakenis at beginning of year G0 222 415018,720 | 265,632,2083,790
Impact of exchange rata fuctuation A1 36 544 BTS 31,518,015
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR (70 = 50+60+81) 70 | 41 705,203,019,852 | 222,415,018,720
AL -

Dang Thi Thuy Hang
Proparor

The accompanying noles arg an integral part of the francial staternents
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SOMADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
Address: 9th Floor, Sonadezi Building, Mo. 1, Street 1, Blan Hoa 1 Industrial Park,
An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong MNai Province, Vietnam

1.1.

1.2

1.3

1.4.

Form B 08 - DN
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION
Structure of ownership
Sonadezi Chau Duc Sharsholding Company (hereinafter referrad ta as "the Company™) has been
imconporaled in accordance with the Business Registration Certificate No. 35003085848 dated 26 June
2007 and ather amended certificates thereafier with the latest one dated 04 May 2024 granted by
Dong Mal's Department of Planning and Investmen! to increase the charter capital,

The charier capital as stipulasted in the lalest Business Registrafion Cerlificate s VND
1,798,358,630,000.

The Company's registered head office is at Sth Floor, Sonadezi Tower, No. 1, Street 1, Bien Hoa 1
Induatrial Zone, An Binh Ward, Bian Hea Clly, Dong Mal Province, Viatram.,

On 15 January 2013, the Company was officially listed on the Ho Chi Minh Cily Stock Exchange
{HDSE) with the stock code SZC

The number of employeas as at 31 December 2024 was 283 (31 December 2023; 258).
Business fleld

Investment In construction and infrastructure business of Industrial park, real estate business, and goll
sports service business.

Operating industry and principal activitles

The Compary is principally engaged Im;

»  |nvesting In infrastructures of industrial park, industrial cluster, residential areas;
= Suyrveying, measuring terrain, drilling for geciogical exploration;

=  Trading in infrastruciure project;

* Activities of sports clubs;

= Trading in restaurant and hebel business (not operating at headquarter),

*» Leasing buildings, offices, warehouses.

Mormal operating cycle

The Company's narmal operating cycle is carried out for a8 perod of 12 months:

(See the nexl page)
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SONADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
Address: Oth Floor, Sonadezi Bulkding, Mo. 1, Strest 1, Bien Hea 1 Industrial Park,
An Binh Ward, Blen Hoa City, Dong Mai Province, Vielnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
1.5 The Company's structure

The Company’s dependent units as at 31 December 2024 were as follows!

Mame Operating industry Address
BOT Branch BOT project toll Mk Floar, Sonadezi Tower, No, 1, Streat 1, Blen
coflection businass Hoa 1 Industrial Zone, An Binh VWard, Bien Hoa

City, Diong Nal Province, Vietnam

Chau Duc Urban  Leasing in Industrial park  Hei Bai - Chau Pha - Da Bac Street, Huu Phuac
Industrial Park and real estate business  Village, Suoi Nghe Commune, Chau Duc District,
Ba Ria - Vung Tau Province, Vielnam

Chau Due Golf Golf business Chau Duc Golf Cowrse, Chau Duc Urban -Industrial
Enterprise Park, D.02 Street Huu Phuoc Village, Sucl Nghe
Communea, Chau Duc District, Ba Ria - Yung Tau
Province, Vietnam

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1.  Accounting standards, accounting system
The accompanying financial statements, expressed in Vietnamese Dong ("WND"), are prepered under
the historical cost convention and in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Viatnamese
Corporate Accounting System, and pravalling accounting regulations in Vietnarm.
The accompanying financial statements are not intended to present tha financlal position, results of
oparations and cash flows in accordance with accounting princlples and practices generally accepted
in countries and jurisdictions other than Vietnam

2.2. Forms of accounting records
The farm of aceounling records applied in tha Company is the General Journal.

2.3.  Financial year
Tha Company's financial year is from 01 January fo 31 December.

2.4, Reporting and functional currency
The Company maintains its accounting records in VND.

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

31, Use of estimates
The preparation of the financial statements requires management io make estimabes and assumptions
that impact the carrying value of certain assets and [iabilities, contingent assels as at 31 December
2024 and kabllities reported in the notes as well as revenues and expenses for the financlal year ended
31 December 2024. Although these estimates are based on managerment’s best knowledge of all

relevant information available at the date when the financial statements are prepared, this does not
prevent actual figures differing from estimates.

11



SONADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

Addrese: 9th Floor, Sonadezi Bullding, Mo, 1, Street 1, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park,
An Binh Ward, Blen Hoa City, Dong Nal Province, Vigtnam

i
WA

b 3

3.3,

3.4,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

"-;/l

Cash and cash egquivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash al bank and current investments for a pariod
not excaading 3 moanths or highly iqud investments which ara readily comvarlible 1o kr-.mn AMmaLnis
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, :

Cash equivalents are defined the same as those under Accounfing Siandard “Statementy
ficws®

-.Ijm) =
Financial investments W/ ;?-'-‘r

1y
Held to maturity lnvestments F

Held to maturly investments comprise term deposis.
Equity invesiments in other entities
Cihar investmenis

invesimenis classified a8 other investments are investments other than investments in subsidiaries,
investmants in associates or nvestments on joint venturas,

Other imvesiments are accounted for under the cost mathod which comprise purchase prices plus (+} ad
acquisition related cosis (if any). In case of investments of non-monetary assels, the cost of .
investments is recognised at the fair velues of the assets as incurred.

Recognition principles of provision for securities investment impalrment loss

i
For ather investmeants W
-5
As of the date of the financial statements, provisions for impaiment losses on equity investments are ‘oo

recognised if an indication of impairment exists.

Pravisions for impairment losses on equity investments in other enfiies are determined using fair
values if the fair values can measura reliably. If the fair values cannot be measure reliably at the
reporling date, provisions are measured on the basis of the investea's losses.

Account recelvables

Rocognition method

Account receivables are stated at the carrying amounts of trade receivables and other receivables
less provisions for doubiful cebls.

Prowvision for doubifvl debis

As of the date of the financial stalements, provisions for doubtful debts are resognised for past-due
accounts receivable and for accounts recaivable whare circumstances indicate that they might be
uncallectible or for uncollactible dabts due to liguidation, bankruptcy, or similar difficulties.

The difference between the required balance and the existing balance of provision for doubtful cebts
iz recorded as a general and administrative expansa in the income statement.

12



SOMADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
Address; Sth Fioor, Sonadezi Building, No. 1, Strest 1, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park,

An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Mal Province, Vietnam

3.5.

3.6.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Inventories
inventory measurement
Lirban res! estate properties constructed for sale during the normal course of the Company's
operations, not for lease or capital apprecialion, are recognized as inventory at the lewer of cost to
bring @ach product 1o its present location and condition, and net realizable value
The cost of real estate properties constructed for sale includes compensation costs, site clearance
costs, road construction and drainage system costs, landscaping and other infraslructure costs,
construction costs paid to contractors, design consultancy fees, and other related expenses.

Net realizable value is determined as the estimated salling price less the estimated costs of completion
along with marketing, selling, and distribution expenses.

Method of accounting for inveniories

Inventories are measured using the weighted everage method and are recorded under the perpetual
inventory method

Provisions for daciine in valwe of inventorias

Ag of the date of the financial statements, provislons are recognised for obsolete, slow-moving,
defactive inventory, and for inventory stated at cost higher than net realisable value.

The difference batwean the required balance and the existing balance of the provision for a decling In
value of inventories is included in cost of sales in the Income siatement.

Tangible fixed asseis

Tangibls fixed assels are measured at cost less accumulated depraciation.

Tangible fixed assef recognition

The caost of purchased tangibée fixed assets comprises the purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the assats lo their present location and working condition for thesr intended use.
Accassories added to fixed assets when purchased are recognised separately at their fair values and
deducted from the historical cost of the respeciive tangible fixed assats,

The costs of tangible fixed assats constructed by contraciors are the finalised costs of the construction,
othar directly retated expenses and the registration fae (if any).

The costs of self-made and self-constructad fangible fixed assets comprise the construction costs,
aciually incurred manufacturing costs plus installation and test run cosls.

Depreciafion
The costs of fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line mathod aver thedr estimated useful lives.

(Zee the nexi page)
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SONADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
Address: Sth Floor, Senadezi Building, No. 1, Streat 1, Bian Hoa 1 Industrial Fark, 1
An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Mal Province, \ietnam 5

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) i
The estimated usaful ives are as follows: fl
=  Buiidings, structures 05 - 30 years 3
s Machinery and equipment OF - 15 years
s fiator vehicies 07 =10 years
*  [lanagement equipment and devices 05 - 08 years
= Other 03 - 30 years

For the cost of road BOT 7688 are depreciated in accordance with Gircular No. 147/2016/TT- BTG
dated 13 October 2016 issued by Ministry of Finance as follows: "the time of depreciation of fixed
assats shall be determined by the payback period, The depreciation of fixed assets formulated from
the projects shall be in proportion to the annual revenues and in accordance with the time of operation
serving the payback (similar to the methad of depreciation by guantity andfos weight of the products)”,
The formula is as follows:

= [Depreciation = {Costs of the BOTITotal revenue estimated to recover the costs of the praject) *
FEVenLUe per year

3.7. Dperating leases

Assels subject to operating leases are recognised In the statement of finandial position according to
tha Comparny's asset classification pattern,

Initial direct costs o generate income from operaling leases are recognised 8s expensas in the year
as Incurred or amortised over the lease tarm. Lease income from operating leasas is recognised in the
ncome statement on a stralght-line basis over the lease term regardiess of payment methods.

Depreciation of assets subject to operating leases is consistent with the depreciation policy of the
lessor appliceble io similar assats.

38, Investment property

Investment properties are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation. Investment properties hekd
for capital appreciation are not depreciated but subject to mpairment review.

Investment property recagnifion
An investment property is measured Initially at its cost. The cost of an investment property is the

armodnt of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair valua of other considerations given fo acquine an
asset at the time of its asquisition or construction. The costs include inital transaction charges.

Investment property depreciation
The cost of an investment property is depreciated on a straighi-line,

The estimated useful livas of investmant properties are as follows:

»  [Buildings, struciures 07 - 41 years
Land use rights 4 years
* Factory 20 - d1 years

{Sea the next page)



SOMADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPAMNY
Address: Sth Floor, Senadezi Building, Mo. 1, Street 1, Bien Hoa 1 Industnial Park,

An Binh Ward, Bian Hoa City, Dong Mai Province, Vietnam

3.9.

3.10.

3.11.

312,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Construction In progress

Properties in the course of construction for production, rental, administralive purposes, or for purposes
not yet determined, are carried at cost. Cost includes professional fees and borrowing costs dealt with
in accordance with the Company's ascounting poficy, Depraciation of these assets, on the samea basis
as other properly assels, commences when the assels are ready for their intended uze.

These expanses are lemporarily measured as the ariginal cost when fhe assats are put into use i the
cost has yet o be approved,

Under the current regulations on Investment and construction management, subject 1o managament
dacaniralisation, construction finalisation value shall be approved by competent agencies. The final
construction finatisation value could be different from the aforementioned onginal cost subject to the
finalizsation approved by competant agencies.

Business cooperation contract {BCC)
Capital contribution recognition in jointly controlled operations

The capital contributor recognizes assets contributed to BCC's operations as other receivables, The
capital contribution parly recognizes assets of the parfies conlributing to BOC's aclivities as other
liabllities.

Sharing of revenures, expenses

The parties agree o divide the business results based on the aciual capital contribution refated to the
house construction, Which parly confributes money to Implement which cost item in the total cost
estimate of the house construction, and other valid costs will be Included in that parly's capital
cantribution value. At that time, the capital contribution value changes, and the percentage changes.
When finalizing the cooperaticn contract, the parties agree to divide the business cooperation results
according to this percentage change.

Prepayments

Prepayments are classified as current and non-current based on their original term. Prepaymants
mainly comprise rental cost of premises with technical infrastructure, compensation costs for site
clearance, cost of tools and supplies, ete., which are amaoriised aver the period for which they are paid
or the pariod in which econemic benefits are generated In relation to these expenset.

Liabilities

Liakillles are classified into trada payakles, intra-company payables and other payables based on the
following rules: Trade payables represent those arising from purchase and sale related fransactions
of goods, services or assets and the seller is independent of the buyes, Intra-company payabies
rapresaent those between the entity and ils depandent accounting units having no legal stalus; the
remaining payables ara classified as other payables,

Liahiiities are also classified according fo the maturity date, the remalning term from the date of Lhe
financial statemants, criginal currency, and each creditor.

Liabilities are recognised at no [ess than the payment obligation.

(S the naxf page)
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SOMADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
fddress; Sth Floor, Sonadez| Bullding, Mo, 1, Street 1, Bian Hoa 1 Industrial Park,

An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province, Vietnam

3.13.

3.4,

318,

3.16.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Borrowing costs
Capitallsation of borrowing costs
Borrowing costs direcly attributable to the acquisiion, consiruction, or production of qualifying assels,
that necessarily take a substantial period of time lo get ready for their intendad use or sale, are
capitaised as part of the cost of those assets until the assets are pul inlo use or sake

Investment income aamed on temporary Investment of bormowings |s deducted from the cost of the
respective assets,

Al othar borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the income staterment when incurred,

Accrued eXpenses

Accrued expanses includa:

» Acerued expenses for goods and services received from the seller during the reporting period but
nat yet paid due 1o lack of invoices or eccounting documents. These expenses are recognsed as
operating expanses of the reporting year.

=  Accrued expenses for industrial park land lease provided o customers but not yet completed in
the Investment phase, which are estimated according to the regulations of the govermnment
regarding the cost estimates In the construction industry,

Uneamed revenues

Uneamed revenues include advanced payments from customers for one or more accounting periods
for industrial park land lease and golf service business.

Uneamed revenues are periodically determined and transferred into revenuas in according with the
lease term and service usa.

Owwniers” eguity

The ownaers’ contributed equity

The owners' contributed equity is recognisad whan cantributed.
Share promiums

Share premiums are recognised as the difference between the issue price and the par value of shares,
and the differance batwean the re-purchase price and the re-issue price of reasury sharas,

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a lakility at the date of declaring dividencds,

Reserves

Reserves are created at cartain percentages of profit after tax as prescribed in the Company’s charler,
Retained eamings

Net profit after income tax can be distributed to shareholders after the distribution is approved the

Seneral Annual Meeting of Sharsholders and reserves are created in accordance with the Company's
Charter and legal regulations in Vietnam.
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SONADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

Address; Sth Floor, Sonadez| Bullding, No. 1, Street 1, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park,
An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Pravince, Vietnam

3.17.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Revenue and other incomae

Revenue from selling goods

Revanue from selling goods Is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
In most cases, revenus is recognised when transferring the risks and rewards of ownership 1o the

Bunret,

Revenue involving the rendering of services

Revanue of a transaction Involving the rendering of services is recognised when the oulcome of this
transaction can be estimated reliably. When a transaction involving the rendering of services is

atiributable to several periods, each period’s revenue is recognised by reference 1o the stage of
completion at the end of the reporting period.

Revenue from transferring real estate

Revanue from the transferring real estate s recognised when all five (05) of the following conditions
are salisfied:

= The Company has transfared risks and benefits assockated with ownership of the real estate to
the buyers;

=  The Company no longer holds the right to manage the real estate as real estate's owners o the
right to coniral the real estats;

* The turnover is determined reliably,

» The Company has raceived or will recelve ecenomic benefits from the sales of the real estate;

= Costs related to sales of the real estate may be determinad

Revenue from leasing land and infrastructure business

Revenue from leasing land and infrastructure business is recognized for each lease coniract.
Revenue from leasing land is recorded ance for the entire rental amount received in advance if the
conditions as required by Article 78 of Clreular 20002014/TT- BTC on 22 December 2014 of Ministry
of Finance on guidelines on accounting policies for enterprises are mel simultaneously:

s The renta! period i 30% of the useful life of the assets;

* Thelessee is not entitled fo cancel the lease contract and the Company has no cblgation to repay
the amount receded in advance in all cases and in all forms,

» The amount received in advance from the lease is not less than 80% of the fotal kease amount
expected to gel under the contract during the lease term and the lessee musl pay the entire
amcunt of lease within 12 months from the beginning of the lease,

»  Almost all the risks and benefits associated with cwnership of the leased asset are transfarmad 1o
the lesses;

* The Company must estimate relatively the full cost of the lease.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basks by reference to the principal cutstanding and at the
interest rate applicable.
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SONADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
Address: Bth Floor, Sonadezi Bullding, No. 1, Street 1, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park,

An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Pravince, Vietnam

3.18.

3.18.

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Cost of sales

Cost of sales and services provided represents lotal costs of goods, services which are sold and
renderad in the period in accordance with the matehing principle.

The cost of land and Infrastructure leased includes all costs directly incurred for land development
activities or costs that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to these activities, including:

= Al land and fand davelopmant cosis;

= Al gonstruction and construction-related costs;

= (Other mandatory and general costs incurred during the farmation of real estate related fo the
current and future land and infrastructure development activities of the project, such as comman
technical infrastructure, mandatory land fund for public purposes.

Finance expense

Finance expanses reprasent all expenses incurred in the reporling year which mainly include interest
expenses and payment discounts.

Selling expense and general and administrative expense

Selling expenses represent expenses incurmed during the process of selling goods and rendering
services, which include depreciation expense, customer referral consulting expense and othes
ENpIENEE

General and administrative expenses represent commaon expenses, which include payroll costs for
office employees, stationery expense, depreciation expense of fixed assets used for adminisiration

activities; taxas, feas, charges, provision expense for doubtful debts; utility service and sundry
axpense.

Taxation
Corporate income fax
Curranf corparate income lEX axpeRso

Current corporate income tax expense |3 determined on the basis of taxable income and the rate of
corporate income tax (CIT) of the current yaar at 20% and tax Incentive as follows:

Tax nceniive:
o For BOT branch:

According to Chapter VI, Arlicle 35-1, Decrea No. 78/2007/MD-CP dated 11 May 2007 of the
Government, BOT enterprisas anjoy a preferential corporate income tax rate of 10% for the entire real
lime present project; exemplion from 100% GIT for 4 years when taxable income arigas and and then
50% reduction of the amount of tax payable in 9 subsequent years.

»  For buginess activities In Chau Duc Industriz! Park:

Agcording to the Investment Certificate and tax regulations, operations of Chau Duc Industrial Park
anjoy a praferential corporate income tax rate of 10% for 15 years from the tme the project begins
business operations, exemption from 100% CIT for 4 years whan taxable Income anses and then 50%
raduction of the amount of tax payable in § subsequent years. The year 2024 was the 14ih year in
which taxabke income arises.
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SONADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPAMNY
Address: Sth Floor, Sonadezi Building, No. 1, Strest 1, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Parlk,

An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Mal Province, Vietnam

3.22,

3.23.

MOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Value added tax

The goods sold and services rendered by the Company are subject bo value added tax at the following
rates:

= [nfrastruciure feas for processing enterprises 0%

s Supplying clean water 5%

Cither activities 10%

In accordance with Decrae S4/2023/NE-CP dated 28 Decamber 2023 by the Government datading he
implementation of Resolution Mo, 110/2023/QH15 passed by the Standing Commitiee of the Mabonal
Assembly dated 29 Movember 2023, the VAT rate of B% s applicable fo certain goods and services
from 01 January 2024 1o 30 June 2024 and In accordance with Decrea 72/2024/MB-CP dated 30 June
2024 by the Government detailing the implemantation of Resolution Mo, 142/2024/0H15 passed by
the Standing Committes of the Matiohal Assembly daied 29 June 2024, the VAT rate of 3% i
applicable to certain goods and servicas from 01 July 2024 fo 31 Decembes 2024. In particular, the
following sarvices are applicable to WAT rale of 5%:

*  Electricity supply senvice,

»  \Wastewater treatment service,

*  Consulting and supervision senvice fee;

*  Restaurant service lea.

Other faxes

Other taxes are applicable in accordance with the prevalling tax laws in Vietnam.

The tax reports of the Company will be inspected by tha Tax Department. Application of the laws and
regulations on tax o different transactions can be interpreted by many ways, therefore, the tax
amounts presented in the financial statements can be amended in accordance with the Tax
Departmant’s final assessment for the Company.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the nel profit atiributable to ordinary sharehaolders,
by the weighted averags number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, exciuding ordinary
shares bought back by the Company and held a& treasury shares.

Diluted sarnings per share

Basic eamings per share are calculeted by dividing the net profit attributable to ordinary sharehalders
(after adjusted for bonus and welfare funds), by the weighted average number of crdinary shares
cutstanding during the year, excluding ordinary shares bought back by the Cempany and held as
treasury shares.

{See the nexl page)
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SONADEZ| CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
Address: Stk Flaor, Senadezi Building, No. 1, Street 1, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park,

An Binh \Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nal Province, Vietnam

3.24.

3.25,

41,

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishabée component of the Company thal is engaged either in producing or
providing related products or services (business segment), of in producing or providing products o
servicas within a particular economic envirenment (geographical segment), which is subject o risks
and rewards that are differend fram those of other segments.

Related parties

Related parties are individuals or entities that have the ability, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, to control the Company or are controlled by, or are subject to common control with the
Company. Assockates, individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voling power of the
Company that gives them significant influence over the Company, key management personnel
including directors and officers of the Company and close family members or associales of swch
individuals are also considered to be related parties.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS SHOWN IN THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
FOSITION

Cash and cash equivalents

As at s at
M Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
VD YHND
Cash in hand 370,913,532 20,100, 654
Cash af bank 104,803, 766, 704 179,231 493 426
Cash equivalents (*} GO0, 118,348 616 42 853 424 B30
Total 705,293,019,662 _222,415,018,720

{*} Represanting depostts with an original term less than 03 months at an inferest rate rom 4.4% to
4.6% per annm,

{See the next page)

20

1]

I'I
T
Al



SONADEZI CHALU DUC SHAREHOLDIMG COMPANY

Address: Sth Floor, Sanadez| Building, Mo. 1, Street 1, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park. An Binh Ward. Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province, Vietnam

4.2,

o

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial investments

Current held-to-maturity investments reprasent deposits with an criginal term from 06 months to 12 menths, interest rate from 4.0% 10 5.1% par annum,
These deposits were mortgaged as loan security - Refar to Note 420,

Oithar investments are analysad as follows:

As at 31 Dec. 2024 As at 01 Jan. 2024
VMD VND

Cost Fair valus Provision Cost Fair value Provision
Sonadezi Long Binh Shareholding
Company () 31.518, 125,000 50,050,782, 500 - 31.518,125.000 28,460,652 500 -
Chau Duc Water Supply Shareholding
Company (B) 15,800,000,000 ] - 19,500,000,000 ™} -
Sonadezl Service Joint Stock Company () 1,500,000,000 & 513,000,000 - 1,500 000,000 4,311,000,000 -
Tatal 52818,125,000 - 52.B818,125,000 -
{a) This Investment acoounts for4,20% of the charter capital of Sonadezi Long Binh Shareholding Company, a company established and cperating in Vistnam,

(b)

(e}

listed on the HNX with the stock code SZB. The main business activities of Sonadazi Long Binh Sharehedding Company are frading real estates and land
usa rights of owners, users and lessses. The Company has determined the falr value of this invesiment based on the price quoted on the stock exchange
g5 at 31 December 2024 and the number of shares ihat the Company holds;

This investment accounts for 4.73% of the charter capital of Chau Duc Water Supply Sharsholding Company, a company established and oparating in
Vietnam, The main business activities of Chau Due Water Supply Shareholding Company are water exploitation, treatmeant and supply. Al the repariing
date, the Company has not determined the fair value of this investment for disclosure in the financial statements because there is no listad price on the
market and Vietnamase Accounting Standards, Corporate Accounting Regime. \ietnamesa businessas currantly do not have guidance on how fo calculate
fair value using valuation technigques. The fair value of these investmeants may differ from their carrying value;

This investment accounts for 3.00% of the charter capital of Sonadezi Service Joint Stock Company, a company established and operating In Vietnam,
trading on the UpCOM exchange with the steck code SOV, The main business activities of Scnadezi Service Joint Stock Company are non-loxic wasle
collection. The Company has determined the fair value of this investment based on the price quoted on the stock exchange as al 31 December 2024 and
the number of shares that the Company holds.
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SOMADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
Address: Oth Floor, Senadezi Building, Mo. 1, Street 1, Bien Hoa 7 Industrial Park,

An Binh Ward, Bian Hoa Cily, Dong Mai Province, Vietnam

4.3

4.4,

4.5,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Current trade recelvables

As at As at
31 Doe. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
o VD WD
Trade receivablas from refated parlies - Refer o Note 8 1,660, 000,978
her cusiomers {*) T0,47H 986 562
Total 72,347,097,540  _ 63,696,134,628 5

{*} As at 31 December 2024, any component of receivables from other cuslomers was less than 10

of the total current trade receivables.

Current advances to suppliers

'\.__.-'"

As at Ag at

31 Dec, 2024 01 Jan. 2024

VND VND

Green YWorld Environmental Technology Corporation 16,568,450, 687 336,000,000
Other suppliers (*) 6.796,363,403 4.240.825280
Tatal 23 364,854,090 "'LE’BEJE'EEFEM

{*) &5 at 31 December 2024, any component of advances to other suppliers was less than 10% of the

tatal current advances to suppliars,

Other receivables
Asal 31 Dec, 2024 As at 01 Jan. 2024
VND . = VND
Armoumt Provisions Symaunt Provisions
Current;
Racetvables rwvestmeant

cooperation in Huu

Phuoc residential area

project from related

party - Rafer io Mote B 2,674,801 588
Receivables investmant

cooperation in Huu

Phuoc residential area

praject 48,233,275 882 - -

Intarast recelvables f,083,380,170 - 2347 111,111

Oiher receivables 3B8 608, 747 - 32 BOT 427 -

Total 59 490,076,427 - 2,379,918,638 .
Non-cumeant;

Deposits 324,145,994 s 324,145,594
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SONADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

Address: 3th Floor, Sonadezi Building, No. 1, Strest 1, Bien Hoa 1 Indusirial Park, An Binh ¥Ward, Blen Hoa City, Dong Mai Province, Wietnam

4.6,

Doubtful debts

Dwerdus trade recaivables not yet dus but uncollactibie

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)

Overdue trade recaivables are analysed by dabtor as follows:

Phue An Constnection Trading
and Services Company Limited

KSE Vina Company Limited

Dong Thuan Investment Saint
Stock Company

LTF Global Vina Company Limited
Aurelia Apparels Vistnam
Company Limited

Total

Bz at 31 Dec. 2024

As at 01 Jan. 2024

VND - WND
Recoverable Recoverabla
Cast amount Cost amount
f.ohT 478 382 2. 121,825,711 B 885726071 3,533 338,264
As at 31 Dec. 2024 As at 01 Jan, 2024
VND VD
Racowvarabla Recowverable
Cost amount Cwardua days Cost amount Overdue days
Fraom 08 months
4702 524 283 1,508,685 504 Ovar 11 yaar 4,702 524 8B3 2,613 804 890 to under 03 years
Fram 05 manths
1,322 BET 546 345980, 743 Chver 01 year 1,322 B6T, 546 B51.433 773 to under 03 years
From 02 years to
T7B,A75,003 Cweer O3 years 778,375,003 233,512,501 under 03 years
571,764,321 77,150,624 Chver 01 year & g
From 02 years ta
81,957 &390 - Chvar 03 years 21,857 B34 24 587 261 under 03 years
7,557 479,282 2,121,825 771 6,885,725,071 3,533,338, 264
23
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SONADEZ] CHAU DUGC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
Address: Sth Floor, Sonadezi Building, Mo, 1, Streat 1, Blen Hea 1 Industrial Park,
An Binh Ward, Bien Haa City, Dong Mai Province, Vietnam -

W

NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED) -

4.7, Inventories :I"I

As at 31 Dec. 2024 As at 01 Jan. 2024 N

VND VND £)
Cost Prowisions Cost Provisions
Raw malerials 223,241,278 - 223241 276 -
Tools and supplies 104,179,482 - - -
Waork in progress 1,742 758,800,927 - 1,620,981,581.878 £
Marchand isa 33,196,371 - 11,542 861 =
Total 1,743, 116,427,066 - 1,621,216,375,915 -

e

.-"}Ij-'

Wilork in prograse are detalled by project as follows: ;;."33':"

faty Ot

Ag at As at |'IIEI-'1I i i

31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024 | | coN

VND wnp B\

5:-’
Chau Due urban area project 1,512 866,063,865 1,473,084,987 218 M?f
Huu Pruoc residential area praject 181, 793,249,230 147,827 347 260 =

Social housing project 48,100,496 832

Consulting and supervision costs 69,267,500

Total 1,742,758,809,927 1,620,981 591,978 7

The interest expense capitalised in work in progress during the year totalled YND 33,822,581,991 - :

Refer to Mote 5.4,

4.8.  Construction In progress

As at fig at

31 Dec, 2024 01 Jan. 2024

_ L[] VD

Chau Duc Industrial Park project (%) 3,062 600,475,036 2.0810,054,733 654
BOT Road 768 project 47,020,697 586 A7 829 607 588
Golf Chaw Due project 37,063,502 674 Bd 805, 145,685
Othars 628,061 657 535,213,642
Total 3,448.111,740,B52 2,843,324, 790,567

{*) Construction in progress at the Chau Duc Industrial Park project are mainly compensation costs far
sile clearance, construction consultancy, and project investment constrection casts. Assets farmed in
the future of Chaw Duc Industrial Park project were morigaged as loan securily - Refer to Mote 4.20.

The interest expense capitalised In construction in progress during the year fotalled WND
149,365,353,414 - Refer to Note 5.4,
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SONADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
Address: Sth Floor, Sonadezl Building, No, 1, Streef 1, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province, Vietnam

4.9,

Tangible fixed assals

ltems

Cask:
&g at 01 Jan. 2024
Furchasea
Disposals
Oiher decreases

As at 31 Dec. 2024

Accumulated depreciation;
&z at 01 Jan, 2024
Depraciation
Disposats
Jther decreasss

As at 31 Dec. 2024

Mal bk value:
Az gt 01 Jan 2024

As at 31 Dec. 2024 (*)

(*} OF which, net boak
value of BOT branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Buildings, Machinery and Motor Office
structures egquipment vehlcles equipment Other Total
VND VYND VND VHND VND WND
555,366,383 862 36, 732,921,218 33,678,737 BAT 4,547 800,614 281,522 718,065 921,845,561 646
= = 2,138 667 BT 563,379,163 2 628 166,179 5.321,213.009
= (G45 483,636) = = (545, 483 635)
- - - - (1,208,603,340) {1,208,603,340)
565,366,383 862 _ 36,732,921,218 35,170,921, 918 5101,178.777 282,542,280,904 925,313,687 672
73,800,587 589 5,123,485,003 12,884,757, 719 3,075,348 065 38,113.382,012 132,797,561 289
9.979,460,201 2,595 385 420 4,218,056,312 570,035 204 21 TEZ 7BD 584 39,225,717,723
' ” {645,483 ,6356) = - (545,483 636)
~ - - (38,832, 002) - [38,832,002)
£3 580,047,780 7,718, 870,423 16,557.330,398 3,605,552 170 59,876,162,596 171,337,963,374
481,785 796273 31609438215 _20,751.980 168 1,472,451 648 243,408 336 053 789,045 000 357
481,786, 336,072 25,014,050, 735 18.613,591,523 1,496 627 607  223,066,118,308 T53,975,724,305
288 482 551,142 16,714,292 - - 288 499 265 434

The emeount of year-and net book value of Eangible fixed assats formed from the golf course totaling YND 447,797 832,128 was mortgaged as loan security -

Refer to Note 4.20,

The historical cost of tangible fixed assets fully depreciated but still in use totalied WND 5,637,392,773

= =

¥

At

o5
"

= !

= e o )
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SOMADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
Address: 9th Floor, Sonadegzi Building, No. 1, Streat 1, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Fark @,
An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa Cily, Dong Nal Province, Vistnam

NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.10.  Investment property

As al Ag at
31 Dec. 2024 Additions 01 Jan. 2024
Investment property for leases VND YhD YND
Caost
Land uge rights 185 462 353,360 - 185,462 363,350
Infrastruciure 1,752,042 900,203 154,453,996, 421 1.697 588,803 88
Factory 23.969.520,428 - 23,969,528 428
Taotal 1,861,474, 792 081 154 453,996,421 1,807,020,735,660
Aocumulated depreciation:
Langd usea rights 177,136,087, 459 244 890 458 176,804 197,023
Infrastrucihure B5G, 144,938,547 87 008 &44, 770 B68,238,293,.777
Factory 8,222 083,872 1,149,575 768 T.072487,104
Total ___B41 503 089 808 89,301,112,004 752,201 ,977,904
MNet ook value:
Land use righis 8,326,275, 861 8,671.188,227
Infrastructure 1,085,897 861,756 1,0298,350,610,106
Factory 15, 74T 464 B5HE 16,697,041,324
Total 1,119,971,702,173 1,054,618,817 756

The amount of year-end net bock value of investment properly was mortgaged as loan sacurity - Refer
1o Mote 4.20.

The historical cost of investment property fully deprecisted but stil held for rental totalled VMND
26,554,631,651.

Rental income and expenses related fo investment propery are presented as follows:

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
Rental income from investment properly 765 014,353,235 B83,676,346,800
Direct operating expenses from property that generated
rental income 208 590, 854,138 311,875.829,040

At the reporting date, the Company could not determing the fair values of invesiment properties held
for lease o be disclosed in the financial statements because cummently there is no guidance on
determination of fair values using valuation technigues under the Vielnamese Accounting Standards,
the Caorporate Vietnamese Accounting System. The fair values of these investment properties may
differ from their carrying amounts.

- T - [
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SOMADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
Address: Bth Floor, Sonadezi Building. Mo. 1, Street 1, Bian Hoa 1 Industrial Park &,
An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.11. Prepayments

As at
31 Dec. 2024

VND

Currant:

Rental cost of premisas with technical infrastructure (a) 74,909,126 565 74,909, 126,565

Cithias 6,052 378,290 1,384, 176,768
Total 80,961,504,855  76,303,303,333
Mon-curment
Compensation costs for site clearance (D) 71,024, 730,007 41,630,448 518
Toals and consumable expendilure 2,061,6872.034 4,677,058 292 o
Cither 5,014,071, 747 8,087 E09 Ba2 l'.‘“
M
Total 82,100,673,788 54,404,116 992 i
LI
{a) Representing the value of the subleass of the land plat leased under contract No, 01/HDCQ-SZ0C- 5g
KD dated 15 December 2023 regarding the transfer of the sublease righte at Chau Duc Industrial o

Park batween the Company and Industrial Urban Development Joint Stock Company Na. 2.

{b) Representing the compensation costs for site clearance of the Chau Due urban area project, which
is amorised to the area whera infrastructure consiruction has been completed and brought into
usa for the golf Chau Duc project,

{See fthe next page)
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SOMADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

412, Current trade payables

413,

Trade payables to relsted parties - Refer fo Nole 8

Trade payables:

Chau Duc Digtrict Recompansation Couwncil

Other suppliars (")

Total

Current advances from customers

Advances from related parties - Refer ta Mote 8
Tripod Vietnam (Chau Duc) Electronic Comparny Limited

Wina One Steel Joint Stock Company
Other customars

Total

Cumment edvances from customers reprasent prapaymants for land rental and indusirial park infrastructure,

e R s Mo

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED}

As at 31 Dec. 2024
WHD

As at 01 Jan. 2024
VND

Amaint

5,757 464 471

115,482 812 462

Payable amaount

5,757,464 471

115,482,812 482

Amount Fayablz amount

11,417 485 940 11,417 485,840

118,119,172 762 118,118,172, 762

55 BOG GBT 240 58, B0E GET 240 138,517 546 156 138,517 546 158
180.047,064,173 1B0,047,064,173 268,054,204, 858 268,054,204,858
(*} As al 31 December 2024, any component of frade payables fo other suppliers was less than 10% of the fotal current trade payables.
As at
31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
VHD
T.744 555 517 265,548 BTA, 726
A74,050477,135 -
133.647.431,664 -
140.113,730,202 91,487 472 548
655,556,194,718 357,036,352,274
28
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SONADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
Address: Sth Floor, Sonadezi Bullding, No. 1, Strest 1, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, An Binh VWard, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province, Vistnam

4.14.

4.15.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Tax and amounts payable to the state budget

As at As at
31 Dec. 2024 Incurred Deductible 01 Jan. 2024
VND VND VND VND

Value added tax deductible 52 905,470,241 28.611,619,786 (23,770,637,019) 4T 164,487 474

As at As at

31 Dec. 2024 Movements in the year 01 Jan, 2024

YND VHND VD

Payable Fayabla Paid Fayable

Value added tax L 58 367,234,176 {61,957,244,308) 3,630,010,132

Caorporate income LA 12,9349 805 258 T2 473,644 655 (96, 701,873,175) 3T 168,133,775

Perscnal income tax 480,533,100 5,588 427 575 (5,508,888 575) 404,002 100

Special consumption tax TO2,052,856 10,817,354, 840 (11,678,056.680) 1,550,754, 686

Land, housing tax and land rental charges = 284 572914 (264,572,914) -

Other taxes - 280,124,030 (250,124,030) -

Fees, charges and other payables - 143 453 380 (143 453 3800 -

Total 14,212,491,214 148,034 811,573 [176,572,311,062) 42,748,680,703

Payables to employees
Representing the salary funds payable to empéoyess as st 31 Decembear 2024.
(S2e the next page)
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SOMADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
pddress: Sih Floor, Sonadezi Building, MNe. 1, Street 1, Bien Hoa 1 Indusiral Park,
An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Mai Province, Vietnam

4.16.

4.17.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Accrued exponses

Current:
Maintenance and upkeep expense for golf course

greenary
Accrued other expenses

Total

Mon-currant
Accrued expenses for Chau Due indusirial park

land lease
Accrued other expenses

Total

Unearmod revernue

Current:

Unearned revenue for Industrial park land lease
Uneamed revenue for golf services businass

Total

Mon-current:

Unearned revenus for industrial park land lease
Unsarned revenusa far golf services business

Total

As at As at

31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
VHD VWD

4 995148 574 22,064 6435 689
1,222.412,891 4,294 637,508
6,217,562,465 26,361,183,187

1,241,332,128,213

1,086,817, 300,650

552,629,517 <
1,241,864,757,730_ _1,056,817,300,659
As at As at
31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan, 2024
VND VND
13,408 443 840 13,408,443 540

G,a78,718,273

6,553,120 628

19,787,163,113 19,961,564 468
301,914,564 973 308,948 547 963
6,729,334,219 2,502,212,709

307,644,199 192

308,450,760,672

The ability to not fulfil agresments on industrial park land leases and golf services under the confracts

sigread with customers was aasessed low,

= For lndustrial park land lease: The contract has been signed for many years, the custamers will
abandon building faciliies, and the entire land rental has been paid,

« [For golf services business: Customers are not enlitled 16 a refund for any reason.

a0
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SOMADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
Address: Oth Floor, Sonadezi Building, Ma. 1, Streat 1, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park,
An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province, Vietnam

d4.18.

4.18.

NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

DOther payables

Current:

Dividend payables

Deposits

Capital contribution sacial housing business
cooparalion recelved from refated parties

- Refer to Mote 8

Deposit payables for house purchase and
imvesiment cooperation In Huu Phuoc residential
project to related pariies - Refer to Note 8

Deposif payables for house purchase and
investment cooperation in Huu Phuoc residential

project
Cther payables

Tatal
Mon-current:

Deposits

Bonus and wellare funds

Beginning balance
Distribution in yaar
Oiher additions
Lsing in year

Ending balance

{Sea the next page)

As at As at

3 Dec, 2024 01 Jan. 2024
WND WD
3.,079,324.561 3,981 638 931
8,369 260,000 120,809, 233,248
20,328,000,000 -
12,995 0:39,550 24,020,380 223
237 BE2 267 485 241 803 580 D88

27,841,6687,657

22 0B, 554,707

310,495,579,253

412,771,807,007

2.3580,823.475 2,350, 823475
Yoar 20024 Year 2023

VND WVND
53,040,990, 752 45 240 203 274
12 860,000,000 15, 750,000,000
27,120,000 13,000,000

(29, 682,724 414) 7962 212 .522)
36,165, 386,138 63,040 880 752

a1
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SOMNADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

4.240.

Loans

Loans are analysed as lollows:

Curmant

Bank lozns (3)
Current portion
of nan-current

bank loans (b)

Curment porbion
of other nan-

current loans [d)
Bonds (e)
Subtotal
Man-current:
Bank lnans (c)
CHiver nen-
current loans (d)
Bonds (=)

Subtotal

Total

As at 31 Dec. 2024

o ot D LR DL L

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Movements in the year

As at 01 Jan. 2024

WND VND VYND
Amount Payable amount Increase Decrease Armount Fayable amount
88,791,733,673 89,791,733,673 138,103,901 ,851 145,326,127, 760 87.013,958,612 87,013,958,512
380,317,230 338 380 317,239 338 A58 658 881,338 356,803 742 007 378,.564,000,001 478, 564 000,001
5,456,000,000 5 456,000,000 5.45E,000,000 26 466,200,000 26,466,200,000 25,466,200,000
200,000 000,000 200,000,000,000 200,000,000,000 100, 0O, 000, 000 100,000,000,000 100,000, 000,000
675 564,972,911 675,564 972,911 T42,216,883,183 BGY,696,068, 791 B01,044,158,513 601,044,159 513

1,527 543,281,151

18,280,000,000

1,637,543.281,151

19,280,000,000

193,500,106,635

602,000,000

308,656,981,338

5,456.000,000
200,000,000,000

1,842,700,155 854

24, 736,000,000
198,388,000,000

1,656,222,281,151

1,656,823,281,151

2,332,388,254 062

2,332, 388,254,062

194,102,106,635

604,112,981.338

2.066,834,155,854

1,B842,700,185,854

24 736 000,000
199,398 000,000

e m—

2,066,834,155,854

836,318,980,824

o

1,271,809,061,129

Kia L - S
0

_2,667,878,315,367

_2,667,878,315,367

5 0
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SONADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
Address: Sth Floor, Sonadezi Building, Mo, 1, Streef 1. Bien Hoa 1 Indusirial Park, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City. Dong Mai Province, Yietnam

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTIMUED)

{a)} Details of the current bank loans are as folows:

A at Ag at
31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan, 2024
Loan term Interest rate Mortgage VND VND
Woori Bank Vietnem Limitad 5 months 4.21% per annum Unsactunsd 53469313515 49 039 978 046
Joint Stock Cammercial Bank for Foreign Term deposiis -
Trade of Vietnam 8 months 4.30% per annwm Refar to Mote 4.2 55,222 420,057 43,826,538 521
Shinhan Bank Vietnam Limited - Bien Hoa
Branch 5 - B months 3.50% - 5.00% par annum Unsecured . 4 147 442 845
Total B9,791,733,573 97,013,959 5612
The purpase of the above curment bank loens is to supplement working capdal for the Company's business aclivities.
(b} Details of the current portion of bank long-term loans are as ollows:
As at Asat
31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
VND VND
Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Industry and Trade - Branch 7 Ho Chi Minh City 277.000,000,000  262,000.000,000
Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Investment and Development of Vieinam - Dong Nai Branch 58,800,000.000 56,600,000,000
Vilmari Bank Vietnam Limited 38,333 333,334 27,500,000,001
Military Cammarcial Jolnt Stock Bank - Vung Tau Branch 4,684, 250004 -
Fortune Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank - Dong Nai Branch 3,519,656.000 -
Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Investment and Development of Vietnam - Mam Dong Nai Branch - 2,254 000,000
Total 380,317,239,338 378,564,000,001
33
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SONADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
Address: Sth Fleor, Sonadezi Building. No. 1, Street 1, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province, Vietnam

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

izl Details of the non-curent bank loans are a3 follows:

As at As at
31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
VYND VHD
Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for industry and Trade - Branch 7 Ho Chi Mirh Gity 1,230,210,731,885 1,337, 302,368,732
Jaint Stock Commarcial Bank for Invastment and Deveiopment of Vietmam - Dang Nal Branch 237 645 692 218 288 500,000,000
Military Commercial Joint Stock Bank - Vung Tau Branch 28 620,749 995 51,537,797 124
Wioori Bank Vietnam Limiled 76,666 666 664 114,990,995 958
Fortune Yeetnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank - Dong Nai Branch 4 395 540 358 -
Total 1,637,543,281,151 1,842,700,155 854
Detgils of the non-current bank lcans are as follows:
*  Mon-current loans from Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Invastment and Devetopmant of Vietnam - Dong MNai Branch:
Cradil line, WD 455, 000,000,000
Loan termn; 120 months
Interest rate:  7.2% per annum
Purpase: Payment for imvestmenl, construction, machineny and equipment costs (including loan interest during construction period) of the project

"Investment and construction of Chau Duc golf course - Phasea 17

Mortgage: - Land use rights for the land plot are according fo the Cerlificate of Land Use Rights, Cerlificate of Ownership of Houses and Assats
attached to land Mo, BM 510880 isswed by the Depariment of Matursl Resources and Environment of Ba Ria - Vung Tau Province issued

under Real Estate Mordgage Contract No. 1482018/3211825/HDBD dated 10 December 2015;

- Azsels formed in the future from all work and construction items in the project "Investment and construction of Chay Duc Golf Course -

Prase 1%
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SOMADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

=i ZIE DA DL L L

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONTINUED)

Cradit fine: YMD 105,000, 000,000
Loan tarm: 80 months
Interest rate!  7.2% per annum

Furpose FPayment for reasonable expenses of the project "Investment in construction of social hausing (phase 1) - Sonadezi Huu Phuoc Residential
Area®

Morigage: Assels formed from loan capital related to the project Investment in construction of social housing (phase 1) - Sonadezl Huu Phuos
Residential Areg according o the Real Estate and Property Rights Mordgage Contract Mo, 88202432 11825HDTC dated 06 Decamber
2024 babyeen the Company and Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Investment and Developmeant of Vietnam - Deng Mal Branch,

= Non-curent oans from Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Industry and Trade - Branch T He Chi Minh City:

Credit line
VHD Loan term Intersst rate Purpose
400, 000,000,000 10 yoars 7.20% perannum Paymant for legal expense of Chau Duc Industrial Park Infrastruciure project
A00,000,000,000 T years 7.70% per annum Payment for legal expense of Chau Duc Industrial Park Infrastruciure project
400,000, 300,000 T years T.20% per annum Payment for legal expense of Chau Do Industrial Park Infrastructune project
1,000,000, 000,000 T years 8.20% par anmum Payment of compensation cost for site clearance and other costs of the Chau
Duc Indusirial Park project in the period 2022 - 2028
2,000 000, 000, 000 10 years 7.00% pear 2nnum Payment for legal expense of Chau Duc Industrial Park Infrastnecture project

The mortgage of the non-cument loans from Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Industry and Trade - Branch 7 Ho Chi Minh City are as follows:

= A part of land use rights and assets formed in the future of land plots in Nghia Thanh Commune and Suci Nghe Commune, Chau Duc District and
Song Xoai Commune, Chau Pha Commune, Tan Thanh District, Ba Ria - Wung Tau Province that the Company was assigned to implement the "Chau
Due Industrial Park Project’ according to Real Estate Mergage Contract Mo, 0903R2018-HDBDUNHCT924-52C dated 08 April 2018, Real Estate
Mortgage Conifract No. 1108/2018-HDBDINHCTE24-5S2C dated 11 November 2019, Real Estate Morigage Contract No. 101712020-HDBLVNRC TS24~
820 dated 20 October 2020 and amended and supplemented documents between the Company and Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for
Industry and Trade - Branch 7 Ho Ghi Minh City - Refer o Nole 4.10;
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SOMNADEZI CHAL DUC SHAREHOLDIMNG COMPAMY

FErTn e

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

= Property rights arise from the investrnent in Chau Duc Industrial Park Technical Infrastructure project according to property rights mortgage Confract
Mo, 102ZZIZWNHACTEZ4-52C dated 23 October 2020 and amended and supplamantad documants babwean the Company and Vistnam Joint Stock
Commercisl Bank for Industry and Trade - Branch 7 Ho Chi Minh Gity;

= Property rights (including: the right to collect debts and enjoy debt amounts..) according to Property Rights Mortgage Contract No.
1023/2020VNHCTE24-32C dated 23 October 2020 and amended and supplemented documents betwesn the Company and Wietnam Joint Stock
Commercial Bank for Industry and Trade - Branch 7 Ho Chi Minh City;

* Exploitation rights arise from plots of land that are aligible for business and have the ongin of use as the State leases land with annual payments in
Chau Duc Industrial Park under the mining rights morigage Confract No. 1024/2020/NHCT924-57C dated 23 October 2020 and amended and
supplemented documents betwean the Company and Vietnam Jaint Stock Commercial Bank for Industry and Trade - Branch 7 Ho Chi Minh City.

= Mon-current koans from Woon Bank Vietnam Limited:

Cradit ina: WND 230.000,000,000

Loan term: & years

Interast rate: B.175% per annum

Purpose: Compensation costs for site clearance and other axpanses of the Chau Duc Urban Area project.
Morigage: - Guarantee commitment of the parent company - Refer to Mote 8,

- Cerificata of Land Uss Rights Na. CU756108; CUT581089, land plot number 42, 43 map sheets number 18, Suoni Nghe Commune,
Chau Duc District, Ba Ria - Vung Tau Province issued by the Deparment of Natural Resourcas and Envirenment of Ba Riz - Yung
Tau Frovince on 20 July 2020,

| = s =0 e =y el



SONADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

R e e e

MOTES TO THE FIMAMNCIAL STATEMENTS ([CONTINUED)

Mon-currant loans from Military Commercial Joint Stock Bank - Vung Tau Branch:

Cradh line:
Loan term:
Interast rate:
Purpose:

Morigage:

WD 450,000,000,000
G4 months
10.00% per annum

Sponsoring compensation costs for site clesrance and technical infrastructure construciion costs of the Chau Duc Urban Area project,

Land use right certificate number CU 756196, land plot number 12, map sheet number 21 In Sucl Nghe Commune, Ghau Dug District,

Ba Ria - Yung Tau Province issued by the Department of Matural Resources and Environment of Ba Ria - Vung Tau Prowvince
on 20 July 2020,

Men-current loans from Forune Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank - Dong Mal Branch

Credit line:
Logn term;

Interesat rate:

Purposs:

Morigage:

WD S0 000, 00, DOt
48 maonths
10.50% per annum

Payment of compensation cost, infrastructure construction cost &t Sonadezi Huu Phuoc Residential Area Project in the peried of
2023-2024,

Certificate of land use rights, house cwnership rights and other assets attached to land No. CU 758157, land plot No. 7, map sheet

Me. 22 |n Susl Nghe Commune, Chau Duc District, Ba Ria - Vung Tau Provincs issuad by the Department of Natural Resaurces and
Environment of Ba Ria - Vung Tau Province on 20 July 2020,




SONADEZ] CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

Address: 8th Floor, Sonadezi Building, No. 1, Street 1, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, An Binh \Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Mai Pravince, Viatnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(d] Cther loans are loans from Dong Mai Provincg Investment and Development Fund, as follows:

Cradit lins;
Loan term:
Interest rate:

Furpose:

Maorigage:

WD 38,200, 000,000
B4 months
7.00% per annum

Investing in wpgrading the service toll collection system using automatic non-stop electric read ETC at toll stations under the BOT 768
Investrent project

Toll collaction rights from August 2011 to 31 December 2045 of toll stations 2a and 2b on Dong Khoi Street and foll station 4a on the road
to Thien Tan Water Plant of BOT 768 project

{2} The nen-current bonds rapresented ordinary corporate bonds, non-convertible, securad, without warrants, as follows:

Credit line:
Loan term:
Intarast ratea.
Purposs:

Mertgage:

WND 500,000,000.000

months

B.E8% par anmnum

Site clearance (including and compeansation) for Chau Duc Urban Area project
= Guarantee commigment by parent company - Refer to Note 8;

= Term deposit - Refer o Note 4.2;

- Certificate of land use rght No. CU 756195 and No. SU 758157 issued fo Sonadezi Chau Duc Joint Stock Company by the Department
of Naturzl Resources and Environment - Ba Ria - Vung Tau Province on 20 July 2020,
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SOMADEZI CHALU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

Address: 8th Floor, Sonadezi Building, No. 1, Street 1, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province, Vietnam

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The payment of bond principal and interest until 31 December 2024 is as follows:

lssuance Issuance Interest Interest paymant Original payment
Bond Release value {at value (at payment Date of
code Term date par value) plrnlueu] period payment Payables Paid Payables Paid
WM
billicn YHD VMDD VND 1|.-‘I'it|-_
S£CH2 05 pem1/2021 500 200 03 100172022 9,015,068,493 5,915,0668,493 100.000,000000 100,000 000,000
126001 years months  O7/04/2022 7425753425 7425753425 : .
O7/07/2022 T678,904,110  7,675,004,110 =
10MQr2022 7.763,2B87.8T1 T.TE3 287 BT
08I04/2023 7847671234  7,847.671,234 100,000,000,000  100.000.000,000
10/042023 7030, 684 932 7,020,684 932
107023 6,956,712 328 8,856 712,329
0Of10/2023 6,130,726,027  §,139,726,027
08012024 5 572,181,781 5572191, 781 100,000,000, 000 T00, 000, 00D 0o
080452024 3 485 479 452 3,456 4740 452 - -
04072024 3,330.849 315 3,330,848 315 - -
OFM0M2024 3367 452,055 3,357,452.055 . -

The capital use and disbursement progress for the purpose of investing in Chau Duc urban area project are as follows;

Tha capital use and disbursement progress Release plan . Implementation -
Disbursemant Disbursamant
amont amoumnt
Disbursement time WND Disbursement ime VND
Irvesting in Chau Duc urban area project OEM12021 - 08/ 1/2023 00,000, 000,00 03012021 - 0B 12023 S00,000,000,000
Remaining amount as at 31 December 2024
ag




SONADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

Address: Sth Floor, Sonadezi Building, No. 1, Sireet 1, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province, Vietnarm

4.2,

NOTES TO THE FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Owners" equity

4.21.1. Changes in owners' equity

As at 01 Jan 2023

Previous year's profits

Distribution to bonus and welfere fund
Distribution to develepmant investmant fund
Dividands in shares

Other decreasas

As at 01 Jan, 2024

Current yesr's capitsl increase

= Refer to Mote £4.21.3

Current year's profits

Distribution 1o bonus and weifare fund
Distribution to development investmant fund
Dividends

As at 31 Dec. 2024

Kems of owners' equity

Owners’ Developmant
contributed Capital Investment Retained
capital surplus fund garnings Total
VND VND VYND VND VND
1,000,000, 000,000 5,407 .250,000 7,832,827 134 441,012,031 522 1,534,252 108 655
- - - 218,873,291 512 218,873,281 512
< i = {15,750,000,000) {15,750.000,000)
s = 40,000,000.000 {40,000,000,000) -
198,858 610,000 - = (199,995,610,000) -
- {510,000,000) - - (60,000,000)
1,199,899 610,000 5,347 250,000 127,832 827,134 404 135 713,034 1.737,215,400 168
590,859,020,000 598,920 4438 TES - - 1.198,788 468,765
- - 202 127 157 BE2 302127 167 BE2
3 = . (12,680,000,000) (12,680,000,000)
- . 30,000,000,000 {30,000,000,000) .
- - - (119,9593,961,000) {119,989,961,000)
_1,799 858,630,000 604,276,698,765 157,832,827,134 543,582,909,886 3,105,551,065,785

Dividends and prafit distribution in 2024 were caried out in accordance with the Resoluton of the 2024 Annual General Meating of Shareholders No, 10/NQ-

SZC-DHDCD dated 05 April 2024,

THR
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SONADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

Address: Sth Floor, Senadezi Building, No. 1, Straet 1, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park,

An Binh \Ward, Bien Hoa Cily. Dong Mal Province, Mietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED}

4.21.2. Details of owners’ equily

Sonadez| Caorporation
Seonadezi Long Thanh Shareholding Company
Crher shareholders

Total

4.21.3. Capital transactions with owners

Beginning balance
Capltal contribution in year

Ending balance

As al
31 Dac. 2024
VND_

B43,120,000,000
181,440,000,000
175,208,630,000

As at
071 Jam. 2024
WD

262, 080,000,000
120,960,000,000
516,958,610,000

1,199,998,610,000

1,798 858 30,000
Year 2024 Year 2023
WD VMD

1,198,509 610,000
500,859,020,000

1,799,858, 630,000

1,000,000,000,000
190,969,610,000

1,198,953,610,000

T - Jjoif

= =

K

e ]

On 12 April 2024, the Company completed the public offering of additional shares. Accordingly, the
Company's registered charter capital (al par value of YND 10,000 per share) increased fram YND
1.196,909,6 10,000 to WVND 1,799,858 630,000,

4,21.4, Shares
As at As at
2 Dec. 2024 01 Jan, 2024
MNumber of ordinary shares registared for issue 179,585,863 115,994,961
Number of ordinary shares sodd to puklic 179,985,863 119,299 881
Mumber of ordinary shares outstanding 179,985,853 119,999,861
Par value per outstanding share: VND 10,000 pershare,
4.21.5. Basic sarnings per share
Yeoar 2024 Year 2023
WD VMDD
Profit after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders anz 127,157 852 218,873,281 512

(31.649,025.361)

Adjusted for distribution to bonus and welfare fund (a)

(12,680,000,000)

270,478,132, 481

Earnings for the purpose of calculating
basic sarnings per share
Weighted average number of ordinary shares

outstanding during the year (b) 167,358,308

208,193,291,612
119,258,861

Basic earnings per share 1,616

1,718
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SONADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
Address: Oth Floor, Sonadezi Building, Mo. 1, Straat 1, Bian Hoa 1 Industrial Park,
An Binh \Ward, Bisn Moa City, Dong Mal Province, Vietnam

4.21.6.

4.21.7.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

{a) At the date of the financial stafements, bonus and welfara fund |s estimated based on the expected
distribution rate of profit after-tax In 2024, which Is 10.48% accerding to Resolution of the 2024 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholdera Mo, 10/NQ-52C-DHOCD dated 05 April 2024,

T

M'.__I'
{b) Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year is determined as fuit\hlf%

-
Year 2024 Year 2008 f

VND v

Mumber of ordinary shares outstanding al the beginning of year 119,988 861 100,000,

Impact of 59,986,502 ordinary shares in the public offering (o
existing sharehoddars o increasa charlar capital 47 358 347 -

Impact of 19,898 951 ordinary shares issuad
1o pay dwidends in 2022 - 18,898,961

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year 167,368, 308 118,989, 861

Diluted sarnings per share

Year 2024 Yaar 2023

VND YHND

Profit after tax attributable to crdinary shareholkders 302,127,157 B52 218 873,291,612

Adjusted for distribution to bonus and welfare fund {*) (31,649,026,361) (12 680,000,000}
Eamings for the purposa of calculating diluted

BaMinNgs per share 270,478,132 481 208,183, 291,612
Weighted average numbear of crdinary shares

cutstanding during the year 167,358,308 118,954,961
Adjusted for dilutive potential ordinary shares

outatanding during the year - 66,985.002
Mumber of ordinary shares for the purpose of

calculating diluted eamings per share 167,358,308 179,985,863

Diluted sarnings per shara 1,676 1,146

{*) At the date of the financial statements, bonus and welfare fund is estimaled based on the expected
distribution rate of profit after-tax in 2024, which i 10.48% according to Resolution of the 2024 Annwal
Genaral Meeting of Shareholders No, 1VNQ-SZC-DHDCD dated 05 April 2024.

Dividaends

According to the Resolution of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No. 10/NQ-SZC-DHOCD
dated 05 April 2024, dividends in 2023 were distributed at a rate of 10% of charter capital.

(See the hexl pagea)
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SONADEZ| CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
Address; 8th Floor, Sonadezi Building, Mo. 1, Street 1, Bien Hoa 1 Indusirial Park,
An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Mai Provincs, Vietnam

NMOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.21.8. Report on using capital from issuing additional shares

4.22.

The general information about the Bsue of shares to increase charer capital is as foliows:

Mo.  Content Information

1. Share name Shares of Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding Company
Z Type Ordinary shara

3 Par value WHD 10,000 par shara

4, Mumber of sharas h2 909 BED shares

& Totad value WHD 20,000 per share

B. lasue form Offaring shares to existing shareholders

7. Issue date 160172024

B Complation data 1200452024

g, Tolal issued shares 59,985,902 shares

Proceeds from lssuing shanes:

Mumber of sharas; 5% 985 902
lzgue price {WND! per shara): 20,000
Total amount (WKD): 1,198, 718,040,000

Issued share capital uee plan. Supplementing caplial for vestment in construction of Chau Duc
industrial park project, restructuring the Company's loens to credit institutions and paying principal and
interest on due bonds,

The report on use of issued share capital:

Planned (*) Amount used

Mo, Content VND VND
1. Supplementing capital for investment and

construction of Chau Duc Industrial Park project 320,509 ,600,000 267,004,036.297

2 Payment principal and interest of Shinhan bonds 210,000,000, 300 B.688,301,370

3 Payment principal and loan interest ai Vietinbank 450,000,000, 300 246,926 864,028

4, Payment principal and interest of loans at BIDV 100,000,000, 000 B9,620 967,804

Total 1,198,999,600,000 _610,250,169,603

{*) Capital use plan is based on Resolution Mo. 08NQ-SZC-HDAT dated 21 August 2023 of the Board
of Directors on approving the implementation of the plan to offer additional shares to existing
shareholders to increase charier capital.

Off statement of financial position tems

As at Ag at
___ 31 Dec, 2024 01 Jan. 2024
Foralgn curmencias:
LsD 34,137.18 30,277.66
Mumber of dividend sharas isswed by Chau Due Water
Supply Shareholding Company 742 500 T42, 500
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SONADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

Address; 8th Floor, Sonadezi Building, No. 1, Street 1, Bian Hoa 1 Industrial Park,

An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nal Province, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)

5. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS SHOWN IN THE INCOME STATEMENT

61, Revenue from selling goods and rendering services

Revenue from leasing land and management fees

Year 2024
WD

Year 2023
VD

765,014,353,235

683,675,346 650

Revenue from golf services and restaurant 55 037,862,531 48,243 925 770
Revenue from selling townhouses on commearcial streefs

In Scnadezl Hueu Fhuoc residential area 31,280,088,252 72409 133,673
Revenue from supalying water 10,755,615,500 6,605, 746,228
Revenue from leasing factory and management feas 5,009,761,282 3,463,000,674
Revenue from wastewater treatmant 4,185,270,500 2,867,745 600
Criher revenues 1,408,022 B26 691,224 058

Total

Inwhich, revenue from rendering services o
related parties - Refer to Nate 8

B72,690,874,636

817,957,115,033

311.715,5663,858

217,844,787 973

recorded ance for the antire ranial amount recelved in advance

Revanue from leasing land in 2024 was recognised once for the entire rental amount received in
advance by WND 677,060,244 238, If the amount has bean recognised on a stralght-line basis over ©

the lease period, revenue and gross profit for the next 34 years will differ by VMND 668,020, 237,053 =

and WND 399 124 853 389, respeclivaly, comparad fo tha one-lime revenue recognition method. The
recognition of one-ime revenue will reduce revenue and gross profit for the next 34 years,

corresponding to the amount mentioned above

§5.2. Costofsales

Cost of lkasing land land management feas
Cosl of golf services and restaurant

Year 2024
VND

203,500,854 158
104,175,192,720

Year 2023
VND

311,875,020,040
108, 551,873,000

Cost of road ol business 12,385,373,775 12,020,706,6803
Cost of selling townhouses on commarcial streals in

Sonadezi Huw Phuoc residential area 9675, 754,227 24,938 540,586
Cost of supplying water 9, 705,207,200 6,640,018, 500
Cost of wastewater treatment 3,598 487 844 3,818, 770,201
Cosl of leasing factory and management fees 1,490,309, 989 1,616,943,768
Others 213,304, 688 61,088,720
Total 439 B52 581,611 467 624,971,418

[See the naxt page)
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SOMADEZ| CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

Addrass: 8th Floar, Sonadazl Bullding, No. 1, Street 1, Bien Hoa 1 Indusinal Park,

An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Provincs, Viatnam

6.3,

6.4,

5.5.

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Finance income

Dividends, profils receied - Rafer (o Nole 8
Deposit interesi

Foreign exchange gains from revaluation of
foreign currency monetary items

Gaing from exchange differences

Total

Finance expense

Inierest expense
Faymani discount
Losses from exchanga differences

Total

Total interest expense capitalized in work in progrese at the Chau Due urban area project and
construction in progress at tha Chau Duc Industial Park project in 2024 were VND 183,287,045, 405

- Refer to Naote 4.7 and Mote 4.8,

Selling expense

Depracialon expanss
Customer referral consulting expense
CHhar akpansa

Total

{See the next pags)

Year 2024 Year 2023
WD VD
0,805,392, 500 5677 175,000
30,072,358, 876 ¥.375,540,008
3B,367 475 31,516,016
arye. aio -

40,014 487,651 17,084,242 022
Year 2024 Year 2023
WD VHD

32 182,151,129 45 347 784 185
2461 030,000 166,438,182
39.3‘00 Ex
34,643,220, 429 46,014,222 371

Year 2024 Year 2023
VD VMD
213,157,325 276 203, 688
2,264,157 617 7,939, 151,651
2 561,603,545 333,930,851
5,0038,958,487 8,549 286,200

A5
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SONADEZI CHAU DUC EHAREHOLDING COMPANY
Address: Oth Floor, Sonadazi Bullding, No. 1, Street 1, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park,
An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province, Yietnam

5.6,

6.7,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED})

General and administrative expense

Employee expensea

Stationery expense

Depraciation expense

Taxes, fees, and charges

Provislon expenses for doubtful debts
Sorvices expense

Oiher expenses

Total

Production and business costs by element

Material axpanse
Emgployes axpanse
Depreciation expense [*)
Provision axpensas
Services adpansa

Hhar expenses

Total

(*1 Depreciation expense is as below:

Depreciation expensa in the year
Accrued depreciation expense of Chau Duc Industrial
Park land leasing activities due to part of the praject naot
belng completed (rolling leasing)

Total

{See the next page)

Year 2024 Yaar 2023

VKD WD

34 534,100,868 26,201,844 094
393,095 485 512 582 674
1,807 957,124 1.843,705,339
2.313,910,087 1,427 916 418
2,083 266,814 5311 407 0a7

4 TA2 158,817 8.853,517 513
10,362, 367,682 8,498 617,133
56,377,807, 767 46,450,690,056
Wear 2024 ‘Wear 2023

VHD VHND

1,546, 540,238 BBEG, 353,628
51,066,494 972 55 446 75T 504
313,312,997 499 337,848 368 406
5,769 266,814 3,311,407 987
189 508 580 919 355,081,174 439
50,884 230,072 A8 544,010,089
G23,068,2158,614 00,698 072 153
Year 2024 Year 2023

VKD WD

41 ,240.303. g&4 46, 785,008,211
272,072 688,515 290 BG3 350,285
313,312,997,499 337,648 368 496
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SOMADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
Address: Sth Floor, Sonadezi Building, Mo. 1, Street 1, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park,
An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Pravince, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

58,  Current corporate income tax expense

Year 2024
YMND
Accounting profit bafora tax for the year 374 600 802,510 PBE BT 28T 271
Add: Adjustments according ta CIT law 11,680 863,449 27482 729317
Less: Adjustments according to CIT law {9,205, 382 8000 (18914 643 512)
Taxable income from business activibies 376 386,273,459 275,446,373,076
Incarme Yable for CIT al 20%% {26.196.371,273) 226,001,092.957
income Vable for CIT af 10% 402 582 644 732 47444280119
CIT expenze caleulated at CIT rate of 20% 4,250,058 882 45,600,218 591
CIT expense calculated at CIT rate of 10%: 68 232 684, TT6 4 744 A28 012
Less: CIT reduction according o incenthsa - {2.372,214,008)
Adjusted for tax expense of pravious years - 31,663,162
CIT expense for the year 72,473 ,644,658 48,003,995,759 =
|
The adustments for the increases (decreases) in the taxable income represent mainly non - tax - n

daducticle lems as regulated by CIT aw E¥
B. ADDITIOMAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS SHOWM IN THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

6.1,  Cash recelpts from loans in the year J

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
Cash receipts fram loans under normal contracts 331 804,008 458 B21,323 885 Ta4
6.2, Cash repayments of principal amounts borrowad

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VHD

Cash repayment of principal amounts under normal
contracis (56T 636,068, 781) [(308,94G,693.578)
Cash repayment of principal amounts of bonds 100, 000,000,000} {100,000, 000,000
Total (667 ,696,068,781) (488.946,693,579)

(Sae the next page)
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SONADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

Address. 8ih Floor. Sonadezi Building, No. 1, Street 1, Bien Hos 1 Industrial Park,, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
T SEGMENT REPORTING
For management purposes, the Company is organised inte the following manufacturing sector;
* Industrial park land lease and other activities;
s Golf and restaurant business activitiss;
* Fee coliecting business activities.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024:

Expressed in; WMND millicn

Total

Year 2024 Year 2023

Industrial land lease and Golf and restaurant Fee collecting business
other activities business activities activities
“ear 2024 Year 2023 Year 2024 Year 2023 Year 2024 Year 2023
Revenue
Extarnzl sales E15,653 FE3, 702 85,020 48244 - -

Results of operations

Segment result 452 370 470 5458 [43,155) {58,308} {12,385) (12,021)
Unaliocated axpense

Finance incame

Finance expense

Other incomea

Profit befone taxation

Carporate income tax

Profit after tax

b Nl T S B

BT0.6A3 817 245
430 830 360,320
51,416 55,000
40,014 17,084
24 B43 48,014
(184) 487
374 801 266 877
72.474 48,004
302,127 218,873
44
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SONADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

Address; Sth Floor, Sonadezi Building, No. 1, Streat 1, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park,, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Provinge, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Other information:

Expressed in; VND million

Industrial land leasing Golf and restaurant business Fee collecting
and other activities activities business activities Total
A at As at As at As at As at As at Ag at Az at
31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024 31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024 M Dee. 2024 01 Jan. 2024 31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
Unzllecated
assets B. 225 800 G861 429
Linzllocated
liahilitias 5,120,245 5,223 813
Expressad im WD million
Industrial land leasing Golf and restaurant Fee collecting
and other activithes business activities business activities Total
Year 2024 Year 2023 Year 2024  Year 2023 Year 2024 Year 2023 Year 2024  Year 2023
Cozt of purchasing assals (B4 BET) (717 ,BBE)
317,853 337 648

Depreciation expense

There is no segment reporting according to the geographical area as the operation of the Company is only in Viel Nam, so there is no difference in risk and

economic banefits under the geographical area which is necessary to be disclosed,

{Sea the naxt pags)
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SOMADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

Address: 5th Fleor, Sonadezi Building. Mo, 1, Street 1, Bien Hea 1 Industrial Park,

An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Provincs, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

a. RELATED PARTIES

List of related parties

Sonadezi Corporation

Sonadezi An Binh Joint Stock Company
Sonadazi Sarvice Joint Stock Campany
Sonadazi Long Thanh Shareholding Company
Sonadezi Environment Joint Stock Company
Sonadezi Long Binh Shareholding Company

Dong Nai Water Joint Stock Company
Sonadezi Giang Dien Shareholding Company
10. Dong Mai Construction Joink Stock Company

el e 28 e

11. Senadezi College of Technology and Managemant
12. Chau Dug Water Supply Shareholding Company

13, The Board of Directors (*BO0"). management and

the Supervisory Committes
14, Ms. Do Tran Chan Nhi

15. M=, Le Thi Giang
1€, Ms. Pham Thi Anh Thi
17. Mr. Phan Hoang Mam Ann

18. Mir. Phan Hoang Nam

Industrial Urban Development Joint Stock Company No, 2

Relationship

FPareni company
Fellow subaidiary
Feliow subsidiary
Feliow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fallow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
The Company has the same key

management personnel
Hey managamenl personned

Family members of key
management personnel
Family members of key
management parsonnel
Farnily members of key
managemant personnel
Family members of key
management personnel
Family membears of key
managemeant personnal

Af the end of the reporting year, the balances with related parfies are as follows:

Trade receivables;

bds. Pharm Thi Klim Hoa - Head of Supervisony Commitiea

Ms. Le Thi Giang
Sonadezi An Binh Joint Stock Company

Total - Refer to Mote 4.3

Receivables investment cooperation in Huw Phuos residential

araa project - Raefer 1o Mote 4.5

Senadezi An Binh Joint Stock Cornpany

As at As at
31 Dec, 2024 01 Jan. 2024
WD VMO

1,263,000,000 1,653,000,000

595,000,000 585,000,000
21,000,978 2,880,068

1,6869,000,978 2,250,860,068

2.674,901,588 -

aw
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SOMADEZ CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
Address: Sth Floor, Sonadezi Building, Mo, 1, Street 1, Blen Hoa 1 Industrial Park,
An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Asat As at
31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
YHND WD
Trada payables:
Dong Nal Construction Joint Stock Company {2,650,602,602) (926,161,1596)

Sonadezi Service Joint Stock Company

Chau Duc Water Supply Shareholding Company

Sonadezi An Binh Jeint Stock Gompany

{1,433,137,085)
{1,087,327,520)
(681,161,963)

{1,323,578,606)
(872 4560,150)
{4,803,521,703)

Sonadezi Giang Dien Sharsholding Companmy (18,235301) (15,720,568}
Sonadezi Erwiranmant Jaint Stock Company . (3,376,053, 714)
Total - Refer to Note 4,12 (6,757 464, 471) {11,417 485,840}

Advancas from customans:

Mr. Phan Hoang Mam

(4,231,6823,213)

(3,512,732,304)

hir. Mguyen Minh Tan - Vice General Direclor {3,512,732,304)
Sonadezi Corporation - {151 065,603 624)
Invdustrial Urban Development Joint Stock
Company Mo, 2 {110,870,210,798)
Sonadezl Glang Dien Shareholding Company (112,333,000
Total - Refer to Note 4,13 (7,744,555,517) (265,548 879,7286)
Fayables for Invastment cooperation in Huu Phuac
Resdential project;
Industrial Urban Development Joint Stock
Company No. 2 (5,524, 708,6B17) {14,613,638,107)
Mr. Phan Hoang Narm Anh (1,235,398 5689) {878,255 560)
Mr. Pham Anh Tuan - Member of the BOD (1,111,859,000) {1.111,858,000}
Ms. Nguyen Phuong Hang - Member of the BOD (1,111,858,000) (1,111,859,000)
Me. Do Tran Chan MNhi (1,061,030,302) {1,081,030,302)
Mr. Mguyen Van Luong - Member of the BOD (1,038,018 825) {1,038,018,825)
Mr. Mguyen Minh Tan - Vice General Directar {1,010,201,443) {1.010,201,443)
Mz. Pham Thi Anh Thi {901,965, 574) [&01,865,674)
Sonadezi An Binh Joint Siock Company - {2206 662,412)
Total - Refer to Note 4,18 {12,995,039,650 {24,020,380,223)
Fayables for invesimant cooperation in Social
Housing project - Refer to Note 4,18
Indusirial Urban Development Jalnt Stock
Company Mo, 2 {20,328,000,000)
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SONADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY s
Address: 8th Floor, Sonadezi Bullding, Ma. 1, Street 1, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, 2
An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa Cily, Dong Nai Province, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

During the reporting year, the Company has had related party fransactions as follows:

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND_ “ANND
Selling goods and rendering senices

sonadazi Corporation 174,875,688 114
Industrial Urban Development Joint Stock
Company Mo, 2 132,302,924, 580
Sonadazi Lang Thanh Shareholding Comgany 5,846 714,972 T
Sonadazl Long Binh Shareholding Company 723,710,340 1,358,410.188
Chau Duc Water Supply Shareholding Company 651,170,342 839,357 572
Sanadezi An Binh Joint Stock Company 315,355,501 266,000,125
Ws. Le Thi Giang - 2,614 035 820
Dong Mal Construction Joint Stock Company - 37.220
Total - Refer {o Mote 5.1 311,715,563,85 i 217,844 787,973

Furchase of goods!

Dong Nai Construction Joint Stock Company 45 608 038, 484 - "
Chau Duc Water Supply Shareholding Company 11,223 677,200 7,852,324,500 4
Sonadezi An Binh Joint Stock Company 0,845 198,869 - 1
Indusirial Urban Development Joint Stock
Company Mo. 2 7,740613,638 108,478,058, 383 i
Sonadez| Service Joint Stock Comparny 2,526,150,512 2,820,808,607 '
Sonadszi Giang Dien Shareholding Company 1,564 854,068 1,610 205,435
Spnadezi Caobege of Technology and Management 84,400,000 -
Dong Nai Water Joint Stock Company 6,208,360 14,188,585
Sonadezi Environmeant Joint Stock Company - 3,069,133, 741
Total _HM 124,845,315,252

Dividend payment:

Sonadezi Corporation 56,208.000,000 -

Sonadezi Long Thanh Shareholding Company 12,096,000,000 ,000,000,000

Dong Nai Water Joint Steck Company 114,012,000 -

Total 68,418,012,000 5,000,000,000
{See the next page)
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SOMADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
Address: Bth Floor, Sonadezi Building, Me. 1, Street 1, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park,

An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province, Vietnam

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
Dividends received:
Chau Duc Water Supply Shareholding Company 5,445 000,000 5,445,000,000
Sonadaz| Long Binh Shareholding Company 4,180,392,500 3, 782,175,000
Sonadaz| Service Joint Stock Company 300,000,000 450,000,000
Total - Refer to Note 5.3 9,805,392 500 5,677,175,000
Guaranies commisment

Sonadezi Corporation (parent company) has guarantead the Company, detailed as follows:

Commitment by letter of guarantes to guarantee tha loans of the Company at Woor Bank Vietnam
Lirnited - Bien Hoa Branch with the outstanding balances and inleresl as well as financial
obligations arising from the orginal debt in a maximum amaunt of WVND 107,732,000,000 - Refer

o Mole 4 20

Commitment by Guarantee Contract Mo, 2020/HDBL dated 31 December 2020 for non-converbblie
bond privaie issued by the Company at Shinhan Bank Vietnam Limited - Bien Hoa Branch with
the outstanding balances and interest as wedl as financial obligations arising from the original debt

i & maximum amount of VKD 284 600,000,000 - Refer to Nole 4,20,

Remunerations of the Board of Directars ("BOD") are as follows;
Year 2024 Year 2023
Name Position — VND VND
ir. Dinh Mgos Thuan Chairman of the BOD 208,000,000 206,000,000
Mr. Nguyen Yen Tuan Member of the BOD 176,000,000 178,000,000
Kr. Pham &nh Tuan Member of the BOD 186,000,000 178,000,000
Mr, Tran Hao Hiep Mamber of the BOD 186,000,000 178,000,000
Mr. Nguyan Van Luong Mamber of the BOD 186,000,000 176,000,000
Mr, Phan Dinh Tham Member of the BOD 186,000,000 176,000,000
Ms. Mguyen Phuong Hang  Member of the BOD
(appointed on 18 Apnil 2023} 186,000,000 152,000,000
Total 1,312,000,000 1,238,000,000

{Gee the nexi page)
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SOMADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
Addrass: Sth Floor, Sonadezi Bullding, Mo, 1, Street 1, Bien Hoa 1 Indusinal Park,
An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)

Salaries of management and key management personne| are as foliows.

Year 2024 Year 2023
Name Position _ VND VND
ir. Nguyen Yan Tuan General Director 1,361,360,000 1,080,510,000
Mr. Tran Trung Chien Wica General Director 1.073,853,000 B2 450,000
Mr. Nguyen Minh Tan Vica General Director 1.052,285,000 846,250,000

Wr. Hoang Yan Chi \fice Ganaral Diractor
{appointed on 01 July 2024) 400,883,000 -

Mr. Treong Viet Hoang Son Vice Genaral Diracior
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(dimissed on 01 April 2023} . 127,140,00
Mr. Tran Mges Tong Chief Accountant B2 E21,000 90,650,000
Total 4,721,312,000 3,647,030,000

The remuneration and salaries of the Board of Directors, managerment and other key managament
parsannel in 2024 were seltled under Circular 282018/ TT-BLOTEXH dated U1 Septemnber 2016
sued by the Minister of Labar, \War Invalids and Social Affairs praving guidance the implementation
of the regulations on labor, salaries, compensation, and bonus for companies whose shares of
contributed capital portions are predominanty owed by the State.

Remuneratians and salaries of the Supervisory Committes are as follows:

Year 2024 Year 2023
Name Pasition S |+ S, |- .|
Ms. Pham Thi Kim Hoa Head 819,528,000 593,510,000
hs. Trinh Thi Hoa fdarnkar 103,000,000 83,000,000
Mr. Le Duc Thuan Mamber 103,000,000 83,000,000
Total 1,025,529,000 BTG, 510000

COMMITMENT UNDER OPERATING LEASES

The Company holds land subject to operating leases. The leases are for an average period af 40 years
and recorded revenue annuzlly {excluding one-fime revenue recognition contracts). Recognised
revarnues are as follows:

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND = VND
Operating |ease revanua recognised during the year 13,408 443 840 30,439,390, 351
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SONADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
Address: Sth Floor, Sonadez| Bullding, Mo, 1, Streat 1, Blen Hoa 1 Induslrial Park,

An Binh \Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nal Pravince, Vigtnam ~

10.

11.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
COMPARATIVE FIGURES
The fallowing comparative figuras have been restated:
Income statement (excerpted).

Year 2023 Year 2023
WVND = VND
(As previously
(Reclassified) repored)
Basic earmings per share 1,718 1,621
Diluted sarnings per share 1,148 1.081

The above comparative figures have been re-stated due to the Company adjusting the welfare bonus
fund temporarily dedueted in the 2023 financial statements in accardance with the approved amount
in Resclution No. 10/NQ-SZC-DHDCD of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Sharehoiders daled 05

April 2024,
OTHER DISCLOSURE
Regarding the temporary suspension of toll collection of the BOT Road 768 Project ("Project”):

From 31 December 2020, the toll collection business activities of the Project are suspanded because
the Company has not met the automatic toll collection requirements according o decision Mo
16/201/QD-TTg dated 17 June 2020 of the Prime Minisfer and dacision No. JZTIUBMD-KTH dated
11 January 2021 of the People's Commitiee of Dong Nal Province,

On 04 November 2024, the Paople’s Committes of Dong Nai province issued Decision No. 3265/Q0-
UBND approving the adjustmant of the scale of the Project, reducing the total project investment
{including koan interest) from WND B15 billion to WND 425 billien

Until 31 December 2024, the Company had compieted the investment In the construction of the
aulematic electranic toll callection system at the Project’s loll stations, Howaver, {he Company has yet
{0 receive approval fram the competent State agency of Deng Nal province to continue collecting tolis
to racovar capital for the Prajecl

The Cempany is still temporarily suspending depraciation of the Project's assets due to nol generaling
tall revenue, As of the date of this repart, the Company has yet o assess the effects of the above
event to present in the 2024 financial statements.

{See the naxt page)
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SONADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
Address: Sth Floor, Sonadezi Building, Mo. 1, Strest 1, Bien Hea 1 Industrial Park,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
12. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING YEAR

On 16 January 2025, the Company's Board of Direclors Issued Resolubon Mo, 02.2025/MNO-520-
HBQT approving the establishment of BOT 766 One Member Limited Liability Company o implement
the BOT 768 road project in Dong Nal provines, On 12 Fabruary 2025, BOT 768 One Membar Lirnited
Liability Company recelved the Business Registration Certificata Ne, JE04002037 granted by Dong
Nal's Department of Planning and Investment

On 25 February 2025, the Company's General Director issued Motice Mo 255.2025/T B-SZC-TCKT
on registration of capltal contribution to establish Chau Duc Golf Services Joint Stock Company with
expacted charter capital of WND 1560,000,000,000.

Apart fram the matter as disciosed in Note 11 and above malters, no other maller or circumetance has
arisen since 31 December 2024 that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect the
Company's operations, the resulls of those operalions, or the Company's state of affairs in future
financial yaars.

Tran Ngoc Tong Dang Thi Thuy Hang
Gedaral Director Chief Accountant Preparer

Dang Nai, 05 March 2025
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SONADEZI CORPORATION THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

SONADEZI CHAU DUC Independence - Freedom — Happiness
SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
No: 01.2025/BC-5ZC-BES Chete Due, March 20, 2025
REPORT

Supervision of Production and Business Activities in 2024
at Sonadezi Chan Duc Shareholding Company

To: The General Meeting of Shareholders

- Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020
and the Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November 26, 2019;

- Pursuant to the amended and supplemented Charter of Sonadezi Chau Duc
Shareholding Company, as approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders,

- Pursuant to the functions, duties, and operating regulations of the Board of
SUpervisons,

The Board of Supervisors of Sonadezi Chau Due Shareholding Company was

appointed by the General Meeting of Shareholders on March 29, 2022, consisting of
the following members:

- Ms, Pham Thi Kim Hoa Head of the Board
- Ms. Trink Thi Hoa Member
- Mr. Le Duc Thuan Member

The Board of Supervisors has conducted inspections and evaluations of the
production and business results, and the management and administration of the Board
of Directors and the General Directorate in implementing the production and business
tasks as per the Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders for 2024, The
Board of Supervisors respectfully reports to the General Meeting of Shareholders the
following contents:

PART I

ASSESSMENT OF THE COMPANY'S BUSINESS RESULT AND THE
BOARD OF MANAGEMENT' PERFORMANCE IN 2024

I. Assessment of the company's business result in 2024
1. Financial statements for 2024

Based on the Audited Financial statements for 2024 conducted by RSM Vietnam
Auditing & Consulting Co., Ltd,, the Board of Supervisors conducted sample checks,
data comparisons, and agreed on the following opinions:

- The 2024 Financial statements of Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding Company
fairly and reasonably reflect all material aspects of the financial position, asset
structure, and capital resources of the Company for the fiscal year ending on
December 31, 2024,
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- The Company's Operating results and Cash Flow for the year 2024 ending on

December 31, 2024 are in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards and the

current Vietnamese enterprise accounting system for the preparation and presentation
of financial statements.

- The Board of Supervisors agrees with the opinion of RSM Vietnam Auditing

& Consulting Co., Ltd. That there are no issues or other situations arising since
December 31, 2024 until the date of this report that materially affect the Company’s

business operations in the next fiscal vear,
1.1 The Company’s asset and capital structure in 2024

Linit: million VND

NO. ITEMS Dam:ﬂl:r a1, Dma:tﬂl;;r 31, g::::::
A TOTAL ASSETS 8,225,500 6,261,129 1,264,671
I | Current Assets 3,066,528 21,064,409 1,002,419
1 | Cash and cash equivalents 705,293 222,415 482,878
2 | Current financial investments 334,785 30,000 | 304,785
3 | Current account receivables 149,767 67310 2457
4 | Inventories 1,743,116 1.621,216 121,900
5 | Other current assets 133,867 123 468 10,3094%
T | Non-current Assets 5,158,972 4,896,720 202,252
1 | Non-current account receivables 324 324 L
2 | Fixed Assets 755,646 791,030 (35,385)
3 | Investment property 1,119.97) 1,054,819 63,133
4 | Non-current assets in process 3,148,112 2,545 325 204,787 .
5 | Non-current finaneial investments 52,818 52,818 0
6 | Other Non-current Assets £2.1 ni_' 54 404 27.697
B TOTAL RESOURCES 8,225.800 6,961,129 1,264,671
I |Liabilities i 5,120,249 5,223,813 {103,564)
1 |Current liabilitics 1,911,546 1,789,360 122,186
2 |Non-current labilitics 3208703 | 3,434,453 | (225,750)
IT |Owner's Equity 3,105,551 1,737,316 1,368,235
1 |Equity 1,799,859 1,200,000 599 859
2 | Other capital sources 1305603 |  s37316] 768377

Sowrce: Audited Financial Statements 2024

= The Company's asset structure as of December 31, 2024 mainly consists of

Mon-current  Assets, accounting for 62.72%, including: Fixed assets; Investment
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property and Non-current assets in process... Of which, Non-current assets in process
is 3,148,112 million YND, accounting for 38.27% of total assets and increasing by
204,787 million VND compared to the beginning of 2024, mainly due to the increase in
investment costs for construction of projects, Current assets include: Cash and cash
equivalents; Current financial investments; Inventories... Of which, inventories are
1,743,116 million YND, accounting for 21.19% of total assets and increasing by
121,900 million VND compared to the beginning of the vear (Investiment costs for
Chau Duc Urban Area); Cash and cash equivalents increased by 482,878 million VND;
Current financial investments increased by 304,785 million VND due to the Company
receiving funds from the issuance of shares to increase charter capital in 2024,

- The Company's capital structure as of December 31, 2024 consists of Liabilities
and Owner's equity. Of which, Current liabilitics 15 1,911,546 million VNI, accouniing
for 23.24% of total resources and increasing by 122,186 million YND, mainly due to the
increase in Advances from customers (Industrial park land lease); Non-current liabilities
is 3,208,703 million VIND, accounting for 39.01% of total resources and decreasing by
225,750 million VND compared to the beginning of the year, mainly due to a decrease
in bank loans as the Company used funds raised from the issuance of shares to
restructure debts. Owner's equity is 3,105,551 million YND, accounting for 37.75% of
total resources and increasing by 1,368,235 million VIND compared to the beginning of
the vear due to the Company issuing shares to increase Charter capital. Non-current
loans decreased by 10.33% compared 1o the beginning of the year and accounted for
39.01% of the capital structure, showing that the company has been active in repaying a
portion of its bank loans. Accrued expenses account for 15.1% of total capital resources,
due to the company temporarily allocating the cost of industrial park land lease contracts
to correspond with the land lease revenue recognized at once.

1.2 Financial Ratios

December | December | Inerease! ]

No. Indicators Unit 31,2024 | 31,2023 | Decrease

1 Capital structure Ratio

| - Debt/Total resources ratio % S449% | 6827% | (13.7%)
- Debt/Owmer's Equity ratio Times 0.96 1.63 (0.67)
2 | Solvency ratio : -
- Current ratio Times 2.48 1.46 1.02
- Quick ratio Times 1.07 031 0.7&

3 Profitability #
- Profit after tax/Total assets ratio

% 8% | 320 0.01
(ROA) ’ i
RIS S A el e % 12.48% | 1338% |  (0.00)
ratio (ROE)

- Profit after tax /Met revenue ratio %4 34.70% 26.76% 08




- The percentage of Debt/Total resources ratio decreased 13.78%; Debt/ the
average Owner's Equity ratio decreased 0.67 times compared to the beginning of
the year, from 1.63 to 0.96. This ratio significantly decreased mainly due to the
“Non-current loans” item on the Balance Sheet decreasing considerably, by more
than 400,000 million VND, while the owner's equity increased 1,368,235 million
WND due to the increase in owner's contributed capital of nearly 600,000 million
VND (Share issuance to increase charter capital) and other capital sources
increasing 768,377 million WND due to share premium and profit after tax in 2024,

= The Current ratio increased 1.02 times, reaching 2.48, showing that the
Company's short-term payment situation improved, largely due to the increase in
current assets by 1,002,419 million YND mainly from share issuance proceeds,
while the shorl-term debt only increased by 122,186 million YND. This ratio being
greater than 2 reflects the Company's better short-term solvency than the previous
year; however, it is necessary to consider the liquidity of inventories to ensure
short-term solvency. The quick ratio is also greater than 1, ensuring the ability to
pay due debts of the Company. The company needs to continue building financial
plans to ensure financial safety for production and business activities.

- The financial ratios demonstrating profitability did not  fluctuate
significantly compared to the previous year, indicating the stable business condition
of the projects.

Note: When analyzing the Company's debt and liguidity ratios, the Board of
Supervisors hay assessed and excluded the "Short-term and long-term unearned
revenue"” items on the Balance Sheet due to the relatively ceriain nature of the
peewrrence af economic transactions (industrial park land lease),

2. Implementation status of the Resolution of the General Meeting of
Shareholders

2.1 Operating results statement for 2024
Linit: Million VNI

T 2024
No. Indicators ;q::lht%m 2024 Actual Actual f
1
e Plan (%)
1 | Total revenoe 881,088 910,893 103.38%
2 | Profit after tax 228,154 302,127 _132.411-'3
y | Lofsl sment payuhlec oo A Btels 137.905 148,035 | 107.35%
Budget
4 | Investment in construction 1,539,321 506,957 32,53
Averape number of employees
5 290 2 Q0. (1%
teicile} a1 0,004
6 | Total salary fund 48,224 53,940 111.85%
- Management salary fund R 7.224 5,940 82.23%
-  Employvee salary fund 41,000 48,000 117.07%
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o | 2024
Mo, Indicators ::H 4IG;S,M 2024 Actual Actual /
i i
B selution Plan (%)

Deduction to Tunds after
7 P (K 53,900 75740 | 140.52%

fax 2023)
8 | Dividend Percentage 10%4 10% L0k, (RO

Source: 2024 Audited Financial Statemenis

Based on the 2024 implementation data, the total revenue reached 103.38% and
profit after tax reached 132.42% compared to the plan of the Resolution of the General
Meeting of Shareholders. The state budget contribution reached 107.35%; Investment
expenditure on construction reached 32.93% compared to the annual plan due to the
slow progress of site clearance compensation payment by the locality. Total salary fund
in 2024 reached 111.85%, in which employee salary fund increased 117.07%; The
management salary fund reached 82.23% of the plan. The average number of employees
in 2024 was 261 people, a decrease of 10% compared 1o the plan due to the recruitment
of personnel for toll collection business activities not being implemented within the
year. Percentage deducted from profit after tax for funds in 2023 reached 140.52%. The
company has distributed dividends for the year 2023 with a percentage of 10% in cash,

2.2 Detailed evaluation of the Company's business segments

M.

2024 lmplementation status

Revenug
Goods Sold Profit Percentage

Business from land lease,
] fndustrial Park infrastructarc 763,023.97 296,599.85 | 404424 1%
2 | Workshop rental operations 5,009.75 1494931 3,510 T0%

Buzi from transfi
g, [Pminesg Gom eeaforck 31,280.00 967575 | 21,604 69%

residential real estate

Industrial Park water supply

business operations (for N
4 Industrial Perk i A 10,755.60 9.705.21 1,050 1045

COMpanics)

Industrial Park wastewater

]

5 5 4 185,27 1.598.49 587 14%
6 | Golf course business 5501986 104, 18988 | (49,170) (R9%%5)

BOT 768 road toll collection 1238537 | (12,385} (%
11 o A— 1,408.00 198.72 1,200 86%

supply; other
G | Financial activities 40,014.48 34.643.22 5,37 13%
10 | Other income 196.80 180.50 (184) 8354

Total DI0,593.73 474,876 436,017 45%%
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- Ameong the above business segments, the industrial park land and
infrastructure leasing activitics account for the largest percentage, 83.77%, of the
Company's total revenue. The Golf Course business accounts for 6.04%;
Commercial real estate trading activities account for 3.43% of total revenue. Other
services such as electricity and water supply, wastewater treatment, workshop
leasing, financial activities... contribute the remaining &.76% of revenue in 2024.
The BOT Route 768 project has not vet been put into operation to collect tolls, so

there was no revenue generated in the period.

- The cost of goods sold of the business activitics is as follows: Industrial
park land and infrastructure leasing activities account for 62.88% of the total cost
of poods sold; Golf course business accounts for 21.94%; Commercial real estate
trading activities account for 2.04% of total cost of goods sold. The remaining
business activities account for 13.14% of the total cost of goods seld; among them,
the toll road segment incurred interest expenses and maintenance expenses for toll
booths of the project,

- In 2024, the company's profit margin reached 48%, 9% higher than the
previous year. Among business activities, the Golf business remains unprofitable
due to high depreciation costs and a lack of revenue from fees.

2.3 State Budget Payment Status

In 2024, the Company diligently complied with tax declaration and payment
regulations to the State Budget, adhering to prescribed deadlines and avoiding
administrative penalties. The total State Budget payment during the period amounted
to 148,035 million VND, achieving 107.35% of the plan. This year, the Company
continees to benefit from corporate income tax incentives, with a 50% reduction in the
corporate income tax rate for the Chau Duc Industrial Park investment project and the
Route 768 BOT project.

2.4 Investrnent Activities in Construction and Asset Acquisition

- Construction investinent activities proceeded as planned, with construction
mvestiment costs reaching 306,957 million VND, or 32.93% of the plan,

- In 2024, the Company transferred 154,453 million VND in construction in
progress costs to fixed assets (Golf Course and auxiliary items); increased asset

purchases by 5,321 million ¥ND; and increased costs in progress (Chau Duc Urban
Atea costs) by 408,770 million VIND.

- In 2024, the Company disposed of a 7-seater vehicle and ERP software

through auction, generating proceeds of 1,854.1 million VIND.
G
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Project Implementation Statuy According to the 2024 Plan

250,000 DI jeEraiage far Lmad

Clearmes, 202,400

000008 - 3 &
Industrial Park Project, 151, 911
e G:-I[J'n:-_iu-.l, 2,615
§50
thand Uirban Area Praject, 90,031
[ o)
N . i
Indvetrial Prek Profec Lishin Area Ff““'ﬂ Coll Projin Compessatisn for
Lord Clearance

- Chau Due Industrial Park Projeet implementation: Investment
implementation costs {consulting fees, capitalized interest, construction costs, efc.)
amounted to 151,911 million VND, achieving 63.51% of the plan due to site clearance
issues hindering construction progress. In 2025, the Company will continue
constructing technical infrastructure, including roads, rainwater drainage, wastewater
systems, and lighting, while also maintaining existing infrastructure and providing
customer service 1o land lessees in the Industrial Park.

- Chau Duc Urban Area Project implementation: Investment implementation
costs (consulting fees, capitalized interest, construction costs, etc.) totaled 90,031
million VND, reaching only 44.9% of the plan. The Company completed the dossier
adjusting the investment policy for the North Urban Area project and submitted it as
requested by the Ministry of Planning and Investment; The Sonadezi Huu Phuoc
Residential Area has completed the investment policy and received approval under
Decision No, 1447QD/AIBND of the Ba Ria - Vung Tau Provincial People's
Committee. The Company also continues the construction of the social housing project
phase 1 (210 apartments) and collaborates in investing and constructing townhouse
projects in phase 2 of the Sonadezi Huu Phuoc Residential Area. Concurrently, the
Company is constructing social infrastructure works, including a cuoltural center,
commercial center, and kindergarten, to supplement the existing wban area
infrastructure. Investment activities for the north parallel route connecting
intersections 1 and 2 and green areas are also underway,

Chau Due Golf Course Project implementation: Investment costs reached
62,615 million VND, achieving 685.66% of the plan, primarily due to the completion

-
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of projects carried over from the previous year. The Company obtained the Certificate
of Ownership for the golf resort, clubhouse, and auxiliary items. The company is
proceeding with operationalizing the Golf course and establishing a joint-stock
company to manage the existing golf course.

- Route 768 BOT Project implementation: The Company finalized the
adjusted investment policy, approved under Decision No. 1756/QD-UBND of Dong
MNai province; constructed a new toll station No. 4 (Provincial Road 768), and
repaired Thien Tan road, proposing to transfer it to the state management. The
Company has established BOT 768 One Member Limited Liability Company and
received a business registration certificate on February 12, 2025,

- Site Clearance and Compensation for projects: Total site clearance and
compensation costs only reached 202,400 million VND, equivalent to 18.57% of
the plan, due to dependence on the local inventory and compensation decision
process, In 2023, the Company will continue the inventory process, establish and
approve compensation plans, and disburse site clearance and compensation costs,
The Company also continues legal procedures related to land lease for the projects.

2.5 Payroll Status

The actual payroll fund for employees and managers was 53,940 million YND,
reaching 111.85% of the anmual plan. Monthly/quarterly, the Company pays salaries
and remuneration to the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors according to
the resolutions approved by the General Mecting of Shareholders (GMS). The payroll
fund is calculated based on profit results and labor productivity as prescribed in
Circular 28 of the Ministry of Labour, Invalids and Social Affairs.

2.6 Status of Fund Appropriation

- After the 2024 General Meeting of Sharcholders (GMS) approved the
appropriation of funds, the Company allocated 19.5% of the 2023 after-tax profit to
the funds with a total amount of 42,680 million VND, of which the Development
Investment Fund was 30,000 million VND.

- Regarding the plan to distribute 2024 after-tax profit to funds according to the
Resolution of 53,900 million YND (23,6% of after-tax profit), the Company has not
yet implemented it and proposes (o submit to this year's General Meeting of
Shareholders (GMS) a planned distribution of 75,740 million VND, equivalent to
25.07% of aftertax profit, In which, the Development Investment Fund is 50,000
million VNI, accounting for 66% of the total profit distributed to the funds.

2.7 Dividend Payment Status to Shareholders

The Company's Board of Directors has approved the Resolution to pay a 10%
cash dividend for 2023 to sharcholders, and the Company completed the procedures
for shareholders in Quarter 4/2024. As of December 31, 2024, the remaining unpaid
dividends [rom previous years were 3,079 million VND.
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2.8 Status of Bond Proceeds Utilization

On November 08, 2023, the Company disbursed all bond proceeds to invest in

the Chau Duc Urban Area project according to the intended purpose, amounting to
500,000 million VND. In 2024, the Company paid interest and principal to investors in
full and on time, and disclosed information in accordance with regulations. By January
08, 2025, the Company had repurchased all outstanding bonds with a value of 200,000
million VND and completed related procedures with the Hanoi Stock Exchange.

Sharcholders

Details of the issuance plan and capital utilization are as follows:

2.9 Status of Capital Use from the Issuance of Additional Shares to Existing

Capital usage plan Implem | Remaining
Content of capital Amount | entation | amoont
No. usage Amoant of Capital msisd percent nof yet
capital nEAge age used
nsnpe progress
Supplement  capital Expecied
investment, Cuarter
l. | construction of Chau 3909906 | V2023 - 267,004 | 66.75% | 132,995.6
Duc  Industrial Park Cuarter
project 12025
g |Bostmtme U g 3432453 | 4291% | 4567538
Company's loan debts
Expected
Pay  principal  ond Chuarter
20 | interest om the 210,000 | V2023 - 66083 31| 2033017
Comparny's hands Clucrter
2023
Principal and inferest Expecied
pavmenis on loans af {huarrer
2.2 | Vietmam Joing Stock 450,000 f¥2023 - 24609269 | I039% | 2430730
Commercilal Bank for Cuarter
Indusitry and Trele 2023
Privcipal aid interest £ od
payments on loons af Ouarier
gy |t end 100,000 | IV/2023 - 59,6201 | 89.62% 16,379
Development Bamking Ouarter
Jolnr Stack 12025
Commercial Bank
TOTAL 1,199.999.6 61,2502 S009% | 589, Td9.4
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IL Results of Supervision of the Board of Directors, Board of Management,
and Other Executives of the Company

1. Supervision Results for the Company's Board of Directors (term 2022-2027)

- The Board of Directors consists of 07 members appointed by the General
Meeting of Shareholders (GMS) in 2022, with 01 member concurrently holding a
position in the Board of Management,

- In 2024, the Board of Directors convened 04 meetings to implement and vote
on matters within its authority as prescribed by law and the General Meeting of
Shareholders (GMS) Resolution. In addition to face-to-face meetings, the Board of
Directors also obtained written opinions to make decisions, promptly meeting the
requirements of production and business activities. Each meeting and consultation was
fully documented and archived at the Company,

- The members of the Board of Directors have duly performed their functions
and responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Law, the Company's
Charter, and the Regulations on Operation of the Board of Divectors.

1, Supervision results for the Board of Management and other executives of
the Company

- The Board of Management consists of (4 members; on July 01, 2024, the
Board of Management appointed Mr. Hoang Van Chi as Deputy General Director and
dismissed Mr. Dinh Ngoc Thuan, The Board of Management has assigned tasks to
each member to implement the Resolutions and Decisions of the Board of Directors
and to disclose information as regulated.

- Based on the Resolution of the Board of Directors, the Board of Management
organized, implemented, and managed business operations, closely adhering to the
guidelines set forth by the General Meeting of Sharcholders (GMS) and the Board of
Directors. The Board of Management held regular and irrepular meetings to review
plans and  resolve  difficulties and ohstacles for  the  Company's
DepartmentsThivisions/Enterprises.

3. Evalnation of the coordination of activities between the Board of
Supervisors, the Board of Directors, and the Board of Management

- The Board of Supervisors, the¢ Board of Directors, and the Board of
Management have coordinated based on the principle of the commeon interests of the
Company and its shareholders, complying with the provisions of the Law, Charter, and
Regulations of the Company.

- The Board of Supervisors is invited to attend meetings of the Board of
[hrectors and s provided with the requested contents during inspections to timely
erasp the Company's operational status according to the production and business plan
approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

10

W s0NE0E2ICIAU LIS, Cam.un



4, Fvaluation of transactions between the Company and Members of the
Board of Directors, Company Executives and related persons

- Transactions arising during the period related to the Company and members of
the Board of Directors, Company Executives and related persons are conducted by the
Company in compliance with corporate governance regulations. When transactions
arise, the Company seelks the opinions of the members of the Board of Directors
through policy approvals, discloses information, and explains all arising transactions in
the Financial Statements as regulated,

- The 2024, Corporate Governance Report fully disclosed all transactions and
was also published on the website on 21/01/2025 and reported to the State Securities
Commission and the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange, explaining all transactions
with related parties on the financial statements according to current regulations,

PART 2

REPORT ON THE RESULTS OF THE SELF-ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD
OF SUPERVISORS' ACTIVITIES IN 2024
AND CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

I. Results of the self-assessment of the Board of Supervisors' activities
1. Operational status of the Board of Supervisors and Supervisors

The Board of Supervisors (2022 - 2027) comprises 03 members, with the Head
of the Board of Supervisors working full-time at the Company.

- In 2024, the Board of Supervisors held meetings with the full participation of
its members to assign tasks, develop plans and content for supervising production and
business activities, and hold mectings to evaluate the results of the assigned tasks of
each member.

- The Board of Supervisors did not assign members to witness the inventory of
assets, materials, and finished goods at the time of inspection; Did not verify and
cross-check vouchers and input goods declared for tax deduction and accounting in the
period; Did not reconcile and confirm all receivables and payables,

- During the year, the Supervisors monitored production and business activities
according to their assigned tasks to oversee the management and administration of
business operations by the Board of Management, reviewed the legality, procedures,
and order of issuance of Resolutions of the Board of Directors in cxecutive
management. They monitored compliance with the Charter, Resolutions of the General
Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of Directors; profit distribution, dividend
payment, and information disclosure of the Company... to ensure transparency in
information disclosure according to legal regulations.

- Furthermore, the Board of Supervisors did not receive any written requests or
complaints from shareholders requesting an inspection of the management of the Board
of Directors and the Board of Management regarding the company's business operations.
I




1. Remuneration, Operating Expenses, and Other Benefits of the Board of
Supervisors

The Board of Supervisors has performed its functions and duties of inspection
and supervision of business aperations in accordance with the Charter and the law, and
no conflicts of interest have arisen with the Company’'s interests. In 2024, the salaries
and remuneration of the Board of Supervisors were paid monthly by the company in
accordance with the Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders, as follows:

Lindt: million VNI

Mumbeer of votlng

MEI‘I‘II:I-E:‘ MDI]thI}' SIIH.['}'J' shares owned as of L:ﬂ'] Con “I:“-g R‘htﬂd
of the Position salary’ | remuneration 31/12/2024 vialat with interests
BOS ii settlemveni i Company | with the
e Sonadezi | Indivi Interests | Company
Corporation | -duoal
Pham Thi Head of the
H Board of 912 W73 | 8,208,000 ] Mo Mo Mo
Bim Hoa :
Supervisors
Trinh Thi
Member 4.0 o3 0 0] Mo Mo P
Hoa
S Memb 4.0 | 03 0 0| Mo M
Thian amber : Mo %

Sorce: A :m"ua:f Financial Statements amT 2024 Salary Settlemeni
3. Summary of the Board of Supervisors’ Meetings and the 2025 Plan
3.1 Summary of the Board of Supervisors Meetings

- In the past year, the Members of the Board of Supervisors have evaluated the
supervision of the production-business situation and management by the Board of
Management based on the Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders, the
Board of Directors, financial reports, and reports from departments, according to the
regulations of the Company and management levels,

- Based on the implementation of control according to the method of sampling
data in the financial statements, accounting books, invoices, and documents provided
by the Company at the time of inspection, the Board of Supervisors organized 03
meetings and discussions on the following contents after each inspection of the
production-business situation at the Company. Some of the main contents discussed
are as follows:

+ Assessing the implementation of the Resolution of the General
Shareholders’ Meeting and the Board of Directors through the effectiveness of the
quarterly business performance;

+ Meeling to appraise and evaluate the honesty and reasonableness of the
quarterly and annual audited financial statement data according to the assigned tasks of
vach Member and prepare a report to the Corporation;

+ Reviewing compliance with information disclosure regulations;
12
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+ Contributing opinions to the draft regulations on the operation of the
Board of Directors and internal processes...;

+ Reviewing the implementation of obligations to pay to the State Budget,
dividend payments to shareholders. ...

+ Controlling the capital investment situation; the use of borrowed capital
and the dishursement of bonds;

+ Reviewing and ewvaluating the estimated 2024 production-business
performance; preparing the 2025 production-business plan to submit to Sonadezi
Corporation.

3.2 The 2025 Operation Plan of the Board of Supervisors

- 'The Board of Supervisors continues to carry out the inspection and supervision
of the Board of Directors' activities and the supervision of the management and
administration of the production-business operations of the Board of Management.

- Monitoring the company's production-business performance through financial
reports, financial supervisory reports, and other reporis as prescribed by law.

- Implementing inspections, coordinating with relevant departments of the
company to review compliznce with legal regulations, the Charter, resolutions of the
General Meeting of Shareholders, and resolutions of the Board of Directors in
managing the production-business activities of the Board of Management.

- Appraising quarterly and annual financial statements.

- Inspecting project implementation, construction, financial investment; the use
of capital...and other tasks within the authority, functions, and duties according to the
Regulations on Operation of the Board of Supervisors of the company.

II.Conclusions and recommendations of the Board of Supervisors on the
Company's production-business situation in 2024

The situation of aftracting foreign investment in Vietnam has grown positively in
2024, with many customers seeking investment opportunities in the Chau Duc Urban
Industrial Park to lease lend for factories and workshops. Through monitoring the
production and business situation at the Company, the Board of Supervisors noted the
following: The Company has promoted land lease marketing in 2024, attracting several
interested customers and signing land lease agreements. The Company has continued to
closely monitor the disbursement of compensation and site clearance costs for projects.
The Company has been implementing investment cooperation and construction of social
housing project phase 1, terraced housing project phase 2 in Sonadezi Hun Fhuoc
Residential Area, social infrastructure, and infrastructure in the northern urban area to
pradually complete the urban area infrastructure system and create more products for the
Company's business activities. The BOT Road 768 project is temporarily suspending
toll eollection to complete procedures as required by regulatory authorities. Golf course
business operations have been relatively stable with various marketing approaches to
Cuslomers.

13

sk sorad e io Al e o e




Giiven the current situation of production and business activities in 2024, the
Board of Supervisors has the following comments and recommendations:

1. Commenis and recommendations on the production and business situation
in 2024:

- In 2024, the Company exceeded its targets for revenue, profit, and budget
contributions compared to the General Meeting of Shareholders' plan. Total
investment costs for construction and investment only reached 32.93%, of which
construction and invesiment costs reached 67.76% and site clearance and
compensation costs only reached 18.57% due to dependence on local inventory and
coimpensation decisions.

- Among the main business segments, industrial park land and infrastructure
leasing accounts for a very large proportion of total revenue (83,77%). This is
currently the most important business activity, bringing in the main profit for the
Company. Last vear, the Golf Course operation and the civil real estate business also
generated revenue, Although the above two business segments only accounted for
9.47% of the total revenue in 2024, a decrease of 4.93% compared to the previous
year, and the Golf business has not yet been profitable, in the future, these are the
Company’s main business activities, contributing to the Company's growth later on,

- Some legal procedures for the projects have been approved: Completion of
investment policy for Sonadezi Huu Phuoc Residential Ares (Decision No.
1447/QDVUBND of the People's Committee of Ba Ria - Vung Tau province);
Certificate of ownership of works for the Golf resort, chubhouse, and ancillary items;
Completion of the adjustment of the investment policy for the BOT Route 768 project
(Decision No. 1756/QD-UBND of Dong Nai province) and approval to resume toll
collection (Decision No. 2021/UBND-KTN dated March 04, 2025 of Dong Nai
province).

Based on the investment and business activities in 2024, the Board of Supervisors
recommends that the Board of Management continue to assess, analyze, and issue
policies to remove difficulties and obstacles in site clearance and compensation and land
lease for projects; Continue to closely follow the adjustment of the investment policy for
the Morth Urban Area until there is an approval decision from the competent authority;
Rescarch and issue sales policies, promote marketing of civil real estate products;
Complete the apparatus of BOT 768 Co., Ltd. to manage toll collection and setile
investment costs for the project; Improve the management and operation of the Golf
coursc to increase revenue, reduce costs, and improve the efficiency of the Golf
business. Regularly update the status of collection, debt recovery, and assess solvency,
optimize the cost of raising and using capital to proactively manage capital and pay duc

debis, In addition, the Board of Management continues to direct Heads of
14
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Departments/Divisions/Enterprises to supervise the work of the departments in charge,
ensuring that the work 15 completed on schedule as planned.

2. Some other comments and recommendations

- Regarding investment capital and eapital for investment and production and
business activities: In 2024, the successful issuance of shares to increase capital helped
the Company proactively manage cash flow in mvesting in the construction of Chau
Duc Industrial Park and restructuring loans at credit institutions. The increase in
revenue helped improve the capital structure positively, the solvency ratios increased,
and the Company's financial situation improved. According to the 20235 cash flow
plan, revenue from production and business activities mainly relies on the main
activity from industrial real estate, which is not enough to cover operating expenses,
including principal and interest. The capital shortfall is mobilized from credit
institutions, the Company plans to borrow more than 2,300 billion VND to pay for site
clearance costs for Industrial Parks and Urban Areas; Basic construction costs, efc.
The Board of Supervisors recommends that the Board of Management regularly assess
and analyze the Company's financial situation and have solutions to proactively supply
capital for investment and production and business activities, and improve financial
indicators to ensure financial safety for the Company.

- Regarding human resowrces: In 2024, the Company recruited senior personnel
in charge of the civil real estate investment and business segment, enhancing human
resources for the Urban Area project. The Board of Management continues to consider
appropriate personnel utilization and plan professional and technical training for
employees to meet the needs of investment and operation of the projects.

- Regarding the internal control system: The Company needs to periodically
assess and adjust the system of regulations, processes, and internal regulations of the
Company to align with practical situations, ensuring effective risk review throughout
the Company to enhance the role of the internal control system. Furthermore, the
Board of Management, along with the Company's cmployees, continues to adhere o
regulations and processes (o minimize risks, manage costs effectively in management,
construction investment, goods and services procurement, and project operalions,
thercby contributing to increased profits for the Company.

- Regarding planning: The Board of Management continues to improve the
quality of the Company's annual business planning, financial planning, and financial
management. The Board of Management needs to anticipate objective risks,
continually update market information and changes in State policies...to develop plans
consistent with the Company's actual sitvation. The Board of Directors, leadership,
and Board of Management implement plans to meet and exceed annual revenue and

profit targets and to orient the Company toward stable and long-term development.
15




This is the Report of the Member of the Board of Supervisors about Production
and Business Activities in 2024 of Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding Company,

respectfully submitted to the Annual General Shareholders' Meeting at the 2025
AGM.

Regards,
Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
- Asg above; SUPERVISORS
= Archive: BOS, AGM HEAD OF THE BOARD
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SONADEZI CORPORATION THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
SONADEZI CHAU DUC Independence - Freedom — Happiness
SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

Chau Due, March 20, 2025

REPORT
On Selecting an Auditing Unit to Audit the 2025 Financial Statements

To: General Meeting of Sharcholders

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises dated June 17, 2020; the Law on Securities
dated November 26, 2019;

Pursuant to Circular No. 116/2020TT-BTC dated December 31, 2020 of the
Minister of Finance guiding a number of articles on cotporate governance applied to
public companies in Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020 of the
Government detailing the implementation of a number of articles of the Law on
Securities,

According to the announcement of the State Securities Commission regarding the
list of auditing companies for public interest entities in the securities sector in 2025,
the Board of Supervisors of Sonadezi Chau Duc Sharcholding Company reports to the
Gieneral Meeting of Shareholders on authorizing the Board of Directors to select one
of the above three companies to audit the 2025 financial statements of Sonadezi Chau

IT Name of company Auditing Contact Address

168/22 Nguyen Gia Tri, Ward 25,

CPA Viet Nam Auditing Company Binh Thanh District, Ho Chi Minl

Limited
o City
5 RSM Vietnam Auditing & Consulting  |147-147 Bis Hai Ba Trung, Vo Thi Sau
Company Limited Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City
3 A&C Auditing and Consulting No. 02, Truong Son Street, Ward 2,
Company Limited Tan Binh District, Ho Chi Minh City

The above auditing units are independent and reputable auditing units in the list
of enterprises approved by the State Securities Commission for auditing public interest
entities in 2025.

The Board of Supervisors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of
Shareholders for consideration and approval.

Repgards,
Reciplenis: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
- As ab.-uw:; SUPERVISORS
- Archive: BOS, GMS, HEAD OF THE BOARD

Pham Thi Kim Hoa




SONADEZ] CORPORATION
SONADEZI CHAU DUC
SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom — Happiness

)
Cha Duc, Mareh 20, 2025 /(57 ciwerry
No.: 58.2025/TTr-SZC-TCKT I.":'.’ 0 AL
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PROPOSAL atHAUBL

Regarding the Profit distribution plan for the year 2024 and A

Profit distribution plan for the year 20215

To: General Meeting of Shareholders

Pursuant to the audited 2024 Financial statements of Sonadezi Chaun Duc
Shareholding Company;

Pursuant to the production and business results of 2024;

Pursuant to the production and business plan and the financial situation of the
company i 2023.

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of
Sharcholders for consideration and approval the profit distribution plan for the year
2024 and the profit distribution plan for the year 2025, specifically as follows:

1. Profit after tax distribution plan for the year 2024 as follows:

Linit: ¥FND
According to the o Eﬂi;l_bmpmed o
Content 2024 .-*.(?M EAT Profit distribution EAT
Resolution plan
Charter capital 1,799.099,410,000 1,799,858,630,000
Profit after tx (EAT) 228.153,600,000 302,127,157,852
Allocation to funds 53000000000 | 236% | 75740000000 | 25.07%
I | I
11 Eﬁ ORI TR 10,000,000000 | 13.1% | 50,000,000,000 | 16.55%
32 | Reward and Welfare Fund 10,000,000,000 | 4.4% |  12,000,000,000 | 3.97%
13 E*::;:m““”’" SHeRL Wark 7.000,000,000 | 3.1% 7,000,000,000 | 2.32%
3.4 | Manager's Bonus Fand 000,000,000 | 0.4% 740,000,000 | 0.24%
Agency and Related Parties I
iy [N 6.000,000,000 | 2.6% 6,000,000,000 | 1.99%
g | ming gl aher g 174,253 600,000 236,387,157 852
allocation
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According to the

2024 Proposed

forward to the next year

"% %
& i
i Content 2024 A'I?M EAT Profit distribution sk
Hesolution plan
Remaining Profit from
5 . | . : 34 " ¥
S 241.455.752.0 241,455,752,034
§ | Total Remaining Profit 415,709,352,034 467,842,909,886
7 | Divideads
T.1 | Percentage 10%4 1 0%
732 | Estimated value 179,999,941,000 179,985 863,000
= _
8 WIANG FRiL AT 235,709.411,024 287,857,046,486

The total allocation for reward and welfare funds in 2024 ensures that it does
not exceed 20% of Profit after tax, the dividend payment from Profit after tax in
2024 has been reasonably balanced, and the increase in the Percentage allocated to

the Development Investment Fund is in line with the needs of the Company's project
implementation in the current period.

2. Profit distribution plan for the year 2025:

Nao. CONTENT Value (VNI % EAT

| Charter capital 1,799,858,630,000

2 Profit after tax 302,277,058,774

1 | Allocation to funds 73,500,000,000 |  24.4%
3.1 Development investment fund 50,000,000,000 16.5%
12 | Reward and Welfare Fund 10, 000,000,000 1.3%
33 | Community Social Work Fund 7.000,000,000 | 2.3%
34 Manager's Bonus Fund GO0, 000,000 0.3%
1.5 | Apency and Related Parties Work Fund i, D0 (RO, D0 2.0%

4 | Remaining profit after fund allocation 228,377,058,774

5 Remaining profit from previous year 287,857,046,886

(] Total remaining profit o 516,234,105,660

7 Dividend
7.1 | Percentage ww|
72 | Bstimated valus 179,985 863,000

g iﬁ;:g pmqf_ii-cﬂrr[:d forward to the 136.248 242,660
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The allocation to the employee welfare and reward fund and the management
reward fund is based on the production and business results of 2025 &nd current
regulations.

The above is the company's profit distribution plan for the year 2024 an
profit distribution plan for the yvear 2025, submitted to the 2025 Annual G
Sharcholders’ Meeting for approval.

Regands,

Recipienis:
= A5 above,
- Archive: Secretariat,
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SONADEZL CORPORATION THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
SONADEZI CHAU DUC Independence - Freedom — Happiness
SHAREHOLDING COMPANY '

Chan Due, March 20, 2025
No.: 392025 TTr-82C-HCNS
PROPOSAL
Regarding the salaries and remunerations of the Board of Directors and
Member of the Board of Supervisors

To: General Meeting of Shareholders.

The Beard of Directors (BOD) respectfully submits to the General Meeting of
Sharcholders for consideration the finalization of payment of salaries, remuneration
for 2024, and the proposed salary and remuneration for 2025 for the BOD, the Board
of Supervisors (BOS), and the Person in charge of Corporate Governance as follows:

I. Remuneration and salaries in 2024:

- Salary of the Head of the BOS; 29,200,000 YVND/month

- Remumneration of Board of Directors” members: 8,000,000 YNDYperson/month

- Remumneration of the Member of the BOS: 4,000,000 YNI¥person/month

Based on the production and business results of 2024 and according to the
provisions of Circular 28/72016/TT-BLDTBXH:

- The total finalized remuneration fund of the BOD, the Member of the BOS and
the Person in charge of corporate governance in 2024 is 1,498,000,000 VND.

- The salary of the Head of the BOS is finalized according to the salary statement
of the year, which is 837,293,000 VND.

II. Proposed remuneration and salaries for 2025:

Provisional monthly payment level:

- Salary of the Head of the Board of Supervisors: 34,200,000 VND/month

- Remuneration of Board of Directors’ members: 8,000,000 VND/person/month

- Remuneration of the Member of the Board of Supervisors, Person in charge of
corporate governance: 4,000,000 VND/person/month

Based on the production and business results of 2025, the actual salary fund of the
Head of the BOS and the actwal remuneration of the BOD and the Member of the BOS
will be finalized within the salary fund and the remuneration fund for managers in
accordance with current regulations.

Respectfully submitted,

Recipients:

- As ahowe;

= Archived;
Secretariat, BOD.
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SONADEZI CORPORATION THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
SONADEZI CHAU DUC Independence - Freedom — Happiness
SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

Chan Due, April 20, 2023
No: 60.2025/ TTr-82C-KHTH

PROPOSAL
on Amending and Supplementing the Charter and Regulations under the
Authority of the General Meeting of Sharcholders

To: General Meeting of Shareholders

Pursuant to Law on Securities No. 34/201%QH14 dated November 26, 2019,
amended by Law No. 36/2024/QH135 dated November 29, 2024;

Pursuant to Law on Enterprise No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020, amended
by Law No. 03/2022/QH15 dated January 11, 2022;

Pursuant to the Charter of Sonadezi Chau Due Shareholding Company, which
has been approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders;

Pursuant to the Internal Regulations on Corporate Governance and the
Regulations on Operation of the Board of Directors of Sonadezi Chau Duc
Sharcholding Company, which have been approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

The Board of Directors of Sonadezi Chau Duc Sharcholding Company
respectfully submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders the amendment and
supplementation of the Charter and the Regulations under the authority of the General
Meeting of Shareholders as follows:

1. Amending and Supplementing the Company's Charter:

M.

Amended and Supplmeﬂial

Explanation
Content

Current Content

Article 1. Interpretation of Terms

. : b. Putsuant to Law on Enterprise
b. "Law on Enterprises” is the 'F

Law on  Enterpnises No.
50/2020/QH14 dated June 17,

M20: 03/2022/QH15 dated Janvary 11, | January 11, 2022

2022,

No, 59/2020/QH14 dated Junc 17, | Update Law  No.
2020, amended by Law No, | 032022/QH1S dated

= i ¢. Pursuant to Law on Securities
¢, "Law on Securities" is the

Law on Securifics Mo,
S4201%QH14 dated Movember

26, 2019; Law No. 56/2024/QHI5 dated | November 29, 2024

November 29, 2024,
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November 26, 2019, amended by | 36/2024/QH15  dated
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No.

Current Content

Amended and Supplemental
Content

Explanation

. "Shareholder's Contact
Address" is the sharcholder's
address in the summary list of
securities holders provided by the
Viet Nam Securitics Depository
amnd Clearing Corproration at the
most recent time.

Added 1o ﬂ]aﬁf_‘r that
the Company is only
obligated  to  send
letters, documents,
and materialy to the
shareholder's address
provided by the Viet
MNam securities
depository and

clearing corproration,

Article 2. Name, Form, Head Office, Branches, Representative

Operation of the Company

Offices, and Term of

4, The Company may establish
branches and  representative
offices to pursue its targets in
accordance with decisions of the
Board of Directors and the law.
The Company has 03 branches
as follows:

a. BOT Enterprise - Branch of
Sonadezi Chan Due
Sharcholding Company.
Address: Sth Floor, Sonadezi
Building, No. 1, Street 1, Bien
Hoa | Industrial Park, An Binh
Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai
FProvince, Vietnam;

b. Chau Due Thban Industrial
Park Branch - Sonadezi Chau
Duc  Shareholding  Company.
Address: Hol Bai - Chau Pha -
Da Bac Road, Huu Phuoc
Hamlet, Suci Nghe Commune,
Chau Due Distriet, Ba Ria -
Vung Tau Province, Vietnam.

. Branch of Sonadezi Chau Due
Shareholding Company - Chau
Due Golf Enterprise. Address:
Chau Duc Golf Course, Chan
Duc Urban - Industrdal Park,
Foad D02, Hon Phuoe Hamlet,
Suoi Mehe Commune, Chau Duc
District, Ba Ria - Vung Tau
Province, Vietnam.

4, The Company may estahlish
branches  and  representative
offices to pursue ifs targets in
accordance with decisions of the
Board of Directors and the laws,
The Company has 02 branches as
follows;

a. Chau Duc Industrial -Urban
Park Branch - Sonadezi Chau Duc
Sharcholding Company. Address:
Hoi Bai - Chau Pha - Da Bac
Road, Huu Phucc Hamlet, Suoi
Nghe Commune, Chan Duc
Digtrict, Ba Ria - Vung Tau
Province, Vietnam.

b. Branch of Sonadezi Chau Duc
Shareholding Company - Chau
Due Golf Enterprise. Address:
Chau Due Golf Course, Chan Duc
Industrial - TUrban Park, Road
.02, Huea Phuoc Hamlet, Suoi
MNghe Commune, Chau Duc
District, Ba Ria - Vung Tau
Provinee, Vietnam.,

The Company has
completed the
registration of BOT
768 Co, Lid to take
over the BOT Rpad

768 project,
accordingly, the
Company is camying
out the procedures fo
terminate the
operation  of  the
Branch - BOT
Enterprise from Agpuil
01, 2025,

Thus, it is cxpected
that by the time of the
2025 Annual General
Shareholders'
Meeting, the
Company will have 02
branches,
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MNo.

Current Content

Amended and Supplemental
I'."nn fent

Explanation

Article 20, Conditions for ratifving resolutions of the General Meet

ing of Shareholders

1. Resolutions of the General
Meeting of Sharcholders on the
following matters shall  be
passed if at least 65% of the total
votes of all sharcholders or
shareholder representatives
present at the meeling approve:

3, Except for the cases specified
in Clauses 1 and 2 of this
Article, resolutions of the
General Meeting of Shareholders
on other matters shall be passed
when approved by more than
50% of the total votes of all
sharcholders present at  the
meeling.

|, Resolutions of the General
Meeting of Shareholders on the
following matters shall be passed
if at least 65% of the total votes of
all sharcholders or shareholder
representatives  attending  and
voting at the mesling approve:;

3. Except for the cases specified
in Clauses 1 and 2 of this Article,

resolutions  of the (eneral
Meeting of Sharcholders on other
matters shall be passed when
approved by more than 50% of
the total votes of all sharcholders
or shareholder representatives
attending and voting at the
meeting.

Amended pursuant to
Clause §, Article 7 of
Law HNo.
03/2022/QH15

Article 25. Compositions and Te

rm of office of the Board of Directors

2. The tetm of office for a
member of the Board of
Directors shall not exceed 05
years and is renewable for an
unlimited number of terms. In
the event that the terms of all
Board members exping
concutrently, these members
shall continue to serve on the
Board until new members are
elected, appointed, #nd assume
their duties.

2. The term of a Board of
Direciors member shall nol
exceed 05 years and may be re-
glected for an unlimited number
of terms. 1f all Board mémbers'
terms conclude  simultaneously,
they shall continue as Board
members until successors are
elected and assume their roles, An
individual can be elected as an
independent Board member of
Company for no more than 02
conseculive lenms.

Supplement the
conditions for
independent Board of
Dlrectors members n
accordance with the
Law on Enterprises.

Article 29, Meetings of the Board of Directors

6. The Chairman of the Board or
the convener of the Board
meeting must send a mecting
invitation no later than 03
working days prior to  the
meeting. The invitation musl
specify the time and location of
the mesting, the agenda, matters

fi. The Chairperson of the Board or
the meeting convener shall send a
meeting invitation no later than 03
working days before the meeting.
This invitation must specify the
time and location of the meeting,
the agenda, and the matters to be
digoussed and decided. The

Clarify the content.




d

MNu.,

Current Content

Amended and Shppl:m ental
Content

to be discussed and decided
upon. Mecting invitations must
include accompanying
documents and voting ballots for
each member, Board mesting
invitations can be delivered via
muil, telephone, fax, elecironic
means, ensuring delivery to each
Board member's registered
contact  address with  the

Company,

Explanation

vitation must inclode relevant
documents for the meeting and
members’ voting  ballots. Board
meeling invitations can be sent by
formal letter, phone message,
ematl, fax, or other electronic
means ensuring delivery to each
Board member's registered contact
address/information at the

Company.

Article 57, Internal Dispute Resolution

2. If a resolution is not reached
through mediation within 06
weeks of the commencement of
the mediation process, or if the
mediator's  decision is  not
accepted by the parties, any
party may submit the dispute to
Arbitration or the Court.

3. Each party shall bear its own
costs related to the negotiation
and mediation procedures. Court
costs shall be paid according to
the Cowrt's ruling.

2. If no mediation settlement is
reached within 06 weeks from start
of the mediation process, or if a
mediator's decision is not accepted
by parties, any party may bring the
dispute  befors a court of
competent junsdiction.

3. The parties shall bear their own
costs related to negotiation and
mediation proceedings. Payment
of court costs shall be executed in
accordance  with  the  Court's
Jul:lgrm?u'ﬂcr.-iaicm.

Facilitates legal
procedures and
complies with legal
regulations,

Adjust the business lines according to Appendix 01/PLDL attached to the Company’s

Charter.

Inlgfmtr}r Code 6810 (Main):
Real estate business, land use
rights of the owner, user or

lessee
(operates  only when fully
compliant with business

conditions stipulated by law and
pursuant to Article |1 of the
Real Estate Business Law No.
66/20140H13 dated MNovember
25, 2014)

- Exclusion: Investment in the
construction of  cemectery
infrastructure for the transfer of
land use rights associated with
the infrastructure.

Industry Code 6810 (Main): Real
estate business, land use rights of

the owner, user or [eszee

Details: Real estate business.

{operates  only  when fully
qualified to conduct business as
prescribed by law  and in

accordance with Article 10 of the
Real Estate Business Law Mo,
292023/QH15 dated November

48, 2023).

= Exclusion: Investment in the
construction of cemetery
infrastructure for the transfer of
land use rights associated with the

_i nfrastructure.

Update Real Estate
Business Law WNa.
29/2023/QH15 dated
November 28, 2023.

B
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Current Content

5

Amended and Supplemcntal
Content

Explanation

Industry Code
Architectural  activities
related technical consaltancy.
Details:

- Survewing,  topographic
mapping, and geological drilling.
- Consulting on  design,
planning, and investment project
formulation.

- Consulting on
management, supervision,
appraisal, and inspection of civil,
industrial, and transportation
congtruction  works.  (operates
only when fully qualified o
eonduct business as prescribed
by law).

T110;
and

project

Industry Code 7110: Architectural
activities and related technical
eonsultancy.

Details:

- Surveying, topogtaphic
mapping, and geological drilling.
- Consulting on design, planning,
arvd investment project
formulation.

- Consulting on  project
management, supervision,
appraisal, and inspection of civil,
industrial, transportation, and
technical infrastructure
construction works.

{operates only when fully
gualified to conduct business as
preseribed by law).

Add details of
“technical
mirastructure”
construction worlks for
Consulting on praject
management,
supervision, appraisal,
and  inspection of
construction works.

To be consistent with

reality.

The draft of amendmenty
attached.

and supplemenis to the Company's Charter are

2. Amending and supplementing the Internal Regulations en Corporate

Governance:

Current Content.

Amended and supplemented
content,

Esplanation.

Pursvant to Law on Enterprise
No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17,
2020, amended by Law No.
03/2022/QH15 dated January 11,
2022,

Pursuant to Law on Securities MNao.
54/2019/QH14 dated November
26, 2019, amended by Law No.
56/2024/QH15 dated MNovember
29, 2024;

Update.

Article 2. General Meeting of Shareholders.

g} MNotification of the last
registration date to exercise the
right to attend the General
Meeting of Shareholders:

- The Board of Directors shall
isgue a Resolution on the last

¢) MNolification of the
registration date to exercise the
rght to atend the General
Meeting of Shareholders:

- The Board of Directors shall
issue a Resolution on the last

last |

Update

WA, EDnadezicha UG g,y
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MNao.

Current Content.

 Amended and supplemented

comtent.

Explanation.

registration date for compiling
the list of shareholders entitled
to attend the General Mecting of
Sharcholders and st
announce the information at
least 20 days before the intended
last registration date.

- Procedures for compiling the
list of shareholders of the Viet
Mam  securities  depository
{(VSD):

+ Mo later than 08 working days
priot to the last registration date,
the Company must send to WSD
a Notification of the last
registralion date according to
Form O7T/THQ - Regulation on
Exercise of Rights for Securities
Holders {Issued together with
Decision No. 02/QD-VSD dated
January 02, 2020 of the General
[Mrector of the Viet Nam
securities  depository)  and
accompanying  documents  as
prescribed in Clause 2, Article 9
of the Regulation on Exercize of
Rights for Securities Holders.

+ V8D sends the Company the
list of shareholders according to
the Regulation on the Exercise
of Rights for Securities Holders
{Issued together with Decision
No. 02QD-VED dated January
02, 2020 of the General Director
of WViet Nam  securities

depository).

registration date for compiling the
list of shareholders entitled tw
atlend the General Meeting of
Shareholders and must publish the
information at least 20 days
before  the  expected  last
registration date,

= "togedures for compiling the list
of sharcholders of Viet Nam
secrities depository and clearing
corproration (VSDC):

+ No later than 08 working days
prior to the last registration date
(except in the case of exercising
the right to attend an
cxtraordinary (ieneral Meeting of
Sharcholders convened by a
shareholder or a group of
shareholders entitled to represent
the company as prescribed by the
Law on Enterprise, the complete
and valid dossier for notification
of exercise of dghts must be sent
to VSDC no later than 10 working
days prior to the last registration
date), the Company must send to
YEDC a Notification of the last
registration date according to
Form 07/THC) - Regulation on the
Exercise of Rights for Securities
Holders (lssued itogether with
Deeivion No, 0WOQD-HDTV dated
August 10, 2023 of the Members'
Cowneil af Viet Nam securities
deposifory curtal clearing
corprovation) and accompanying
documents as preseribed in Clause
2, Article 9 of the Regulation on
the Exercise of Rights for
Securities Holders.

+ V3DC sends the Company the
list of shareholders according to
the Regulation on the Exercize of
Rights fir Securities Holders

TN ECTEGE G RRLC
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No.

Current Content.

Amended and .snpplemenied
content.

(lssuwed fogether with Decision
No. 0%QD-HDTV dated August
10, 2023 af the Members' Council
af Fler Nam securifiey depository
and cleaving corproration).

Explanation.

Article 3. Board of Directors

d} Method of electing members
of the Board of Directors:

- The list of candidates for the
Board of Directors must be
approved by the  General
Meeting of Shareholders before
the election.

- Before the election, each
sharcholder or  sharcholder
representative shall be given a
ballot paper stating  the
shareholder code, full name of
the sharcholder / full name of the
suthorized representative and the
number of voting shares and the
[1st of candidates.

- The election of members of the
Board of Directors must be
conducted by cumulative voting,
whereby each shareholder has a
total number  of  voles
corresponding  to the  total
number of shares held multiplied
by the number of members to be
glected to the Board of
Directors. Shareholders have the
right 1o cast all or part of their
totel votes for one or scveral
candidates. The elected members
of the Board of Directors are
determined based on the number
of votes from highest to lowest,
starting from the candidate with
the highest number of votes until
the number of members
prescribed in  the Company's
Charter is reached. In the event
that two or more candidates

d) Method of electing members of
the Board of Directors:

- Before the election, each
shareholder  or  shareholder
representative shall be given a
ballot  paper  stating  the
sharcholder code, full name of the
shareholder / full name of the
authorized representative and the
number of voting sharcs and the
list of candidates.

- The election of members of the
Board of Dircctors must be
conducted by cumulative voting,
whereby each shareholder has a
total number of  voles
correspoiding to the total number
of shares held multiplied by the
number of members to be elected
to the Board of Directors.
Shareholders have the right to
cast all or part of their total votes
for one or several candidates. The
elected members of the Board of
Directors are determined based
on the number of wotes from
highest to lowest, starting from
the candidate with the highest
number of votes until the number
of members prescribed in the
Company's Charter iz reached. In
the event that two or more
candidates receive the same
number of wvotes for the last
member of the DBoard of
Directors, a re-election will be
held among the candidates with
the same number of votes.

The content "The list
of candidates for the
Board of Directors
election must The
approved by  the
General Meeting of
Shareholders  before
the election” ig
removed to comply

with the Law on
Enterprise.

e S0NAdEZICha U oud oy
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Amended and supplemented

Na. Current Content. Explanation.
content.
receive the same nmumber of o
votes for the last member of the
Board of Directors, a re-election
will be Teld among  the
candidates with the same
| number of votcs.
Ity In case the chairperson andfor
the minute-taker refuses to sign
the Minutes of thc Board of
Directors Meeting:
In cases where the chairperson or
k) In case the chairman and/or | minute-taker refuses to sign the
secretary refuses to sign the | minutes, but all other members of
Minutes of the Board of| the Board of Directors present at
Directors meeting: the meeting sipn and agree on the
In case the chairman and the | minutes with full content 235 | Amended pursuant to
minute-taker refuse to sign the | prescribed above, the minutes are | Clause 6, Article 7 of
minutes of the meeting, but if all | valid. The minutes clearly state | Law Na.
other members of the Board of | the refusal of the chairman andfor | 03/2022/QH15  dated
Directors attending the meeting | minute-taker to  sign,  The | January 11, 2022
sign and the minutes have full | signatory is jointly responsible
content ag prescribed above, the | for the accuracy and truthfulness
minutes of the Board of | of the minutes. The chairman and
Directors meeting are valid. minute-taker are personally liable
for any damages to the company
due to their refusal to sign, as
stipulated in the Law on
Enterprise, the Company Charter,
and relevant laws.
4 | Article 4. Board of Supervisors
d) Method of electing members | d) Methad of electing members of
Df:l.thhe E?mld % Eu]:fen-mnrg- oo Disien o Superlmm'_s: The content "The list
- The list of candidates for the (- Before the election, each :
Board of Supervisors must be | shareholder or  shareholder's o1 ‘SeuNaee G

approved by the General
Meeting of Shareholders before
the election,

= Before the election, each
shareholder or  shareholder
representative is given a ballot
paper with the shareholder code,
full name of the
sharebolderauthor zed
representative, the nomber of

representative receives a  ballot
indicating the sharcholder's code,
the shareholder's Full
name/authorized representative's
full name, the number of voting
shares, and the list of candidates,

- The election of members of the
Board of Supervisors must be
conducted via cumulative voling,
Each shareholder possesses a

election to the Board
of Supervisors must
be approved by the
General Meeting of
Shareholders  before
the election takes
place” is removed to
comply with the Law

on Enterprise,
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Na. Current Content, Aended and Swpplemeried Explanation.
content, =
"yntmg shares, and the list of | total number of wvotes equal to
candidates, theivr  total  shares  owned
- The election of members of the | multiplied by the nomber of
Board of Supervisors must be | Board of Supervisors members
conducted by cumulative voting, | being elected. A shareholder can
whereby each shareholder has a | allocate all or some of their votes
total number of  votes | to one or multiple candidates.
corresponding  to the  total | Successful candidates are
number of shares owned | determined based on  voting
multiplied by the number of | count, from highest fo lowest,
Board of Supervisors members | starting with the highest vote
to be elected. Sharecholders have | recipient, until the required
the right to cast all or part of | number of members stipulated in
their total votes for one or | the Company Charter is reached.
several candidates. The | If two or more candidates receive
successful candidates for the | the same number of votes for the
Board of Supervisors are | final position, a mmoff election
determined based on the number | occurs  between  these  tied
of votes from highest to lowest, | candidates.
starting from the candidate with
the highest number of votes until
the number of members
specified in the Company
Charter is teached. If two or
more candidates have the same
number of wvotes for the last
position, a re-election will be
held among those candidates.
Article 7. Amendment and
Supplement
1.The amerdment and
supplement of this Regulahons
must be considered by the Board
of Directors and submitted to the
Cravenal Musting 25 ol Update content to
for approwval, .
: 5. T o ownsl At e o i | 5D SR S5
F Law
provisions  related to  the

Company's governsnce sciivilies
that arc not mentioned in this
Regulations or in the event of new
legal regulations that differ from
the Content of the provisions in

this  Regulations ,  those

1AL
i
| Bl

=i
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M,

Current Content.

Amended and supplemented
content.

Explanation.

mgni]atinns shall naturally apply
and regulate the Company's
govemance activities.

Article 7. Effective Date

The Regulstions on Corporate
Governance - Sonadezi Chau
Due Shareholding Company,
consisting of 7 articles, were
unanimously approved by the
General Meeting of Shareholders
on April 15, 2021 and the full
text of this Charter was

approved.

Article 8. Effective Date

The Regulations on Corporate
Governance - Sonadezi Chan Due
Shareholding  Company  (1®
amendment and  supplement),
congisting of 8 articles, were
unanimously approved by the
General Meeting of Shareholders
on April 11, 2025 and the full text
of this Regulations was approved.
All previous regulations contrary
to this Regulations are hereby

repealed.

Update to  comply

with the  actual
situation  amd  legal
regulations,

The draft of amendments and rupplements to the Internal Regulations on

Corporate Governance are

attached,

3. Amending and Supplementing the Regulations on Operation of the

Board of Directors:

No.

Current Content

Amended and suppk[ﬁgﬁed
Content

Explanation

Pursuant to Law on Securities No.
S4/20190H14 dated November
26, 2019, amended by Law Mo,
56/2024/0H15 dated Movember
29, 2024;

Pursuant to Law on Enterprise

Mo, 592020/QH14 dated June 17,
2020, amended by Law No.

03/2022/QH15 dated January 11,
2022;

Update

Article 6. Rights and obligations

of the Board of Directors

1. The Board of Directors
exercises its  rights and
obligations in accordance with
the law, the Company's Charter,
the  General Meeting of
Sharcholders ' repulations, and
the following rights and

] cﬂ:ﬂig@ﬁﬂna:

1. The Board of Directors
exercizes it rights and
oblipations in accordance with
the laws, the Company's Charter,

the  General DMeeting of
Sharsholders ' repulations, and
the  following mights and

oblipations:

Exclude "Regulations
on the functions,
dufies, organization,
and operation of the
Internal Audit Board"
as it falls under the
authority of the Board
of Dircctors.
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Current Content

Amended and supplemented
Content

Explanation

d) Approve and issue the
company’s intemnal management

regulations, except for the
following regulations:
- Internal expenditure

regulations;
- Accounting procedures and
financial reporting;

- Company's internal
regulations, the Company's
Collective Labor Apgreement;

- Regulations on fimctions amd

tasks of the Company's
departments, divisions, and
affiliated units;

- Repulations on  human
resourcs  recruitment at  the
COMMETY,

- Regulations on training at the
COmpEAnY?

- Regulations on practicing
dermocracy in the workplace,

- Repulations on dislogue at the
workplace;

- Regulations on organizing
Employee Conferences;

- Regulations on speaking,
providing  information  and
keeping company  documents
confidential;

- Regulations on the format,
technigue of presenting
documents and  titles of
commpany documents;

- The regulations that the Board
of Directors has authonzed the
General Director to approve and
issue.

d) Approve and issue internal
managemeant regulations and rules
of the company, except for the
following regulations and rules:
- Internal Spending Regulations;
- Accounting Procedures and

Financial Reporting;

- Company's Internal Rules,
Collective Labor Agreement of
the company,

- Regulations on the functions and
dutics of departments, divisions,
and umits direclly under the
Company {excluding the
Regulations on  the functions,
duties, organization, and operation
of the Internal Audit Board);

-  Regulations on personnel
recruitment at the company;

- Regulations on training at the
COMpPany;

- Regulations on implementing
democracy at the workplace;

- Regulations on dialogue at the
waorkplace;

- Regulations on orgamzing
Employee Conferences;

- Regulations on spokespersons,

information  provision, and
document confidentiality of the
COMMPRITY;

- Repulations on the format,
technicel presentation, and titles
of the company's documents;

- Regulations and processes
applied according to the guality
and environmental management
system IS0 2001:2015 &
14001:2015;

- Regulations that the Board of
Directors has authorized the
Gencral Director to approve and

Add "Regulations and
Processes applied
acgording  to the
quality and
environmental

management  system
SO 9001:2015 &
14001:2015" as  the

the  quality  and

environmental
management system,

Company is applying

. |

o -
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No. Current Content Amended and supplemenied Explanation
Content
2. The Board of Directors may
2. In the event that a resolution 'litl]l'ﬂ.: - m”‘ws EPPE.IT.HFM
o it appnaved ‘Bt material and technical facilities,
Board of Directors violates the i sy fm p periom: 7S
law, the resolution of the DGR HE : Add the content "Z.
o Mecting of 3. In the event that a resolution or The Roard of
Shareholders, or This Charter, d?g}m apprc.:w:!d bﬁ? BDE: Directors may utilize
causing damage to the company, = Dl]r?’ﬁmf;:ﬂ ?]m ol hi;w’ ; the COmpany’'s
the members who approve such lei_sSI::lmn c;d ¢ aa:;sja C]i.:'mg apparatus,  matenal
resolution or decision shall be . -y HEpA ﬂlelg s and technical
jointly and severally liable for ::l:msmg I: mag:ﬁtn c:c:mpa;:.;: facilitics, and seal to
such resolution or decision and | :'nl:m o D_ ::_:ppmvn: . perform its
shall compensate the company E'e;snﬂuuun dm dEE'?;m _Sh'a!] be management
for the damage; members who Jlf:-:l:hy ml severally hable for) o vions® 1o clearly
{:-i:ljﬁct to the aforementioned :ha.ll Fesplution or decision and define the righ#j of the
resolution or decision shall be | & dmmﬁ%h&*“]“‘i’““}’_fm Board of Directors
exempted from liability. In this M Eamnge: mm& ers ‘who Db'j,mt and comply with
.| to the aforementioned resolution
e the SENE MA or decision shall be exempied e
sharcholders have the right 10| o lizbility, In this case, the | Ch20ES Section 2 to
request the Court to suspend the ' ’ ion 3.
e ;Pnzl e company's sharcholders have the Section 3
. ) rght to request the Court to
aforementioned  Tesolution  or 1 g
i suspend the implementation or
decizion,
annul the aforementioned
resolution or decision.
CHAPTER VI
AMENDMENTS AND
SUPPLEMENTS
Article 14, Amendments and
Supplements
1. Amendments and supplements
X ; i
0 Im:u Regulations  must h'r: Add  Chapter VI
reviewed hy the Company's i BT
Board of Directors and submitted :ﬂﬂ; ;:E Tenmmgmm
3 to the General Meeting of PP

Shareholders for approval.

2. In the cvent that the law has
provisions related Lo the operation
of the Board of Directors not
mentioned in this Kegulations or
in the ecvent of new legal
provisions that differ from the
comtents of the clauses in This
Charter, such provisions shall

the Regulations to
ensure  compliance
with current Law.

W SN e IERaLdUE G oY
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No. Corven b bt Amended and supplemented Explanation
Content
naturally appl::r and povern the
Company's management
activities, |
CHAPTER VII
IMPLEMENTATION CLAUSES
CHAPTER VI Article 15, Effective Date
IMPLEMENTATICHMN The Regulations on Operation of
CLAUSES the Board of Directors of o T "..-'T
Article 14, Effective Date Sonadezi Chau Duc Sharcholding

Chapter VIL
Update in accordance
with the actual
sitwation  and  legal
regulations.

The Regulations on Operation | Company (1st amendment and
4 of the Board of Directors of | supplement), consisting of 07
Sonadez Chau Duc | chapters and 15 articles, was
Shareholding Company | unanimously approved by the
comprises 06 chaptlers and 14 | General Meeting of Shareholders
arlicles, effective from Apnl 15, | on April 11, 2025, therchy
2021, ratifying the full effect of these
Regulations. Prior conflicting
provisions are hereby repealed.

The draft of amendments and supplements to the Regulations on Operation of the
Board af Directors are altached.

This is the content of the proposal on the amendment and supplement of the
Charter and Regulations under the authority of the General Meeting of Sharcholders of
Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding Company, respectfully submitted to the General
Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and approval,

Regards, i
Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE BQARD OF DIRECTORS
- Az above; :
. i £ "'E”.E’E'
- Archives; archivist, 'm@“ Z//
Planning  and  General
Affairs Department.

g
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INTRODUCTION

Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding Company is a joint stock company, established under
Law on Enterprises. This Charter of Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding Company (hereinatter
referred to as the *Company™) is the legal basis for all activities of the Company.

CHAPTER I: Interpretation of Terms in the Charter
Article 1. Interpretation of Terms
1. In this Charter, the following terms shall be construed as follows:

a. “Charter capital® is the total par value of all types of shares sold and stipulated in
Article 6 of this Charter;

b. "Law on Enterprises” is the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17,
2020, amended by Law Mo, 03/2022/QH]15 dated January 11, 2022,

c. "Law on Securities” is the Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November
26, 2019, amended by Law No. 56/2024/QH15 dated November 29, 2024;

d. “Managers” includes Chairman of the Board of Directors, members of the Board of
Directors and Executives:

e. “Executives™ is General Director, Deputy General Director, and Chief Accountant;

f “Relatives of a person” include: wife, husband, biological father, biological mother,
adoptive father, adoptivé mother, father-in-law, mother-in-law, stepfather, stepmother,
hiological children, adopted children, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, biological brother,
biological sister, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, wife's biological brother, husband's biological
hrother, wife's biological sister, husband’s biological sister, wife’s sibling, hushand’s sibling.

g. “Related persons™ are the organizations and individuals defined in Clause 23
Article 4 of the Law on Enterprises and Clause 46 Article 4 of the Law on Securities;

h. “Shareholders” are individuals or organizations owning at least one share of the
Company;

i, “Major shareholders” are Sharcholders owning 5% or more of the Company's
voling shares;

§. “Common Shareholders™ are Shareholders owning commeon shares;

k. "Viet Nam" is the Socialist Republic of Vietnam;

1. “Stock Exchanges” include Vietnam Stock Exchange (VNX) and its subsidiary
COmpantes;

m. "Sharcholder's Contact Address" is the shareholder's address in the summary list of
securities holders provided by Viet Nam Securities Depository and Clearing Corproration at
the most recent time.
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2. In this Charter, the references to one or more provisions or other documents include
any amendments or replacement documents.

3. The headings (chapters, articles of this Charter) are for reference only and do not
affect the content of this Charter.

CHAPTER 1I: NAME, TYPE OF BUSINESS, HEADQUARTERS, BRANCHES,
REPRESENTATIVE OFFICES, OPERATING PERIOD AND LEGAL
REPRESENTATIVE OF THE COMPANY

Article 2. Name, Form, Head Office, Branches, Representative Offices, and
Term of Operation of the Company

1. Name of the Company
- Company name in Vietnamese: CONG TY CO PHAN SONADEZL CHAU BUC

- Company name in English: SONADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING
COMPANY

= Abbreviated Company name; SONADEZI CHAU DUC
- Trading name; SZC

2, The Company is a joint stock company, which is a juridical person and is
conformable with applicable regulations of law of Vietnam.

3. Headquarters:

- Address: 9th Floor, Sonadezi Building, No. 1, Street 1, Bien Hoa 1 [ndustrial
Lone, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province.

= Telephone : (B4.251) BROOTEE

- Fax : (84.251) 8860783
Email : chaudue@sonadezichaudue. com.vn
-  Website : www . sonadezichauduc.com.vn

4. The Company may establish branches and representative offices to pursue its targets
in accordance with decisions of the Board of Directors and the laws.

The Company has 02 branches as follows.

a. Chau Duc Industrial Urban Park Branch - Sonadezi Chan Duc Shareholding
Company. Address: Hoi Bai - Chau Pha - Da Bac Road, Huu Phuoc Hamlet, Suoi Nghe
Commune, Chau Duc District, Ba Ria - Vung Tau Province, Vietnam.

b. Branch of Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding Company - Chau Duc Golf Enterprise.
Address: Chau Duc Golf Course, Chau Dug Industrial Urban Park, Road D.02, Huu Phuoc
Hamlet, Suoi Nghe Commune, Chau Duc District, Ba Ria - Vung Tau Province, Vietnam.

WL ECrRDe richadUE zom v
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5. Except for the dissolution case as stipulated in Article 55 of this Charter, the
Company’s operational duration is indefinite,

Article 3. Legal Representative of the Company

1. The Company has 01 legal representalive. General Director is the Legal
Representative of the Company.

2. Rights and Obligations of the Legal Representative:

a, The legal representative represents the Company in exercising the rights and
obligations derived from the Company's transactions, represents the Company as a person
requesting settlement of civil matters, plaintiff, defendant, person with related rights and
obligations before the Arbitration and Court.

b. The legal representative executes responsibilities based on Article 13 of the Law on
Enterprises, and othet rights and obligations prescribed by law.
CHAPTER III: TARGETS, SCOPE OF BUSINESS AND OPERATION
OF THE COMPANY
Article 4. Industries, Professions and Objectives of the Company

|, The Company's business lines are specified in Appendix No. 01/PLDL attached to
this Charter. Appendix 01/PLDL is an integral part of this Charter,

2. Ohbjectives of the Company: The Company is established to invest, construct and
develop industrial urban parks, residential areas, and related services for constant
development, to create stable jobs for workers, to ensure benefits of the shareholders,
contribute to State budget, promote local and national economic development.

Artiele 5, Scope of Business and Operation of the Company

The Company may conduct business within the business lines specified n this Charter
and its changes thereof which have been registered and notified to the business registration
authority and announced on the National Enterprise Registration Portal.

CHAPTER IV: CHARTER CAPITAL, SHARES
Article 6. Charter capital, shares

1. The Company’s Charter capital is 1,799,858,630,000 VND (One thousand seven
hundred ninety-nine billion eight hundred fifty-cight million six hundred thirty thousand
dong).

The Company's total Charter capital is divided into 179,985,863 (One hundred
sevenly-nine million nine hundred eighty-five thousand eight hundred sixty-three) shares
with the par value of 10,000 VND/share (Ten thousand dong per share).

2. The Company’s Charter capital may be changed if approved by the General
Meeting of Shareholders (GMS) and conformable with the provisions of the laws.
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3. The Company’s shares on the ratification date of this Charter is common shares.

4. The Company may issue other preference shares after it is approved by the General
Meeting of Shareholders (GMS) and it is conformable with the provisions of the laws,

5. Common Shares must be offered first to existing Sharcholders in proportion to their
Common Share ownership in the Company unless the General Meeting of Sharcholders
decides otherwise, The common shares that shareholders did not register to purchase will be
at the disposal of the Company’s Board of Directors, The Board of Directors may distribute
such Shares to other parties on terms and conditions that they deem appropriate, however,
these Shares cannot be sold at more favorable terms than those offered to existing

Shareholders, except as otherwise approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders
(GMS).

6. The Company may repurchase its shares issued by the methods specified in this
Charter and applicable laws,

7. The Company may issue other types of securities in accordance with the law,
8. The maximum foreign ownership ratio is 20% of the company's charter capital.
Article 7. Share certificates

I. The Company's Shareholders shall be issued Share certificates corresponding to the
number and type of Shares owned.

2. Shares are securities cettifying the lawful rights and interests of the shareholder 1o a
portion of the Company's share capital. Shares must include all contents prescribed in
Clause 1, Article 121 of the Enterprise Law.

3. Within 30 days from the date of the submission of a complete dossier for transfer of
share ownership according to the Company®s regulations or within 2 months (or other
period as stipulated in the issuance terms) from the date of full payment for the Shares
purchase, the owner will be granted a share certificate, Shareowners do not bear the share
certificate's print cost.

4. In casc share certificates are lost or damaged or destroyed, the shareholder shall be
reissued with another share certificate by the Company on request. The Shareholder's
request must include the following information:

#. Information about lost, damaged, or otherwise destroyed shares.
b. Commitments 10 bear responsibility for any disputes arising from the reissuance of
new shares,

Article 8, Other securities certificates

Bond certificates and other securities certificates issued by the Company shall bear the
signatures of the legal representatives and seal of the Company.
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Article 9. Transfer of shares

1. All Shares may be transferred freely unless otherwise prescribed by this Charter and
the Laws. Shares are transferred in accordance with the laws on securities and securities
market.

2. Unpaid / partially paid Shares shall not be transferred and are not entitled to related
rights such as receiving dividends, shares issued for increasing charter capital by equity,
purchase of newly offered Shares, and any rights regulated by the laws,

3, If a shareholder as an individual dies, the heir designated by the will or according to
the laws of that shareholder shall be a shareholder of the Company. If a shareholder as an
individual dies without an heir or the heir refuses to receive the inheritance or is deprived of
the right to inherit, the shares shall be resolved by the provisions of civil law.

4. A shareholder has the right to gift a part of or all their shares to others or to use their
shares to repay debts. In this case, the recipient of the gift or the one receiving the debt
repayment in shares becomes a shareholder of the Company upon completing the transfer
procedures as prescribed by this Charter and relevant laws,

CHAPTER V: MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY
Article 10. Management Structure of the Company
The Management Structure of the Company consists of:
1. General Meeting of Shareholders.
2. Board of Directors,
3. Board of Supervisors.
4. General Director.
CHAPTER VI: SHAREHOLDERS AND THE GENERAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS
Article 11. Sharcholders’ Rights
1. Holders of common shares have the following rights:

a. To attend and speak at the General Meeting of Sharcholders and exercisc the right
to vote directly or through an authorized proxy or by other means prescribed by the
Company Charter or the law, Each common share has one vote;

b, To receive dividends at a rate determined by the General Meeting of Shareholders;

c. To freely transfer their shares to others, except as provided in Clause 2, Article 9 of
this Charter;

d. To have preemptive rights to purchase new shares in proportion to the ownership
ratio of common shares of each shareholder in the Company:
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€. To review, look up, and extract information about their name and contaet address in
the list of sharcholders having voting rights; to request corrections to their inaccurate
mformation;

f. To review, look up, extract, or copy the Company's Charter, minutes of the General
Meeting of Sharcholders, and resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders;

g Upon the Company's liquidation or bankruptcy, to receive a portion of the
remaining assets corresponding to their share ownership percentage in the Company;

h. To request the Company to repurchase their shares in cases specified in Article 132
of the Law on Enterprises;

1. To be treated equally;

J. To have full access to periodical and extraordinary information disclosed by the
Company as prescribed by law;

k. To have their lawful rights and interests protected; to request the suspension or
cancellation of resolutions and decisions of the General Meeting of Sharcholders and the
Board of Directors in accordance with the Law on Enterprises;

l. To have other rights as prescribed by law and this Charter,

2. A shareholder or group of shareholders holding 5% or more of the total commen
shares has the following rights:

a. To request the Board of Direclors to convene a General Meeting of Shareholders in
the fellowing cases: The Board of Direclors seriously violates sharcholders' rights,
management obligations, or makes decisions cxceeding its authorized powers, and in
accordance with Clause 3 and Clause 4, Article 13 of this Charter:

b, To review, look up, and extract the minute book, resolutions and decisions of the
Board of Directors, semi-annual and annval financial reports, reports of the Board of
Supervisors, contracts, transactions subject to the Board of Directors’ approval, and other
documents, except for documents related to trade secrets and business secrets of the
Company

c. To request the Board of Supervisors to inspect specific issues related to the
management and operation of the Company when deemed necessary, The request must be in
writing and must include the following information: full name, contact address, nationality,
and legal document number for individual shareholders; name, enterprise code, or legal
document number, head office address for institutional shareholders; the number of shares
and time of registered share of each shareholder, the total number of shares of the entire
shareholder group, and the percentage of ownership in the total shares of the Company:
issues o be inspected and purpose of inspection;

d. To propose matters to be included in the agenda of the General Meeting of
Shareholders according to Clause 4, Article 16 of this Charter:

¢. To have other rights as prescribed by law and this Charter,

WL EonE ez ichanduoicom, v
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3. A sharcholder or a group of sharcholders holding from 10% of the total common
shares has the right to nominate persons to the Board of Directors and the Board of
Supervisors as prescribed in Clause 2, Article 24 and Clause 2, Atticle 34 of this Charter.
Common shareholders forming a group to nominate individuals to the Board of Directors
and Board of Supervisors must inform participating shareholders about the formation of the
group before the commencement of the General Meeting of Sharcholders.

Article 12, Obligations of Shareholders
Commeon sharcholders have the following obligations:

1. To be liable for the debis and other property obligations of the Company within the
limit of the capital contributed to the Company.

2. Not to withdraw the capital contributed by common shares from the Company in
any form, except in the case of the Company or another person repurchasing the shares; In
the event that a shareholder withdraws a parl or all of the contributed share capital in
contravention of the provisions of this clause, that shareholder and related persons in the
Company shall be jointly and severally liable for the debts and other property obligations of
the Company within the scope of the withdrawn shares and damages incurred.

3. To comply with the Charter and regulations of the Company; comply with
resolutions and decisions of the General Meeting of Sharcholders and the Board of
Directors.

4. To keep confidential the information provided by the Company as prescribed in the
Company's Charter and laws; to use the information provided only to exercise and protect
their legitimate rights and interests; strictly prohibited from disseminating or copying and
sending information provided by the Company to other organizations and individuals.

5. To attend the General Meeting of Shareholders and exercise voting rights through
the following forms:

a. Attending and voting in person at the meeting;
b. Authorizing another person to attend and vote at the meeting;

c. Attend and vote/elect via online conference, electronic voting, or other electronic
formats.

d. Submit voting/election ballots to the meeting via mail, fax, or email.

&, Be personally responsible when acting on behalf of the Company in any form to
carry out any of the following actions:

a. Violating the law;

b. Conducting business and other transactions for personal gain or to serve the
interests of other organizations or individuals;

AV, SO FAC T IC DECH O] VTl
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¢. Paying debts that are not yet due in the face of potential financial risks to the
Company.

7. To perform other obligations as prescribed by law and this Charter,
Article 13, General Mecting of Shareholders

I. The General Mecting of Shareholders, consisting of all shareholders with voting
rights, is the highest authority of the Company. The Annual General Sharcholders® Metting
is held once a year and within 04 months from the end of the fiscal year. The Board of
Directors decides to extend the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting if necessary, but not
more than 06 months from the end of the fiscal vear, In addition to the annual meeting, the
General Meeting of Shareholders may hold extracrdinary meetings, The venue of the
General Meeting of Shareholders is determined to be the place where the chairperson
attends the meeting and must be in the territory of Vietnam.

2. The Board of Directors convenes the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting and
selects a suitable venue. The Annual General Sharcholders’ Meeting decides on matters in
accordance with the provisions of law and the Company’s Charter, especially through the
audited annual financial statements. In case the Audit Report of the Company's annusal
financial statements contain significant exceptions, contrary andit opinions or rejections, the
Company must invite a representative of the auditing organization that audited the
Company's financial statements to attend the Annual General Sharcholders® Meeting.

3. The Board of Directors musi convene an extraordinary General Meeling of
Shareholders in the following cases:

a. The Board of Directors deems it necessary for the benefit of the Company;

b. The number of remaining members of the Board of Directors and the Supervisory
Board is less than the minimum number of members as prescribed by law:

¢. At the request of a sharcholder or group of shareholders specified in Clause 2,
Article 11 of this Charter; the request to convene a General Meeting of Shareholders must
be expressed in writing, clearly stating the reason and purpose of the meeting, with
sufficient signatures of the relevant sharcholders or the request made in multiple copies
must include sufficient signatures of the relevant shareholders;

d. At the request of the Board of Supervisors;

¢. Other cases as prescribed by law and this Charter,

4. Convening an extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders:

a. The Board of Directors must convene a General Meeting of Shareholders within 30
days from the date the number of remaining members of the Board of Directors or members
of the Board of Supervisors as prescribed in Point b, Clause 3 of this Article or receives the
request as prescribed in Point ¢ and Point d, Clause 3 of this Article;

b. In case the Board of Directors [ails to convene the General Meeting of Shareholders
as prescribed in Point a, Clause 4 of this Asrticle, within the next 30 days, the Board of
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Supervisors shall replace the Board of Directors to convene the General Meeling of
Sharcholders according to the provisions of Clause 3, Article 140 of the Enterprise Law,

c. In case the Board of Supervisors does not convene the General Meeting of
Sharehelders according to the provisions of Point b, Clause 4 of this Article, the sharcholder
or the group of sharcholders specified in Point ¢, Clause 3 of this Article has the right to
request the company representative to convene the General Meeting of Shareholders as
prescribed by the Enterprise Law;

In this case, the sharehelder or group of shareholders convening the General Meeting
of Sharcholders may request the Business Registration Authorily to supervise the order,
procedures for convening, conducting the meeting and making decisions of the General
Meeting of Sharcholders, All expenses for convening and conducting the General Meeting of
Shareholders shall be reimbursed by the Company. These costs do not include expenses
incurred by sharcholders when attending the General Meeting of Shareholders, including
accommaodation and travel expenses.

d, Procedures for organizing the General Meeting of Shareholders according to the
provisions of Clause 2, Article 16 of this Charter.

Article 14, Rights and Duties of the General Meeting of Shareholders
1. The General Meeting of Shareholders has the following rights and obligations:

a. Approve the Company's development orientation;

b. Decide the type of shares and the total number of shares of cach type offered for
zale; decide the annual dividend rate for each type of share;

¢. Elect, relieve from duty, dismiss members of the Board of Directors, members of
the Board of Supervisors;

d. Decide to invest or sell assets with 2 value from 35% or more of the total assct value
recorded in the Company's latest financial statements;

e. Decide to amend and supplement the Company's Charter;
f. Approve the annual financial statements;
. Decide to repurchase over 10% of the total sold shares of each type;

h, Consider and handle violations of members of the Board of Directors, members of
the Board of Supervisors causing damage to the company and the company's shareholders;

i. Decide on the reorganization and dissolution of the Company;

j. Decide on the budget or total remuneration, bonuses and other benefits for the
Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors;

k. Approve the Repulations on Corporate Governance, the Regulations on the
Operation of the Board of Directors, and the Regulations on the Operation of the Board of
Supervisors;
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l. Approve the list of approved auditing companies; decide on the approved auditing
company to conduct an audit of the Company's operations, and dismiss the approved auditor
when deemed necessary;

m. Execute other rights and obligations as prescribed by law.

2. The Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting shall discuss and approve the following
matters:

&, The Company's annual business plan;
b, Audited annual financial statements;

e. The Board of Directors' report on governance and the performance result of the
Board of Directors and each member of the Board of Directors;

d. The Board of Supervisors' report on the Company's business results and the
performance result of the Board of Directors and the General Director:

e. Self-assessment report on the performance result of the Board of Supervisors and its
members;

f. Dividend rate for each share of each type.

3. In addition to the contents prescribed in Clause 2 of this Article, the Annual and
Extraordinary General Sharcholders’ Meeting shall discuss and approve the following
matters:

#. Approve the Company's development orientation;

b. Decide on the type of shares and the total number of each type of shares that are
entitled to be offered for sale;

¢. Elect, relieve from duty, dismiss members of the Board of Directors and the Board
of Supervisors;

d. Decide 1o invest in or sell assets with a value of 35% or more of the total asset value
recorded in the Company's most recent financial statements;

e. Decide to amend and supplement the Company’s Charter;
f. Decide to repurchase more than 10% of the total sold shares of each type;

g. Review and handle violations by members of the Board of Directors and members
of the Board of Supervisors that cause damage to the Company and its shareholders;

h. Decide on the reorganization or dissolution of the Company;

I. Decide on the budget or the total amount of remuneration, bonuses, and other
benefits for the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors;

J- Approve the Regulations on Corporate Governance, the operating regulations of the
Board of Directors, and the operating regulations of the Board of Supervisors;
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k. Approve the list of independent audit organizations that will andit the Company's
Financial statements: decide on an independent audit organization to inspect the Company's
operations, and dismiss an independent auditor when deemed necessary;

l. The execution of contracts and transactions as prescribed in Clause 5, Article 43 of
this Charter;

m. Other matters as prescribed by law and this Charter,

4. All resolutions and matters included in the meeting agenda must be discussed and
voted upon at the GMS meeting.

Article 15, Authorized representative
1. Authorized representative of an organizational shareholder:

a, An organizational shareholder must authovize an individual representative according
to the following regulations:

. A shareholder owning less than 10% of the total shares may only authorize 01
representalive;

- A shareholder owning from 10% to less than 20% of the total shares may authorize
a maximum of 02 representatives;

- A shareholder owning from 20% to less than 30% of the total shares may authorize
a maximum of 03 representatives;

- A shareholder owning from 30% to less than 40% of the total shares may authorize
a maximum of (4 representatives;

- Sharcholders possessing from 40% to under 50% of the total shares may authorize a
maximum of 05 representatives,

- Sharcholders possessing from 50% to under 60% of the total shares may authorize
up to 06 representatives.

- Sharcholders owning 60% or more of the total shares may authorize up to 07
representatives,

b, In case an organizational shareholder appoints multiple authorized representatives,
the specific number of shares for each representative must be clearly defined. If' the
shareholder does nat specify the corresponding number of shares for each authorized
representative, the shares will be divided equally among the authorized representatives.

¢. The appointment of an authorized represcntative must be in writing, notified to the
Company, and only effective for the Company from the date the Company receives the
notification. The written authorization nust include the following key information:

- Mame, enterprise eode, and head office address of the sharcholder;

Wil Snnaclezicnalaumcoivn



Sonadezi Chau Due Shareholding Company's Charter, amended and supplemented for the 15" time
o onApril 11, 2025 12

- The number of authorized representatives and the corresponding number of shares
for each authorized representative;

- Full name, permanent address, nationality, and legal document number of cach
individual authorized representative;

- Comesponding authorization period for cach authorized representative, clearly
stating the authorization start date;

- Full pame and signature of the legal representative of the shareholder and the
authorized representative.

d. An authorized representative must meet the following standards and conditions:

- Not falling under the subjects specified in Clause 2, Article 17 of the Law on
Enterprises;

- State-owned enterprise shareholders, as stipulated in Peint b, Clause 1, Article 88 of
the Law on Enterprises, are not permitted to appoint individuals who have family
relationships with the enterprise’s managers or with those who have the authority to appoint
such managers, as their authorized representatives at the Company.

2. Authorization to attend the General Meeting of Shareholders:

a. Shatcholders, or authorized representatives of shareholders who are organizations,
may directly attend the meeting or authorize one or more other individuals or organizations
to attend, either in person or through one of the methods stipulated in Clause 3, Article 144
of the Law on Enterprises.

b. The authorization for individuals or organizations to represent shareholders at the
GMS, as prescribed in Poinl a, Clause 2 of this Article, must be in writing. The
authorization document must be prepared according to civil law regulations and must clearly
state the name of the authorizing shareholder, the name of the authorized individual or
organization, the number of shares authorized, the content of the authorization, the scope of
the authorization, the authorization period, and the signatures of both the authorizing party
and the authorized party.

The authorized attendee of the GMS must present the authorization document upon
registration for the meeting. In case of re-authorization, the attendee must also present the
original authorization document from the shareholder or the authorized representative of the
shareholder (if not previously registered with the company).

¢. The voting ballot of the authorized representative attending the meeting within the
scope of authorization remains valid in the following cases:

- The principal has died, been declared legally incompetent, or lost their ability to act
in civil matters;

- The principal has revoked the authorization;
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- The principal has annulled the anthority of the delegate.

This provision does not apply if the Company receives notification of one of the above
events before the opening time of the General Meeting of Sharcholders or before the
reconvening of the meeting.

Article 16. Convening, agenda, and notification of the General Meeting of
Shareholders

1. The Board of Directors convenes annual and extraordinary General Meeting of
Shareholders, The Board of Directors convenes an extraordinary General Meeting of
Shareholders in the cases specified in Clause 4, Article 13 of this Charter,

7. The convener of the Creneral Meeting of Shareholders must perform the following
tasks:

a. Prepare a list of sharcholders eligible to participate and vote at the General Meeting
of Shareholders; the list of sharcholders entitled to attend the General Meeting of
Shareholders is prepared no later than 10 days before the date of sending the notice of the
CGieneral Meeting of Shareholders; the company must publish information about the
preparation of the list of shareholders entitled to attend the General Meeting of Sharcholders
at least 20 days before the last registration date;

b. Prepare the program and content of the General Meeting of Sharcholders;
¢. Prepare documents for the General Meeting of Shareholders;

d. Draft resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders according to the intended
content of the meeting;

e. Determine the time and venue of the meeting;

f Notify and send a notice of the General Meeting of Shareholders to all sharcholders
entitled to attend the meeting;

. Other tasks serving the meeting.

3. The notice of the General Meeting of Shareholders is sent to all shareholders by
means 1o ensure it reaches the shareholders' contact addresses, and is also published on the
company's website and the State Securities Commission, Stock BExchange. The convener of
the General Meeting of Shareholders must send a notice of the meeting to all shareholders
an the list of sharcholders entitled Lo attend the meeting no later than 21 days before the
opening day of the meeting (from the date the notice 15 sent or delivered validly). The
agenda of the General Meeting of Sharcholders and documents related Lo the issues to be
voled on at the meeting are posted on the company's website. The notice of the meeting
must clearly state the link to all meeting documents for sharcholders to access, including:

a. Meeting agenda, documents used in the meeting;
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b. List and details of candidates in the case of electing members of the Board of
Directors, members of the Board of Supervisors;

c. Voting Ballols;

d. Draft resolutions for each issue on the meeting agenda,

4. A shareholder or a group of shareholders as preseribed in Clause 2, Article 11 of
this Charter has the right to propose issues for inclusion in the agenda of the General
Meeting of Shareholders. The proposal must be in writing and must be sent to the company
no later than 05 working days before the opening day of the General Meeting of
Shareholders. The proposal must clearly state the shareholder's name, the number of each
type of share held by the shareholder, and the issue proposed for inclusion in the meeting
agenda.

3. The convener of the General Meeting of Shareholders has the right to refuse the
proposal specified in Clanse 4 of this Article in one of the following cases:

a. The proposal is sent against the regulations of Clause 4 of this Article;

b. At the time of the proposal, the shareholder or group of sharcholders does not hold
at least 5% of common shares as preseribed in Clause 2, Article 11 of this Charter;

¢. The issue exceeds the jurisdiction of the GMS;

d. Other cases as prescribed by law and this Charter.

6. The convener of the General Meeting of Sharcholders must accept and include the
proposal specified in Clause 4 of this Article in the draft agenda and content of the meeting,
excepl for the cases specified in Clause $ of this Article. The proposal is officially added 1o
the agenda and content of the meeting if approved by the General Meetin g of Shareholders.

Article 17, Conditions for opening the GMS

I. The General Meeling of Shareholders shall be held when the attending
shareholders represent more than 50% of the Company's total voting shares,

2. If, within 30 minutes from the scheduled opening time, the meeting does not mect
the conditions for proceeding as prescribed in Clause 1 of this Article, a second meeling
notice shall be sent within 30 days from the date of the first scheduled meeting. The
second convened (GMS shall be held when the attending shareholders represent at least
13% of the Company's total voting shares.

3. If, within 30 minutes from the scheduled opening time, the second convened
meeting does not meet the conditions for proceeding as prescribed in Clause 2 of this
Article, a third meeting notice must be sent to convene a third meeting within 20 days
from the date of the second scheduled meeting. In this case, the GMS shall be held
regardless of the total voting shares of the attending shareholders.
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Article 18, Procedures for carrying out and voting at the GMS

i, Before the opening of the meeting, the Company must carry out shareholder
registration procedures and must continue this registration until all shareholders entitled to
attend the meeting have registered.

2. When registering to attend the meeting, shareholders or their representatives shall
be issued a voting card and a ballot, stating the shareholder's code, the shareholder's
name/the authorized representative's name, and the number of voting shares of that
sharcholder. When voting at the meeting, shareholders shall raise their voting cards and
mark the corresponding box on the ballot. After collecting and checking the ballots, the
total number of votes in favor, against, abstaining, or invalid for each issue shall be
announced by the Chairman before the end of the meeting.

3. Shareholders or authorized representatives arriving after the meeting has opened
shall still be registered and have the right to participate in the voting immediately after
registration. In this case, the validity of the previously voted matters shall not be changed.

4. The election of the chairperson, secretary, and ballot counting board shall be
regulated as follows:

a. The Chairman of the Board shall preside over or authorize another member of the
Board of Directors to preside over the GMS convened by the Board of Directors. If the
Chairman is absent or temporarily incapacitated, the remaining members shall elect one of
them to chair the meeting by majority vote. If a chairperson cannot be elected, the Head of
the Board of Supervisors shall preside so that the GMS elects a chairperson rom among the
altendees and the person with the highest number of votes shall be the chairperson of the
meeting.

b, Except as provided in point a, Clause 4 of this Article, the person who signed the
notice convening the GMS shall preside so that the GMS elects a chairperson, and the
person with the highest number of votes shall be the chairperson of the meeting.

¢. The chair shall appoint one or some people as secretaries of the meeting,

d. The GMS shall elect one or several people to the ballot counting board as
proposed by the chairperson of the mecting.

5, The agenda and content of the meeting must be approved by the GMS in the
apening session. The agenda must clearly and specifically define the time allocated for
each matter within the meeting agenda.

6. The convener or chairperson of the GMS has the right to implement necessary and
reasonable mcasures to organize and conduct the GMS in an orderly manner, in
accordance with the approved agenda and reflecting the wishes of the majority of
attendees, including:
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a. Request all participants to undergo inspection or other lawful and reasonable
Security measures;

b. Request the competent authority to maintain order; expel those who do not comply
with the chairperson's authority, intentionally disrupt order, obstruct the normal progress of

the General Meeting of Sharcholders, or do not comply with security inspection
requirements from the GMS:

¢. Arrange seating at the GMS venue;
d. Ensure the safety of everyone present at the meeting venues:
e Facilitate shareholders to attend (or continue to attend) the meeting,

7. The chairperson has the right to postpone the General Meeting of Sharehalders,
which has the maximum number of registered attendees, for no more than 03 working
days from the intended opening date, and may only postpone the meeting or change the
meeting venue in the following cases:

#. The current location does not have adequate convenient seats for all participants;

b. Communications equipment is not sufficient for discussion and wvoting by
participating sharcholders:

¢. The meeting is disrupled by one or some participants thus threatening the fairness
and legitimacy of the meeting,

8. In case the Chairperson postpones or suspends the General Meeting of
Shareholders contrary to the provisions of Clause 7 of this Article, the GMS shall elect
another person among the attendees to replace the Chairperson to conduct the meeting
until its conclusion; all resolutions passed at that meeting shall be effective,

9. Online General Meeting of Shareholders shall be conducted in accordance with
the Company's internal regulations on corporate governance and may be established as a
separate regulation on organizing the online GMS approved by the GMS.

Article 19, Methods for ratifying resolutions of the GMS

I. The General Meeting of Shareholders shall pass reselutions within its competence
by voting at the meeting or by writien opinion,

2. Resolutions of the GMS on the following matters must be passed by voting at the
GMS:

a. Approve the audited annual financial statements;

b. Development orientations of the Company;

. Elect, relieve from duty, remove members of the Board of Directors and the
supervisory Board;

d. Reorganize, dissolve the Company.
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Article 20. Conditions for ratifying resolutions of the General Meeting of
Shareholders

|. Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders on the following matters shall
be passed if at least 65% of the total votes of all sharcholders or sharcholder representatives
attending and voting at the meeting approve:

a. Type of shares and the total number of shares of each type to be offered for sale;
b. Change of industries, trades, and business lincs;
¢. Change of management organizational structure;

d. Project implementation or sale of assets with a value of 35% or more of the total
assel value recorded in the Company's latest financial statements;

¢. Reorganize, dissolve the Company.

2. The voting to elect members of the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors
shall be conducted in accordance with Clause 3, Article 148 of the Enterprise Law and the
Company's internal regulations on Corporate Governance.

3, Except for the cases specified in Clauses 1 and 2 of this Arlicle, resolutions of the
General Meeting of Sharcholders on other matters shall be passed when approved by more
than 50% of the total votes of all shareholders or shareholder representatives attending and
voting at the meeting.

4. Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders passed with 100% of the total
voting shares arc legal and effective even if the order and procedures for convening the
meeting and passing the resolutions violate the provisions of the Enterprise Law and this
Charter.

Article 21, Authority and procedures for collection of written opinions in order
to pass a resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders

1. The Board of Directors has the authority to collect written opinions of Shareholders
to pass resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders when deemed necessary for the
benefit of the Company, except for the case specified in Clause 2, Arlicle 19 of this Charter.

2. The Board of Directors shall prepare ballot papers, draft resolutions of the General
Meeting of Shareholders and explanatory documents for the draft resolutions, and send them
to all Shareholders with voting rights at least 10 days before the deadline for returning the
ballot papers. The preparation of the list of Sharcholders to send ballot papers shall comply
with Point a, Clause 2, Article 16 of this Charter. The requirements and procedures for
sending ballot papers and accompanying documents shall comply with Clause 3, Article 16
of this Charter, except for the time requirement.

3. The ballot paper must include the following main contents:

a, Name, address of the head office, and enterprise code of the Company;
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b. Purpose of the consultation;

¢. Full name, permanent address, nationality, and personal legal document number for
individual Shareholders; name, enterprise code, or lepal document number of the
organization for institutional Shareholders; or full name, contact address, nationality,
personal legal document number for the authorized representative of the institutional
Shareholder; number of shares of each type and the number of voting shares of the
Shareholder;

d. Issues to be consulted for approval;

e. Voting options, including agree, disagree, and no opinion on each issue;
f. Deadline for returning the completed ballot paper to the Company;

g. Full name and signature of the Chairman of the Board of Directors.

4. Shareholders may send completed ballot papers to the Company by mail, fax, or
email as follows:

a. In the case of mail, the completed ballot paper must be signed by the individual
Sharcholder, the authorized representative, or the legal representative of the institutional
Sharcholder. The ballot paper sent to the Company must be enclosed in a scaled envelape,
and no one has the right to open it before the ballot counting;

b. In the case of fax or email, the ballot paper sent to the Company must be kept
confidential until the ballot counting.

c. Ballat papers sent to the Company after the deadline specified in the ballot paper or
opensd in the case of mail, or disclosed before the ballot counting in the case of fax or email
are invalid. Ballot papers not returned are considered as abstentions.

3. The Board of Directors shall count the ballots and prepare a ballot counting record
in the presence of the Board of Supervisors or a Sharcholder who does not hold a
management position in the Company, The ballot counting record must include the
following main contents:

a. Name, address of the head office, and enterprise code of the Company;
b. Purpose and issues for passing the resolution;

c. Number of Sharcholders with the total number of voting shares that participated in
the voting, distinguishing the number of valid votes, the number of invalid votes, and the
method of sending ballot papers, along with an appendix listing the participating
Shareholders:

d. The total number of votes in favor, against, and abstentions for cach matter:

& Matlers approved and the corresponding approval rate;
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f, Full name and signature of the Chairman of the Board, vote counters, and vote
counter supervisors.

Members of the Board of Directors, vote counters, and vote counter supervisors shall
be joinily liable for the honesty and accuracy of the vote counting minutes; and shall be
jointly Hable for damages arising from decisions approved due to dishonesl and inaccurate
vote counting.

6. The minuies of the vote counting results and the Resolution must be published on
the Company's website within 24 hours from the end of the vote counting and the disclosure
of information in accordance with the law on the securities market,

7. The answered ballots, vote counting minutes, full text of the approved Resolution,
and related documents attached to the ballots must be kept at the Company.

%, Resolutions on the following matters are passed in the form of a written sharcholder
resolution when approved by shareholders representing at least 65% of the total voting
shares:

a. Type and quantity of each type of share offered for sale;
b. Changes in industries, occupations, and business lines;
c. Changes in management structure;

d. Project of investment or sale of assets with a value of 35% or more of the total asset
value recorded in the Company's latest financial statements.

9. Except for the contents specified in Clause 8 of this Article, resolutions on other
matters passed in the form of a written shareholder resolution must be approved by
shareholders holding more than 50% of the total voting shares of all shareholders with

voling rights.
10. Resolutions passed in the form of a written shareholder resolution under this
Article have the same validity as resolutions passed at the General Meeting of Shareholders.
Article 22. Resolution, Minutes of the General Meeting of Shareholders

1, The General Mecting of Shareholders must be recorded in minutes and may be audio-
recorded or recorded and stored in other electronic forms. The minutes must be written in
Vietnamese and may also be written in a forcign language (if the company deems it
necessary) and must contain the following main contents:

a, Company's hame, head office address, and enterprise registration code;
b, Time and venue of the General Meeting of Shareholders;
c. Meeting agenda and contents;

d.Full name of the chairperson and secretary;
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c. Summarizing the proceedings of the meeting and the opinions cxpressed at the
CGieneral Meeting of Sharcholders on each issue on the agenda;

I Number of shareholders and total voting shares of sharcholders attending the
meeting, appendix of the list of registered sharcholders, representatives of shareholders
atlending the meeting with cotresponding number of shares and votes:

g.Total number of votes for cach voting matter, specifying the voling method, total
number of valid, invalid, approving, disapproving, and abstaining votes; corresponding
percentage of the total votes of the shareholders attending the meeting:

b. Matters approved and the corresponding approval rate:

L. Full name and signature of the chairperson and secretary; If the chairperson or
secrelary refuses to sign the minutes of the meeting, these minutes shall be valid if signed by
all other members of the Board of Directors attending the meeting and containing all the
contents prescribed in this clause; The minutes of the meeting shall elearly state the refusal
of the chairperson or secretary to sign the minutes of the meeting.

2. Minutes of the GMS must be completed and approved before the meeting concludes.
The chairperson, secretary, or any other signatory of the minute bears joint responsibility for
the veracity and accuracy of the content therein,

3. Minutes documented in both Vietnamese and a foreign language hold cqual legal
validity. Should discrepancies arise between the Vietnamese and foreign language versions,
the content of the Vietnamese version shall prevail,

4. The Resolution/Decision, Minutes of the GMS, all appended documents (if amy), and
refevant materials accompanying the meeting invitation must be published on the Company's
website within 24 hours of the meefing's conclusion and disclosed in accordance with
securitics market regulations,

3. The Resolution/Decision, Minutes of the GMS, the appendix listing attending
sharcholders with their signatures, proxies, all attached documents (if any), and related
materials included with the meeting invitation must be retained by the Company,

Article 23. Requesting cancellation of a resolution of the GMS

Within 90 days of receiving the resolution, the minutes of the GMS, or the minutes of
the GGMS vote count, shareholders or sharehalder groups as defined in Clause 2, Article 11
of this Charter may request a Court or Arbitrator to review and invalidate the resolution or
part thereof in the following circumstances:

I. The convening and deeision-making order, procedures of the GMS seriously violate
the provisions of the Enterprise Law and this Charter, except as stipulated in Clause 4,
Article 20 of this Charter,

2. The content of the resolution violates the law or this Charter.
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CHAPTER VII: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Article 24. Nomination and candidacy of members of the Board of Directors

1. If candidates have been predetermined, information regarding the Board of
Directors candidates shall be included in the GMS meeting materials and published at least
10) days prior to the commencement of the GMS on the Company's website for shareholders’
review. Board of Directors candidates must provide a written commitment to the honesty,
accuracy, and reasonahleness of their disclosed personal information, and pledge 1o execute
their duties with integrity, prudence, and in the best interests of the Company If elected.
Published information related to Board of Directors candidates shall include the following:

a. Full name, date of birth;
b. Professional qualifications;
c. Work history:

d. Other management positions (including positions on the Board of Directors of other
COINpanies);

¢. Interests related to the Company and related parties of the Company (if any};

f Information akout compenies in which the candidate is holding the position of a
member of the Board of Directors, cther management positions and interests related 1o the
Company of the candidate for the Board of Directors (if any).

2. Sharcholders have the right to pool their voting rights to nominate Board of
Directors candidates. A sharcholder or sharcholder group holding from 10% to less than
15% of the total voting shares may nominate 01 candidate, from 15% to less than 20%, a
maximum of 02 candidates; from 20% to less than 25%, a maximum of 03 candidates; from
25% to less than 30%, a maximum of 04 candidates; from 30% to less than 40%, a
maximum of 05 candidates; from 40% to less than 50%, a maximum of 06 candidates; and
from 50% or more, a maximum of 7 candidates.

3. In the event that the riumber of candidates for the Board of Directors through
nomination and candidacy is still insufficient as per Clause 1, Article 25 of this Charter, the
incumbent Board of Directors shall introduce additional candidates. The incumbent Board
of Directors’ intreduction of additional candidates must be clearly armounced before the
Gieneral Meeting of Sharcholders votes to elect members of the Board of Directors.

4. Members of the Board of Directors must meet the following standards and
conditions:

a. Not be subject to the provisions of Clause 2, Article 17 of the Law on Enterprises;

b. Possess professional qualifications and experience in business administration or in
the field, industry, or business line of the Company, and not necessarily be a shareholder of
the company;
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2; (‘Jnl}r be concurrently a member of the Board of Directors at a maximum u[‘ 05 other
companies;

d. Not be & family member of:
- The General Director and other managers of the Company;

— The manager, the person authorized to appoint the manager of Sonadez
Corporation.

Article 25, Composition and Term of office of the Board of Directors
1. The Number of members of the Board of Directors is 07,

2. The term of @ Board of Directors member shall not exceed 03 years and may be re-
elected for an unlimited number of terms. If all Board members' tetms conclude
simultaneously, they shall continue as Board members until successors are elected and
assume their roles, An individual can be clected as an independent Board member of
Company for no more than 02 consecutive terms.

3. The structure of the company's Board of Directors must ensure that at least 1/3
(ene-third) of the total number of Board of Directors members are non-executive members.
The total number of independent members of the Board of Directors must ensure a
minimum of 02 independent members.

4. Independent members of the Board of Directors must meet the standards and
conditions as per Clause 4, Article 24 of this Charter and the following standards and
conditions:

a. Mot be a person currently working for the Company, the parent company, or a
subsidiary of the Company; not be a person who has worlced for the Company, the parent
company, or a subsidiary of the Company for at least the previous 03 consecutive years;

b. Not be a person receiving salary or remuneration from the company, excluding
allowances that members of the Board of Directors are entitled to as regulated;

c. Mot be a person whose spouse, biological father, adoptive father, biological mother,
adoptive mother, biological child, adopted child, biological brother, biological sister is a
major sharcholder of the Company; or is a manager of the Company or a subsidiary of the
Company;

d. Nol be a person who directly or indircctly owns at least 01% of the total voling
shares of the Company;

€. Not be a person who has served as a member of the Board of Directors or the Board
of Supervisors of the Company for at least the previcus 05 consecutive yvears, unless
appointed for 02 consecutive terms.

Independent members of the Board of Dircctors must notify the Board of Directors of
no longer meeting the standards and conditions stipulated in Clause 4 of this Article and
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shall automatically cease to be independent members of the Board of Directors from the
date they no longer meet such standards and conditions. The Board of Directors must
announce the case of an independent member of the Board of Directors no longer meeting
the standards and conditions at the nearest General Meeting of Shareholders or convene a
(General Meeting of Shareholders to cleet additional or replace independent members of the
Board of Directors within 06 months from the date of receiving the notification from the
relevant independent member of the Board of Directors.

5. Relief from duty, dismissal, replacement and addition of members of the Board of
Directors:

a. The General Meeting of Shareholders shall dismiss a member of the Board of
Directors in case that member does not qualified according to Clause 4, Article 24, Clause
4. Article 25 of this Charter or submits a resignation letter and it is accepted;

b. The CGeneral Meeting of Shareholders shall dismiss a member of the Board of
Directors if that member does not participate in the activities of the Board of Directors for
06 consecutive months, excepl in cases of force majeure;

¢. When deemed necessary, the General Meeting of Shareholders shall decide to
replace a member of the Board of Directors, relieve from duty, dismiss members of the
Board of Directors other than in the cases specified in Peint a and Point b, Clause 5 of this
Article;

d. The Board of Directors must convene a General Meeting of Shareholders to elect
additional members of the Board of Directors when the number of members of the Board of
Directors is reduced by more than 1/3 (one-third) compared to the number of members
specified in this Charter and/or the number of independent members of the Board of
Directors/non-executive members of the Board of Directors is reduced and does not ensure the
ratio as prescribed in Clause 3, Article 25 of the Company's Charter. In this case, the Board of
Directors must convene a General Meeting of Shareholders within 60 days from the date the
number of members is reduced by more than 1/3 (one-third) andfor the number of nom-
exceutive members of the Board of Directors/independent members of the Board of Directors
does not ensure the ratio as prescribed in Clanse 3, Article 25 of the Company's Charter;

e. Except for the case specified in Point d of this Clause, the General Meeting of
Sharcholders shall elect new members to replace members of the Board of Directors who
been relieved of duty or dismissed at the most recent mecling,

Artiele 26. Rights and obligations of the Board of Directors

1. The Board of Directors is the goveming body of the company, possessing full
authority on behalf of the company to make decisions and execute the company's rights and
obligations, except for the rights and obligations of the General Meeting of Shareholders.
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2. The rights and obligations of the Board of Directors arc stipulated by law, the
Company Charter, and the General Meeting of Shareholders. Specifically, the Board of
Directors has the following rights and obligations:

a. To decide on the company's strategy, medium-term development plan, and annual
business plan,

b. To propose share types and the total number of shares offering for sale of each type.

¢, To decide available share offering for sale within the scope of shares permitted
offering for cach type; and decide to call additional capital in other forms,

d. To decide on the selling price of the company’s shares and bonds.

¢. To decide on share buybacks as regulated by Clause 1 and Clause 2, Article 133 of
the Law on Enterprises.

I. To decide on investment plans and projects within their competence and limits
according to legal regulations,

g. To decide on solutions for market development, marketing, and technology.

h. To approve contracts for purchase, sale, borrowing, lending, other contracts and
transactions with & valuc equal to or greater than 50% of the company's charter capital,
excluding contracts and ftransactions under the decision-making authority of the General
Meeting of Shareholders as stipulated in point d, Clause 1, Article 14 and Clause 3, Article
43 of this Charter,

L. To clect, relieve from duty, dismiss Chairman of the Board of Directors; to Appoint,
dismiss, sign contracts, terminate contracts, and decide on salaries, bonuses, and other
benefits of the General Director, Head of Internal Audit, and other executives: to appoint

representatives of the company’s capital in other enterprises, and decide on the bonuses and
other benefits of these individuals,

J- Supervise and direct the General Director and other executives in the daily business
operations of the company.

k. Decide the organizational structure of the Company except for the management
organizational structure specified in Article 10 of this Charter; decide the company’s internal
management regulations except for the regulations under the authority of the (ieneral
Meeting of Shareholders; decide to establish subsidiaries, branches, representative offices,
decide on capital contribution and purchase of shares of other enterprises.

I Approve the program and content of documents for the General Meeting of
Shareholders, convene the General Mecting of Shareholders or obtain opinions for the
General Meeting of Sharcholders to pass resolulions.

m.Submit the audited annual financial statements to the General Meeting of
Sharcholders.
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n. Propose the dividend payment rate; decide the time limit and procedures for paying
dividends or handling losses incurred during business operations.

o, Propose the reorganization or dissolution of the company; request the bankruptcy of
the company.

p. Decide to issue the Board of Directors' working regulations and internal regulations
on corporate governance after being approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

q. Execute other rights and obligations as prescribed by law and this Charter.

3. The Board of Directors must report to the General Meeting of Shareholders the
results of the Board of Directors' activities according to Article 280 of Decree No.
155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020 of the Government.

Article 27. Remuunerations, bonuses and other benefits of members of the Board
of Directors.

1. The company has the right to pay salaries, remunerations, and honuses to members
of the Board of Directors according to business results and efficiency.

7. Non-executive members of the Board of Directors are entitled to remuneration from
the non-executive management remuneration fund decided by the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

3. The full-time Chairman of the Board is salaried. The salary of the full-time
Chairman of the Board is proposed by the Board of Directors and decided by the General
Meeling of Shareholders.

4. Members of the Board of Directors receive bonuses from the management bonus
fund decided by the General Meeting of Sharcholders based on production and business
results, The bonus level for the Chairman and cach Member is decided by the Board of
Directors.

5. The salary of the Chairman of the Board and the remuneration of each Member of
the Board of Directors are included in the company's business expenses according to the
provisions of the law on corporate income tax, are shown as a separale item in the
company's annual financial statements and must be reported to the General Meeting of
Sharcholders at the annual meeting.

6. Members of the Board of Directors holding executive positions or members of the
Board of Directors working in subcommittees of the Board of Directors or performing other
work outside the scope of normal duties of a Member of the Board of Directors may be paid
additional remuneration in the form of a lump-sum payment, salary, commission,
percentage of profit or other forms as decided by the Board of Directors,

7 Members of the Board of Dircctors are entitled fo be reimbursed for all travel,
accommodation, and other reasonable expenses incurred while performing their
responsibilitics as a Member of the Board of Directors, including cxpenses incurred for
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travel expenses attending meetings of the General Meeting of Shareholders or the Board of
Directors or subcommitiees of the Board of Directors.

Article 28. Chairman of the Board of Directors

1. The Chairman of the Board of Directors is elected, dismissed, and removed by the
Board of Directors among the Members of the Board of Directors.

2, The Chairman of the Board of Directors shall not concurrently hold the position of
General Director of the Company.

3. The Chairman of the Board of Directors has the following rights and obligations:
a. Formulate the Board of Directors' programs and action plans,

b. Prepare the agenda, content, and materials for mectings; convene, chair, preside
over, meetings of the Board of Directors.

¢. Organize the approval of the Board of Dircctors® resolutions and decisions.

d. Oversee the process of organizing to implement the Board of Directors’ resolutions
and decisions.

e. Preside over the General Meeting of Shareholders,

f. Execute other rights and obligations as prescribed by the Law on Enterprises and
the Charter.

4. In the event the Chairman of the Board resigns or is dismissed, the Board of
Directors must elect a replacement within 10 days from the date of receivin g the resignation
or dismissal letter,

5. In the event of the Chairman of the Board being absent or unable to perform his/her
duties, he/she must authorize in wriling another member to exercise the rights and
obligations of the Chairman of the Board, In the ahsence of an authorized person, or if the
Chairman of the Board dies, goes missing, is detained, is SErving a prison sentence, is
undergoing administrative handling measures at a compulsory rehabilitation center or
compulsory education establishment, has absconded from their place of residence, is
restricted or deprived of civil act capacity, experiences cognitive difficulties or struggles 1o
control their behavior, is prohibited by the Court from helding a position, practicing a
profession, or carrying out specific tasks, then the remaining members will elect one person
among themselves to assume the role of Chairman of the Board until a new decision of the
Board of Directors is made based on the majority principle of remaining members' approval.

Article 29. Meetings of the Board of Directors

1. The first meeting of the Board of Dircetors® term to clect the Chairman of the Board
of Directors must be held within 07 working days from the end of the election of the Board
of Directors for thet term. This meeting shall be convened by the member with the highest
number of votes. If more than 01 member receives the same highest number of votes, the
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members will vote, following the majority principle, to select 01 person among them to
convene the Board of Directors' meeting.

2. The Board of Directors must meet at least once every quarter and may hold
extraordinary meetings.

1. The Chairman of the Board of Directors shall convene a meeting of the Board of
Directors in the following cases:

a. At the request of the Board of Supervisors.
b. At the request of the General Director or at least 05 other managers,
¢. At the request of at least 02 members of the Board of Directors,

4. Requests specified in Clause 3 of this Article must be made in writing, clearly
stating the purpose, issues to be discussed, and decisions within the authority of the Board
of Directors,

5. The Chairman of the Board of Directors must convene a meeting of the Board of
Directors within (7 working days from the date of receiving the request specified in Clause
3 of this Article. In the event of failure to convene the Board of Directors meeting upon
request, the Chairman of the Board shall be liable for any damages incurred by the
Company; the requester has the right to replace the Chairman of the Board in convening the
meeting of the Board of Directors.

6. The Chairman of the Board or the mecting convener shatl send a meeting invitation
no later than 03 working days before the meeting. This invitation must specify the time and
Incation of the meeting, the agenda, and the matters to be discussed and decided. The
invitation must include relevant documents for the meeting and members' voting ballots,
The Board meeting invitation can be sent by formal letter, phone message, email, fax, or
other electronic means ensuring delivery to cach Board member's registered contact address
at the Company.

7. The Chairman of the Board of Directors or the convener sends meeling invitations
and accompanying documents to the members of the Board of Supervisors as they do to the
members of the Board of Directors. Members of the Board of Supervisors have the right to
attend Board of Directors meetings; they have the right to discuss but not to vote,

8. A Board of Directors mecting is conducted when at Jeast 3/4 (three-fourths) of the
total number of members are present. In the event that a meeting convened under the
provisions of this clause does not have the required number of members present, a second
meeting shall be convened within 07 days from the date of the first scheduled meeting, In
this case, the meeting shall be held if more than half of the members of the Board of
Directors are present.

0 A Member of the Board of Directors is considered to have attended and voted at a
meeting in the following cases:
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& Altending and voting/electing in person at the meeting;

b. Authorizing another person to attend the meeting and vote as stipulated in Clause 11
of this Charter;

c. Attend and votefelect via online conference, electronic voting, or other electronic
formats.

d. Submit voting/election ballots to the meeting via mail, fax, or email,

10, In the case of submitting ballots to the meeting by mail, the ballols must be
contained in sealed envelopes and must be delivered to the Chairman of the Board no later
than 01 hour before the opening, Ballots shall only be opened in the presence of all
attendees,

11, Members must attend all meetings of the Board of Directors. Members may
authorize another person to attend meetings and vote if approved by a majority of the Board
of Directors.

12. The Board of Directors adopts resolutions and decisions by voting al meetings or
by oblaining written opinions. Each Member of the Board of Directors has one vote.
Resolutions and decisions of the Board of Directors are adopted if approved by a majority of
members; in the event of a tie, the final decision rests with the Chairman of the Board.

Article 30. Person in charge of corporate governance

I. The Board of Directors must appoint at least 01 Person in charge of corporate
governance to support corporate governance at the company, The Person in charge of corporate
governance may concurrently serve as the Company Scerctary as preseribed in Clause 3, Article
156 of the Enterprise Law.

2. The Person in charge of corporale governance is not permitted to simultancously work
for the auditing organization that is auditing the company's financial statements.

3. The Person in charge of corporate governance has the following rights and
obligations:

4. Advising the Board of Directors on organizing the General Meeting of Sharcholders
in accordanee with regulations and related matters between the company and shareholders;

b. Preparing meetings of the Board of Directors, the Supervisory Board, and the
General Meeting of Shareholders at the request of the Board of Directors or the Supervisory
Board:;

c. Advising on the procedures of the meetings;
d. Attending the meetings;

e. Advising on the procedures for establishing resolutions of the Board of Directors in
gccordance with legal regulations;
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f. Providing financial information, copies of minutes of Board of Directors meetings,
and other information to Members of the Board of Directors and Members of the
Supervisory Board;

&, Monitoring and reporting to the Board of Directors on the company's information
disclosure activities;

h. Acting as the point of contact with relevant stakeholders;

i. Maintaining confidentiality of information in accordance with legal regulations and
this Charter.

CHAPTER VIII: GENERAL DIRECTOR, OTHER EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
Article 31. Organize management structure

The Company's management system must ensure that the management apparatus is
accountable to the Board of Directors and subject to the supervision and direction of the
Board of Directors in the Company's daily business activities. The Company has a General
Director and other Executives. The appointment, dismissal, and removal of Executive
positicns must be approved by Resolutions/Decisions of the Board of Directors,

Article 32. Company Executives

1. At the request of the General Director and with the approval of the Board of
Directors, the Company may recruit other executives with the quaniity and standards
suitable to the Company's management structure and regulations as stipulated by the Board
of Directors. Company executives must be diligently responsible for supporting the
Company in achieving its operational and organizational objectives.

2. The General Dircotor receives salary and bonuses. The General Director's salary
and bonuses are determined by the Board of Directors.

3, Executive salaries are included in the company's business expenses as prescribed by
the law on corporate income lax, are presented as a separate item in the company's annual
financial statements and must be reported to the General Meeting of Shareholders at the
annual meeting,

Article 33, Appointment, Dismissal, Duties and Powers of the General Director

|. The Board of Dircctors appoints 01 member of the Board of Directors or 01 other
person as General Director,

2, The General Director is the person who manages the daily business of the company;
is subject to the supervision of the Board of Dircclors; is responsible to the Board of
Directors and before the law for the performance of assigned rights and obligations.

3. The term of the General Director is 05 years and may be reappointed for an
unlimited number of terms,

4, The General Director must meet the following standards and conditions:

Y e A TR T e Ty e

WA S ORI CRRU O AT O



Sonadezi Chaw Duc Shaveholding Company's Charter, amended and supplemented for the 15" time
~ on April 11, 2025 | a0

a. Not subject to the provisions of Clause 2, Article 17 of the Law on Enterprises;

b. Must not be a family member of:

The manager, member of the Board of Supervisors of the Company:

— The manager, member of the Board of Supervisors of Sonadezi Corporation;
— The representative of the State-owned capital at Sonadezi Corporation;

— The representative of Sonadezi Corporation's capital at the Company.

¢. Possess professional qualifications and experience in business administration of the
Company.

3. The General Director has the following rights and obligations:

a. Decide on matters related to the daily business of the company that are net within
the competence of the Board of Directors:

b. Organize the implementation of the resolutions and decisions of the Board of
Directors;
¢. Organize the implementation of the company's business plan and investment plan;

d. Propose the organizational structure and inlernal management regulations of the
COMpPAany;

¢. Appoint, dismiss, and remove Heads and Deputy Heads of departments, hoards, and
enterprises directly under the company, Directors and Deputy Directors of branches, except
for positions under the authority of the Board of Directors;

f. Decide on salaries and other benefits for employees in the company, including
officials appointed by the General Director;

g. Recruit employees;
h. Propose a plan for dividend payment or handling business losses:

i. Other rights and obligations as prescribed by law, this Charter, and resolutions and
decisions of the Board of Directors.

6. The Board of Directors may dismiss the General Director when a majority of the
Board of Directors with voting rights attending the mecting approves and appoints a new
Cieneral Director as a replacement.

CHAPTER IX: BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
Article 34, Nomination and candidacy of members of the Board of Su pervisors

I. The identification of Board of Supervisors candidates and the publication of
information are carried out similarly to the provisions of Clause 1, Article 24 of this Charter,
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2. Shareholders have the right to combine voling rights to nominate candidates for the
Roard of Supervisors. A sharsholder or group of shareholders holding from 10% to less than
25% of the total voting shares may nominate 01 candidate; from 25% to less than 50% may
nominate a maximum of 02 candidates; from $0% or more may nominate a maximum of 03
candidates.

3 In the event that the number of candidates for the Board of Supervisors through
nomination and self-nomination is not sufficient, the incuimbent Board of Supervisors may
nominate additional candidates. The incumbent Board of Supervisors’ introduction of
additional candidates must be clearly announced before the General Meeting of
Sharcholders votes to elect members of the Board of Supetvisors.

4. Members of the Board of Supervisors must meet the following standards and
conditions:

a. Not subject to the provisions of Clause 2, Article 17 of the Law on Enterprises;

b, Trained in one of the disciplines of economics, finance, accounting, auditing, law,
business administration, or a diseipline appropriate to the business activities of the
enterprise;

c. Not a family member of:

— Member of the Board of Directors, General Director, and other managers of the
Company;

_ Member of the Board of Directors, General Director, and other managers of
Sonadezi Corporation;

— Representative of the state-owned capital at Sonadezi Corporation;
— Representative of Sonadezi Corporation's capital at the Company.

d, Mot a company manager, not necessarily a sharcholder or employee of the
company,

e. Not working in the accounting or finance department of the company;

f. Not a member or employee of the independent audit firm that audited the company's
financial statements in the previons (03 consecutive years.

Article 35, Composition and Term of the Board of Supervisors

1, The number of members of the Board of Supervisors is 03 people. The term of
office of a Member of the Board of Supervisors shall not exceed 05 years and may be re-
elected with an unlimited number of terms.

7, A member of the Board of Supervisors is relieved from duty in the following cases:

a, No longer meets the standards and conditions to be a member of the Board of
Supervisors as preseribed in Clause 4, Article 34 of this Charter;
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b. Has a letter of resignation and is approved.
3. A Member of the Board of Supervisors is dismissed in the following cases:
a. Fails to complete assigned tasks and work:

b. Does not exercise his/her rights and obligations for 06 consecutive months, except
in cases of force majeure;

¢. Repeatedly violates or seriously violates the obligations of a member of the Board
of Supervisors as preseribed by the Law on Enterprises and this Charter;

d. Other cases as resolved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.
Article 36. Head of the Board of Supervisors

I. The Head of the Board of Supervisors is elected by the Board of Supervisors from
among its members; the election, dismissal, and removal are based on the majority
principle. The Board of Supervisors must have more than half of its members residing in

Vietnam. The Head of the Board of Supervisors must have a university degree or higher in
~ one of the majors of economics, finance, accounting, auditing, law, business administration,
or & major related to the Company's business activities.

Z. Rights and obligations of the Head of the Board of Supervisors:

4, Convene meetings of the Board of Supervisors;

b. Request the Board of Directors, General Director, and other executives to provide
relevant information for reporting to the Board of Supervisors;

¢. Prepare and sign the Board of Supervisors' report after consulting with the Board of
Directors for submission to the General Meeting of Shareholders,

Article 37, Rights and obligations of the Board of Supervisors
The Board of Supervisors has the following rights and cbligations:

I. Supervise the Board of Directors, General Director, and other executives in the
management and administration of the company; oversee the company's financial status; be
accountable to sharcholders for its supervisory activities.

2. Examine the reasonableness, legality, honesty, and prudence in the management and
operation of business activities; the consistency, coherence, and appropriateness of
accounting, statistics, and financial reporting,

3. Appraise the completeness, legality, and honesty of the company's annual and semi-
annual business performance reports and financial statements, the Board of Directors'
management performance report, and submit the appraisal report at the annual General
Sharcholders’ Meeting; review and make recommendations on contracts and transactions

with related persons subject to the approval of the Board of Directors or the General
Meeting of Sharcholders.
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4. Review, inspect, and evaluate the effectiveness and efficiency of the company's
internal control system, internal audit, risk management, and early warning system.

5. Review accounting boaks, accounting records, and other company documents, and
the company's management and operational activities when deemed necessary or as resolved
by the General Meeting of Shareholders or at the request of a shareholder or group of
sharcholders as stipulated in Clause 2, Article 11 of this Charter.

6. Conduct inspections within 07 working days from the date of receiving the request
of the sharcholder or group of shareholders as stipulated in Clause 2, Article 11 of this
Charter; within 15 days from the end of the inspection, report to the Board of Directors and
the requesting shareholder or group of shareholders on the matters requesied for inspection;
the inspection stipulated in this clause must not impede the normal operation of the Board of
Directors nor disrupt the company's business operations.

7. Recommend to the Board of Directors or the General Meeting of Shareholders
measures to amend, supplement, and improve the company's management, supervisory, and
operational organizational structure.

%, Upon discovering any violation of law or this Charter by a member of the Board of
Directors, General Director, or other executives, the Board of Supervisors must notify the
Board of Directors in writing within 48 hours, requesting the violator Lo cease the violation
and provide solutions to rectify the consequences.

0. Attend and participate in discussions at meetings of the General Mecting of
Shareholders, Board of Directors, and other company meetings,

10. Utilize independent consultants and the company’s internal audit department to
perform assigned tasks,

11. May consult with the Board of Directors before submitling reports, conclusions,
and recommendations to the General Meeting of Sharcholders.

12. Propase and recommend to the General Mecling of Shareholders for approval the
list of independent audit organizations to audit the company's financial statements; decide
on an independent audit organization 1o inspect the company's operations and dismiss the
independent anditor when deemed necessary.

13, Ensure coordinated operations with the Board of Directors, General Director, and
sharecholders.

14. Develop and promulgate the operational regulations of the Board of Supervisors
after approval by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

15, Report to the General Meeting of Shareholders as stipulated in Article 290 of
Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020 of the Government.
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I6. Have the right to access the Company's records and documents kept at the
headquarters, branches, and other locations: have the right to visit the workplace of the
Company's managers and employees during working hours.

17. Have the right to request the Board of Directors, Member of the Board of
Directors, General Director and other managers to provide complete, accurate, and timely
information and documents regarding the management, administration, and business
operations of the Company,

18, Execute other rights and obligations as prescribed by law and this Charter.
Article 38. Meetings of the Board of Supervisors

L. The Board of Supervisors must meet at least 02 times a vear, with the number of
members attending the meeting being at least 2/3 (two-thirds) of the members of the Board
of Supervisors. Minutes of the Board of Supervisors' meetings are prepared in detail and
clarity. The minute-taker and members of the Board of supervisors attending the meeting
must sign the minutes of the meeting, The minutes of the mectings of the Board of
Supervisors must be kept to determine the responsibilities of each member of the Board of
Supervisors.

Z, The Board of Supervisors has the right to request members of the Board of
Directors, the General Director, and representatives of the independent audit organization to
attend and answer issues that need clarification,

Article 39, Salaries, remunerations, bonuses and other benefits of members of the
Supervisory Board

1. Non-executive members of the Board of Supervisors shall receive remunerations
from the remuneration fund for non-executive managers as decided by the General Meeting
of Shareholders. The annual operating budget of the Board of Supervisors is decided by the
General Meeting of Shareholders.

2. The full-time Head of the Board of Supervisors shall be paid a salary as decided by
the General Meeting of Shareholders.

3. Members of the Board of Supervisors shall receive bonuses from the manager's
bonus fund as decided by the General Meeting of Shareholders based on production and
business results; the bonus level for the Head of the Board and each member is decided by
the Board of Directors.

4 Members of the Board of Supervisors are reimbursed for expenses of
accommadation, travel, and the cost of using independent consulting services within the
limit of the annual operating budget of the Board of Supervisors approved by the General
Meeting of Shareholders.

5. The salaries and operating expenses of the Board of Supervisors are included in the
Company's business expenscs in accordance with the provisions of the law on corporate
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income tax, other relevant legal provisions, and must be itemized separately in the
Compeny's annual financial statements,

CHAPTER X: RESPONSIBILITIES OF MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS, MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, GENERAL
DIRECTOR AND OTHER EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Article 40, Duty of Care

Members of the Board of Directors, Supervisors, the General Direetor and other
executive officers are responsible for performing their duties, including those as members of
sub-committees of the Board of Directors, honestly and prudently in the best interests of the
Company.,

Article 41. Responsibility to be honest and avoid conflicts of interest

1. Member of the Board of Directors, Member of the Board of Supervisors, General
Director and other executive officers must disclose relevant interests as prescribed by the
Law on Enterpriscs and relevant legal documents.

3. Members of the Board of Directors, Members of the Board of Sopervisors, the
General Director, other exccutive officers, and their related persons may only use
information obtained by virtue of their positions to serve the interests of the Company.

3. Members of the Board of Directors, members of the Supervisory Board, the General
Director, and other executives are obligated to notify the Board of Directors and the Board
of Supervisors in writing of any transactions between themselves and their affiliated persons
with the Company and its subsidiaries, in accordance with the law. The company must
disclose information as prescribed by securities laws, regarding resolutions of the General
Meeting of Shareholders or the Board of Directors approving these transactions.

4 Members of the Board of Directors, members of the Supervisory Board, the General
Director, other managers, and their affilisted persons may not utilize or disclose to others
inside information to conduct relevant transactions.

Article 42, Disclosure of Related Interests

The disclosure of interests and affiliated persons of the Company is implemented
according to the following regulations:

|. Members of the Board of Directors, members of the Supervisory Board, the General
Director, and other managers of the Company must declare to the Company their related
interesis, including:

& Name, enterprise code, head office address, industry, and business lines of
enterprises in which they own capital contributions or shares; the percentage and time of
ownership of such capital contributions or shates;
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b. Name, enterprise code, head office address, industry, and business lines of enterprises

in which their affiliated persons jointly or individually own capital coniributions or shares
exceeding 10% of the charter capital,

2. The declaration stipulated in Clause 1 of this Article must be made within 07
working days [rom the date the related interest arises: any amendments or supplements must
be notified to the Company within 07 working days from the date of the respective
amendment or supplement.

3. Any Member of the Board of Directors or the General Director who, in their
personal capacity or on behalf of another person, undertakes any work within the scope of
the Company's business must explain the nature and content of such work to the Board of
Dircctors and the Board of Supervisors and may enly proceed with such work upon
approval by the majority of the remaining members of the Board of Directors. If undertaken
without declaration or without the approval of the Board of Directors, all income derived
from such activity belongs to the Company.

Article 43, Contracts and Transactions with Affiliated Perso ns

I. The Company shall not provide loans or puarantees to all Sharcholders and their
affiliated persons,

2. The Company shall not provide loans or guarantees to all managers of the Company
and their affiliated persons, except as provided for in Clause 3 of this Article.

3. The Company may provide loans or guarantees to the Company's subsidiaries after
approval by the General Meeting of Shareholders or the Board of Directors as sti pulated in
Clauses 5 and 6 of this Article.

4. The General Meeting of Shareholders or the Board of Directors approves Contracts
and transactions between the Company and the following:

A. Sharcholders, authorized representatives of Shareholders owning more than 10% of
the Company's total common shares, and their affiliated persons:

b. Members of the Board of Directors, members of the Sy pervisory Board, the General
Director, other managers, and their affiliated persons;

¢. Enterprises that Members of the Board of Directors, members of the SUPETVISOry
Board, the General Director, and other managers of the Company are required to declare as
stipulated in Clause 1, Article 42 of this Charter.

5. The following Contracts and transactions must be approved by the General Meeting
of Sharcholders:

#. Contracts and transactions as stipulated in Clauses 3 and 4 of this Article with a
value of 35% or more, or transactions leading to a total transaction value arising within 12
maonths from the date of the first transaction with a value of 35% or more of the total agset
value recorded in the Company's most recent financial statement;
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b. Contracts and transactions with a value greater than 10% of the total asset value
recorded on the most recent financial statement between the Company and Shareholders
pwning from 51% of the total voting shares or related persons of such Shareholders.

In the event of approving a contract or transaction as prescribed in this clause, the
Company representative signing the contract or transaction must notify the Board of
Ditectors and members of the Board of Supervisors about related persons involved in the
contract or transaction and enclose the draft contract or a notice of the main contents of the
transaction. The Board of Directors shall submit the draft contract or transaction or explain
the main contents of the contract or transaction at the General Mecting of Shareholders or
obtain Sharcholders' opinions in writing. In these cases, the sharcholders who have no
voting rights regarding contracts or transactions in which such Shareholders have related
interests.

6. The following contracts and transactions must be approved by the Board of
Directors:

a. Contracts and transactions specified in point a, clause 6.of this Article, with a value
less than 35% of the total asset vahie tecorded on the most recent financial statement.

b. Contracts and transactions specified in point b, clause 6 of this Article, with a value
less than or egual to 10% of the total asset value recorded on the most recent financial
statement.

In the event of approving contracts or transactions as prescribed in this clause, the
Company representative sipning contracts or transactions must notify the Meimnbers of the
Board of Directors and the Roard of Supervisors about related persons involved in the
contracts or transactions and enclose a draft contract or the main content of the transactions.
The Board of Directors shall decide on the approval of the contract or transaction within 13
days from the date of receiving the notification. Members of the Board of Directors shall
have no right to vote on contracts and transactions in which they, or related persons thereof,
have related benefits.

Article 44, Responsibilities for Damages and Compensation

1. Members of the Board of Directors, Members of the Board of Supervisors, the
Gieneral Director and other executives who violate their duties and Responsibilities of
henesty and due care, fail to fulfill their obligations, shall be held accountable for damages
caused by their violations.

2. The Company shall indemnify those who are, have been, or may hecome a party to
claims, Jawsuils, or prosecutions (including civil and administrative cascs and excluding
cases where the Company is the plaintiff) if that person is or has been a Member of the
Board of Directors, a Member of the Board of Supervisors, the General Director, another
executive, an employee, or an autherized representative of the Company, or that person has
performed, is performing duties as authorized by the Company, acts honestly and with due

dns sonadezichail dUcom.



Sonadezi Chan Due Shareholding Company's Charter, amended and supplemented for the 15" ime

on April 11, 2035 | 18
care in the best interest of the Company based on compliance with the law, and there is no
evidence confirming that such person violated their Responsibilities.

3. Cost of compensation includes judgment costs, fines, actual incurred payments
(including legal fees) in resolving these cases within the permissible legal framework, The
company may purchase insmrance for these individuals to avoid the aforementioned
compensation responsibilities,

CHAPTER XI: RIGHT TO INVESTIGATE BOOKS AND RECORDS
Article 45. Right to Investigate Books and Records

1. Common shareholders have the right to investigate books and records in accordance
with the provisions of points ¢ and f, clause 1, Article 11, and point b, clause 2, Article 11 of
this Charter,

2. In cases where authorized representatives of Sharcholders and Sharcholder groups
request to investigate books and records, a power of attormey from the Sharcholders and
Sharcholder groups they represent or a notarized copy of this power of attorney must be
enclosed.

3. Members of the Board of Directors, members of the Board of Supervisors, the
General Director, and other executives have the right to access the Company's shareholder
register, shareholder list, and other Company books and records for purposes related to their
positions, provided that this information is kept confidential,

4. The Company must maintain this Charter and its amendments, the Enterprise
Registration Certificate, regulations, documents proving ownership of assets, resolutions of
the General Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of Directors, minutes of meetings of the
GMS and the Board of Directors, reports of the Board of Directors, reports of the Board of
Supervisors, annual financial statements, accounting books, and other documents as
prescribed by law at its headquarters or another location, provided that sharcholders and the
business registration authority are notified of the location where these docutnents are stored.

3. This Charter must be published on the Company's website.

CHAPTER XII: EMPLOYEES AND TRADE UNION
Article 46. Employees and Trade Union

1. The General Dircctor shall submit to the Board of Directors for approval policies
regarding matters related to recruitment, employee termination, salaries, social insurance,
benefits, rewards, and disciplinary actions for employees and executives of the Company,

2. The General Director submits to the Board of Directors for approval policies on the
Company’s relations with trade union organizations in accordance with the Law on Trade
Unions, the Trade Union Charter, and current legal regulations,
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CHAPTER XIII1: PROFIT DISTRIBUTION
Article 47. Profit distribution

1. The Company shall set aside funds from its annual after-tax profit after offsetting
losses from previous years (if any), including: investment and development fund, employec
welfare and reward fund, management reward fund, community social work fund, related
agency funds, and other funds as approved by the GMS.

3, The General Meeting of Shareholders shall decide the annual dividend payout ratio
and the form of dividend payment from the Company's retained earnings.

3. The Company does not pay interest on dividend payments or payments related to a
class of shares,

4. The Board of Directors may propose to the GMS the payment of all or part of the
dividends in shares, and the Board of Directors shall be the body that implements this
decision.

5. The Board of Directors may decide to pay interim dividends within the plan
approved by the GMS if it deems thal this payment is appropriate for the Company's
profitebility.

6. In cases where dividends or other amounts related to a class of shares are paid in
cash, the Company must pay in Vietnamese Dong, Payment may be made directly or
through banks based on detailed bank account information provided by the sharcholder. In
the event that the Company has transferred the money according to the detailed bank
information provided by the shareholder, but the shareholder does not receive the money,
the Company shall not be liable for the amount the Company has transferred to this
shareholder. Dividend payments for shares may be made through a securities company Or
Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation.

7. Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises and the Law on Securities, the Board of
Directors shall pass a resolution specifying a specific date to finalize the list of sharcholders.
Rased on that date, those registered as shareholders or holders of other securities are entitled
to receive stock dividends by cash or shares, receive notices, or other documents.

8. Principles of loss treatment in business:

In the event of a loss in the fiscal year settlement, the Board of Directors must propose
to the General Meeting of Shareholders two options for handling:

a. Transfer the loss to the following year in accordance with current regulalions, and
the General Meeting of Shareholders must decide on remedial measures.

b. In the event that the Company experiences prolonged losses for many years without
remedy, the General Meeting of Shareholders shall consider deciding on handling measures
in accordance with the Bankruptcy Law.
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9. Other matters related to profit distribution are implemented according to legal
provisions.

CHAPTER XIV: BANK ACCOUNTS, FISCAL YEAR AND ACCOUNTING
Article 48. Bank accounts

1. The Company opens accounts at Victnamese banks or at foreign banks permitted 1o
operate in Vietnam,

2, With pricr approval from competent authorities, when necess ary, the Company may
open Bank accounts abroad in accordance with legal repulations.

Article 49. Fiscal vear

The Company's Fiscal year begins on the first day of January each vear and ends on
the 31st day of December. The first Fiscal year starts from the date of issuance of the
Business Registration Certificate and ends on the 31st day of December immediately
following,

Article 30, Aceounting

I. The Accounting system uscd by the company is the enterprise accounting system or
a specific accounting system issued or approved by a competent authority,

2. The company keeps accounting books in Vietnamese and retains accounting records
according to the provisions of law on accounting and relevant laws. These records must be
accurate, updated, systematic, and sufficient to prove and explain the Company's
transactions.

3. The Company uses the Vietnamese Dong as its accounting currency unil.

CHAPTER XV: ANNUAL REPORT, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
RESPONSIBILITY FOR INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

Article 51. Annual, semi-annual and quarterly financial statements

I. The company musl prepare annual financial statements in accordance with the law
and the report must be audited according to the provisions of Article 53 of this Charter. The
Company publishes the audited annual financial statements according 1o the provisions of
securities law and submits them to competent state agencies,

2. Annual financial statements must include complete reports, appendices, and
explanations in accordance with the law on enterprise Accounting. Annual Financial
statements must truthfully and objectively reflect the company's operating situation.

3. The Company must prepare and publish reviewed semi-annual financial statements
and quarterly financial statements according to the law on the securities market and submit
them to competent state apencies,
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Article 52. Annual repori
The Company must prepare and publish the Annual report in accordance with the
provisions of securities law.
CHAPTER X¥I: AUDITING
Article 53. Auditing

1. The General Meeting of Shareholders appoints an independent Auditing
organization or approves the list of independent Auditing organizations and authorizes the
Board of Directors to select one of these organizations to audit the Company’s Financial
statements.

2. The audit report is attached to the company’s annual financial statements.

3, The independent auditor conducting the audit of the Company’s Financial statements is
entitled 1o attend General Meeting of Sharcholders meetings, receive notices and other
information relating to General Meeting of Sharcholders meetings, and express opinions at the
meeting on matters related to the audit of the Company’s Financial statements.

CHAPTER XVII: COMPANY SEAL
Article 54. Company Seal

1. The Company Seal comprises a physical seal crafted at a designated seal engraving
establishment or a digital signature conforming to the stipulations of electronic transaction
laws.

2. The Board of Directors determines the type, quantity, format, and content of the
seals for the Company, its branches, and representative offices (if any).

3. The Board of Directors and the General Director utilize and manage the seal in
accordance with prevailing legal regulations.
CHAPTER XVIII: COMPANY DISSOLUTION
Article 55. Company Dissolution
1. The Company may be dissolved under the following circumstances:

a. Dissolution pursuant to a Resolution or Decision of the General Mecling of
Shareholders;

b. Revocation of the Enterprise Registration Certificate, unless otherwise stipulated by
the Law on Tax Administration;

¢. Other cases prescribed by law.

2. The Dissolution of the Company, as resolved by the General Mecting of
Shareholders, is cxcouled by the Board of Directors. This Dissolution Decision must be
announced or approved by the competent authority (if mandated) as per regulations.
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3. Procedures for Liquidation of Assets and Dissolution of the Company:

The Dissolution of the Company under the circumstances stipulated in Clause 1 of this
Article shall be executed as follows:

a. The General Meeting of Shareholders adopts a Resolution or Decision for the
Company's Dissolution. In cases of Dissolution due to revocation of the Enterprise
Registration Certificate or by court order, within 10 days of receiving the decision of this
revacation or court order effective, the Company must convene a GMS to pass a Resolution
deciding on the Dissolution,

b. The Resolution or Decision on Company Dissolution must include the following
Key elements:

= Name and address of the Company’s headquarters;
= Reasons for Dissolution;

~ Timeframe and procedures for contract Liquidation and settlement of Company
debis;

— Plan for addressing obligations arising from labor contracts;
— Full name and signature of the Chairman of the Board of Directors.
¢. The Board of Directors establishes the Company's Asset Liguidation Committee,

d. Within 07 working days of adoption, the Resolution, the Dissolution Decision, and
the minutes of the meeting must be submitted to the Business Registration Authority, the
Tax Authority, and the Company's employees. The Resolution and Dissolution Decision
must be published on the National Business Registration Portal and publicly posted at the
Company’s headquarters, branches, and representative offices.

[f the Company has outstanding financial obligations, a debt resolution plan must be
submitted along with the Resolution and Dissolution Decision to creditors and those with
associated rights, obligations, and interests. The debt resolution plan must include the
creditor’s name and address; the debt amount, due date, payment location and method: and
the procedure and timeframe for creditor complaints.

e. The Company's Legal Representative submits the Dissolution documents to the
Business Registration Authority within 05 working days of the complete settlement of all
Company debts,

Article 36. Liguidation

L. Following the decision to dissolve the Company, the Board of Directors must
establish a Liquidation Commiltee composed of 03 members: 02 designated by the General
Meeting of Shareholders and 01 from an independent audit firm appointed by the Board of
Directors, The Liquidation Committee prepares its operational repulations. Committes
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membets may be chosen from Company personnel or independent experts. All Ligquidation-
related expenses arc prioritized for payment before other Company debis,

2. The Liguidation Committee is responsible for reporting to the business registration
authority the establishment date and commencement date of operations. From that point
forward, the Liquidation Committee represents the Company in all matters pertaining to the
Company’s liquidation before the Court and administrative agencies.

3. Proceeds from the liguidation shall be disbursed in the following order:

a. Liquidation expenses;

b. Salaries, severance allowances, social insurance, and other employee benefits as
stipulated in the collective labor agreement and signed labor contracts;

¢. Tax debts;

d. Other debts of the Company;

¢, The remainder, after seitling all debts from points (a) to (d) above, shall be
distributed to Shareholders. Preferred shares (if any) shall be paid preferentially.,

CHAPTER XIX: INTERNAL DISPUTE RESOLUTION
Article 57, Internal Dispute Resolution

1. In the event of any dispule or complaint arising in connection with the Company’s
operations, or the rights and obligations of Shareholders as prescribed by the Enterprise
Law, other legal regulations, the Company Charter, or the regulations between:

a, Sharcholders and the Company;

b, Shareholders and the Board of Directors, the Board of Supervisors, the General
Director, or other executive officers.

The parties involved shall endeavor 1o resolve such disputes through negotiation and
mediation. Except in cases of disputes involving the Board of Directors or the Chairman of
the Board of Directors, the Chairman of the Board of Directors shall preside over the
Dispute Resolution and request each party to present the factual elements related to the
dispute within 15 working days from the date the dispute arises. In cases of disputes
involving the Board of Directors or the Chairman of the Board of Directors, any party may
request the Head of the Board of Supervisors to appoint an independent expert to act as an
arbitrator for the Dispute Resolution process.

2. If no mediation settlement is reached within 06 weeks from the start of the
mediation process, or if the mediator's decision is not accepted by the parties, any parly may
bring the dispute before a court of competent jurisdiction.
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3. The partics shall bear their own costs related to negotiation and mediation
proceedings, Payment of court costs shall be executed in secordance with the Court's
Judgment/Decision.

CHAPTER XX: CHARTER SUPPLEMENT AND AMENDMENT
Article 538. Charter Supplement and Amendment

1. Any supplement or amendment to this Charter must be considered and decided by the
General Meeting of Shareholders.

2. In cases where legal regulations related to the Company's operations are not
addressed in this Charter, or in cases where new legal regulations differ from the content of
this Charter, those regulations shall apply to govem the Company's operations.

CHAPTER XXI: EFFECTIVENESS
Article 59, Effectiveness

I. This Charter, comprising 21 chapters and 59 articles, was unanimously approved by
the General Meeting of Shareholders of Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding Company on
April 11, 2025 at the office of Sonadezi Chau Due Shareholding Company, Hoi Bai — Chau
Pha — Da Bae Road, Huu Phuoe Hamlet, Suci Nghe Commune, Chau Duc District, Ba Ria -
Vung Tau Province, and concurrently approved the full effectiveness of this Charter,
superseding the 14th amended and supplemented Company Charter dated April 15, 2024,

2. The Charter is made in 5 copies, having equal legal validity, and shall be kept at
the Company's headquarters.

3. This Charter is the sole and official Charter of the Company.

4. Copies or extracts of the Company's Charter must bear the signature of the
Chairman of the Board of Directors or at least 1/2 of the total number of members of the
Board of Directors,

Cha Duc, April 11, 2025
LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE
GENERAL DIRECTOR

Nguyen Van Tuan
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amended and supplemented for the 15™ time on April 11, 2025

Attached to the Charter of Senadezi Chau Due Shareholding Company

- Exclusion: Diirect garbage collection from households

: Industry
No. Industry Name Code
1 Manufacture of building materials from clay 2393
(not operating at the headquarters)
5 Mining of stone, sand, gravel, and clay —
{sand mining operations outside the province)
3 | Warehousing and storage of goods 5210
Short-term accommodation services
4 | Details: Hotel business (not operating at the headguarters). 5510
- Exclusion: Travel agency Services
Restaurants and mobile food services
(excluding bars, nightclubs, karacke rooms, and ACCOmpanying
services) (only operating with competent authority approval for the
5 | location and fulfillment of business conditions as prescribed by law) 5610
(specifically for aleohol and tobaceo businesses, Operations are only
permitted when meeting legal business requirements and conforming
to planming regulations)
Other food services
6 | (only operating with fulfillment of business conditions as prescribed 5629
by law)
Beverage Services
(excluding bars, nightclubs, keracke rooms, and accompanying
services) (only operating with competent authority approval for the
7 | location and fulfillment of business conditions as prescribed by law) 5630
{specifically for alcohol and tobacco businesses, Operations are only
permitted when meeting legal business requirements and conforming
to planning regulations)
" Water exploitation, treatment, and supply i
(omly operating when meeting conditions as prescribed by law)
Drainage and wastewaler treatment
% | (only operating when meeting conditions as prescribed by law, not 3700
aperating at the headquarters)
Collection of non-hazardous waste (only operating when meeting
10 | conditions as prescribed by law, not operating at the headquarters) 3811
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Industry
No. Industry Name Code
Hazardous waste collection
1 {only operating when meeting conditions as prescribed by law, not 2g1y
operating at the headquarters)
- Exclusion: Direct parbage collection from households
Treatment and disposal of non-hazardous waste
12 | (only operating when meeting conditions as prescribed by law, not 3821
operating at the headquarters)
Treatment and disposal of hazardous waste
[3 | (only operating when meeting conditions as prescribed by law, not 3822
operating at the headquarters)
14 | Pollution tregtment and ather waste management operalions 3900
Sit tion
g [T rrpemaRR | 4312
- Exclusion: Blasting Services
s Electrical system installation 4321
(excluding electroplating; mechanical processing)
i Other building system installation 4329
(excluding electroplating; mechanical processing)
18 | Construction finishing 4330
19| Other specialized construction Operations 439
Trade introduction and promotion crganization
20| (only operating with fulfillment of business conditions as prescribed 8230
by law)
Other unclassified business support services
Detzils: Other unclassified business support operations  (only
51 | Dperating with fulfillment of business conditions as prescribed by law)
- Exclusions: Export rights, import rights, distribution rights: Tobacco B259
and cigars, books, newspapers and magazines, recorded items,
precious metals and gemstones, pharmaceuticals, explosives, crude o1l
and refined oil, rice, cane sugar and beet gugar
22 | Sports Education and Recreation 8551
Operati T sports facilities
23 pe unsru [ . 9311
(not operating at the registered office)
24 | Operations of sports clubs 9312
25 | Other sports operations 9319

T P ——— R




MNo.

Industry Name

Industry
Code

26

Real estate business, land use rights of the owner, user or lesses
Details: Real estate business.

{operates only when fully qualified to conduct business as prescribed
by law and in accordance with Article 10 of the Real Estate Business
Law No. 29/2023/QH15 dated Movember 28, 2023).

- Exclusion: Investment in the construction of cemetery infrastructure
for the transfer of land use rights associated with the infrastructure,

6810 (Main)

27

Real estate consulting, brokerage, auction, land use rights suction
Details: Real cstate brokerage, real estate consulting, real estate
advertising, real estate management, real estate trading floors (only
operates when fully satisfying business conditions as prescribed by
law)

- Fxelusions: Asset suciion services.

HE20

28

Architectural activities and related technical consultancy.

Details:

- Surveying, topographic mapping, and geological drilling.

- Consulting on design, planning, and investment project formulation.
- Consulting on project management, supervision, appraisal, and
inspection of civil, industrial, transportation, and technical
infrastructure construction works.

(operates only when fully qualified to conduct business a3 prescribed
by law).

7110

29

Technical testing and analysis

- Exclusions: Inspection (testing) services and certification issuance
for means of transpart (inchading the overall system, equipment, and
components of the vehicle); inspection and certification services for
technical safety and environmental protection for specialized vehicles,
equipment, containers, and dangerous goods packaging equipment
used in transportation; inspection and certification services for
technical safety and environmental protection for exploration,
exploitation, and transportation vehicles and equipment for oil and gas
at sea; ocoupational safety technical inspection services for machinery
and equipment with strict gafety requirements installed on means of
transport and exploration, exploitation, and transportation vehicles and
equipment for oil and gas at sea; fishing vessel registration services

7120




Industry

Hydropower and Nuclear Power Plants of significant socio-economie
tmportance

No. Industry Name G
Advertising (only operates when fully satisfying business conditions

30 | as prescribed by law) 7310
- Exclusions: Tobacco advertising

" Other professional, scientific and technological activities nat classified i
Details: Environmental consulting services,

32 | Rental of sports and entertainment equipment 7721
FIustEI]aT.iﬂn of water supply and drainage systems, heating and air

23 | conditioning  systems  (excluding electroplating;  mechanical 4322
processing)

14 Production of concrete and concrete products, cement and gypsum 2395
(not operating at the registered office)

35 | Services awxiliary to rail transport 5221
Services auxiliary to road transport

36 | Details: Services auxiliary to road transport (only operates when fully 5225
satisfying business conditions as prescribed by law)
Providing non-regular contractual food services to customers

37 | (operates only when fully compliant with business repulations 5621
stipulated by law)
Leasing machinery, equipment, and other tangible assets without

18 | operators T30
Details: Leasing construction machinery and equipment.

39 | Construction of residential buildings 4101

40 | Construction of non-residential buildings 4102
41 | Construction of railway works 4211
—42 Construction of roadway warks 4212

Construction of electrical works
- Exclusion: Construction and operation of Mult-purpase

43 | Hydropower Plants and Nuclear Power Plants of sipnificant socio- 4221
economic importance, which are state-monopolized commercial
activitics

44 | Construction of water supply and drainage works 4222

45 Construction of telecommunications and information technology 4223
works
Construction of other public utility works

46 |- Exclusion; Constraction and operation of Multi-purpose 4279




Industry
No. Industry Name Code
Constroction of hydraulic works
- Exclusion: Construction and operation of Multi-purpose
47 | Hydropower Plants and Nuclear Power Plants of significant socio- 4191
economic importance, which are state-monopolized commercial
activities
48 | Construction of mining works 4252
49 | Construction of processing and manufacturing works 4293
Construction of other civil engineering works
5p |- Execlusion: Construction and pperation of Multi-purpose 4259

Hydropower and Nuclear Power Plants of significant socio-economic
nmportance

LEGAL REFRESENTATIVE

GENERAL DIRECTOR

Npuyen Yan Tuan
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SOMADEZL CORPORATION THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
SONADEZI CHAU DUC Independence - Freedom — Happiness
SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

Bien Hoa, ... 2023
Draft

INTERNAL REGULATIONS ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
(Issued pursuant to Decision No. .......2025/QD-SZC-HDOT dated ..., 2025 af
the Board of Directors of Sonadezi Chau Due Shareholding Company)

Pursuant to Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November 26, 2019,
amended by Law No. 56/2024/QH15 dated November 29, 2024;

Pursuant to Law on Enterprise No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020, amended
by Law No. 03/2022/QH135 dated January 11, 2022;

Purspant to Decree Mo, 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020 of the
Government detailing the implementation of certain articles of the Law on Securitics;

Pursuant to Circular No. 116/2020/TT-BTC dated December 31, 2020 of the
Minister of Finance guiding several articles on corporate governance applicd to public
companies at Decree No. 1552020MND-CP dated December 31, 2020 of the
Government detailing the implementation of certain articles of the Law on Securities;

Pursuant to the Charter of Sonadezi Chan Duc Sharcholding Company;

Pursuant to Resolution No........ 2025/NQ-SZC-DHDCD dated April 11, 2025 of
the General Mecting of Shareholders.

The Board of Directors promulgates the Imternal Regulations on Corporate
Governance - Sonaderi Chanw Duc  Sharcholding Company (amended and
supplemented for the 15t time) including the following contents:

Article 1. Governing scope and applicable entities

1, Governing Scope: This Charter on Corporate Govemance stipulates the roles,
rights, and obligations of the General Meeting of Shareholders (GMS), the Board of
Directors, and the General Director; the procedures for GMS meetings; the
nomination, candidaey, election, dismissal, and removal of members of the Board of
Directors, the Board of Supervisors, the General Director, and other activities as
prescribed in the company’s Charter and other applicable regulations of law.

2. Applicable Entities: This Charter applies to members of the Board of
Dircctors, the Board of Supervisors, the General Director, and related parties.

Article 2. General Meeting of Shareholders
1. Roles, rights and obligations of the GMS:

— Role: The General Meeting of Shareholders, comprising all shareholders with
voting rights, is the highest decision-making body of the Company.
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= Rights and obligations of the General Meeting of Sharcholders: As prescribed
in Clause 1, Article 14 of the Campany's Charter.

2. The procedures for the General Meeting of Sharcholders to pass resolutions
through voting at the GMS meeting include the following main contents:

a) Authority to convene the GMS:

The General Meeting of Shareholders shall be convened as prescribed in Clause
1, Adticle 16 of the Company's Charter.

b} Compiling the Sharcholder list:

— The Shareholder list entitled to sttend the General Meeting of Sharcholders is
compiled based on the company's sharcholder register. The Sharcholder list is
compiled no later than 10 days before the date of sending the invitation to the GMS
meeting.

— Lhe Shareholder list of Shareholders eligible to attend the General Meeting of
Shareholders must include full name, contact address, nationality, personal legal
document number for individual Sharcholders; name, enterprise code, or legal
document number, head office address for institutional Sharcholders: the number of
shares of each type, the sharcholder registration number and date for each
Sharcholder,

— Shareholders have the right to inspect, search, extract, and copy the names
and contact addresses of Shareholders on the Shareholder list ¢ligible to attend the
General Meeting of Shareholders; request corrections to inaccurate information or
additions of necessary information about themselves on the Shareholder list eligible to
attend the General Mecting of Sharcholders, The company administrator must
promptly provide information from the shareholder register, amend, and supplement
inaccurate information as requested by Shareholders,

¢} Notification of the last registration date to exercise the right to attend the
(reneral Meeting of Shareholders:

~ The Board of Directors shall issue a Resolution on the last registration date
for compiling the list of sharcholders entitled to attend the General Meeting of
Shareholders and must publish the information at least 20 days before the expected
last registration date.

— Procedures for compiling the list of shareholders of Viet Nam securities
depository and clearing corprovation (VSDC):

+ No later than 08 working days prior to the last registration date (excepl in
the case of exercising the right to atiend an extraordinary General Meeting of
Shareholders convened by a sharcholder or a group of shareholders entitled to
tepresent the company as prescribed by the Law on Enterprise, the complete and valid
dossier for netification of exercise of rights must be sent to VSDC no later than 10
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working days prior to the last registration date), the Company must send to VSDC a
Matification of the last registration date according to Form 07/THQ - Regulation on
the Fxercise of Rights for Securities Holders (Jssued together with Decision No.
09/0D-HDTV dated August 10, 2023 of the Members' Council of Viet Nam securities
depogitory and clearing corproration) and accompanying documents as prescribed in
Clause 2, Article 9 of the Regulation on the Exercise of Rights for Securities Holders.

+ VSDC sends the Company the list of shareholders according to the
Regulation on the Exercise of Rights for Securitics Holders (Tssued together with
Decizion No. 09/0D-HDTV dated August 10}, 2023 of the Members' Council of Viet
Nem gecurities depository and clearing corproration).

d) Notice of convening the General Mecting of Shareholders :

Motice of convening the General Meeting of Shareholders as prescribed in
Clause 3, Article 16 of the Company's Charter.

¢} Agenda and Contents of the General Meeting of Shareholders
— Person responsible for preparing the agenda:

The person convening the General Meeting of Shareholders is responsible for
preparing the agenda and must perform the following tasks:

+ Compiling the list of Shareholders cligible to attend the meeting;

+ Providing information and resolving complaints related to the Sharcholder
list;

+ Establishing the agenda and Content of the mecting;

+ Preparing documents for the meeting;

+ Drafting resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders according to the
intended Content of the meeting; list and details of candidates in case of electing
members of the Board of Directors, members of the Board of Supervisors;

+ Determining the time and venue of the meeting;

4+ Sending meeting invitations to each Shareholder eligible to attend the
meeting as prescribed by the Law on Enterprises;

+ Other tasks serving the meeting.

— Content of the General Meeting of Shareholders; The annual General
Shareholders’ Meeting discusses and approves matters as prescribed in Clause 2,
Article 14 of the Company's Charter.

— Regulations coneerning shareholder propesals for inclusion in the meeting
agenda: Govemned by Clauses 4, 5, and 6 of Article 16 of the Company Charter.
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f) Authorization for proxy atlendance at the General Meeting of Sharcholders: as
prescribed in the provisions of Clause 2, Article 15 of the Company Charter.

g) Registration procedures for attending the General Meeting of Sharcholders -

— The registration procedures for the GMS are detailed in the Notice of the
GMS, including direct contact or submission of the Registration/Proxy Form (as
attached to the Notice of the GMS or through a written proxy authorization preparad
as prescribed in civil law regulations) to the Company.

— Shareholders register their intended mode of participation in the GMS as
indicated in the notice, including:

+ Attending and voting/electing in person at the meeting.

+ Authorizing another representative to attend and vote/elect at the meeting,
Authorization is conducted as outlined in point e of this Article,

+ Submiiting voting/election ballots to the meeting via mail, fax, or email,
h) Conditions for convening; Stipulated in Article 17 of the Company Charter,
1} Methods for ratifying resolutions of the GMS:

= The GMS ratifies resolutions within its purview by voting at the mecting,

— Resolutions of the GMS on matters stipulated in Clause 2, Article 19 of the
Company Charter must be ratified through voting at the GMS.

K} Voting procedures:

= The GMS deliberates and voles on each item on the agenda. Voting is
conducted by raising cards or direct balloting,

~ Sharcholders or their authorized representatives cast their votes to Approve,
Disapprove, or Abstain on a matter put to a vote at the GMS by raising their voting
cards or filling in the options on the ballot,

— For the election of members of the Board of Directors and the Board of
Supervisors: Bach sharcholder or authorized representative shall have a total number
ol voles equal to the total number of shares owned or represented multiplied by the
number of membets to be elected, Sharcholders or authorized representatives may cast
all their votes for one or several candidates. In case of erroneous selection,
shareholders or authorized representatives should contact the Vote Counting
Committee 10 be issued a new ballot and must submit the old ballot to the Organizing
Committee,

— Method of marking ballots; Each shareholder or authorized representative
shall be issued ballots. Instructions for marking ballots are detailed as follows:

+ Delegates elect a maximum number of candidates equal to the number of
elected candidates;
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+ 1f the number of votes cast is not equal for several candidates, the delegate
shall clearly indicate the number of votes in the "Number of Votes" box
corresponding to each candidate.

1) Wote counting procedures:

~ Vote counting is carried out by collecting the ballots/cards/voting ships n
favor of the resolution, then collecting the cards/voting slips against, and finally
tallying the votes in favor, against, and abstentions.

— Principles for election of members of the Board of Directors and Board of
Supervisors:

+ The elected persons are determined by the number of votes received, ranked
from highest to lowest, commencing with the candidate possessing the most votes and
continuing until the requisite number of members is attained.

+ In instances where two or more candidates achieve an equal number of votes
for the final position, a subsequent election shall be conducted among the candidates
with identical vote counts.

m) Conditions for Resolution Approval: As stipulated in Article 20 of the
Company Charter.

n) Announcement of Ballot Counting Resulis:

The Ballot Counting Committee shall examine, synthesize, and report the results
of the count for each matter o the Chairperson, The Chairperson shall announce the
ballot counting results immediately prior to the meeting's adjournment.

o) Method for Objecting to Resolutions of the General Mecting of Shareholders
(as stipulated in Article 132 of the Law on Enterprises),

— Shareholders who voted against the resolution regarding the company's
recrganization or modifications to shareholder rights and obligations as outlined in the
Company Chatter possess the right to request the company to repurchase their shares.
This request must be submitted in writing, clearly stating the shareholder's name,
address, the quantity of each share type, the intended selling price, and the rationale
for the repurchase request. This request must be submitted to the company within 10
days of the GMS's approval of the resolutions pertaining to the matters specified n
this clause.

~ The company is obligated to repurchase shares upon the sharcholder's request,
as stipulated in the above section, at market value or 2 value calculated as prescribed
in the principles outlined in the Company Charter, within 90 days of receiving the
request, In cases where an agreement on price cannot be reached, the invelved parties
may request a valuation from a valualion organization. The company shall propose a
minimum of three valuation organizations for the shareholder's selection, and this
selection shall be considered final.
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p) Preparation of the GMS Minutes: As stipulated in Clauses 1, 2, and 3 of
Article 22 of the Company Charter.

q) Announcement of GMS Resolutions:

The GMS Resolutions shall be Announced on the Company's website and
reported to the disclosure websites of the State Securities Commission and the Ho Chi
Minh City Stock Exchange within 24 hours of the meeting's conclusion,

3. The sequence and procedures for the GMS to pass resolutions through written
opinion include the following key contents:

a) Cases where written opinions are and are not permitted:
As stipulated in Clause 1, Article 21 of the Com pany Charter,

b} Sequence and procedures for the GMS to adopt Resolutions through written
opinions:

~ The finalization of the list of Shareholders eligible to vote shall be conducted
according to Clause 1, Article 3 of these Regulations,

— The Board of Directors shall prepare the ballot papers, the draft GMS
Resolutions, explanatory documents for the draft Resolutions, and forward them to all
Shareholders with voting rights no later than 10 days before the deadline for returning
the completed ballots.

— Ballot papers must contain the information stipulated in Clause 3, Article 21
of the Company Charter,

— Shareholders may submit their completed ballot papers to the Company as
stipulated in Clause 4, Article 21 of the Company Charter,

— The Board of Directors shall count the ballots and prepare the ballot counting
minutes as stipulated in Clause 5, Article 21 of the Company Charier.

— Subsequent matters shall be executed according to the provisions of Clauses
6,7, 8,9, and 10 of Article 21 of the Company Charter,

4. The procedures for the General Meeting of Shareholders to adopt resolutions
via online conference (when the Company possesses adequate infrastructure and if it's
assessed that conducting an in-person GMS meeting might be infeasible due to the
cpidemic situation, a decision by a competent state regulatory body, or other force
majeurs events) are as follows:

a) Notice of the online GMS meeting:

-~ The notice convening the online GMS meeting is disseminated to all
Shareholders, as per the final shareholder list provided by the Vietnam Securitics
Depository (VSD), following the same delivery method and timeframe as for in-
person GMS meetings. The notice shall specify the access link for the online GMS
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meeting system (provided by the service provider with which the Company has
contracted to furnish the online GMS meeting software).

— The notice convening the online GMS mecting shall also be published on the
Company's wehsite and on the online GMS meeting software system.

b) Registration procedures for participating in the online GMS meeting:

— lpon receiving the meeting invitation, each Shareholder shall be furnished
with an account, comprising a username and password for accessing the online GMS
meeting system, with the exception of institutional Shareholders holding 10% or more
of the total shares, who may appoint more than one representative and shall receive a
corresponding number of accounts.

— Shareholders are responsible for safeguarding the username and password
provided by the Company, ensuring that only the Sharcholder may register for
attendance, participate in voting, and elections within the Company's online GMS
meeling systein.

— Shareholders shall utilize the provided userame and password to access the
online GMS meeting system within the designated timeframe stipulated in the meeting
invitation and register for participation or delegate another individual (which could be
the Chairman of the Board of Directors or the Company's General Director or another
individual appointed by the Shareholder) to participate in the online GMS meeting.

¢) Proxy authorization for attending the online GMS mecting:

~ (Granting proxy authorization for attendance at the online GMS meeling
adheres to the provisions outlined in Article 15 of the Company's Charter.

— Based upon the Shareholders' proxy authorization documents, the Company
shall allocate a commensurate quantity of accounts. Proxy attendees at the online
GMS meeting will employ the allocated accounts to access the system, engage in
voling, participate in discussions, and offer input online.

d) Conditions for conducting the meeting:

The online meeting may proceed if Sharcholders representing over 30% of the
total voting shares, as determined by the shareholder list compiled at the time of the
GMS meeting convocation and supplied by the Vietnam Securities Depository (VSD),
have registered for participation,

¢) Methods for ratifying resolutions of the online GMS:
— Resolutions of the online GMS shall be ratified through electronic voting with
options 1o vote in favor, against, or abstain.

— Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders will be passed when
approved by Shareholders possessing more than 50% of the total voting shares of all
Sharcholders or Sharcholder representatives, except for cases specified in Clause 1,
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Article 20 of the Company's Charter, which are passed if approved by Shareholders
representing 63% or more of the total voting shares of all Shareholders.

f} Online voting method:

— For each matter submitted for voting, Shareholders or their authorized
representatives vote by selecting one of the following options: Agree, Disagree, ar
Abstain, displayed on the online GMS system interface.

- For elections, Sharcholders choose the cumulative wvoting method or
numbered voling method for candidates as instructed on the online GMS sysiem
interface.

= In case of matters arising outside the meeting agenda sent to Shareholders:
Shareholders may vote or hold additional elections. If Shareholders do not vote or

hold elections on arising matters, their votes shall be considered abstentions for these
matters,

~ Shareholders can change their voting and clection choices during the online
GMS, the online system will record the final voting and election results at the time the
Chairman announces the end of the voting period to proceed with vote counting,

— The online vofing and election period begins from when the Shareholder receives
aceess information until the end of the online voting and election period specified in the
online GMS system notification. After the specified time, the system will not record any
further online voting and election results from Shareholders,

£) Online vote counting method:

The online GMS system will automatically tally and summarize the wvote
counting report for the contents based on the Agree, Disagree, or Abstain choices of
participating Sharcholders in electronic voting.

h) Vote counting results announcement:

The Ballot Counting Committee exports the report and immediately announces
the vote counting results on the online GMS system software so that Shareholders can
monitor and update the results immediately.

i) Preparing Minutes of the GMS:

— The Minutes of the online GMS are prepared by the Meeting Secretariat,
recording the online meeting process including matters discussed by Sharcholders,
comments made through the onling broadcasting system, matters approved at the
meeting, vote counting resulls, and election results.,

~ The Minutes must be completed before the end of the online GMS and sent in
full to all Sharcholders through the online GMS system. They are also posted on the
Company's website, the information disclosure websites of the State Securities
Commission, and HOSE within 24 hours of the end of the online meeting,

k) Announcement of GMS Resolutions:
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— The online GMS Resolution must be completed before the end of the meeting
and must be approved by electronic voting of the Sharcholders attending the online
VS,

— The announcement of online GMS Resolutions is carried out similarly to that
of in-person GMS meetings.

5. The procedures for the General Meeting of Shareholders to adopt resolutions
through a combination of in-person and online meetings (onfy when the Company
deems it necessary to combing the two methods to ensure the participation rate in
voling) are as follows:

a) Notice of convening the GMS:

The notice convening the GMS shall be carried out in combination with point d,
Clause 2 and point a, Clause 4 of this Article.

b) Methods for registering to attend the GMS:

The methods for registering to atlend the GMS are applied according to the
provisions of point g, Clause 2 and point b, Clause 4 of this Article.

¢) Authorizing a representative to attend the GMS:

Authorizing a representative to attend the GMS shall be carried out according Lo
the provisions of point e, Clause 2 and point ¢, Clause 4 of this Article,

d) Conditions for conducting:

The meeting shall be conducted through the online GMS system and at the
meeting venue that has been notified to all shareholders. The GMS shall be held when

attended by sharcholders representing more than 50% of the total voting shares m both
online and in-person formats.

e} Methods for ratifying resolutions of the GMS:

Resolutions of the GMS shall be adopted by raising voting cards, filling in
selections on ballot papers, filling in the number of vofes for candidates (for
shareholders participating directly at the meeting venue), and electronic voting with
options to approve, disapprove, or abstain.

i) Voting methods:

The voting methods are as prescribed in point k, Clavse 2 and point ¢, Clause 4 of this
Article.

) Ballot counting methods:

Ballot counting methods shall be carried cut according to the provisions of point
1, Clause 2 and point g, Clause 4 of this Article.

h) Announcing ballot counting results:
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= The Ballot Counting Committee will check the number of votes in favor,
against, and abstentions for each item by consolidating the ballot counting results
from both the in-person and onling formats,

— A representative of the Ballot Counting Committee will present a
consolidated report on the voting results at the in-person GMS. For the online GMS,
the consolidated hallot counting resulis report will be posted on the system, and online
shareholders can view it on the system interface.

i} Preparing the minutes of the GMS;

The minutes of the GMS shall be prepared as prescribed in the provisions of
point p, Clause 2 and point i, Clause 4 of this Article,

k) Announced Resolution of the GMS:

The Resolution of the GMS shall be announced pursuant to point g, Clause 2 and
point k, Clause 4 of this Article.

Article 3. Board of Directors

1. Role, Rights and obligations of the Board of Directors, responsibilities of
Board members:

— Role of the Board of Directors: The Board of Directors is the company's
management body, having full authority on behalf of the company to decide and
exercise the company's rights and obligations, except for the rights and obligations
under the authority of the GMS.

— Rights and obligations of the Board of Directors, responsibilities of Board
members: As stipulated in Clause 2, 3, Article 26 of the Company's Charter,

2. Nomination, candidacy, election, relieving from duty, and removal of
members of the Board of Directors:

a) Term and number of members of the Board of Directors: As prescribed in
Clauses 1 and 2, Article 25 of the Company Charter,

b) Structure, standards, and conditions of members of the Board of Directors:

= The structure of the Board of Directors is as stipulated in Clanse 3, Article 25
of the Company Charter.

- Standards and conditions for members of the Board of Directors: As
prescribed in Clause 4, Article 24 of the Company Charter.

— Standards and conditions for independent members of the Board of Dircctors:
As preseribed in Clause d, Article 25 of the Company Charter.

¢) Nomination and candidacy for the Board of Directors: Pursuant to Clauses 1,
2, and 3, Article 24 of the Company Charter.

d) Method of electing members of the Board of Directors:
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_ Before the clection, each shareholder or shareholder representative shall be
given a ballot paper stating the shareholder code, full name of the shareholder / full
name of the authorized representative and the number of voting shares and the list of
candidates.

— The election of members of the Board of Directors must be conducted by
cumulative voting, whereby each shareholder has a total number of votes
corresponding to the total number of shares held multiplied by the number of
members 1o be elected to the Board of Directors, Shareholders have the right o cast
all or part of their total votes for one or several candidates, The elected members of
the Board of Directors are determined based on the number of votes from highest to
lowesl, starting from the candidate with the highest number of votes until the number
of members prescribed in the Company's Charter is reached. In the event that two or
more candidates receive the same number of votes for the last member of the Board of
Directors, a re-election will be held among the candidates with the same number of
voles,

¢) Cases of relieving from duty, remeval, and supplementation ol members of
the Board of Directors: Pursuant to Clause 5, Article 25 of the Company Charter.

fy Notification of the election, relieving from duty, and removal of Board
members:

After a decision is made to elect, relieve from duty, or remove a member of the
Board of Directors, the Company is responsible for diselosing information internally,
16 relevant authorities, through mass media, and on the company’s website according
lo prescribed procedures and current law,

¢) Procedures for nominating Board candidates:

_ Shareholders or shareholder groups as specified in Clause 2, Article 24 of the
Company Charter have the right to nominate and introduce candidates for the Board
of Direciors by sending a written introduction of the candidate to the company's
headguarters address.

_ The candidate introduction document can follow the template issued by the
Company, or it can be drafted by the Shareholder or sharcholder group as stipulated in
Clause 2. Article 24 of the Company Charter, provided it ensures full candidate
information as prescribed in Clause 1, Article 24 of the Company Charter.

hj Electing, relieving from duty, and removing the Chairman of the Board of
Directors:

_ The Chairman of the Board of Directors is elected, relieved from duty, and
remaoved by the Board of Directors from among its members,

— The Chairman of the Board of Directors shall be relieved from duty or
removed in the cases specified in Point ¢, Clause 2 of this Adticle.
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— In the event the Chainnan of the Board of Directors submits a resignation
letter or is relieved from duty or removed, the Board of Directors must elect a
replacement within 10 days from the date of receiving the resignation letter or the
decision to relieve or remove,

3. Remuneration and other benefits for Members of the Board of Directors: As
stipulated in Article 27 of the Company Charter.

4. Procedures for organizing RBoard of Directors meetings:

a) Number of Board of Directors meetings as preseribed in Clauses 1 and 2,
Article 29 of the Company Charter.

b) Circumstances requiring the convening of extraordinary Board of Directors
meetings: Implemented according to the provisions of Clauses 3, 4, and 5, Article 29
of the Company Charter.

c) Notice of Board of Directors meetings: As stipulated in Clauses 6 and 7
Article 29 of the Company Charter,

d) Right of the members of the Board of Supervisors to attend Board of
[hrectors meetings:

The members of the Board of Supervisors have the right to attend Board of
Directors meetings; they have the right to discuss but not to vote,

e} Conditions for holding Board of Directors meetings: As stipulated in Clause
B, Article 29 of the Company Charter,

f) Voting methods: As stipulated in Clauses 9 and 10, Article 29 of the Company
Charter.

£) Method of passing resolutions of the Board of Directors: As stipulated in
Clause 12, Article 29 of the Company Charter. Resolutions in the form of written
opinions are passed based on the approval of the majority of the Board of Directors
members with voting rights and have the same effect and value as resolutions passed
al meetings.

h) Authorization for another person to attend the meeting on behalf of a Member
of the Board of Directors:

A Member of the Board of Directors may authorize another person to attend the
meeting and vote if approved by the majority of the Board of Directors.

i) Preparation of minutes of Board of Directors meetings:

— All Board of Directors meetings must be recorded in minutes, and may be
audio-recorded, video-recorded, or stored in other electronic forms, Minutes must be
prepared in Vietnamese and may also be prepared in a foreign language (if the
Company deems it necessary), including the following main contents:
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+ Mame, address of the head office, and the enterprise code;
+ Time and venue of the meeting;
+ Purpose, agenda, and content of the meeting;

+ Full name of each attendee or authorized representative and method of
attendance; full name of absent members and reasons for absence;

+ Matters discussed and voted on at the meeting;

+ Summarizing the opinions of each member present at the meeting according
to the chronological order of the meeting;

+ Voting results, clearly stating the members who agreed, disagreed, and
abstained,;

¢ Matters approved and corresponding approval rates;

+ Full name and signature of the chairperson and the minute-taker, unless the
chairperson or the minute-taker refuses to sign the minutes,

— The chairperson, the minute-taker, and the signatories of the minutes are
responsible for the truthfulness and accuracy of the content of the minutes of the Board of
Directors meeting.

— Minutes of Board of Directors meetings and documents used in the meetings
must be kept at the company's headquarters.

— Minutes prepared in Vielnamese and in a foreign language have equal legal
validity, In case of discrepancies between the Vietnamese and foreign language
versions, the content of the Vietnamese version shall prevail.

k) In case the chairman and/or the minute-taker refuses to sign the Minutes of
the Board of Directors Meeting:

In cases where the chairperson or minute-taker refuses to sign the minutes, but
all other members of the Board of Directors present at the meeting sign and agree on
the minutes with full content as prescribed above, the minutes are valid, The minutes
clearly state the refusal of the chairman and/or minute-taker to sign. The signatory is
jointly responsible for the accuracy and truthfulness of the minutes. The chairman and
minute-taker are personally liable for any damages to the company due to their refusal
to sign, as stipulated in the Law on Enterprise, the Company Charter, and relevant
laws,

[} Notification of Resolutions/Decisions of the Board of Directors:

The Company is responsible for publicizing information regarding the
Resolutions/Decisions of the Board of Directors on mass media, the Company's
website, and the information disclosure platforms of the State Securities Commission
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and the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange, following the procedures and regulations
of the law on information disclosure.

3. Selection, Appeintment, and Dismissal of the Corporate Governance Officer:

a) Standards for the Corporate Governance Officer:

— The Corporate Governance Officer must not concurrently work for an approved
auditing organization that is auditing the Company’s financial statements;

- Not subject to the provisions of Clause 2, Article 17 of the Law on
Enterprises;

— Other standards as prescribed by law, the Company's Charter, and decisions
of the Board of Directors,

b} Appointment of the Corporate Governance Officer: As stipulated in Clause 1,
Article 30 of the Company's Charter.

¢} Cases of Dismissal of the Corporate Govemnance Officer:

— The Corporate Governance Officer submits a resignation letter and it is
approved by the Board of Dircctors;

~ No longer meets the conditions as preseribed in Point a, Clause 5 of this
Article;

— The Board of Directors may dismiss the Corporate Governance officer when
necessary, but not in violation of current Labor Code.

d) Notification of Appointment and Dismissal of the Corporate Governance
Ofticer:

The Company must announce the appointment and dismissal of the Corporate
Governance Officer and disclose information as prescribed by securitics laws, other
legal regulations, and the Company’'s Charter.

) Rights and Obligations of the Corporate Governance Officer: As stipulated in
Clause 3, Article 30 of the Company's Charter.

Article 4. Board of Supervisors

1. Roles, Rights, and Obligations of the Board of Supervisors, Responsibilities
of members of the Board of Supervizors:

- Role of the Board of Supervisors: The Board of Supervisors plays a role in
mspecting and supervising the activities of both the Board of Directors and the
General Meeting of Shareholders to ensure the Company's operations are transparent
for the benefit of shareholders and the Company.

~ Rights and Obligations of the Board of Supervisors, Responsibilitics of
members of the Board of Supervisors: As stipulated in Article 37 of the Company's
Charter.
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2. Term, Number, Composition, and Structure of members of the Board of
SUPErvisors:

a) Term, Number, Composition, and Structure of members of the Board of
Supervisors:

~ The number and term of members of the Board of Supervisors shall be as
stipulated in Clause 1, Article 35 of the Company's Charter.

— The structure of the Board of Supervisors comprises 01 Head and 02
members.

b) Standards and Conditions for members of the Board of Supervisors: As
stipulated in Clause 4, Article 34 of the Company’s Charter.

¢) Momination and candidacy for members of the Board of Supervisors: As
prescribed in Clauses 1, 2, and 3, Article 34 of the Company's Charter,

d) Method of electing members of the Board of Supervisors:

— Before the election, each shareholder or sharcholder's representative receives
a ballot indicating the shareholder's code, the shareholder's full name/authorized
representative’s full name, the number of voting shares, and the list of candidates.

— The election of Board of Supervisors members must be conducted via
cumulative voting. Each shareholder possesses a total number of votes equal to their
total shares owned multiplied by the number of Board of Supervisors members being
elected. A sharcholder can allocate all of some of their votes to one or multiple
candidates. Successful candidates are determined based on vote count, from highest to
lowest, starting with the highest vote recipient, until the required number of members
stipulated in the Company Charter is reached. If two or more candidates receive the
same number of votes for the final position, a runoff election oceurs between these
tied candidates.

¢) Cases of relieving from duty and removing members of the Board of
Supervisors: As prescribed in Clauses 2 and 3, Article 35 of the Company’s Charter.

f) Notification of the election, relieving from duty, and removal of members of
the Board of Supervisors:

Afier the decision to elect, relieve from duty, or remove members of the Board
of Supervisors, the Company is responsible for announcing the information internally
within the Company, to relevant authorities, in the mass media, and on the Company's
website, according to the procedures and regulations of current law.

g) Salaries and other benefits of members of the Board of Supervisors: As
prescribed in Article 39 of the Company's Charter.

Article 5, General Director

1. Role, responsibilities, rights, and obligations of the General Direclor:
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= Role and responsibilities of the General Director: As prescribed in Clause 2,
Article 33 of the Comnpany's Charter,

- The General Director has the rights and obligations as prescribed in Clause 5,
Article 33 of the Company's Charter,

Z. Appointment, dismissal, contract signing, and termination of the contract with
the General Director

a) Term of office, standards, and conditions for the General Director:

— Term of office of the General Director: As prescribed in Clause 3, Article 33
of the Company's Charter.

— Standards and conditions for the General Director: As prescribed in Clause 4,
Atticle 33 of the Company's Charter.

b} Nomination, recommendation, relieving from duty, and removal of the
General Director:

— Members of the Board of Directors or other individuals who meet the
standards specified in Clause 4, Article 33 of the Company's Charter may be
nominated for the position of General Director,

~ The Board of Directors may relieve the General Director from duty when a
majority of the members of the Board of Directors present at the meeting and entitled
to vote are in agreement.

— The Board of Directors may remove the General Director when a majority of
the members of the Board of Directors present at the meeting and entitled to vote are
in agreement, and in the event that the General Director no longer meets the standards
and conditions specified in Clause 4, Article 33 of the Company's Charter,

€) Appointment and signing of a labor eontract with the General Director:

— The Board of Directors appoints a member of the Board of Directors or
another person as General Director.

— The General Dircctor is entitled to sign a labor contract and enjoy employee
benefits as prescribed in the Labor Code,

d) Dismissal, termination of the labor contract with the General Director:

= The General Director will be considered for dismissal by the Board of
Dhrectors in the following cases:

+ Mo longer meets the standards and conditiong as prescribed in Clause 4,
Article 33 of the Company's Charter;

+ Has a resignation letter;
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+ Violates the responsibilities and obligations of the executive prescribed in
the Company’s Charter;

+ Fails to complete assigned tasks;
+ According to the Decision of the Board of Directors.

— When there is a decision to dismiss the General Director, the Board of
Directors shall simultaneously issue a decision to terminate the labor contract as
prescribed in the provisions of the Labor Code.

¢) Notification of appointment, dismissal, contract signing, and contract
termination with the General Director:

The Company shall publicly disclose information regarding the appointment,
dismissal, signing of contracts, and termination of contracts with the General Director
on the Company's electronic information channels, to relevant agencies, the Securities
Commission, and the Stock Exchange as prescribed in current regulations on
information disclosure.

£) Salary and other benelits of the (General Direclor:

— The General Director receives salary and bonus. The General Director's salary
and bonus are decided by the Board of Directors.

— The General Director's salary is included in the company's business expenses
as prescribed by the law on corporate income tax, is shown as a separate item in 1he
company's annual financial statements, and must be reported to the General Meeting
of Shareholders at the annual meeting.

Article 6. Other activities

1. Coordination of activities between the Board of Directors, the Board of
Supervisors, and the General Director:

a) Procedures, sequence of convening meelings, sending meeting invitations,
recording minutes, and announcing meeting results between the Board of Directors,
the Board of Supervisors, and the General Director:

— The Board of Supervisors shall receive meeting invitations, ballots of Board
of Dircctors members, and accompanying documents at the same time and in the same
manner as members of the Board of Dhirectors.

- In case the General Director is invited to attend the Board of Directors
meeting, they will receive the notice and accompanying documents (if any},

— The minutes of the Board of Directors meeting and the Board of Directors'
Resolutions are sent to the Board of Supervisors and the General Director at the same
time and in the same manner as for members of the Board of Directors,
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b) Motification of the Board of Directors' Resolutions and Decisions to the Board
of Supervisors:

Resolutions and Decisians of the Board of Directors, after being issued, shall be
sent to the Board of Supervisors at the same time and in the same manner as to
members of the Board of Directors.

¢) Notification of the Board of Directors' Resolutions and Decisions to the
General Director:

Resolutions and Decisions of the Board of Directors, after being issued, shall be
sent to the General Director at the same time and in the same manner as to members
of the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors,

d) Cases where the General Director and the Board of Supervisors request to

convene a meeting of the Board of Directors and matters requiring the Beard of
Directors' opinion;:

— When detecting any member of the Board of Dircctors or the General Director
violating legal regulations, the Board of Supervisors must prepare a written request to
convene a meeting of the Board of Directors to request the violator to cease the
violation and provide solutions to remedy the consequences.

— The General Dircctor shall request a meeting of the Board of Directors when
seeking the Board of Directors' opinion on business or investment strategies or other
matters under the authority of the Board of Directors,

= In addition, the General Director may prepare a report on matters requiring
the opinion of the Board of Directors and obtain written voting opinions from the
Board members.

€) Report of the General Director to the Board of Directors on the
implementation of assigned duties and powers:

Periodically, at the quarterly Board of Directors meeting, the General Director
presents & reporl on the Company’s production and business situation, including
analysis and assessment of the level of completion of the targets assigned by the
Creneral Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of Directors.

f) Review of the implementation of resolutions and other matters authorized by
the Board of Directors to the General Director:

Annuvally, at the year-end Board of Directors meeting, the Board of Directors
conducts a review, criticism and self-criticism. whereby the General Director
acknowledges personal strengths and  weaknesses to  proactively improve
management, The Board of Directors also assesses the level of work completion and
votes on emulation titles for the Company.

2} Issues the General Director must report, provide information and metheds of
notification to the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors:
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— Matters under the authority of the Board of Directors as prescribed in the
Company's Charter and the Enterprise Law.

— Contracts and teansactions with affiliated persons of the Company's internal
persons.

— The General Director drafts matlers requiring opinions into a document and
sends it to the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the Head of the Board of
SUpErvIsors,

k) Coordination of control, administration, and supervision activities belween
members of the Board of Directors, members of the Board of Supervisors and the
General Director according to the specific tasks of the above members:

— The Board of Directors supervises the activities of the Board of General
Directors by attending company meetings and reviewing periodic reports on
production and business activities, as well as financial reports. The Board of
Supervisors is invited to attend meetings with the Board of Directors and the General
Director to provide comments and propose directions for the Company's operations,

Annually, the Board of Supervisors organizes at least 02 regular meetings to
control and supervise the Company's operations. The General Director of the
Company is responsible for providing adequate information, data, relevant documents
and supporting the Board of Supervisors in performing their duties.

2. Regulations on annual assessment for commendation and discipline of
members of the Board of Directors, members of the Board of Supervisors, the General
Director, and other enterprise executives:

a) Annual Evaluation:

~ Based on assigned functions and tasks, the Board of Directors organizes an
evaluation of the performance of each member of the Board of Directors, the Head of
the Board of Supervisors, the General Director and other executives.

— Based on assigned functions and tasks, the Head of the Board of Supervisors
organizes an evaluation of the performance of each member of the Board of
Supervisors.

b) Commendation:

— Based on production and business results, the Board of Dircetors submits to
the Annual General Shareholders® Meeting the decision on allocating a commendation
fund for the Board of Directors, General Director, executives, and the Board of
Supervisors.

— Pased on the annual evaluation results, the Board of Directors decides on the
awarding of bonuses to members of the Board of Directors, Supervisors, the General
Director and other executives.
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¢} Discipling:

— Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises, the Company Charter, and the Labor
Code, the Board of Directors shall review and submit disciplinary actions against any
violating Board member to the General Meeting of Sharcholders for decision.
Disciplinary measures range from reprimand, rebuke, warning, dismissal, to removal
from office,

— Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises, the Company Charter, and the Labor Code,
the Board of Supervisors shall review and submit disciplinary actions against any
vialating Supervisor to the General Meeting of Shareholders for decision. Disciplinary
measures range [rom reprimand, rebuke, waming, dismissal, to removal from office.

~ Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises, the Company Charler, and the Labor
Code, the Board of Directors shall review and decide on disciplinary actions against
the General Director or any executive officer in case of violation, Disciplinary
measures range from reprimand, rebuke, wamning, extension of the salary increase
period, dismissal, to removal from office.

Article 7. Amendment and Supplement

I. The amendment and supplement of this Charter must be considered by the
Board of Directors and submitted to the General Meeting of Sharcholders for
approval.

2. In the event that the law has provisions related to the Company's governance
activities that are not mentioned in this Charter or in the event of new legal regulations
that differ from the Content of the provisions in this Charter, those regulations shall
naturally apply and regulate the Company's governance activities.

Avrticle 8. Effective Date

The Regulations on Corporate Governance - Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding
Company (1™ amendment and supplement), consisting of 8 articles, were unanimously
approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders on April 11, 2025 and the full text

of this Charter was approved. All previous regulations contrary to this Charter are
hereby repealed,

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CHAIRMAN

Dinh Ngoc Thuan
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SONADEZI CORPORATION THE SOCTIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

SONADEZI CHAU DUC Independence - Freedom — Happiness
SHAREHOLDING COMPANY =

Draft

REGULATIONS ON OPERATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(Issued together with Decision No.......2023/0D-SZC-HDOT dated April 11, 2023
of the Board of Directors of Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding Company)

Pursuant to Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November 26, 2019,
amended by Law No. 56/2024/QH15 dated November 29, 2024,

Pursuant to Law on Enterprise No. 59%/2020/QH 14 dated June 17, 2020, amended
by Law No. 03/2022/0H15 dated January 11, 2022;

Pursuant to Decree No. 15572020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020 of the
Giovernment detailing the implementation of several articles of the Law on Securities;

Pursuant to Circular No, 116/2020/TT-BTC dated December 31, 2020 of the
Minister of Finance guiding several articles on corporate governance applied to public
companies in Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020 of the
Government detailing the implementation of several articles of the Law on Securities;

Pursuant to the Charter of Sonadezi Chau Dug Shareholding Company;

Pursuant to the Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders
N........2025/NQ-SZC-DHDCD dated April 11, 2025.

The Board of Directors promulgates the Regulations on Operation of the Board
of Directors of Sonadezi Chaw Duc Shareholding Company (amended and
supplemented for the 1" time) including the following contents:

CHAPTER 1
GENERAL PROVISIONS

Article 1. Governing scope and applicable entities

|, Governing scope: This Regulation guides several details regarding the
organization and operation of the Company's Board of Directors not yet stipulated in
the Company's Charter and the internal regulations on corporate govemance.

2. Applicable entities: This Regulation is applied to the Board of Directors and
its Members.

Article 2. Operating principles of the Board of Directors

|. The Board of Directors operates under the principle of collective leadership
and decides by majority.

2. Members of the Board of Directors are individually responsible for their
assigned tasks and jointly responsible to the General Meeting of Shareholders and the
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law for the resolutions and decisions of the Board of Directors regarding the
Company's operations,

3. The Board of Directors assigns responsibility to General Director to organize
the implementation of the Board's resolutions and decisions,

4. No Member of the Board of Directors may, in the name of the Board of
Directors, directly interfere in the daily management tasks of General Director.

CHAPTER I
MEMEER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Article 3. Rights and obligations of Member of the Board of Directors

1. A Member of the Board of Directors has full rights as prescribed by the Law
on Enterprises, the Law on Securities, relevant laws, and the Company's Charter,
including the right to reserve personal opinions.

2. A Member of the Board of Directors has the obligations stipulated in the
company's Charter and the following obligations:

a) Perform their duties honestly and carefully for the best interests of the
sharcholders and the Company;

b} Attend all meetings of the Board of Dircctors and express opinions on the
issues raised for discussion;

¢} Report promptly and fully to the Board of Directors all remunetations paid
from subsidiaries, affiliated companies, and other organizations;

d) Report to the Board of Directors at the nearest meeting all transactions
between the Company, its subsidiaries, other companies in which the Company holds a
controlling interest of 50% or more of the Regulations capital, with the Member of the
Board of Directors and their related persons; transactions between the Company and a
company in which a Member of the Board of Directors is a founding member or
business manager during the 03 years immediately preceding the transaction;

€) Publicly disclose information when conducting transactions of the Company's
sharcs as prescribed by law.

3. Independent Members of the Board of Directors must prepare an evaluation
teport on the activities of the Board of Directors,

Article 4. Right to Information of Members of the Board of Directors

I. Members of the Board of Directors have the right to request the General
Director, Deputy General Director, and other managers in the Company to provide
information and documents regarding the financial status and business activities of the
Company and its departments, divisions, and enterprises.

2. The requested managers must promptly, fully, and accurately  provide
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information and documents as requested by the Member of the Board of Directors.
Article 5. Chairman of the Board of Directors

As stipulated in Article 28 of the Company's Regulations and some regilations as
follows:

|, The Chairman of the Board of Directors exercises the rights and fulfills the
obligations as stipulated in the law, the Company's Regulations and the following
rights and obligations;

a) Has the right to suspend General Director's decisions that are conirary to the
decisions and resolutions of the Board of Directors;

b) On behalf of the Board of Directors, signs documents in the name of the
General Meeting of Shareholders (GMS) and the Board of Directors;

c) Approves business trips of the Member of the Board of Directors within and
outside the country using the company's funds.

2. For the smooth operation of management and timely resolution of urgemt
matters, the Board of Dircctors authorizes the Chairman of the Board 1o communicate
with Members of the Board of Directors and on behalf of the Board of Directors 1o
resolve urgent matters directly related to the Company's activities of production and
business, while also reporting on the results of resolved tasks at the nearest Board of
Directors meeting.

3, When deemed necessary, the Board of Directors shall decide to appoint a
Company Secretary. The Company Secretary shall have the following rights and
obligations:

a) Support the organization of meetings for the General Meeting of Sharcholders
(GMS) and the Board of Dircctors; record the minutes of the meetings.

b} Support the Members of the Board of Directors in exercising their assigned
rights and fulfilling their obligations.

¢) Support the Board of Directors in applying and implementing the corporate
governance principles,

d) Support the Company in building shareholder relations and protecting the
legitimate rights and interests of shareholders; compliance with information provision
obligations, information disclosure and administrative procedures.

e} Perform other rights and obligations as decided by the Board of Directors.

CHAFTER 111
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Article 6. Rights and obligations of the Board of Directors
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I. The Board of Directors exercises its rights and obligations in accordance with
the laws, the Company's Regulations, the General Meeting of Shareholders'
regulations, and the following rights and obligations:

a) Decide the base price for products and SETVICCS]
b) Decide on joint ventures and cooperation plans with other entities;

¢) Giving directions on proposals that the company's capital representatives
request;

d) Ratifying and enacting internal management regulations and rules of the
company, except for the following regulations and rules:

- Internal Spending Regulations;
- Accounting Procedures and Financial Reporting:
- Company's Internal Rules, Collective Labor A greement of the company;

- Regulations on the functions and duties of departments, divisions, and units
directly under the Company (excluding the Regulations on the functions, duties,
arganization, and operation of the Internal Audit Board);

- Regulations on personnel recruitment at the COMPAnYy;

- Regulations on training at the company;

- Regulations on implementing democracy at the workplace;
- Regulations on dialogue at the workplace;

- Regulations on organizing Employee Conferences;

- Regulations on spokespersons, information provision, and document
confidentiality of the company;

- Regulations on the format, technical presentation, and titles of the company's
documents;

- Regulations and processes applied according to the quality and environmental
management system 150 9001:2015 & 14001:2015;

- Regulations that the Board of Directors has authorized the General Director to
approve and issue.

2. The Board of Directors may utilize the company's apparatus, material and
technical facilities, and seals to perform its management functions.

3. In the evenl that a resolution or decision approved by the Board of Directors
violates the law, the resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders, or This
Regulations, causing damage to the company, the members who approve such
resolution or decision shall be jointly and severally liable for such resolution or
decision and shall compensate the company for the damage: members who object to

WA s o nadarichoddus, Somuyn




5

the aforementioned resolution or decision shall be exempted from liability, In this case,
the company's sharcholders have the right to request the Court to suspend the
implementation or annul the aforementioned resolution or decision.

Article 7. Sub-committees assisting the Board of Directors

I. When necessary, the Board of Directors may establish or dissclve sub-
comimittees under its authority to assist the Board of Directors. Personnel of these sub-
committess can be appointed by the Board of Directors from the company's concurrent
personnel or experts hired if deemed necessary.

2. The sub-committees operate according to the decisions of the Board of
Directors.

CHAPTER 1V
REPORTING, DISCLOSING INTERESTS

Article §. Annual Reporting

1. At the end of the fiscal vear, the Board of Directors must submit the following
reports to the General Meeting of Sharcholders:

a) Company's income statement;

b) Audited annual financial statements;

¢} Report evaluating the management and administration of the Company;
d) Appraisal report of the Board of Supervisors.

2, The reporis stipulated in points a, b, and ¢, clause 1 of this Article must be sent
to the Board of Supervisors for appraisal no later than 23 days before the opening date
of the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting.

3. The reports stipulated in clauses 1 and 2 of this Article, the appraisal report of
the Board of Supervisors, and the audit report must be kept at the Company’s head
office mo later than 10 days before the opening date of the Annual General
Sharcholders’ Meeting, Shareholders who have continuously held the Company’s
shares for at least one year have the right by themselves or with a lawyer, an
accountant, or 4 certified auditor directly examine the reports stipulated in this Article.

Article 9. Operating Cost of the Board of Directors

|. Operating cost of the Board of Directors is implemented as stipulated in
current regulations and included in the company's management cost, settled annually,
stated in Financial Stalements,

2. In addition to remuneration and salaries, the operating Cost of the Board of
Directors also includes:

- Board of Directors meeting cost, travel expenses, accommodation costs during
meetings;
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- Cost of domestic and international marlet research;
- Consulting Cost,

3. The yearly operating cost of the Board of Directors is planned in the
Company's total annual cost approved by the General Meeting of Sharcholders and
hased to implement.

CHAPTER YV
RELATIONSHIP OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Article 10. Management Mechanism of the Board of Directors for the
Company's Branches and Representative Offices

[. Board of Directors does not directly manage the Company's branches and
representative offices. General Director manages these units and is responsible for
reparting to the Board of Directors on their operational situations, results, and arising
issues under the Board of Directors’ authority to resolve.

2. When necessary, Board of Directors will request Branch Directors and Heads
of Representative Offices to provide information according to Article 4 of the
Regulations on Operation of the Board of Directors.

Article 11. Relationship between Members of the Board of Directors

I. The relationship between the Member of the Board of Directors is
coordination, Members of the Board of Directors are responsible for informing each
other about relevant matters during processing assigned tasks,

2. During the process of task handling, the assigned Member of the Board of
Diirectors must proactively coordinate to handle matters in charge, particularly if
matiers relate to areas under other Members of the Board of Directors’ responsibility,
In case there are different opinions among Members of the Board of Directors, the
primarily responsible Member of the Board of Directors shall report to Chairperson of
the Board of Directors for consideration and decision accordmg to histher authority, or
organize a meeting or solicit opinions from Members of the Board of Directors
according to the provisions of law, the Company Charter and Regulations.

3. Members of the Board of Directors must report to the Board of Directors
results of performing assigned tasks. In special cases, they must promptly report to the
Chairman of the Board of Directors for review and resolution.

4. In case of reassignment among the Members of the Board of Directors,
Members of the Board of Directors must handover tasks, related documents and
materials. This handover must be documented in writing and reported to Chairman of
the Board of Directors.

Article 12. Relationship with the Board of Management

With the management role, Board of Directors issues resolutions for General
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Director and execulive apparatus to implement. Concurrently, Board of Directors
ingpects and supervises the implementation of the resolutions.

Article 13. Relationship with the Board of Supervisors

1. The relationship between Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors is a
collaborative relationship, The working relationship between Board of Directors and
Board of Supervisors follows the principles of equality and independence, closely
eoordinating and supporting together in the performance of their dutics.

2. Upon receiving inspection minutes or summary reports from the Board of
Supervisors, the Board of Directors is responsible for studying and directing relevant
departments to develop plans and implement timely rectifications.

CHAFPTER V1
AMENDMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTS

Article 14. Amendments and Supplements

1. Amendments and supplements to Regulations must be reviewed by the
Company’s Board of Direclors and submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders
for approval.

2. In the event that the law has provisions related to the operation of the Board of
Directors not mentioned in the Regulations or in the event of new legal provisions that
differ from the contents of the clauses in Regulations, such provisions shall naturally
apply and govern the Company's management activities.

CHAPTER V1
IMPLEMENTATION CLAUSES

Article 15, Effective Date

The Regulations on Operation of the Board of Directors of Sonadezi Chau Duc
Sharcholding Company (1™ amendment and supplement), consisting of 07 chapters
and 15 articles, was unanimously approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders on
April 11, 2025, thereby ratifying the full effect of these Regulations. Prior conflicting
provisions are hereby repealed.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CHATRMAN

Dinh Mgoe Thuan
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SONADEZI CORPORATION THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF YIETNAM
SONADEZI CHAU DUC Independence - Freedom — Happiness
SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

Mo: 742025 TT-SZ2C-HDOT Chau Duc, March 31, 2023

PROPOSAL
Regarding the dismissal of a Member of the Board of Supervisors and the

election of a replacement Member of the Board of Supervisors for the
remaining of Term IV (2022 - 2027)

To: General Meeting of Shareholders.

On March 18, 2025, the Company's Board of Directors received the resignation
letter of Ms, Trinh Thi Hoa - Member of the Board of Supervisors (BOS), requesting
resignation from the position of BOS member from April 10, 2025,

Therefore, at the upcoming 2025 Annual General Sharcholders® Meeting, the
Board of Dircetors of the Company submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders
for approval the dismissal of the position of BOS member for Ms, Trinh Thi Hoa, and
at the same time, conducts the election of (01 additional BOS member for the
remaining of Term IV (2022 - 2027).

Regarding the nomination/candidacy for Member of the Board of Supervisors:
Sharcholders have the right to combine voting rights to nominate candidates for the
Rouard of Directors. A shareholder or group of sharcholders holding from 10% of the
total voting shares or more shall be entitled to nominate candidates for election as
additional members of the Board of Supervisors.

As of 4:00 PM on March 31, 2025, ten days before the General Meeting of
Shareholders as stipulated in the Articles of Association, the Company's Internal
Governance Regulations, and the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting Rules for
2025, shareholders and shareholder groups have submitted nominations to the
Company as follows:

Ms. Nguyen Thanh Huong: nominated by Sonadezi Corporation (holding
46.84%)

Date of birth: August @, 1993 Place of birth: Dong Nai

ID: 075193001430, Date of issuance: April 7, 2021, Issued by: Police
Department on Administrative Management of Social Order

Address: 1/10/43, 7" Quarter, Binh Da Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai
Province.

Educational background: Bachelor of Accounting, Master's degree in
Accounting,
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The election of additional members of the Board of Supervisors shall be carried
out by cumulative voting in accordance with the provisions of the Enterprise Law, the
Company's Charter, the Working Regulations of the General Meeting of Sharcholders,
and the Guidelines for Nomination - Candidacy - Blection of additional Members of
the Board of Supervisors of Sonadezi Chan Duc Sharcholding Company,

Regards,

Recipienis:
= As above;
- Archives: Secretariat,
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SONADEZI CORPORATION THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

SONADEZI CHAU DUC Independence - Freedom — Happiness
SHAREHOLDING COMPANY '
Mo: 82.2025/TTr-SZC-KHTH Chau Duc, April 16,2025
PROPOSAL

Regarding the approval of the policy to discontinue the use of the Greg
Norman Brand and Shark Logo for the Chau Due Golf Course

To: The General Meeting of Shareholders.

Based on the current situation of the Chau Due golf course Project
implementation.

=

e iyl

The Board of Directors of Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding Company (82C) /7o

e

respectfully reports to the General Meeting of Sharcholders as follows: I.':r'_': 7 it
1. Overview of the Chan Duc Golf course Project implementation: Il SONA

- Project implementation name: Chau Duc Golf Course ";-; x“"‘ L

- Location: Suoi Nghe Commune, Chau Duc District, Ba Ria-Vung Tau f -5
Province
_ Investment objective: The Chau Due golf course Project implementation is
invested and constructed in accordance with the policy of economic development and
the policy of encouraging tourism development of Ba Ria - Vung Tau province. The
completed Project implementation will transform a desolate agricultural land into a
service - tourism spot, contributing to increasing utility services Lo attract domestic and
foreign investors to promote investment in the Chau Duc Industdal Park and urban
arda.

- Scale: Chau Duc Golf Course has 36 holes, with a total area of 152ha,
including two 18-hole courses (Resort Golf Course and Tournament Golf Course).
Tterns in Chau Duc Golf Course include:

+ Resort 18-hole golf course, area of 77.56 ha, including: Golf courses,
Drainage system, Irrigation system, Electric car road, Crass planting,
+ Tournament 18-hole golf course, area of 74.44 ha, meluding: Golf courses,
Drainage system, Irrigation system, Electric car road, Grass planting,
+ Auxiliary items of the Golf Course include: Clubhouse, Golf practice area,
Rest stop, Maintenance and maintenance workshop, Stafl house, Chemical and
pesticide storage, Pumping station, Electrical stalion, Golf course landscape + Internal
roads, parking lot + Gate, fence,
- Design consultant: Greg Norman Design Consulting Company (Greg
Worman),
- Type and level of construction: Civil construction, Level 1.

- Total investment (excluding loan interest during construction) 13
approximately VND 1,264 billion.

2. Investment activities of Chan Due golf conrse:
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With the goal of increasing investment attraction for Chau Duc Industrial Park
urban real estate, starting construction from 2018, up to now, the 18-hole Resort golf
course, Clubhouse and auxiliary items have been completed and officially put into
operation since March, 2022,

Total realized investment cost (until March, 2025): VND 747,628 million.

3. Chau Due Golf Course Brand:

= The 36-hole Chau Duc Golf Course was designed by Greg Norman through a
golf course design Contracts signed between SZC and Greg Norman in Octaber, 2010,
Up to now, the construction of the 18-hole Resort golf course has been completed and
aceepted by Greg Norman for use.

- In order to promote the image and Brand identity of Chau Duc Golf Course to
the local and national golfer community, 8ZC has exchanged and cocrdinated with
Greg Norman to complete the design drawings related to the use of the Greg Norman
Brand and Shark logo. On that basis, SZC has also implemented the installation of the
Greg Norman Brand identity and Shark logo for some locations of the Clubhouse and
the Resort golf course.

- The use of Greg Norman Identity and Shark logo in the production amnd
business activities of Chau Duc golf course has some advantages and difficulties as

follows:
a. Advantages:
Greg Norman is one of the most famous names in the world of golf, as a

legendary athlete and a talented golf course designer. The Gireg Norman Brand brings
significant value to golf courses, such as:

% Prestige and class:
- Greg Norman is an icon of golf, a golf course carrying Greg Norman's Brand
signifies class and quality affirmation,
- Aftract professional golfers and high-end customers seeking top-tier golf
experiences,
% Unique and challenging design: The golf courses designed by Greg Norman
often feature natural terrains, maximizing the beauty of the surrounding landscape.
% International reputation: The Greg Norman Brand has a global reach, helping
golf courses become widely known and attracting golf tourists from all over the world,
b. Infficulties and obstacles:

Besides the advantages of using the Greg Norman Brand, there are also some
challenges and difficulties, such as:

% In using the Greg Norman Brand:
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- Coat: Collaborating with a well-known Brand like Greg Norman requires a
significant investment Cost, from design and construction to maittenance and
promotion.

- Exclusivity: The Contracts terms may bind the golf course in using the Brand
and adbering to strict standards, limiting flexibility in management and development.

% In implementing the Contracts:

- According to the Golf Course Design Contracts, in casc of any substitution
or change in design, the Greg Norman Company's written approval must be obtained
before implementation. In the event that Greg Norman's consent has not been obtained
bul the substitution or change is still implemented, the right to use Greg Hnn‘nﬂ:ﬂ 3
identity will be lost. This makes it difficult to adjust the golf course design dlmn a

'|
21

opetation to suit the requirements at each time. IEZ [ *

i
- Besides that, according to the Contracts, before issuing or distriby Ui

documents or products using the Greg Norman Identity or Shark Logo, the- Gre:g
Norman Company's approval must be obtained. This causes difficulties and prolongs
the time in implementing communication publications and gifi products to promote the
golf course.

- In addition, the Cost for maintaining and preserving the golf course grass m
the Green, Fairway, and Teebox areas is relatively high to meet the requirements
according to Greg Norman's standards, affecting the polf course's business production
efficiency.

- Currently, the Golf Course Design Contracts has expired (December 317,
2024} however, Greg Norman has not yet agreed to extend the implementation time of
the golf course design Contracts, and has requested a Contracts extension Cost of USD
15,000 per a month (This clause is not specified in the golf course design Contracts
that the two Parties have signed).

4. Proposals and recommendations:

The use of the Greg Norman Brand and Shark logo in the past has brought certain
cffects: domestic and foreign golfers have also known Sonadezi Chau Duc's 18-hole
Golf Resort as a high-class golf course that meets the criteria and standards to meet
players' actual experience needs.

The implementation of the Resort golf course design with Greg Norman has also
helped the Company gain more experience in design, understand the principles as well
as the steps to implement related procedures, thereby being able to apply them flexibly
to the next phase of the project — Phase 2 — 18-hole Tournament Golf Course,
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However, in addition (o the achievements, there are still many difficulties and
obstacles that affect design adjustment, phase 1 operation, and phasc 2 implemeniation
progress. Furthermore, Greg Norman is also not willing to negotiate a Contracts
extension unless it comes with a commercial term (SZC must pay an unreasonable
additional Cost).

To facilitate SZC's proactive adjustment of design and reduction of foreign expert
hiring costs during the implementation of Phase 2 - the 18-hole Tournament course, as
well as to facilitate the Golf course aperation, The Board of Directors requests the
approval of the General Meeting of Shareholders on the following matters:

L. Approve the policy of discontinuing the use of the Greg Norman brand
identity and Shark Logo for the Chau Duc Golf course.

2. Assign the Company's Board of Directors to implement the related procedures
in accordance with regulations.

Best Regards,
) b
Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE BOD
- As above; il TAN
- Archive: Secretariat, BOD. f_.;"-'::'r-ui:-llﬂ“-i'::-'.‘:: N
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SONADEZI CORPORATION THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

SONADEZI CHAU DUC Independence - Freedom — Happiness
SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
Mo.: e 2025MNQ-S3Z2C-DHDCD Chau Due, ..., 2025
Diraft
RESOLUTILON

2025 ANNUAL GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING
SONADEZI CHAU DUC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated 17/6/2020, amended
and supplemented by Law No, 03/2022/QH15 dated 11/01/2022;

Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated 26/11/2019, amended
and supplemented by Law No. 36/2024/QHLS dated 20/11/2024;
Pursuant to the Charter of Sonadezi Chau Duc Shareholding Company;

Pursuant 1o the Minutes of the ballot counting of the contents at the 2023 Annual
Gieneral Sharcholders® Meeting of Sonadezi Chau Due Shareholding Company.

RESOLVED

Article 1. Approved Report No. §7.2025/BC-SZC-HDQT dated March 20™ 2025
of the Board of Dircctors on production and business activities, corporate governance,
implementation of investment projects in 2024, evaluation of activities in 2024 by the
Board of Directors, and the Assessment report of the independent Board of Directors’
members.

Article 2. Approved Report No. §5.2025/BC-SZC-HDQT dated March 20%, 2025
of the Board of Directors on the results and usage of capital raised from the issuance of
additional shares to existing shareholders.

Article 3, Approved Report No. 56.2025/BC-82C-HDOQT dated Mareh 20™, 2025
of the Board of Directors on Private Corporate Bond Issuance activities,

Article 4. Approved some key performance indicators of the Company in 2024 as
follows:

NO. CONTENT UNIT 2024 ACTUAL

Revenue Million YND 010,893

2 Profit after tax Million VND 302,127

3 '.l'utal state budget liabilities Million VND 148,035
incurred

g R SRR Million VND 304,557
investment

5 | Compensation for land Million VND 202,400
clearance
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Article 5. Approved the 2023 operating plan with the following key performance
indicators;

NO. CONTENT UNIT 2025 PLAN

1 | Revenue Million VIND 930,896

2 | Profit after tax Million VND 302277
Total state budget liabilities -

3 — Million VND 148,200

4 | Basic construction investment Million VIND 437617
Compensation for land o

5 el Million VIND 1,207,710

Article 6. Approved the 2024 financial statements of Sonadezi Chau Duc
Shareholding Company, which have been audited by RSM Vietnam Auditing &
Consulting Co., Ltd.

Article 7. Approved the Board of Supervisors's report on the supervision of
production and business activities in 2024 at Sonaderi Chay Due Shareholding
Company.,

Article 8. Approved the list of 03 Auditing companies proposed by the Board of
Supervisors, including;

1. CPA VietNam Auditing Co., Ltd. (CPA VIETNAM);
2. RSM Vietnam Auditing & Consulting Co., Ltd, (RSM);
3, A&C Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd. {A&C).

Authorizes the Board of Directors to select ane of the above three companies to
audit the 2025 financial statements of Sonadezi Chau Duc Sharcholding Company.

Article 9. Approved the plan for allocation to funds and distribution of 2024
profil as follows:

No. Content {‘,:,ﬂ‘l'; Y% EAT
1 | Chiditereepital 1,799,858 630,000
2| Profit after tax (EAT) 302,127,157,852
Allocation to funds 75,740,000,000 25.07%
3.1 | Development Investment Fund S0,000,000,000 16.55%
32 | Reward and Welfare Fund 12,000,000,000 397%
3.3 | Community Social Work Fund 7,000,000,000 232% |
34 | Manager's Bonus Fund 740,000,000 0.24%
i 15 ﬂfnc;:cy and Related Parties Work ﬁ,l}ﬂﬂ',ﬂﬁ'ﬂ, 000 1990,
4 | Remaining profit after fund allocation 226,387,157, 852
| 5 | Remaining Profit from Previous Year 241,455,752,034
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No. Content {ﬁ‘l‘; % EAT
6 | Total Remaining Profit 467,842,909,886
7 | Dividends
7.1 | Percentage 10%
7.2 | Estimated value 179,985 863,000
4 gzr:.ij;i;im profit carried forward to 287 857,046,886
Article 10. Approved the profit distribution plan for 2025 as follows:
No. | CONTENT m} :;t:r"'i'f:
1 Charter capital 1,799 858,630,000
2 | Profit after tax 102,277,058,774
Allocation to funds 73,900,000,000 24 4%
3.1 | Development investment fund S0,000,000,000 16.5%_
3.2 | Reward and Welfare Fund 10,000,000,000 3.3%
3.3 | Community Social Work Fund 7, 000,000,000 2.3%
3.4 | Manager's Bonus Fund S00,000,040) 0.3%
35 ;ngt,:gcy and Related Parties World ,000,000,000 2.0%
4 Rmn;ining profit after fund allocation 228.377,058,774
5 | Remaining profit from previous year 2R7,857,046,886
] Total remaining profit 516,234,105,660
7 | Dividend -
7.1 | Percentage 10%G
7.2 | Estimated value 179,985,863,000
P ﬁ;mﬂainmlﬁ E|;llr|::|ﬁt carried forward to 136.248,242,660

The allocation to the employee welfare and reward fund and the management
reward fund in 2025 will be based on the production and business results of 2025 and
current regulations.

Article 11. Approved the 2024 remuneration and salaries of the Board of
Directors, the Board of Supervisors, and the Company Secretary / Person in charge of
Corporate Governance as follows:

- Salary of the full-time Head of the Board of Supervisors: 29,200,000
VNDmonth
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- Remuneration of Board of Directors’ members: 8,000,000 VNIVperson/month

- Remuneration of the Board of Supervisors’ members, Company Secretary/

Person in charge of Corporate Governance: 4,000,000 VMDY person/month

Based on the production and business results of 2024 and according to the
provisions of Circular 28/2016/TT-BLDTRXH:

+ The total approved remuneration fund of the Board of Directors, the Board of
Supervisors, and Person in charge of Corporate Governance in 2024 is VND
1 498,000,000

The dedicated Head of the Board of Supervisors’ salary, subject to final setilement
for the vear, is VIND 837,293,000,

Article 12. Approval of the proposed remuneration and salaries for the year 2025
for the Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors, Com pany Secretary/ Person in charge
of Corporate Governance as follows:

Monthly provisional allowance:

- Dedicated Head of the Board of Supervisors® salary: 34,200,000 YND/month
- Board of Directors’ members® remuneration: 8,000,000 VND/person/month
- Remuneration for Member of the Board of Supervisors, Company Secretary/
Corporate Governance Officer: 4,000,000 VND/person/month

Based on the production and business results of 2025, the actual salary fund of the
Head of the Board of Supervisors and the actual remuneration of the Board of Directors
and the Member of the Board of Supervisors will be finalized within the salary fund
and the remuneration fund for managers in accordance with current regulations.

Article 13. Authorizes the Board of Directors to approve the adjustment of salary
and remuneration contents under the authority of the General Meeting of Shareholders
if there is a change in relevant laws, The Board of Directors will report back on these
salary and remuneration adjustments at the nearest General Meeting of Shareholders.

Article 14. Approval of the adjustment of several business lines of the Company,
detailed as follows:

No. Business lines and industries after adjustment Cuode

Real estate business, land use rights of the owner, user or lessee
Details; Real estate business,

(operates only when fully qualified to conduct business as pre-scribed | £g1q
! | by law and in accordance with Article 10 of the Real Estate Business (M)
Law No. 29/2023/Q1115 dated November 28, 2023),

- Exclusion: Investment in the construction of cemetery infrastructure
tor the transfer of land use rights associated with the in-frastructure.
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No. Business lines and industries alter adjustment Caode

Architectural activities and related technical consultancy.

Destails:

- Surveying, topographic mapping, and geological drilling.

|- Consulting on design, planning, and investment project formula-tion.

2 |- Consulting on project management, supervision, appraisal, and| 7110
inspection of civil, industrial, transportation, and technical in-
frastructure construction works,

(operates only when fully qualified to conduct business as pre-scribed
by law).

Article 15. Approval of the 15" amendment and supplement to the Company's
Charter, effective from Agpril 11, 2025, The Board of Directors and the Company's
legal representative are authorized to issue the amended Charter in accordance with
regulations.

Article 16. Approval of the Internal Regulations on Corporate Governance and
the Regulations on Operation of the Board of Directors of Sonadezi Chau Duc
Shareholding Company (1% amendment and supplement), effective fom April 11,
2025, The Board of Directors is authorized to issue and implement these regulations in
accordance with the prevailing regulations.

Article 17, Approval of the dismissal of Ms. Trinh Thi Hoa from the position of
Member of the Board of Supervisors.

Article 18. Approval of the election results and the elected Member of the Board
of Supervisors for the remaining term of term IV (2022 - 2027), being

Article 19. Approve the policy of discontinuing the use of the Greg Norman
brand identity and Shark Logo for the Chau Due Golf course.

Article 20, Implementing Clause

This resolution is fully adopted at the 2025 Annual General Shareholders’
Mecting of Sonadezi Chau Duc Sharcholding Company and is effective from the date
of signing, The Board of Directors, Board of General Directors of the Company and
relevant individuals are to implement tasks according to the provisions of ths
resolution.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE GENERAL
- Company Sharcholders MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
{posted on the Company's website]; ;

e CHATRMAN OF BOD

- 85C, HOSE;

- Archive: Sccretariat, GMS.

Dinh Ngoc Thuan
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